
   City of  Escondido 
Council Meeting Agenda 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 01, 2021

5:00 PM - Regular Session 
Escondido City Council Chambers, 201 North Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

WELCOME TO YOUR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
We welcome your interest and involvement in the legislative process of Escondido. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by City staff.  

MAYOR 
Paul McNamara 

DEPUTY MAYOR 
Michael Morasco (District 4) 

COUNCILMEMBERS 
Consuelo Martinez (District 1) 

Tina Inscoe (District 2) 
Joe Garcia (District 3) 

CITY MANAGER 
Sean McGlynn 

CITY ATTORNEY 
Michael McGuinness 

CITY CLERK 
Zack Beck 

HOW TO WATCH 
The City of Escondido provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person On TV Online 

201 N. Broadway Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 www.escondido.org 

1

http://www.escondido.org/


Wednesday, December 01, 2021 

HOW TO PARTICIPATE 
The City of Escondido provides two ways to communicate with the City Council during a meeting: 

In Person In Writing 

Fill out Speaker Slip and Submit to City Clerk https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx 

ASSISTANCE PROVIDED 

If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 760-839-4643. 
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable to city to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

2

https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx


Wednesday, December 01, 2021 

REGULAR SESSION 
5:00 PM Regular Session 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION 

City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening 
meeting.  The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not 
endorse or sanction any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this 
portion of the agenda, please notify the City Clerk in advance.   

FLAG SALUTE 

The City Council conducts the Pledge of Allegiance at the beginning of every City Council meeting. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Roll Call: Garcia, Inscoe, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 

PRESENTATIONS 

Police Reserve Officer Retirement  

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which is not 
on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law prohibits 
the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff 
or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under 
Oral Communications. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, Council 
members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request or at the 
request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING, AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB) -

3



Wednesday, December 01, 2021 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council) -
Request the City Council approve the City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers:

a.358096 - 358315 dated November 9, 2021

b.358316 - 358427 dated November 17, 2021

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting of November 17, 2021

4. CONSULTING AGREEMENT FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS INSURANCE BROKER SERVICES -

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor to execute a Consulting Agreement with HUB

International Employee Benefits for Benefits Insurance Broker Services.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Human Resources Department: Jessica Perpetua)

a. Resolution No. 2021-175

5. EKG CARDIAC MONITOR PURCHASE -

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor to execute a Public Service Agreement (“PSA”)

with Zoll Medical Corporation for the purchase of six EKG Cardiac Monitors, associated equipment and

supplies, maintenance agreement and data subscription.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Fire Department: Rick Vogt)

a. Resolution No. 2021-179R

6. PURCHASE ONE TYPE THREE WILDLAND BRUSH ENGINE FROM BOISE MOBILE EQUIPMENT INC. OF

BOISE, IDAHO -

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Fleet Services Division to purchase one (1) Type 3

Boise Mobile Equipment wildland brush engine from Boise Mobile Equipment Inc. in the amount of

$399,872.73 through a Cooperative Purchase Contract with the State of California, Contract No.

1-17-23-21B. The State of California cooperative purchase price includes all taxes, delivery, operator and

mechanic training, and all associated fees.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Joseph Goulart)

a. Resolution No. 2021-182

4



Wednesday, December 01, 2021 

7. PURCHASE THREE MEDIX AMBULANCES FROM REPUBLIC EMERGENCY VEHICLE SALES (REPUBLIC-EVS)
THROUGH SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE SALES OF KENNEDALE, TEXAS -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Fleet Services Division to purchase three (3) Medix
Ambulances from Republic-EVS through Southwest Ambulance Sales in the amount of $786,290.26
through a Cooperative Purchase Contract with the Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC), Contract No
AM10-20. The HGAC purchase price includes all taxes, delivery, operator and mechanic training, and all
associated fees.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Joseph Goulart)

a. Resolution No. 2021-181

8. PURCHASE THREE SUTPHEN MONARCH FIRE ENGINES FROM SUTPHEN INC. OF DUBLIN, OHIO -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Fleet Services Division to purchase three (3) Sutphen
Monarch fire engines from Sutphen Inc. in the amount of $2,452,493.03 through a cooperative purchase
contract with Sourcewell, Contract No. 022818-SUT. The cooperative purchase price through Sourcewell
includes all taxes, delivery, operator and mechanic training, apparatus inspections in Dublin Ohio, and all
associated fees.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Joseph Goulart)

a. Resolution No. 2021-180

9. JOINT-USE PARKING AGREEMENT WITH CLASSICAL ACADEMY FOR USE OF PARKING SPACES IN A CITY-
OWNED PARKING LOT ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WOODWARD AVENUE, LOCATED AT 251 WOODWARD
AVENUE (PL21-0026) -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Director of Community Development to execute a
Joint-Use Parking Agreement with Classical Academy for the use of up to 33 parking spaces in the City-
owned Woodward Avenue parking lot located at 251 Woodward Avenue.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Adam Finestone)

a. Resolution No. 2021-186

10. ACCEPTANCE OF $3,375 SAN DIEGO SENIORS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION HOLIDAY GRANT -
Request the City Council approve  authorizing the Communications and Community Services
Department to accept up to $3,375 in grant funds from the San Diego Seniors Community Foundation,
and approve the budget adjustment needed to expend the funds. These funds will be utilized to provide
holiday-themed meals, events and activities to the older adults in Escondido.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Communications and Community Services Department: Joanna
Axelrod)

a. Resolution No. 2021-187

5



Wednesday, December 01, 2021 

CONSENT RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/RRB at a previous City 
Council/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to 
have been read and further reading waived.) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

11. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY FOR THE ACQUISITION OF A DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
OVER A PORTION OF FELICITA COUNTY PARK IDENTIFIED AS A COUNTY ASSESSOR PARCEL NO. 238-
380-06-00 -
Request the City Council approve adopting Resolution No. 2021-174R making the requisite findings 
under California law to acquire certain real property through eminent domain proceedings to expand 
existing drainage facilities located in, on or upon Felicita County Park in connection with the Oak Creek 
residential development project. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Attorney's Office: Michael McGuinness) 

a. Resolution No. 2021-174R

12. AMENDMENT TO ESCONDIDO MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 14 PERTAINING TO SOLID WASTE AND
RECYCLING, AND CHAPTER 22 PERTAINING TO WASTEWATERS, STORMWATERS, AND RELATED
MATTERS -
Request the City Council approve amending Chapters 14 (Garbage and Rubbish) and 22 (Wastewaters,
Stormwaters, and Related Matters) of the Escondido Municipal Code.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher McKinney)

a. Ordinance No. 2021-15 (First Reading and Introduction)

b. Ordinance No. 2021-16 (First Reading and Introduction)

6



 
 Wednesday, December 01, 2021 

 
 
CURRENT BUSINESS 

13. WEST 7TH AVENUE AND SOUTH BROADWAY WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT: BID AWARD, 
CONSULTING AGREEMENT, AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT- 
Request the City Council approve 1) Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Public Improvement Agreement 
with the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the construction of the West 7th Avenue and 
South Broadway Water Main Replacement Project; 2) Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Consulting 
Agreement for Construction Management Services; and 3) Approve a Budget Adjustment. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher McKinney) 

a. Resolution No. 2021-159 

b. Resolution No. 2021-161 

14. CITY OF ESCONDIDO INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION UPDATE AND BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council receive and file an update regarding the Independent Redistricting Commission 
and approve a budget adjustment in the amount of to be determined by the City Council for enhanced 
public outreach.   

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck) 

WORKSHOP 

15. HOMELESSNESS AND TRANSIENCY UPDATE - 
Request the City Council receive and file a presentation outlining the status of services provided to the 
homeless and at risk of homeless population in the City of Escondido. Information will be presented on 
the current City contracts as well as other service providers within the City of Escondido. The goal is to 
convey the services available and identified challenges due to a lack of resources. 

Staff Recommendation: Receive and File (City Manager's Office: Rob Van De Hey) 

FUTURE AGENDA 

16. FUTURE AGENDA 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed.  

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck) 
  

7



 
 Wednesday, December 01, 2021 

 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS AND OTHER REPORTS 

CITY MANAGER’S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety, and Community Development. This report is also available on the City’s website, 
www.escondido.org. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which is 
not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 
prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 
Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the 
Council under Oral Communications. 

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 

Wednesday, December 15, 2021     4:00 & 5:00 PM     Regular Meeting, Council Chambers 
Wednesday, January 12, 2022          4:00 & 5:00 PM     Regular Meeting, Council Chambers 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

Members of the Escondido City Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the Community Development 
Commission, Escondido Joint Powers Financing Authority, and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

8



 
 

 
Consent Item No. 1  December 1, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A F F I D A V I T S 
 

OF 
 

I T E M  
 

P O S T I N G 

9

Item 1.



 

Staff Report - Council 

 Consent Item No. 2            December 1, 2021     File No. 0400-40 

 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Warrants 
 

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Request approval for City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers: 
 
358096 – 358315 dated November 9, 2021 
358316 – 358427 dated November 17, 2021 
 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 
The total amount of the warrants for the following periods are as follows: 
  
November 4 – November 9, 2021, is $ 2,146,283.71  
November 10 – November 17, 2021, is $ 4,450,502.74 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Escondido Municipal Code Section 10-49 states that warrants or checks may be issued and paid 
prior to audit by the City Council, provided the warrants or checks are certified and approved by the 
Director of Finance as conforming to the current budget. These warrants or checks must then be ratified 
and approved by the City Council at the next regular Council meeting. 

10

Item 2.



 

 

November 17, 2021 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 1 of 7 
 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
4:30 PM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

1. Roll Call: Garcia, Inscoe, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code sec. 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

     a.     Zak v. City of Escondido 
            Case No. 37-2020-00000028-CU-PO-NC 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code sec. 
54956.9(d)(4)) 

       a.  In re National Prescription Opiate Litigation  
            United States District Court, District of Ohio, Eastern Div.  
            Case No. 1:17-MD-2804 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor McNamara adjourned the meeting at 4:45 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________   _______________________________ 

MAYOR       CITY CLERK 
 

11

Item 3.



 

 

November 17, 2021 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 2 of 7 
 

 

 

 
REGULAR SESSION 

5:00 PM Regular Session 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION 

Zack Beck, City Clerk 

FLAG SALUTE 

Mike McGuinness, City Attorney 

CALL TO ORDER 

Roll Call: Garcia, Inscoe, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT 

2.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code sec. 
54956.9(d)(4)) 

       a.  In re National Prescription Opiate Litigation  
            United States District Court, District of Ohio, Eastern Div.  
            Case No. 1:17-MD-2804 

COUNCIL ACTION: Voted 5-0 to authorize City Manager or City Attorney to execute all documents in all 
national settlement agreements and to receive settlement funds with the provision that staff will update 
Council on final payout amount. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

Bob Martin - Expressed concern over Airbnb rentals in Escondido. 

Christopher Aldama - Expressed concern over Airbnb rentals in Escondido. 

12

Item 3.



 

 

November 17, 2021 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 3 of 7 
 

Erica Carter - Program Coordinator with Vista Community Clinic. Healthy Escondido Coalition. Promoting 
active living in Escondido.  

Beth Mercurio - Escondido Community Garden.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Motion to approve all consent calendar items except item 5: Inscoe; Second: Martinez; Vote: Approved 5-
0 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (COUNCIL) - 
Request the City Council approve the City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant 
numbers. 

a. 357637 - 357890 dated October 27, 2021 
b. 357891 - 358095 dated November 3, 2021 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meetings of October 27, 2021 and November 3, 2021 

4. FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 STATE OF CALIFORNIA CITIZENS' OPTION FOR PUBLIC SAFETY 
PROGRAM GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a FY 
2021-22 Citizens’ Option for Public Safety Program Grant in the amount of $232,380; approve 
grant expenditures consistent with guidelines in AB1913; authorize the Chief of Police or his 
designee to execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve budget adjustments 
needed to spend grant funds. The Escondido Police Department received a FY 2021-22 
Citizens’ Option for Public Safety Program Grant award in the amount of $232,380. This grant 
supports front-line law enforcement services with the intention of enhancing public safety 
within the community. Grant funds must supplement existing funding and be used to augment 
Police Services. The Police Department proposes to use its allocation to cover part-time 
employees’ salaries and benefits. These part-time employees perform support services that 
allow front-line law enforcement officers to handle high-priority calls. (File No. 0480-70) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Edward Varso) 
  

13

Item 3.



 

 

November 17, 2021 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 4 of 7 
 

5. BID AWARD FOR THE ESCONDIDO CREEK TRAIL CROSSINGS PROJECT - 
Request the City Council approve to authorize awarding the construction contract to Tri-Group 
Construction, Inc. which was determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder.  Authorize the Mayor to execute a Public Improvement Agreement in the amount of 
$1,277,723 for the Escondido Creek Trail Bike Path Improvements Project. (File No. 0600-10, A-
3388) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

a. Resolution No. 2021-133 

Motion: Garcia; Second: Morasco; Vote: Approved 5-0 

CONSENT RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/RRB at a 
previous City Council/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of Ordinances listed on the Consent 
Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

6. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING MEMBERSHIP IN CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE, A COMMUNITY CHOICE 
AGGREGATION PROGRAM - 
Approved on October 27, 2021 with a vote of 5/0. 

a. Ordinance No. 2021-12 (Second Reading and Adoption)  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

7. DECLARATION OF RESPONSE LEVEL ONE - WATER SHORTAGE DROUGHT WATCH 
CONDITION - 
Request the City Council approve adopting Resolution No. 2021-177, moving the City of 
Escondido to Water Shortage Response Level One. (File No. 0145-80) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

a. Resolution No. 2021-177 

Motion: Morasco; Second: Inscoe; Vote: Approved 5-0 
  

14

Item 3.



 

 

November 17, 2021 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 5 of 7 
 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

8. DESIGNATION OF CITY OWNED SURPLUS LAND – SMALL PARCELS - 
Request the City Council approve adopting Resolution No. 2021-73R to designate city-owned 
parcels as surplus land. (File No. 0690-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Economic Development Department: Jennifer Schoeneck) 

a. Resolution No. 2021-73R 

Motion: Morasco; Second: Martinez; Vote: Approved 5-0 

9. CITY OF ESCONDIDO INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION UPDATE AND BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council receive and file an update regarding the Independent Redistricting 
Commission and approve a budget adjustment in the amount of $50,000 for enhanced public 
outreach. (File No. 0430-80) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck) 

Item moved to December 1, 2021 

WORKSHOP 

10. TRANSPORTATION SAFETY WORKSHOP - 
Request the City Council receive a presentation and hold a workshop to discuss transportation 
safety. (File No. 1050-30) 

Staff Recommendation: None (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

Elias Velasquez – Expressed support for better traffic safety in Escondido. 

Lucrecia Ibarra – Requested a new bus stop be placed on Grand Avenue. 

Emilia Paredes – Requested a new bus stop be placed on Grand Avenue. 

Jilberto Munoz Hernandez – Requested a new bus stop be placed on Grand Avenue. 

Jose Luna Constante – Requested a new bus stop be placed on Grand Avenue. 

Rosa Lopez – Requested a new bus stop be placed on Grand Avenue. 

15

Item 3.



 

 

November 17, 2021 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 6 of 7 
 

Motion to prioritize next left turn signal on Rose Street and Washington Ave: Martinez; 
Second: Garcia; Vote: Approved 5-0 

FUTURE AGENDA 

11. FUTURE AGENDA 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the 
City Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these 
future agenda items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying 
questions, brief announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an 
item when it is discussed.  

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck) 

Morasco - Air BnB and how all rental programs effected in Escondido; Recommendations on a 
sound wall in the El Cue Neighborhood. 

McNamara - Report on Community Garden request 

Garcia - Airbnb, Once a year report on Traffic and “Slow Down in Escondido” campaign; Report 
from senior center in regards to classes at the senior center. 

COUNCILMEMBERS SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS AND OTHER REPORTS 

Inscoe - Attended the “Slow Down in Escondido” event with Councilmember Garcia. YMCA rally 
to bring awareness to youth homelessness. 

Morasco - Attended a Regional Solid Waste Association meeting. Expressed condolences for the 
passing of two Escondido Police Officers, LaTonya Gridiron and Bret Byler. 

Garcia - Hosted a “Slow Down Escondido” rally. Attended a Traffic Safety Workshop. 

Martinez - Hosted a cleanup in District 1. Hosted a Tenant Protection Workshop. Hosted a Traffic 
Safety Workshop. 

McNamara - Attended the Veteran’s Day ceremony in Escondido. 
  

16

Item 3.



 

 

November 17, 2021 Escondido City Council Minutes Page 7 of 7 
 

CITY MANAGER’S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital 
Improvement Projects, Public Safety, and Community Development. This report is also available on the 
City’s website, www.escondido.org. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

None. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor McNamara adjourned the meeting at 7:45 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

______________________________   _______________________________ 

MAYOR       CITY CLERK 

 

17

Item 3.



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 4   December 1, 2021   File No. 0600-10, A-3392 
 
SUBJECT:  Consulting Agreement for Employee Benefits Insurance Broker Services  
 

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-175 authorizing the Mayor to execute a 
Consulting Agreement with HUB International Employee Benefits for Benefits Insurance Broker 
Services.   
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

Fees are capped at $146,500 each year (4.25% below the current contract of $153,000 per year). 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
On October 26, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2016-162 authorizing the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute a Consulting Agreement with Willis Towers Watson for benefits insurance broker 
services.  Effective February 1, 2020, Willis Towers Watson transferred benefit insurance services to 
HUB International Insurance Services Inc., resulting in the City amending the agreement.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City entered into an agreement with Willis Insurances Services in June 2006 to provide broker 
services for the City of Escondido.  In January 2016, Willis Insurance Services merged with Towers 
Watson, and became Willis Towers Watson.  In February 2020, Willis Towers Watson transferred their 
benefit insurance services to HUB International Insurance Services Inc.  The current five-year contract 
with HUB International expires on December 31, 2021.   
 
On August 23, 2021, a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) was released which sought proposals from 
qualified firms to perform employee benefit insurance broker services.  Three proposals were received 
from firms with experience in employee benefit broker services.  Some of the important areas the firms 
were evaluated on included cost and overall value, geographic location, project team experience and 
location, and public agency experience within San Diego County.  After thorough review, it has been 
determined to be in the City’s best interest to enter into a new contract with HUB International Employee 
Benefits Inc.   
 
Therefore, staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-175 authorizing the Mayor to 
execute a Consulting Agreement with HUB International Employee Benefits for the City’s benefits 
insurance services beginning January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2023.   
 

18

Item 4.



Consulting Agreement for Employee Benefits Insurance Broker Services 
November 19, 2021  
Page 2 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Jessica Perpetua, Director of Human Resources 

11/23/21 6:26 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2021-175 
2. Exhibit A – Consulting Agreement  

19

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-175 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A CONSULTING 
AGREEMENT WITH HUB INTERNATIONAL 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AS THE CITY’S 
CONSULTANT TO PROVIDE EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS INSURANCE BROKER SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) contracts for broker services for 

employee benefits; and  

WHEREAS, currently, the City has an agreement with HUB International Employee 

Benefits (“HUB”) to serve as the broker for employee benefits and said agreement will 

expire on December 31, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Human Resources Manager issued a Request for Proposals to 

address the City’s requirement for employee benefits insurance broker services; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided in the responses to the Request 

for Proposals; staff recommends HUB to continue as the broker for employee benefits, 

effective January 1, 2022.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the Mayor is authorized to execute, on behalf of the city, a two-year 

contract with HUB International Employee Benefits.  Thereafter, the City shall have two 

20

Item 4.



successive one-year options to extend the contract.  A copy of the proposed contract is 

attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A” and is incorporated by this reference.   

21

Item 4.



Consulting Agreement (v2) - 1 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

This Consulting Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this _____ day of 

_______________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), 

Between: CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
a California municipal corporation 
201 N. Broadway 
Escondido, CA 92025 
Attn:  Patrice Russell 
(760) 839-4865
("CITY")

And: HUB International Insurance Services Inc. 
a California corporation 
9855 Scranton Road, Suite 100 
San Diego, CA 92121 
Attn: Shannon Taylor 
858-373-6911
("CONSULTANT").

(The CITY and CONSULTANT each may be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.”) 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that it is in the CITY’s best interest to retain the 

professional services of a consultant to provide insurance consulting and brokerage services;   

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is considered competent to perform the necessary professional 

services for the CITY; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY and CONSULTANT desire to enter into this Agreement for the per-

formance of the Services described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, terms, and conditions 

set forth herein, and the mutual benefits derived therefrom, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Description of Services.  CONSULTANT shall furnish all of the Services described in the Scope of
Work, which is attached to this Agreement as Attachment “A” and incorporated herein by this
reference (“Services”).

2. Compensation.  In exchange for CONSULTANT’s completion of the Services, the CITY shall pay,
and CONSULTANT shall accept in full, an amount not to exceed the sum of $293,000 (not including

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 12

22

Item 4.



Consulting Agreement (v2) - 2 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

voluntary products funded in full by employees).  CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for 
performance of the Services described in this Agreement.  No compensation shall be provided for 
any other work or services without the CITY’s prior written consent.  If this Agreement is amended 
at any time, additional compensation of CONSULTANT contained in any subsequent amendments 
shall not exceed a cumulative total of 25% of the maximum payment provided for in this Section 2, 
unless approved by resolution of the City Council.     
 

3. Performance.  CONSULTANT shall faithfully perform the Services in a proficient manner, to the 
satisfaction of the CITY, and in accord with the terms of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall be 
responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of 
all reports and other information furnished by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement, except 
that CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for the accuracy of information supplied by the CITY. 
 

4. Personnel.  The performance of the Services by certain professionals is significant to the CITY.  As 
such, CONSULTANT shall only assign the persons listed on Attachment “B”, attached to this 
Agreement and incorporated herein by this reference (“Personnel List”), to perform the Services.  
CONSULTANT shall not add or remove persons from the Personnel List without the City’s prior 
written consent.  If CONSULTANT has not designated a person to perform a component of the 
Services, CONSULTANT shall not assign such component of the Services to a person without 
obtaining the City’s prior written consent.  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any component of 
the Services without obtaining the City’s prior written consent.  
 

5. Termination.  The Parties may mutually terminate this Agreement through a writing signed by both 
Parties.  The CITY may terminate this Agreement for any reason upon providing CONSULTANT 
with 10 days’ advance written notice.  CONSULTANT agrees to cease all work under this Agreement 
on or before the effective date of any notice of termination.  If the CITY terminates this Agreement 
due to no fault or failure of performance by CONSULTANT, then CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated based on the work satisfactorily performed at the time of such termination.  In no 
event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to receive more than the amount that would be paid to 
CONSULTANT for the full performance of the Services.   
 

6. City Property.  All original documents, drawings, electronic media, and other materials prepared by 
CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement immediately become the exclusive property of the CITY, 
and shall not be used by CONSULTANT for any other purpose without the CITY’s prior written 
consent. 
 

7. Insurance Requirements. 

a. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain, at its own cost, during the entire term of this 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services, and the results of such work, 
by CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  Insurance 
coverage shall be at least as broad as the following: 

(1) Commercial General Liability.  Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Form CG 00 01 covering 
Commercial General Liability on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed 
operations, property damage, bodily injury, and personal & advertising injury, with limits 
no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 general aggregate.  

(2) Automobile Liability.  ISO Form CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if CONSULTANT 
has no owned autos, hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage, unless waived by the 
CITY and approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk and Safety Division.  

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 12

23

Item 4.



Consulting Agreement (v2) - 3 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

(3) Workers’ Compensation.  Worker’s Compensation as required by the State of California, 
with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

(4) Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions).  Professional Liability (Errors and 
Omissions) appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession, with limits no less than $2,000,000 
per occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 aggregate. 

(5) If CONSULTANT maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums 
otherwise required by this Agreement, the CITY requires and shall be entitled to the 
broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by CONSULTANT. 

b. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be acceptable to the City Attorney and 
shall meet the following requirements: 

(1) Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance coverage must be provided by an insurer authorized 
to conduct business in the state of California with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A-: FSC VII, or as approved by the CITY. 

(2) Additional Insured Status.  Both the Commercial General Liability and the Automobile 
Liability policies must name the CITY (including its officials, officers, agents, employees, 
and volunteers) specifically as an additional insured under the policy on a separate 
endorsement page.  The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement 
shall be at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85, or if not available, through the 
addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38, and CG 20 37 if a later 
edition is used.  The Automobile Liability endorsement shall be at least as broad as ISO 
Form CA 20 01. 

(3) Primary Coverage.  CONSULTANT’s insurance coverage shall be primary coverage at 
least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 with respect to the CITY, its officials, officers, 
agents, employees, and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(4) Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy shall provide that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with prior written notice to the CITY. 

(5) Subcontractors.  If applicable, CONSULTANT shall require and verify that all 
subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated within this 
Agreement, and CONSULTANT shall ensure that the CITY (including its officials, officers, 
agents, employees, and volunteers) is an additional insured on any insurance required 
from a subcontractor. 

(6) Waiver of Subrogation.  CONSULTANT hereby grants to the CITY a waiver of any right to 
subrogation that any insurer of CONSULTANT may acquire against the CITY by virtue of 
the payment of any loss under such insurance.  CONSULTANT agrees to obtain any 
endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this 
subsection shall apply regardless of whether or not the CITY has received a waiver of 
subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  Any Workers’ Compensation policy required 
by this Agreement shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the CITY for 
all work performed by the CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, employees, and 
subcontractors. 

(7) Self-Insurance.  CONSULTANT may, with the CITY’s prior written consent, fulfill some or 
all of the insurance requirements contained in this Agreement under a plan of self-
insurance.  CONSULTANT shall only be permitted to utilize such self-insurance if, in the 
opinion of the CITY, CONSULTANT’s (i) net worth and (ii) reserves for payment of claims 
of liability against CONSULTANT are sufficient to adequately compensate for the lack of 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 12

24

Item 4.



Consulting Agreement (v2) - 4 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

other insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  CONSULTANT’s utilization of self-
insurance shall not in any way limit the liabilities assumed by CONSULTANT pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

(8) Self-Insured Retentions.  Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the 
CITY. 

c. Verification of Coverage.  At the time CONSULTANT executes this Agreement, CONSULTANT 
shall provide the CITY with original Certificates of Insurance including all required amendatory 
endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting the insurance coverage 
required by this Agreement), which shall meet all requirements under this Agreement.  The CITY 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, 
including endorsements required by this Agreement, at any time.   

d. Special Risks or Circumstances.  The CITY reserves the right, at any point during the term of 
this Agreement, to modify the insurance requirements in this Agreement, including limits, based 
on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

e. No Limitation of Obligations.  The insurance requirements in this Agreement, including the types 
and limits of insurance coverage CONSULTANT must maintain, and any approval of such 
insurance by the CITY, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the 
liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement, 
including but not limited to any provisions in this Agreement concerning indemnification. 

f. Failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements in this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, a lapse in any required insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement, shall 
be a material breach of this Agreement.  In the event that CONSULTANT fails to comply with 
any such insurance requirements in this Agreement, in addition to any other remedies the CITY 
may have, the CITY may, at its sole option, (i) immediately terminate this Agreement; or (ii) order 
CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement and/or withhold any payment that becomes 
due to CONSULTANT until CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the insurance 
requirements in this Agreement. 

8. Indemnification, Duty to Defend, and Hold Harmless. 

a. CONSULTANT (which in this Section 8 includes CONSULTANT’s agents, employees, and 
subcontractors, if any) shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY from and against 
any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, proceedings (including but not limited 
to legal and administrative proceedings of any kind) and suits, and fines, penalties, judgments, 
orders, levies, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages, or injuries related thereto, in law or 
equity, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages and attorney’s fees 
and other related litigation costs and expenses (collectively, “Claims”), of every nature caused 
by, arising out of, or in connection with CONSULTANT’s negligent performance of the Services 
or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except where 
caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY. 

b. CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, its officials, officers, 
agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all Claims caused by, arising 
under, or resulting from any violation, or claim of violation, of the San Diego Municipal Storm 
Water Permit (Order No. R9-2013-0001, as amended) of the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Region 9, San Diego, that the CITY might suffer, incur, or become subject to by 
reason of, or occurring as a result of, or allegedly caused by, the Services performed by 
CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement, except where caused by the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the CITY or any of its agents, employees or subcontractors. 

c. All terms and provisions within this Section 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 12

25

Item 4.



Consulting Agreement (v2) - 5 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

9. Anti-Assignment Clause.  Because the CITY has relied on the particular skills of CONSULTANT in 
entering into this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not assign, delegate, subcontract, or otherwise 
transfer any duty or right under this Agreement, including as to any portion of the Services, without 
the CITY’s prior written consent.  Any purported assignment, delegation, subcontract, or other 
transfer made without the CITY’s consent shall be void and ineffective.  Unless CONSULTANT 
assigns this entire Agreement, including all rights and duties herein, to a third party with the CITY’s 
prior written consent, CONSULTANT shall be the sole payee under this Agreement.  Any and all 
payments made pursuant to the terms of this Agreement are otherwise not assignable.   
 
Attorney's Fees and Costs.  In the event that legal action is required to enforce the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
costs.  

10. Independent Contractor. CONSULTANT is an independent contractor, and no agency or 
employment relationship is created by the execution of this Agreement. 
 

11. Amendment.  This Agreement shall not be amended except in a writing signed by the CITY and 
CONSULTANT. 
 

12. Merger Clause.  This Agreement, together with its attachments or other documents described or 
incorporated herein, if any, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the CITY and 
CONSULTANT concerning the subject of this Agreement and supersedes and replaces all prior 
negotiations, understandings, or proposed agreements, written or oral, except as otherwise 
provided herein.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any of 
its attachments or related documents, if any, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 
 

13. Anti-Waiver Clause.  None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be waived by the CITY because 
of previous failure to insist upon strict performance, nor shall any provision be waived because any 
other provision has been waived by the CITY, in whole or in part. 
 

14. Severability.  This Agreement shall be performed and shall be enforceable to the full extent allowed 
by applicable law, and the illegality, invalidity, waiver, or unenforceability of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not affect the legality, validity, applicability, or enforceability of the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 

15. Governing Law.  This Agreement and all rights and obligations arising out of it shall be construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Venue for any action arising from this Agreement 
shall be conducted only in the state or federal courts of San Diego County, California. 

 
16. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed on separate counterparts, each of which shall be 

an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  Delivery 
of an executed signature page of this Agreement by electronic means, including an attachment to 
an email, shall be effective as delivery of an executed original.  The Agreement on file with the City 
is the copy of the Agreement that shall take precedence if any differences exist between or among 
copies or counterparts of the Agreement. 
 

17. Provisions Cumulative.  The foregoing provisions are cumulative to, in addition to, and not in 
limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the CITY. 
 

18. Notice.  Any statements, communications, or notices to be provided pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be sent to the attention of the persons indicated herein, and the CITY and CONSULTANT shall 
promptly provide the other Party with notice of any changes to such contact information. 
 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 12

26

Item 4.



Consulting Agreement (v2) - 6 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

19. Business License.   CONSULTANT shall obtain a City of Escondido Business License prior to
execution of this Agreement and shall maintain such Business License throughout the term of this
Agreement.

20. Compliance with Laws, Permits, and Licenses. CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations,
rules, and other legal requirements in effect during the term of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall
obtain any and all permits, licenses, and other authorizations necessary to perform the Services.
Neither the CITY, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or agents of
the CITY, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of CONSULTANT to comply
with this section.

21. Prevailing Wages. If applicable, pursuant to California Labor Code section 1770 et seq.,
CONSULTANT agrees that a prevailing rate and scale of wages, in accordance with applicable
laws, shall be paid in performing this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations,
rules, and other legal requirements pertaining to the payment of prevailing wages.  The prevailing
rate and scale to be paid shall be the same as the applicable “General Prevailing Wage
Determination” approved by the Department of Industrial Relations as of the Effective Date of this
Agreement, which are available online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/dprewagedetermination.htm
and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. Neither the CITY, nor any elected or
appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or agents of the CITY, shall be liable, at law or in
equity, as a result of any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with this section.

22. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and
shall comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”).  CONSULTANT
represents and warrants that all of its employees and the employees of any subcontractor retained
by CONSULTANT who perform any of the Services under this Agreement, are and will be authorized
to perform the Services in full compliance with the IRCA.  CONSULTANT affirms that as a licensed
contractor and employer in the State of California, all new employees must produce proof of
eligibility to work in the United States within the first three days of employment and that only
employees legally eligible to work in the United States will perform the Services.  CONSULTANT
agrees to comply with the IRCA before commencing any Services, and continuously throughout the
performance of the Services and the term of this Agreement.

23. Effective Date.  Unless a different date is provided in this Agreement, the effective date of this
Agreement shall be the latest date of execution set forth by the names of the signatories below.

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 12

27

Item 4.

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/dprewagedetermination.htm


Consulting Agreement (v2) - 7 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties or their duly authorized 
representatives as of the Effective Date: 
 
 
 CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 
 Paul McNamara, Mayor 
 
 

 

 HUB International Insurances Services Inc. 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 
 Shannon Taylor, Executive Vice President & Pacific  
 Region President 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, CITY ATTORNEY 

 
BY: __________________________ 
 

THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST QUALIFIED PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 12

28

Item 4.



ATTACHMENT “A”  
Scope of Work 

 

Attachment A to Consulting Agreement - 1 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

 

A. General 
 
HUB International Insurances Services Inc., a California corporation (“Consultant”), will provide the 
City of Escondido, a California municipal corporation (“City”), with City employee benefits insurance 
broker services.  
 

B. Location 
 
Consultant to provide services at the consultant’s office located at 9855 Scranton Road, Suite 100, 
San Diego, CA 92121.  
 

C. Services 
 
In accordance with Consultant’s proposal, which is attached to this Scope of Work as Exhibit 1 and 
incorporated by this reference, Consultant shall provide the following City employee benefits 
insurance broker services: 
 
1. Provide general and technical guidance to the City in responding to questions from City’s 

Human Resources staff.  
 
2. Provide general and technical guidance to assist City staff in settling claim disputes and other 

issues.  
 
3. Provide general and technical guidance to City staff regarding the Programs.  
 
4. Review all Programs, benefit plans, and insurance plan documents for accuracy and 

compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  
 
5. Act as the City’s liaison in communicating and negotiating with benefit and insurance plan 

providers.   
 
6. Assist City staff in drafting materials relating to Programs, benefit plans, and insurance plans.  

These materials include, but not limited to, open enrollment employee communication, 
brainshark videos, plan comparison charts and wellness material.  Consultant will primarily 
provide expert analysis and recommendations relating to material content, appearance, 
compliance, and accuracy.   

 
7. Provide Program, benefit plan, and insurance plan recommendations to City staff based on 

Consultant’s experience, market analysis, market trends, and cost containment methods.  
Program, benefit plan, and insurance plan recommendations shall be made in an effort to 
ensure maximum benefit to the City.   

 
8. Determine and recommend the most economical funding method for benefits.  
 
9. Represent the City in negotiations with all providers on all issues, including those related to 

annual renewal rates, coverage, plan design, and special terms and conditions.   
 
10. Meet with and provide reports to various City representatives and groups including Human 

Resources, City Council, City Management, employee groups, Health Insurance Committee 
(“HIC”), and the Wellness Committee. Coordinate with City representatives regarding labor 
relations issues concerning group insurance and benefit programs.  

 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 12

29

Item 4.



ATTACHMENT “A”  
Scope of Work 

 

Attachment A to Consulting Agreement - 2 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

 

11. Research and advise the City of new developments in the law and Programs on an ongoing 
basis.  

 
12. Assist the City with implementation and communications relating to new programs and 

changes to existing programs, including attending and assisting during employee meetings at 
the City’s request.   

 
13. As requested by the City, solicit bids from insurance markets that specialize in group insurance 

plans.  Use expertise to evaluate bids, including administration, coverage, claim payment 
procedures, customer service, networks, financial soundness, and identifying the most cost 
beneficial package from among the various bidders.  Supplying the City with detailed analysis 
and recommendations regarding bid received.  Provide the City with original documents from 
all bid solicitations received.   

 
14. Identify, investigate, analyze, and assist with implementation of efficiency measures such as 

employer partnerships and other concepts that have the effect of reducing the cost associated 
with employee benefits programs without reducing services to employees.  

 
15. Provide an annual review and summary of employee benefits including analysis of the quality 

of benefits provided, cost effectiveness, competitiveness, recommendations, etc.  
 
16. Assist the City in evaluating, implementing, and measuring the City’s wellness program.   
 
17. Designate and name, in writing, a service team that will be available at any time upon 24-hour 

notice on all matters described in this Scope of Work.  
 
18. In November of each year, prepare a forecast for the following fiscal year (July 1 through June 

30) of insurance premiums and services cost, and provide notice of interim changes when 
anticipated. 

 
19. Consultant shall provide the following services at no additional charge: Health and Wellness 

Expos, electronic employee communication materials, and Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act (“COBRA”) Administration.  

 
20. Advise the City on any federal mandated compliance requirements relevant to City Programs, 

benefit plans, and insurance plans, and provide guidance, when requested by the City, in 
developing compliance strategies.  
 

In the event of a conflict between a provision of Exhibit 1 and this Agreement (including this Scope 
of Work), this Agreement shall prevail.  

 
D. Scheduling 

 
Inquires relating to this Agreement, including scheduling and coordination with City staff, may be 
directed to Patrice Russell at 760-839-4865 or prussell@escondido.org.   
 

E. Contract Price and Payment Terms 
 
The contract price of this Agreement shall not exceed $293,000 (not including voluntary products 
funded in full by employees).  The contract price includes all labor, materials, equipment, and 
transportation required to perform the work.  Consultant shall be compensated for services from 
commissions received from insurers who obtain business from the City of Escondido, up to 
$146,500 (not including voluntary products funded in full by employees) per year.  Any commissions 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 12

30

Item 4.

mailto:prussell@escondido.org


ATTACHMENT “A”  
Scope of Work 

 

Attachment A to Consulting Agreement - 3 - CAO: 9/17/2021 

 

received as a result of services by Consultant to the City of Escondido above $146,500 shall be 
paid to the City as a rebate annually (not including voluntary products funded in full by employees). 
 
Each year, Consultant will disclose to the City all associated commission rates, commissions 
earned, as a result of this Agreement, during the preceding calendar year by January 31 of each 
year. Any rebate due to the City shall be paid in one payment no later than March 1 following the 
year the commissions are earned.  
 
Consultant shall use commissions earned to compensate for items related to Health and Wellness 
Expo and COBRA administration.  
 
Consultant will review any additional services with the City prior to performing them and the City 
must agree upon any additional fees in advance and in writing.   
 
Consultant will receive commissions through the effective date of contract termination.   

 
F. Term 

 
The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date through December 31, 2023 (“Initial 
Term”).  Thereafter, the City shall have two successive one-year options to extend the Initial Term 
of this Agreement.  
 
Services under this Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2022.  
 

G. Other 
 
Consultant shall not provide any City employee benefit administration services pursuant to this 
Agreement.  

 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 12

31

Item 4.



ATTACHMENT “B”  
Personnel List 

Attachment B to Consulting Agreement - 1 - CAO: 5/25/2021 

 

 

 

Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, CONSULTANT shall only assign performance of Services to 

persons listed below.   

 

1. Christie Barr, Senior Vice President, Christie.Barr@hubinternational.com, HUB 

International; and 

  

2. Spencer Beers-Mulroy, Account Executive, Spencer.Beersmulroy@hubinternational.com, 

HUB International; and  

 

3. Jamie Blinco, Account Manager, Jamie.Blinco@hubinternational.com, HUB International 

 

CONSULTANT shall not add or remove persons from this Personnel List without the City’s prior written 

consent.  If CONSULTANT has not designated a person to perform a component of the Services, 

CONSULTANT shall not assign such component of the Services to a person without obtaining the City’s 

prior written consent.  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any component of the Services without 

obtaining the City’s prior written consent. 

 

Acknowledged by: 

 

 
Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 

Shannon Taylor, Executive Vice President & Pacific 
Region President 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 12

32

Item 4.

mailto:Christie.Barr@hubinternational.com
mailto:Spencer.Beersmulroy@hubinternational.com
mailto:Jamie.Blinco@hubinternational.com


ATTACHMENT “B”  
Personnel List 

Attachment B to Consulting Agreement - 2 - CAO: 5/25/2021 

 

  

Resolution No. 2021-175 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 12

33

Item 4.



Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 5 December 1, 2021 File No. 0600-10, A-3393 

SUBJECT:  EKG Cardiac Monitor Purchase 

DEPARTMENT: Fire 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-179R authorizing the Mayor to 
execute a Public Service Agreement (“PSA”) with Zoll Medical Corporation for the purchase of six 
EKG Cardiac Monitors, associated equipment and supplies, maintenance agreement and data 
subscription. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The cost of the six new cardiac monitors, equipment, supplies, maintenance agreement and data 
subscription shall not exceed $306,410.40. An itemized quote is listed in Exhibit “1” to the PSA’s 
Scope of Work (attached to Resolution No. 2021-179R).  Funding for the purchase was approved by 
the City Council on October 27, 2021 as part of the City’s General Capital Projects Fund.   

BACKGROUND: 

A cardiac monitor is among the most widely used and vital diagnostic tools the Fire Department employs 
in the field. Receiving an EKG by our first responders greatly improves the speed of effective care at 
the hospital.  The Fire Department’s current EKG monitors were purchased in 2013 and are already 
several years beyond their expected lifespan and are not currently supported or maintained by their 
manufacturer.  

On February 11, 2021 Escondido and San Marcos Fire Departments, along with Valley Center Fire 
Protection District, submitted a collaborative application to the FEMA Assistance to Firefighter Grant 
(“AFG”) program requesting the funding necessary to replace all of the outdated EKG monitors for all 
three agencies. The grant was partially awarded with funding for eighteen new devices, nine each for 
San Marcos and Escondido. As the lead agency in the AFG application, the grant award is being 
administered by the City of San Marcos and will provide the value of approximately $345,000 in 
equipment to Escondido.  

Separate from the grant award, Escondido Fire is purchasing six additional EKG monitors plus the 
equipment (batteries, chargers, cables, modems) and the consumable supplies (electrodes, paper, 
sensors) necessary to support all fifteen devices. The purchase will also include the cost of the 
maintenance agreement for annual preventative maintenance and software upgrades and the 
required data management subscription for five years. By paying these costs up front, we are able to 
avoid cost increases for five years. The requested expenditure of $306,410.40 will ensure 
that the Fire Department’s Paramedics will have a total of fifteen EKG Cardiac Monitors to equip 
our ambulances 

34

Item 5.



EKG Cardiac Monitor Purchase 
December 1, 2021  
Page 2 

and fire engines and maintain sufficient reserve units. This cost reflects a trade-in value of $105,000 
for the 15 old EKG Cardiac monitors that are being replaced. 

The Zoll X Series EKG Cardiac Monitors were selected after extensive research by a joint committee 
made up of San Marcos and Escondido Fire Firefighters, Paramedics and EMS administrators. The 
research included a trial of the available products on the market in 2021. The monitors were rated on 
criteria such as battery life, start up, weight, durability and overall performance. As a result of the trials, 
it was deemed that the selection of the Zoll X Series Advanced Manual Monitor/Defibrillator is in the 
best interest of the fire agencies and will provide the most benefit the communities we serve. 

The Fire Department is requesting to purchase six monitors, equipment, supplies, maintenance 
agreement and data subscriptions through NPPGov, a national cooperative procurement organization 
as allowed per Chapter 10, Article 5, Section 10-91, of the City of Escondido’s Municipal Code 
authorizing the purchase of supplies and equipment utilizing cooperative purchase programs. 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Rick Vogt, Fire Chief

11/24/21 10:16 a.m.    

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 2021-179R
2. Resolution 2021-179R – Exhibit “A” Public Service Agreement 

35

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-179R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AWARDING THE CONTRACT TO PURCHASE 
SIX ZOLL X SERIES ADVANCED EKG 
MONITOR/DEFRIBILLATORS AND RELATED 
EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES TO ZOLL 
MEDICAL CORPORATION 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) Fire personnel dutifully trialed 

defibrillators from three separate vendors; and 

WHEREAS, the staff considered multiple selection criteria included overall 

performance, weight, start up, durability, and battery life; and 

WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds located in the general fund; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends awarding the purchase of defibrillators to Zoll 

Medical Corporation; and 

WHEREAS, the City is a member of NPPGov, member No. M-5697108; and 

WHEREAS, the City is utilizing a Cooperative Purchase Contract with NPPGov, 

Agreement No. PS20200, as per section 10-91 of the Escondido Municipal Code, which 

has been conducted in a competitive manner by the State, County or any other Public or 

Municipal Agency; and  

WHEREAS, staff recommends purchasing six (6) X Series Advanced Manual 

Monitor/Defibrillators, equipment, supplies, maintenance agreement and data 

subscriptions from Zoll Medical Corporation in the amount of $306,410.40. 

36

Item 5.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Council accepts the recommendation of staff and deems it to

be in the best public interest to purchase six (6) defibrillators from Zoll Medical 

Corporation. 

3. That the City Council is authorized to approve on behalf of the City, and

does hereby approve and authorize the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a Public 

Services Agreement with Zoll Medical Corporation, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A” and incorporated by this reference, for the purchase of  six defibrillators from Zoll 

Medical Corporation to include EKG cardiac monitors, batteries, battery charging stations, 

equipment, supplies, subscription, and preventative maintenance for the Fire Department 

utilizing a Cooperative Purchase Contract with NPPgov, Agreement No. PS20200. 

4. That the City Council authorizes the Fire Chief to trade in the old EKG

cardiac monitors to Zoll Medical Corporation that are being replaced as part of this 

purchase.  

37

Item 5.



CITY OF ESCONDIDO

PUBLIC SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Public Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 

____ day of December, 2021 (“Effective Date”), 

Between: CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

a California municipal corporation 
 201 N. Broadway 
Escondido, CA 92025 
 Attn: Rick Vogt 
760-839-5401 ("CITY")

And: ZOLL Medical Corporation 
a Massachusetts Corporation 
 269 Mill Road 
Chelmsford, MA 01824 
 Attn: Contracts Department  
978-421-965
("CONTRACTOR").

(The CITY and CONTRACTOR each may be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively 

as the “Parties.”) 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the procurement of 

products: capital equipment, accessories and supplies (“Products”) and performance of the 

services: CaseReview Premium software subscription and the Worry Free Service Plan 

(collectively, “Services”) described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, terms, and 

conditions set forth herein, and the mutual benefits derived therefrom, the Parties hereby agree as 

follows: 

1. Description of Services. CONTRACTOR shall furnish all of the Products and Services
described in the Scope of Work, which is attached to this Agreement as Attachment “A” and
incorporated herein by this reference.

2. Compensation. In exchange for CONTRACTOR’s delivery of Products and completion of the
Services, the CITY shall pay, and CONTRACTOR shall accept in full, an amount not to exceed
the sum of $306,410.40. CONTRACTOR shall be compensated only for purchase of the
Products and performance of the Services described in this Agreement. No compensation
shall be provided for any other products, work, or services without the CITY’s prior written
consent. If this Agreement is amended at any time, additional compensation of
CONTRACTOR contained in any subsequent amendments shall not exceed a cumulative total
of 25% of the maximum payment provided for in this Section 2, unless approved by resolution

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 27

38

Item 5.



of the City Council. 

3. Performance. CONTRACTOR shall faithfully perform the Services in a proficient manner, to
the satisfaction of the CITY, and in accord with the terms of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR
shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and
coordination of all reports and other information furnished by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this
Agreement, except that CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for the accuracy of
information supplied by the CITY.

4. Termination. The Parties may mutually terminate this Agreement through a writing signed by
both Parties. Either party may terminate this Agreement for any reason upon providing the
other party with 60 days’ advance written notice. CONTRACTOR agrees to cease all work
under this Agreement on the effective date of any notice of termination.  In the event of any
termination by the CITY, no refunds are provided. In no event shall CONTRACTOR be entitled
to receive more than the amount that would be paid to CONTRACTOR for the full performance
of the Services.

5. City Property. Intentionally omitted.

6. Insurance Requirements.

a. CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain, at its own cost, during the entire term of this
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to third parties or damages to tangible
property that may arise directly from the performance of the Services, and the results of
such work, by CONTRACTOR, its agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.
Insurance coverage shall be at least as broad as the following:

(1) Commercial General Liability. Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Form CG 00 01
covering Commercial General Liability on an “occurrence” basis, including products
and completed   operations, property damage, bodily injury, and personal &
advertising injury, with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000
general aggregate. Claims-made forms for Products/Completed operations will be
acceptable where occurrence form may not be available.

(2) Automobile Liability. ISO Form CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if
CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9),
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage, unless waived by the CITY and approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk and
Safety Division.

(3) Workers’ Compensation. Worker's Compensation as required by the State of California,
with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(4) If CONTRACTOR maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the
minimums otherwise required by this Agreement, the CITY shall be entitled to the
broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by CONTRACTOR.

b. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be acceptable to the City Attorney
and shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance coverage must be provided by an insurer
authorized to conduct business in the state of California with a current A.M. Best’s
rating of no less than A-: FSC VII, or as approved by the CITY.

(2) Additional Insured Status. Both the Commercial General Liability, with and the
Automobile Liability policies must include the CITY (including its officials, officers,
agents, employees, and volunteers) as an additional insured under the policy. The
Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least as
broad as ISO Form, CG 20 26.The Automobile Liability endorsement shall be at

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 27

39

Item 5.



least as broad as ISO Form CA 20 01.

(3) Claims-Made Form.  If  a separate Products Liability policy is maintained and  written
on a claims-made form:

(a) The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

(b) Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
at least years after completion of the contract of work.

(c) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective date, the
CONTRACTOR must purchase an extended period coverage for a minimum of
five years after completion of contract work.

(d) A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the CITY for
review.

(4) Primary Coverage. To the extent loss is attributable to Contractor, CONTRACTOR’s
insurance coverage shall be primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01
04 13 with respect to the CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the CITY, its officials,
officers, agents, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of CONTRACTOR’s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

(5) Subcontractors. If applicable, CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all
subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated in this
Agreement, and CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the CITY (including its officials,
officers, agents, employees, and volunteers) is an additional insured on any
insurance required from a subcontractor.

(6) Waiver of Subrogation. CONTRACTOR hereby grants to the CITY a waiver of any
right to subrogation that any insurer of CONTRACTOR may acquire against the CITY
by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. CONTRACTOR agrees
to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of
subrogation, but this subsection shall apply regardless of whether or not the CITY
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. Any Workers’
Compensation policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of the CITY for all work performed by the CONTRACTOR, its
agents, representatives, employees and subcontractors. Waiver of Subrogation will
not apply to any loss resulting from City’s sole negligence.

(7) Self-Insurance. CONTRACTOR may, with the CITY’s prior written consent, fulfill
some or all of the insurance requirements contained in this Agreement under a plan
of self- insurance. CONTRACTOR shall only be permitted to utilize such self-
insurance if, in the opinion of the CITY, CONTRACTOR’s (i) net worth and (ii)
reserves for payment of claims of liability against CONTRACTOR are sufficient to
adequately compensate for the lack of other insurance coverage required by this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR’s utilization of self- insurance shall not in any way limit
the liabilities assumed by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement.

(8) Self-Insured Retentions. Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved
by the CITY.

c. Verification of Coverage. At the time CONTRACTOR executes this Agreement,
CONTRACTOR shall provide the CITY with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
the insurance coverage required by this Agreement), which shall meet all requirements
under this Agreement. The CITY reserves the right to require complete, copies of all
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by this Agreement, at any
time.

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 27

40

Item 5.



d. Special Risks or Circumstances. The CITY reserves the right, at any point during the term
of this Agreement, to reasonably modify the insurance requirements in this Agreement,
including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or
other special circumstances. Contractor will have the right to review and rebut any request
for modifications it feels are unreasonable.

e. No Limitation of Obligations. The insurance requirements in this Agreement, including the
types and limits of insurance coverage CONTRACTOR must maintain, and any approval
of such insurance by the CITY, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or
qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by CONTRACTOR pursuant to
this Agreement, including but not limited to any provisions in this Agreement concerning
indemnification.

f. Failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements in this Agreement, including but
not limited to a lapse in any required insurance coverage during the term of this
Agreement, shall be a material breach of this Agreement. In the event that
CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any such insurance requirements in this Agreement,
in addition to any other remedies the CITY may have, the CITY may, at its sole option, (i)
immediately terminate this Agreement; or (ii) order CONTRACTOR to stop work under this
Agreement until CONTRACTOR demonstrates compliance with the insurance
requirements in this Agreement.

7. Indemnification, Duty to Defend, and Hold Harmless.

a. With respect to the Products, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the CITY in accordance with Article 6 (Indemnification and Hold Harmless) of The League
of Oregon Cities Master Price Agreement (National Purchasing Partners) #PS20200
dated June 8, 2020 (“MPA”).

b. With respect to the software Services, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold
harmless the CITY, in accordance with Section 8 (Indemnification) of the ALS/BLS Software
Solutions Master Application Service Provider Agreement (Attachment A, Exhibit 1).

8. Anti-Assignment Clause. Intentionally omitted.

9. Attorney's Fees and Costs. In any action to enforce the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.

10. Independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor, and no agency or
employment relationship is created by the execution of this Agreement.

11. Amendment. This Agreement shall not be amended except in a writing signed by the CITY
and CONTRACTOR.

12. Merger Clause. This Agreement, together with its exhibits, attachments or other documents
described or incorporated herein, if any, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
of the CITY and CONTRACTOR concerning the subject of this Agreement and supersedes
and replaces all prior negotiations, understandings, or proposed agreements, written or oral,
except as otherwise provided herein. The MPA shall govern the purchase of Products.  The
ALS/BLS Software Solutions Master Application Service Provider Agreement (Attachment A,
Exhibit 1) shall govern the software Services. The Expertcare Service Terms and Conditions
(Attachment A, Exhibits 2 and 3) shall govern the extended warranty and preventative
maintenance Services.

13. Anti-Waiver Clause. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be waived by either party
because of previous failure to insist upon strict performance, nor shall any provision be waived
because any other provision has been waived by either party, in whole or in part.

14. Severability. This Agreement shall be performed and shall be enforceable to the full extent

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 27

41

Item 5.



allowed by applicable law, and the illegality, invalidity, waiver, or unenforceability of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not affect the legality, validity, applicability, or enforceability 
of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

15. Governing Law. This Agreement and all rights and obligations arising out of it shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed on separate counterparts, each of which shall
be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Delivery of an executed signature page of this Agreement by electronic means, including an
attachment to an email, shall be effective as delivery of an executed original. The Agreement
on file with the City is the copy of the Agreement that shall take precedence if any differences
exist between or among copies or counterparts of the Agreement.

17. Provisions Cumulative. The foregoing provisions are cumulative to, in addition to, and not in
limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the CITY.

18. Notice. Any statements, communications, or notices to be provided pursuant to this
Agreement shall be sent to the attention of the persons indicated herein, and the CITY and
CONTRACTOR shall promptly provide the other Party with notice of any changes to such
contact information.

19. Business License. CONTRACTOR shall obtain a City of Escondido Business License prior to
execution of this Agreement and shall maintain such Business License throughout the term of
this Agreement.

20. Compliance with Laws, Permits, and Licenses. CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of
and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances,
regulations, rules, and other legal requirements in effect during the term of this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR shall obtain any and all permits, licenses, and other authorizations necessary
to perform the Services.

21. Prevailing Wages. If applicable, pursuant to California Labor Code section 1770 et seq.,
CONTRACTOR agrees that a prevailing rate and scale of wages, in accordance with
applicable laws, shall be paid in performing this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall keep itself
informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes,
ordinances, regulations, rules, and other legal requirements pertaining to the payment of
prevailing wages. The prevailing rate and scale to be paid shall be the same as the applicable
“General Prevailing Wage Determination” approved by the Department of Industrial Relations
as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, which are available online at
http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/dprewagedetermination.htm and incorporated into this Agreement
by this reference. Neither the CITY, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials,
employees, or agents of the CITY, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure
of CONTRACTOR to comply with this section.

22. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of and
shall comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”). CONTRACTOR
represents and warrants that all of its employees and the employees of any subcontractor
retained by CONTRACTOR who perform any of the Services under this Agreement, are and
will be authorized to perform the Services in full compliance with the IRCA. CONTRACTOR
affirms that as a licensed contractor and employer in the State of California, all new employees
must produce proof of eligibility to work in the United States within the first three days of
employment and that only employees legally eligible to work in the United States will perform
the Services. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the IRCA before commencing any
Services, and continuously throughout the performance of the Services and the term of this
Agreement.

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 27

42

Item 5.

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/dprewagedetermination.htm


23. Effective Date. Unless a different date is provided in this Agreement, the effective date of
this Agreement shall be the latest date of execution set forth by the names of the signatories
below.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties or their duly 
authorized representatives as of the Effective Date: 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Date: 
Paul McNamara, Mayor 

ZOLL Medical Corporation 

Date: 
Signature 

_____________________________________ 

Name & Title (please print) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, CITY ATTORNEY 

BY: 

THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST QUALIFIED PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. 

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 27

43

Item 5.



A. General

ZOLL Medical Corporation, a Massachusetts corporation (“Contractor”) will provide the City
of Escondido, a California municipal corporation (“City”) with Advanced Manual
Monitors/Defibrillators (“EKG Monitors” or “Products”) and related Services.

B. Service Location

Contractor will ship the EKG Monitors to and provide related Services at the City’s Fire
Station No. 1 located at 310 N. Quince St., Escondido, CA 92025.

C. Products and Services

The Contractor agrees to provide the following Products and Services under this Agreement:

1. Six new X Series Advanced Manual Monitor/Defibrillators and related components to
replace the current Phillips MRX EMS monitors as more particularly described in the
ALS/BLS Software Solutions Master Application Service Provider Agreement, which is
attached to this Scope of Work as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by this reference.

2. 12 Case Review Premium Subscriptions to Contractor-hosted software for a period of
five years as described in Exhibit 1.

3. Five-year extended warranty to service and repair each of the EKG Monitors, as more
particularly described in Contractor’s proposal, which is attached to this Scope of Work
as Exhibit 2, and incorporated by this reference. The five-year extended warranty will be
a continuation of the standard one-year product warranty.  Contractor’s Extended
Warranty and Preventative Maintenance Terms and Conditions are attached to this
Scope of Work as Exhibit 3 and incorporated herein by this reference.

4. Equipment deployment services as described in Exhibit 4 to this Scope of Work, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference.

D. Scheduling for Services

Inquires related to this Agreement, including scheduling, delivery, and services issues, may
be directed to:

1. Art Holcomb at aholcomb@escondido.org or 760-839-5403; or
2. Jeanne McFarland at jmcfarland@escondido.org or 760-839-5429.

Work shall be performed in-between the hours of 8 a.m. and 3:30 p.m., Monday through 
Friday. Contractor shall sign in and sign out at the receptionist area. Further instructions will 
be provided upon scheduling. 

E. Delivery of Equipment

Equipment delivery will be made no later than 120-150 days after receipt and confirmation
of Purchase Order. The delivery will be in accordance with the MPA to the Service location.

F. Contract Price and Payment Terms

The contract price of this Agreement shall not exceed $306,410.40. The contract price
includes all equipment, related components, materials, applicable taxes, and transportation
required to perform the work, as described in Exhibit 1 - 3 to this Scope of Work. The contract
price includes a credit of $105,000 trade-in value for 15 used Phillips MRX EMS monitors.

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 27

ATTACHMENT “A”
Scope of Work

44

Item 5.



Payment will be made after items have been received and within 30 days of receipt of an 
invoice for those items. 

G. Term

The term of this Agreement shall be for a period commencing with the effective date of each
Service and ending on November 30, 2026.

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 27
ATTACHMENT “A”
Scope of Work

45

Item 5.



EXHIBIT 1 

ALS/BLS Software Solutions Master Application Service Provider Agreement 

1. Orders. ZOLL Medical Corporation (“ZOLL”) shall provide the ASP Services, Implementation Services and Support Services identified in any order or contract 
(“Order”) between ZOLL and another party (“Customer”) incorporating this Software Solutions Master Application Service Provider Agreement (together with each 
such Order, the “Agreement”). ASP Services are further defined in Section 3. Implementation Services are further defined in Section 4. Support Services are further
defined in Section 5. The ASP Services, Implementation Services, and Support Services are each, and are collectively, “Services”.  The terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement shall only apply to ALS/BLS Software Solutions products that are used with ZOLL Medical Corporation defibrillators.  For the sake of clarity, these
terms and conditions do not apply to any ZOLL patient care reporting software.
2. Payment. Customer shall pay fees to ZOLL for Services as provided in any Order and this Agreement (“Fees”). Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Order,
Customer will pay ZOLL all Fees due under this Agreement within thirty (30) days after the date of ZOLL’s invoice. The first invoice will be sent after the Deployment 
Effective Date.  "Deployment Date" means the date upon which the deployment of the ASP Services is complete and it is able to function as described in the warranty set
forth in this Agreement, regardless of whether Customer actually uses such ASP Services. "Deployment Effective Date" means the earlier of (a) the Deployment Date or 
(b) 90 days from the date after ZOLL’s shipment of defibrillators that are included on the Order (the “Latest Deployment Date”), unless a delay in the Deployment Date 
has been caused by ZOLL, in which case the Deployment Effective Date shall be postponed by a number of days equal to the delay that ZOLL has caused.  Fees are non-
refundable other than as expressly set forth herein. Amounts not paid when due will accrue interest at the rate of 1.5% per month, or the maximum allowed by law,
whichever is less. Customer shall pay all expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) incurred by ZOLL in connection with collection of late payments. Any amounts 
not paid by Customer when due may result in the forfeiture by Customer, in ZOLL’s sole discretion, of any discounts previously offered by ZOLL. In addition, ZOLL
may cease providing any or all of the Services if any invoice is not paid in a timely manner, in which event ZOLL will not be liable to Customer for any damages caused
by such cessation. Payment terms are subject to ZOLL’s credit approval. Fees exclude all applicable sales, use and other taxes and all applicable export and import fees,
customs duties and similar charges (“Taxes”).
3. ASP Services. “ASP Services” means the hosting and maintenance of ZOLL software, as modified, updated, and enhanced (the “Underlying Software”), for remote
electronic access and use by Registered Users on the website with a unique URL to be provided by ZOLL to Customer (the “ZOLL Site”) in substantial conformity with 
the instructions for use, documentation and users manuals from time-to-time provided by ZOLL (the “Documentation”), as listed in any Order, on and after the
Implementation Date (defined below) for such services and before that Order has expired or been terminated in accordance with the Agreement. Customer acknowledges
that the ASP Services are only compatible with ZOLL equipment that has been enabled and configured for use with the ASP Services in accordance with the 
Documentation and only with the browser and other technical environment that supports the use of the ASP Services in accordance with the Documentation.
3.1. Provision of ASP Services. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, ZOLL will use commercially reasonable efforts to make the ASP Services
available to Customer and Customer’s employees, directors, principals, partners, consultants and agents authorized to use ASP Services on behalf of Customer and
registered through the ZOLL Site for such use (“Registered Users”) through the ZOLL Site over normal network connections in accordance with the Documentation, 
excepting downtime due to necessary maintenance and troubleshooting. Customer, not ZOLL, shall be responsible for controlling Registered Users and protection of
confidentiality of its login identifications and passwords. Customer acknowledges that (i) it is responsible for maintaining its interface and connectivity to the ASP 
Services and (ii) any facilities used for provision of the ASP Services may be owned or operated by ZOLL, or a ZOLL affiliate or a third party, or any combination of
such facilities, as determined by ZOLL. Customer acknowledges that ZOLL may modify and upgrade the ASP Services, on an ongoing basis, to improve or adapt the
ASP Services. Without limiting the foregoing, ZOLL will have the right, in its sole discretion, to develop, provide and market new, upgraded or modified ASP Services
to Customer, including adding, removing or modifying the functionality or features of the ASP Services accessible by Registered Users.  ZOLL will use commercially
reasonable efforts to notify Customer within a reasonable period of time prior to the implementation of such changes so that Customer is reasonably informed of alterations 
to the ASP Services that will affect the ASP Services and Customer’s use of them. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, ZOLL may cease providing 
any ASP Services upon at least six months advance notice to Customer. 
3.2. Access Software. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, ZOLL grants to Customer, during the Term, a non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-
sublicensable license for Registered Users to access and use the ASP Services using the ZOLL software that Registered Users may download at the ZOLL Site to access
the ASP Services, as modified, updated and enhanced (the “Access Software”), each as made available to Customer through the ZOLL Site, solely for Customer’s internal 
business purposes and solely in accordance with the Documentation. Access Software and Underlying Software are, collectively, the “Software”.
3.3. Restrictions. Customer shall not, and shall not permit any third party to: (a) use, reproduce, modify, adapt, alter, translate or create derivative works from the ASP
Services, Software or Documentation; (b) merge the ASP Services, Software or Documentation with other software or services; (c) sublicense, distribute, sell, use for
service bureau use, lease, rent, loan, or otherwise transfer or allow access to the ASP Services, Software or the Documentation to any third party; (d) reverse engineer,
decompile, disassemble, or otherwise attempt to alter or derive the Source Code for the ASP Services or Software; (e) remove, alter, cover or obfuscate any copyright
notices or other proprietary rights notices included in the ASP Services, Software or Documentation; or (f) otherwise use or copy the ASP Services, Software or
Documentation in any manner not expressly permitted by the Agreement.  Customer agrees not to use the ASP Services in excess of its authorized login protocols.
Customer shall immediately notify ZOLL of any unauthorized use of Customer’s login ID, password or account or other breach of security. If Customer becomes aware
of any actual or threatened activity contemplated by the restrictions on use set forth in this section, Customer will, and will cause Registered Users to, immediately take 
all reasonable measures necessary to stop the activity or threatened activity and to mitigate the effect of such activity including: (i) discontinuing and limiting any improper 
access to any data; (ii) preventing any use and disclosure of improperly obtained data; (iii) destroying any copies of improperly obtained data that may have been made 
on their systems; (iv) otherwise attempting to mitigate any harm from such events; and (v) immediately notifying ZOLL of any such event so that ZOLL may also attempt 
to remedy the problem and prevent its future occurrence.
3.4. Service Level Agreement.
3.4.1. Downtime.  “Downtime”, expressed in minutes, is any time the ASP Services are not accessible to Registered Users.
3.4.2. Planned Downtime. “Planned Downtime” is Downtime during which ASP Services may not be available in order for ZOLL to continue to provide commercially 
reasonable services, features and performance to its customers. Planned Downtime includes, but is not limited to: (a) Standard Maintenance; and (b) Emergency 
Maintenance. “Standard Maintenance” is performed when upgrades or system updates are desirable. “Emergency Maintenance” is performed when a critical system 
update must be applied quickly to avoid significant Downtime. Standard Maintenance may be performed weekly on Monday and Wednesday between the hours of 7 p.m. 
to 11 p.m. in Broomfield, Colorado. ZOLL will provide Customer with notice at least 24 hours in advance of Standard Maintenance. 
3.4.3. Excused Downtime. “Excused Downtime” time is Downtime caused by: (a) services, software or hardware provided by anyone or any entity other than ZOLL, 
(b) software, services or systems operating outside of a ZOLL Site, including any software or systems operating on a Customer’s premises (including ZOLL software);
(c) a Force Majeure Event or (d) Customer's failure to comply with its obligations under the Agreement or use of the ASP Services in ways that were not intended. 
3.4.4. Unplanned Downtime.  Unplanned Downtime in a calendar month is expressed as a percentage calculated as follows: 

(Downtime - (Planned Downtime + Excused Downtime)) x 100  = x %, where “x” is Unplanned Downtime. Total number of minutes in the calendar month 

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 27

46

Item 5.



3.4.5. Unplanned Downtime Goal.  ZOLL shall provide the ASP Services such that there is less than 1% of Unplanned Downtime in a calendar month (the “Unplanned 
Downtime Goal”).  The ASP Services covered by the Unplanned Downtime Goal are those for which Customer has paid all Fees when due and is using in the course of 
carrying out its normal business operations in accordance with the Agreement. 
3.4.6. Revocation of Administrative Rights. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, ZOLL may revoke administrative rights, including database 
access rights, if the use of any such rights results in Downtime. 
3.4.7. Customer Content; Security; Backup.  
3.4.7.1. Customer Content.  As between ZOLL and Customer, and without limiting the rights of any patient, Customer will retain all right, title and interest in and to all 
data, information or other content provided by Customer in its use of the ASP Services (“Customer Content”); provided, however, that ZOLL may de-identify and use 
Customer Content for any lawful purpose consistent with all applicable law. 
3.4.7.2. Security.  Subject to Customer’s obligations under this Agreement, ZOLL will implement commercially reasonable security measures within the ASP Services 
in an attempt to prevent unlawful access to Customer Content by third parties.  Such measures may include, where appropriate, use of updated firewalls, commercially 
available virus screening software, logon identification and passwords, encryption, intrusion detection systems, logging of incidents, periodic reporting, and prompt 
application of current security patches and virus definitions.   
3.4.7.3. Backup of Customer Content (Not Applicable to Remote View).  Although ZOLL will use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the integrity of the 
Customer Content, to back up the Customer Content, and to provide full and ongoing access to the ASP Services, loss of access to the ASP Services and loss of Customer 
Content may occur. Customer will make provision for additional back-up storage of any critical Customer Content and shall be responsible for compliance with all records 
retention requirements applicable to Customer.  ZOLL will not be responsible for any loss, corruption of or inaccessibility of the Customer Content due to interruption in 
the ASP Services or otherwise arising out of circumstances not within ZOLL’s control. 
3.4.7.4. Availability of Customer Content (Not Applicable to Remote View).  It is Customer’s responsibility to maintain any Customer Content that it requires for 
archival purposes, ongoing management of its operations and compliance with applicable records retention requirements. Unless specified otherwise in the Agreement, 
ZOLL will store Customer Content, other than Inactive Customer Content as defined below (the “Active Customer Content”), in ZOLL’s working data set until the 
earlier of (i) five years (calculated from the date of creation of such Customer Content, or ZOLL’s receipt of such Customer Content, whichever is later) or (ii) the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement or the Order under which such Active Customer Content was stored  (the “Active Retention Period”).  Upon the expiration 
of the Active Retention Period, ZOLL will notify Customer in writing and will provide Customer the option, which Customer shall exercise by informing ZOLL in 
writing, within 30 days of receiving the notice, that either (a) Customer wishes to receive Active Customer Content in a database determined by ZOLL in its sole and 
absolute discretion (a “Database”), or (b) Customer will pay ZOLL, at ZOLL’s then-current storage rates and upon ZOLL’s then-current terms and conditions, to continue 
to store the Active Customer Content.  If Customer fails to exercise one of the foregoing options within such 30-day period, ZOLL will have the right to destroy the 
Active Customer Content.  During the time ZOLL stores Customer Content for Customer hereunder, ZOLL may periodically identify Customer Content that has had no 
activity associated with it for at least 180 days (“Inactive Customer Content”) and will notify Customer in writing of its intent to remove the Inactive Customer Content 
from ZOLL’s working data set and destroy such data, unless Customer requests, in writing, within 30 days of receiving the notice from ZOLL, that either (z) Customer 
wishes to receive the Inactive Customer Content in a Database, or (y) Customer will pay ZOLL, at ZOLL’s then-current storage rates and upon ZOLL’s then-current 
terms and conditions, to continue to store such Inactive Customer Content.  If Customer fails to exercise one of the foregoing options within such 30-day period, ZOLL 
will have the right to destroy the applicable Inactive Customer Content in its possession or under its control.  Except for this Section 3.4.7.4, the terms of Section 3.4 
(including, without limitation, the Unplanned Downtime Goal) do not apply to Customer’s access of Inactive Customer Content. Customer represents, warrants and agrees 
that it (A) is solely responsible for determining the retention period applicable to it with respect to Customer Content maintained by ZOLL; (B) has consulted with or has 
had the opportunity to consult with legal, information governance or records management professionals; and (C) is not relying upon ZOLL to assist with determining the 
records maintenance or retention requirements applicable to it. 
3.4.8. Remedies. A “Service Credit” means a percentage of the monthly Fee to be credited to Customer (subject to Customer’s written request therefor and ZOLL’s 
verification thereof) for any ASP Service for which the Unplanned Downtime Goal is exceeded in a calendar month. For any calendar month where the aggregate total of 
Unplanned Downtime for any ASP Service exceeds one percent ZOLL will provide a 10% Service Credit towards Customer's monthly Fee for such ASP Service that was 
affected; provided, that Customer (i) requests such Service Credit in writing within 30 days of the end of the calendar month in which such Unplanned Downtime occurred, 
(ii) includes in such request the nature of, and date and time of such Unplanned Downtime and (iii) such Unplanned Downtime is verified by ZOLL. Such Service Credit 
will be applied to a future month's invoice for such ASP Services, which typically is two months later. Failure to submit a written request for Service Credit as provided
in this Section 3.4.8 shall constitute a waiver of such Service Credit by Customer. Further, Service Credits shall not be issued if Customer is not current on all Fees due 
and payable. The remedy set forth in this Section 3.4.8 shall be the Customers’ sole and exclusive remedy with respect to ZOLL exceeding the Unplanned Downtime
Goal.
3.4.9. Modifications. Changes to this Section 3.4 may be made from time to time at ZOLL’s sole discretion. Customer will be notified of any such changes that are 
material. 
4. Implementation Services. ZOLL shall provide ASP Services implementation, training and any related services identified in an Order (the “Implementation 
Services”). Customer shall, in a timely manner and at its own expense, cooperate and provide or make available to ZOLL access to the Customer’s premises, systems,
telephone, terminals and facsimile machines and all relevant information, documentation and staff reasonably required by ZOLL to enable ZOLL to perform the
Implementation Services. Customer acknowledges that any time frames or dates for completion of the Implementation Services set out in an Order are estimates only and 
the ability to meet them is influenced by a range of factors including, without limitation, response times and level of cooperation of Customer. Any obligations as to time 
are therefore on a “reasonable efforts” basis only and ZOLL shall not be liable for failure to meet time frames or completion dates unless solely due to ZOLL’s negligence.
5. Support Services. ZOLL shall provide the following Support Services for ASP Services without any additional Fees, except that ZOLL will have no obligation to 
provide such Support Services if any Fees for ASP Services are past due. 
5.1. Support. 
5.1.1. Emergency Support. ZOLL shall provide telephone support to Customer for 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, to address Errors that prevent Customer from using 
Supported ASP Services for a purpose for which Customer has an immediate and material need. “Supported ASP Services” means the ASP Services for which Customer 
has paid the then-current Fees. “Supported Environment” means a browser and other technical environment that supports the use of the ASP Services in accordance
with the Documentation. “Error” means a reproducible defect in the Supported ASP Services when operated in accordance with the Documentation in a Supported
Environment that causes the Supported ASP Services not to operate substantially in accordance with such Documentation. 
5.1.2. Technical Support. ZOLL shall provide telephone support to Customer during 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. Eastern Time, Monday to Friday, excluding ZOLL holidays
(“Business Hours”) to address all other Errors relating to any Supported ASP Services. Such telephone support will include (i) clarification of functions and features of
the Supported ASP Services; (ii) clarification of the Documentation; (iii) guidance in operation of the Supported ASP Services; (iv) assistance in identifying and verifying 
the causes of suspected Errors in the Supported ASP Services; and (v) advice on bypassing identified Errors in the Supported ASP Services, if reasonably possible.
Responses to such reporting shall be provided at a minimum within twenty-four (24) hours during Business Hours. 
5.1.3. Resolution. ZOLL shall use commercially reasonable efforts to provide a modification or workaround to Supported ASP Services that resolves an Error in all
material respects (“Resolution”).

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 27

47

Item 5.



5.1.4. Expenses. Support Services provided hereunder shall be provided from Chelmsford, Massachusetts or Broomfield, Colorado, as determined in ZOLL’s sole 
discretion. Should Customer request that ZOLL send personnel to Customer’s location to resolve any Error in the Supported ASP Services, ZOLL may charge Customer 
a fee of $2,500 for each day ZOLL personnel is at Customer’s location. 
5.1.5. Exceptions. ZOLL shall have no responsibility under this Agreement to fix any Errors arising out of or related to the following causes: (a) Customer’s modification 
or combination of the Access Software (in whole or in part), (b) use of the Supported ASP Services in an environment other than a Supported Environment; or (c) accident; 
unusual physical, electrical or electromagnetic stress; neglect; misuse; failure or fluctuation of electric power, air conditioning or humidity control; failure of media not 
furnished by ZOLL; excessive heating; fire and smoke damage; operation of the Supported ASP Services with other media and hardware, software or telecommunication 
interfaces; or causes other than ordinary use. Any corrections performed by ZOLL for such Errors shall be made, in ZOLL’s reasonable discretion, at ZOLL’s then-current 
time and material charges. ZOLL will provide the Support Services only for the most current release and the one immediately preceding major release of any Access 
Software. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, (i) ZOLL may cease providing Support Services for any ASP Services upon at least six (6) months 
advance notice to Customer of such cessation and (ii) Support Services do not cover Third Party Products or Services (defined below). 
5.2. Conditions and Limitations. Customer shall provide ZOLL with access to Customer’s personnel and its equipment. This access must include the ability to remotely 
access the equipment on which the Supported ASP Services are operating and to obtain the same access to the equipment as those of Customer’s employees having the 
highest privilege or clearance level. ZOLL will inform Customer of the specifications of the remote access methods available and associated software needed, and 
Customer will be responsible for the costs and use of said equipment. Fees for third party software and services are set by the owner of such software. 
6. Warranties. 
6.1. Implementation Services and Support Services. Subject to Customer’s payment of the Fees, ZOLL warrants that any Implementation Services or Support Services
provided to Customer will be performed with due care in a professional and workmanlike manner. ZOLL shall, as its sole obligation and Customer’s sole and exclusive
remedy for any breach of the warranty set forth in this Section 6.1, perform again the Implementation Services or Support Services that gave rise to the breach or, in the
case of Implementation Services, at ZOLL’s option, refund the Fees for such Implementation Services paid by Customer for the Implementation Services which gave rise 
to the breach. The availability of any remedy for a breach of the warranty set forth in this Section 6.1 is conditioned upon Customer notifying ZOLL in writing of such
breach within thirty (30) days following performance of the defective Implementation Services or Support Services, specifying the breach in reasonable detail.
6.2. ASP Services and Access Software. Subject to Customer’s payment of the Fees, ZOLL represents and warrants with respect to any ASP Services that  (i) ZOLL
has the right to license the Access Software and Documentation and make the ASP Services available to Customer pursuant to this Agreement and (ii) the ASP Services,
when used as permitted and in accordance with the Documentation, will materially conform to the Documentation. ZOLL does not warrant that Customer’s use of the
ASP Services will be error free or uninterrupted. Customer will notify ZOLL in writing of any breach of this warranty with respect to any ASP Services prior to the
expiration or termination of the Order for such ASP Services. If ZOLL is unable to provide a correction or work-around pursuant to the terms governing the provision of 
the ASP Services after using commercially reasonable efforts, ZOLL may terminate such Order upon written notice to Customer.  Any such correction or work-around 
shall not extend the term of such Order. This Section 6.2 sets forth Customer’s exclusive remedy, and ZOLL’s entire liability, for breach of the warranty for the ASP
Services contained herein. 
6.3. Warranty Disclaimers. The warranties for the Software and Services are solely and expressly as set forth in Section 6.1 and Section 6.2 and are expressly qualified, 
in their entirety, by this Section 6.3. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN SECTION 6.1 AND SECTION 6.2, (A) THE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES ARE
PROVIDED STRICTLY “AS IS”, WITHOUT ANY WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY, WRITTEN OR ORAL; (B)
ZOLL DOES NOT PROMISE THAT THE SOFTWARE OR SERVICES WILL BE SECURE, UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE OR THAT THEY ARE
SUITABLE FOR THE PARTICULAR NEEDS OF CUSTOMER, REGISTERED USERS OR ANY THIRD PARTY; AND (C) ZOLL SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS
ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, TITLE, AND NON INFRINGEMENT, AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR COURSE OF PERFORMANCE OR
USAGE IN TRADE. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS RELIED ON NO WARRANTIES OTHER THAN THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES IN THIS
AGREEMENT, AND THAT NO WARRANTIES ARE MADE BY ANY OF ZOLL’S LICENSORS OR SUPPLIERS WITH RESPECT TO THIRD PARTY
PRODUCTS OR SERVICES. Customer acknowledges and agrees that, in entering into this Agreement, it has not relied upon the future availability of any new or
enhanced feature or functionality, or any new or enhanced product or service, including, without limitation, updates or upgrades to ZOLL’s existing products and services. 
ZOLL’s performance obligations hereunder are limited to those expressly enumerated herein, and payment for ZOLL’s performance obligations shall be due as described 
herein. 
7. Confidentiality. Neither party will use any trade secrets, information, or other material, tangible or intangible, that relates to the business or technology of the other 
party and is marked or identified as confidential or is disclosed in circumstances that would lead a reasonable person to believe such information is confidential
(“Confidential Information”) for any purpose not expressly permitted by this Agreement, and will further disclose the Confidential Information of the party disclosing 
it (“Disclosing Party”) only to the employees or contractors of the party receiving it (“Receiving Party”) who have a need to know such Confidential Information for
purposes of this Agreement and who are under a duty of confidentiality no less restrictive than the Receiving Party’s duty hereunder. The Receiving Party will protect the 
Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information from unauthorized use, access, or disclosure in the same manner as the Receiving Party protects its own confidential or
proprietary information of a similar nature and with no less than reasonable care. The ASP Services, Software and Documentation shall be ZOLL’s Confidential
Information (including without limitation any routines, subroutines, directories, tools, programs, or any other technology included in the Software), notwithstanding any 
failure to mark or identify it as such. The Receiving Party’s obligations under this Section 7 with respect to any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party will
terminate when and to the extent the Receiving Party can document that such information: (a) was already lawfully known to the Receiving Party at the time of disclosure 
by the Disclosing Party; (b) is disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who had the right to make such disclosure without any confidentiality restrictions; (c) is, 
or through no fault of the Receiving Party has become, generally available to the public; or (d) is independently developed by the Receiving Party without access to, or
use of, Confidential Information. In addition, the Receiving Party may disclose Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party to the extent that such disclosure is: (i) 
necessary for the Receiving Party to enforce its rights under this Agreement in connection with a legal proceeding; or (ii) required by law or by the order of a court or
similar judicial or administrative body, provided that the Receiving Party notifies the Disclosing Party of such disclosure in writing prior to making such disclosure and
cooperates with the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party’s reasonable request and expense, in any lawful action to contest or limit the scope of such disclosure.
8. Indemnification.
8.1. By ZOLL. ZOLL will defend, at its own expense, any action against Customer or its or any of its agents, officers, director, or employees (“Customer Parties”) 
brought by a third party alleging that any Software or Services infringe any U.S. patents or any copyrights or misappropriate any trade secrets of a third party, and ZOLL 
will pay those costs and damages finally awarded against the Customer Parties in any such action that are specifically attributable to such claim or those costs and damages 
agreed to in a monetary settlement of such action. The foregoing obligations are conditioned on Customer: (a) notifying ZOLL promptly in writing of such claim or action; 
(b) giving ZOLL sole control of the defense thereof and any related settlement negotiations; and (c) cooperating with ZOLL and, at ZOLL’s request and expense, assisting 
in such defense. If any of the Software or Services become, or in ZOLL’s opinion is likely to become, the subject of an infringement claim, ZOLL may, at its sole option 
and expense, either: (i) procure for Customer the right to continue using such Software or Services; (ii) modify or replace such Software or Services with substantially
similar software or services so that such Software or Services becomes non-infringing; or (iii) terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
ZOLL will have no obligation under this Section 8.1 or otherwise with respect to any infringement claim based upon: (1) use of any of the Software or Services not in
accordance with this Agreement; (2) any use of any  Software or Services in combination with products equipment, software, services or data not supplied by ZOLL if
such infringement would have been avoided but for the combination with other products, equipment, software, services or data; (3) the failure of Customer to implement 
any replacements, corrections or modifications made available by ZOLL for any Software or Services including, but not limited to, any use of any release of the Software 
other than the most current release made commercially available by ZOLL; (4) any Customer Content; or (5) any modification of any Software or Services or use thereof 

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 27

48

Item 5.



by any person other than ZOLL or its authorized agents or subcontractors. This Section 8 states ZOLL’s entire liability and the exclusive remedy for any claims of 
infringement. 
8.2. By Customer. Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold ZOLL and its agents, officers, directors and employees (the “ZOLL Parties”) harmless from and against 
any and all liabilities, losses, expenses, damages and claims (collectively, “Claims”) that arise out of the following except to the extent the Claims are due to the gross 
negligence, intentional misconduct or breach of this Agreement by the ZOLL Parties: (i) information provided to any of the ZOLL Parties by any of the Customer Parties; 
(ii) any of the Customer Parties’ use or misuse of any of the Software or Services, including without limitation in combination with Customer’s software or services or
third party software or services; (iii) any modifications made by any of the Customer Parties to any of the Software or Services; (iv) infringement by any of the Customer
Parties of any third party intellectual property right; (v) Taxes (other than taxes based on ZOLL’s net income) and any related penalties and interest, arising from the
payment of the Fees or the delivery of the Software and Services to Customer; and (ix) any violation of laws or regulations, including without limitation applicable export 
and import control laws and regulations in the use of any of the Software or Services, by any of the Customer Parties. 
9. Limitation of Liability. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING HEREIN TO THE CONTRARY, IN NO EVENT WILL ZOLL OR ITS AFFILIATES,
SUBCONTRACTORS OR SUPPLIERS, OR ANY OF THEIR OFFICERS OR DIRECTORS, BE LIABLE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY, FOR: (i)
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY
THEORY OF LIABILITY (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NEGLIGENCE), (ii) LOSS OF PROFIT, DATA, BUSINESS OR GOODWILL, COSTS OF
PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES OR (iii) ANY LOSSES, COSTS OR DAMAGES ASSOCIATED WITH CUSTOMER’S PRODUCTS
OR OTHER ELEMENTS INCORPORATED OR USED THEREWITH WHICH WERE NOT PROVIDED BY ZOLL OR WITH RESPECT TO ANY
MODIFICATIONS MADE TO THE SOFTWARE OR SERVICES OR MISUSE OF THE SOFTWARE OR SERVICES. ZOLL’S TOTAL CUMULATIVE LIABILITY 
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR OTHERWISE, WILL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNT PAID TO ZOLL
BY CUSTOMER FOR THE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT DURING THE 12-MONTH PERIOD PRECEDING THE
EVENTS GIVING RISE TO SUCH LIABILITY. Customer acknowledges that these limitations reflect the allocation of risk set forth in this Agreement and that ZOLL
would not enter into this Agreement without these limitations on its liability. Customer agrees that these limitations shall apply notwithstanding any failure of essential
purpose of any limited remedy. The remedies in this Agreement are Customer’s sole and exclusive remedies. In addition, ZOLL disclaims all liability of any kind of
ZOLL’s licensors and suppliers, for third party products or services, and for the actions or omissions of Customer’s representatives. 
10. Ownership. All right, title and interest, including but not limited to all existing or future copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade secrets, patents, patent
applications, know how, moral rights, contract rights, and proprietary rights, and all registrations, applications, renewals, extensions, and combinations of the foregoing,
in and to the following are the exclusive property of ZOLL (or, as the case may be, its subsidiaries, licensors and suppliers): (i) ASP Services, Software, Documentation, 
and all proprietary technology used by ZOLL to perform its obligations under this Agreement; (ii) all software, tools, routines, programs, designs, technology, ideas,
know-how, processes, techniques and inventions that ZOLL makes, develops, conceives or reduces to practice, whether alone or jointly with others, in the course of
performing the Services; (iii) the fully compiled version of any of the foregoing software programs that can be executed by a computer and used without further compilation 
(the “Executable Code”); (iv) the human readable version of any of the foregoing software programs that can be compiled into Executable Code (the “Source Code”); 
and (v) all enhancements, modifications, improvements and derivative works of each and any of the foregoing (the “ZOLL Property”). If any derivative work is created 
by Customer from the Software or Services, ZOLL shall own all right, title and interest in and to such derivative work. Any rights not expressly granted to Customer
hereunder are reserved by ZOLL (or its licensors and suppliers, as the case may be).
11. Term and Termination. 
11.1. Term. The term of this Agreement (“Term”) begins on the effective date of the first Order incorporating this Agreement and continues until it is terminated. The 
term of each Order begins on the effective date of such Order and continues until it expires or is terminated; provided, however, that such term (and any extension thereof) 
shall automatically renew for an equivalent period at ZOLL’s then current list pricing unless either party notifies the other party in writing of an intent to not renew such
term at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of such term. “Implementation Date” for any ASP Services means the earlier of (a) the date upon which the activation 
of such ASP Services is complete and such ASP Services are able to function as described in the warranty for such ASP Services, regardless of whether Customer uses
such ASP Services or (b) one hundred eighty (180) days following the shipment of the monitor/defibrillators in connection with which such ASP Services  are to be used, 
unless a delay in the activation of such ASP Services is caused by ZOLL, in which case the Implementation Date shall be postponed by a number of days equal to the
delay that ZOLL has caused; or (c) if Customer does not use Implementation Services to activate such ASP Services, the date of the Order for such ASP Services.
11.2. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement or any Order without cause on thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other party. Either party may
terminate this Agreement or any Order if the other party materially defaults in the performance of any of its obligations hereunder and fails to cure such default within
twenty (20) days after written notice from the non-defaulting party.
11.3. Effects of Termination. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement or any Order for any reason: (a) all amounts, if any, owed to ZOLL under this Agreement
or the Order that has expired or been terminated (the “Expired or Terminated Document”) before such termination or expiration will become immediately due and
payable; (b) Customer’s right to access the ASP Services, and all licensed rights granted, in the Expired or Terminated Document will immediately terminate and cease
to exist; and (c) Customer must (i) promptly discontinue all use of any ASP Services provided under the Expired or Terminated Document (ii) erase all copies of Access
Software from Customer’s computers and the computers of its customers and return to ZOLL or destroy all copies of such Access Software and related Documentation
on tangible media in Customer’s possession and (iii) return or destroy all copies of the Documentation in Customer’s possession or control; (d) each party shall promptly 
discontinue all use of the other party’s Confidential Information disclosed in connection with the Expired or Terminated Document and return to the other party or, at the 
other party’s option, destroy, all copies of any such Confidential Information in tangible or electronic form. Additionally, if any Order for ASP Services is terminated by 
ZOLL for a material default or by Customer without cause, then Customer immediately shall pay ZOLL an early termination fee equal to the amount of (x) the Fees for 
such ASP Services otherwise payable during the initial term of such Order had such Order not been terminated during such term minus (y) the sum of such Fees paid by 
Customer to ZOLL prior to the date of termination. Upon ZOLL’s request, Customer will provide a written certification (in a form acceptable to ZOLL), certifying as to 
Customer’s compliance with its post-termination obligations set forth in this Section 11.3.
12. General Provisions.
12.1. Compliance with Laws. Customer shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations, and obtain required authorizations, concerning its use of the ASP Services,
including without limitation if applicable all export and import control laws and regulations. Customer will not use any ASP Services for any purpose in violation of any 
applicable laws. ZOLL may suspend performance if Customer violated applicable laws or regulations. 
12.2. Audits and Inspections. Upon written request from ZOLL, Customer shall furnish ZOLL with a certificate signed by an officer of Customer stating that the ASP 
Services are being used strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. During the Term and for a period of six months following the termination 
or expiration of this Agreement, upon prior written notice, ZOLL will have the right, during normal business hours, to inspect, or have an independent audit firm inspect, 
Customer’s records relating to Customer’s use of the ASP Services to ensure it is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The costs of the audit will be paid by 
ZOLL, unless the audit reveals that Customer’s underpayment of Fees exceeds five percent. Customer will promptly pay to ZOLL any amounts shown by any such audit 
to be owing (which shall be calculated at ZOLL’s standard, non-discounted rates) plus interest as provided in Section 2 above.
12.3. Assignments. Customer may not assign or transfer, by operation of law or otherwise (including in connection with a sale of substantially all assets or equity, merger 
or other change in control transaction), any of its rights under this Agreement or any Order to any third party without ZOLL’s prior written consent. Any attempted
assignment or transfer in violation of the foregoing will be null and void. ZOLL shall have the right to assign this Agreement or any Order to any affiliate, or to any
successor to its business or assets to which this Agreement relates, whether by merger, sale of assets, sale of stock, reorganization or otherwise, and to contract with any 
third party to provide part of any of the Software and Services, and to delegate performance of this Agreement or any Order to any of its subsidiaries. 

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 27

49

Item 5.



12.4. U.S. Government End Users. If Customer is a branch or agency of the United States Government, the following provision applies. The Software and Documentation 
are composed of “commercial computer software” and “commercial computer software documentation” as such terms are used in 48 C.F.R. 12.212 (SEPT 1995) and are 
(i) for acquisition by or on behalf of civilian agencies, consistent with the policy set forth in 48 C.F.R. 12.212; or (ii) for acquisition by or on behalf of units of the
Department of Defense, consistent with the policies set forth in 48 C.F.R. 227.7202 1 (JUN 1995) and 227.7202 3 (JUN 1995). 
12.5. Notices. All notices, consents, and approvals under this Agreement must be delivered in writing by electronic mail, courier, electronic facsimile, or certified or
registered mail (postage prepaid and return receipt requested) to the other party at the address set forth in the most recent Order (or to such other address or person as
from time to time provided by such party in accordance with this Section 12.5), and will be effective upon receipt or three (3) business days after being deposited in the
mail as required above, whichever occurs sooner.
12.6. Governing Law and Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial. This Agreement will be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado
without reference to its choice of law rules. The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods does not apply to this Agreement. Any action 
or proceeding arising from or relating to this Agreement shall be brought in a federal or state court in the State of Colorado, and each party irrevocably submits to the
jurisdiction and venue of any such court in any such action or proceeding. EACH PARTY HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY, AND INTENTIONALLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT.
12.7. Remedies. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the parties’ rights and remedies under this Agreement are cumulative. Customer acknowledges
that the Software and Services are built on valuable trade secrets and proprietary information of ZOLL, that any actual or threatened breach hereof will constitute 
immediate, irreparable harm to ZOLL for which monetary damages would be an inadequate remedy, and that ZOLL will be entitled to injunctive relief for such breach
or threatened breach. Customer further agrees to waive and hereby waives any requirement for the security or the posting of any bond in connection with such remedies.
Such remedies shall not be considered to be the exclusive remedies for any such breach or threatened breach, but shall be in addition to all other remedies available at law 
or equity to ZOLL.
12.8. Waivers. Any waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement on one occasion will not be deemed a waiver of any other provision or of such provision 
on any other occasion. 
12.9. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable, such provision will be changed and interpreted to 
accomplish the objectives of such provision to the greatest extent possible under applicable law and the remaining provisions of this Agreement will continue in full force 
and effect. In any event, the unenforceability or invalidity of any provision shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall continue in
full force and effect, and be construed and enforced, as if such provision had not been included, or had been modified as above provided, as the case may be.
12.10. Independent Contractors. The parties are entering into, and will perform, this Agreement as independent contractors. Nothing in this Agreement will be construed 
to make either party the agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever, to authorize either party to enter into any contract or assume any obligation on behalf of the other
or to establish a partnership, franchise or joint venture between the parties.
12.11. Third Parties. Customer is solely responsible for, and none of the fees set forth herein shall be deemed to cover, any amounts owed to third parties in connection 
with the use of the ASP Services. If Customer engages a third-party provider (“Third Party Provider”) to deliver products or services, including without limitation
software, integrated into or receiving data from or accessing the ASP Services (“Third Party Products or Services”), Customer represents, warrants and agrees that: (i) 
ZOLL shall have no liability, and makes no representation, with respect to such Third Party Products or Services; and (ii) the Third Party Provider shall not be an agent 
of ZOLL. To the extent the ASP Services or Software contains software owned by a third party for which ZOLL has a license agreement with a third party, the ASP 
Services and Software and all rights granted hereunder are expressly limited by and subject to any license agreements ZOLL may have for such software.
12.12. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for damages for any delay or failure of performance hereunder (other than payment obligation) arising out of causes 
beyond such party’s reasonable control and without such party’s fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, failure of its suppliers to timely deliver acceptable parts 
or services, any act or omission of Customer that interferes with or impedes ZOLL’s performance hereunder, acts of God, acts of civil or military authority, fires, riots,
wars, embargoes, Internet disruptions, hacker attacks, or communications failures (a “Force Majeure Event”).
12.13. Entire Agreement; Amendment; No Third Party Beneficiaries; Survival. This Agreement, which may be accepted by performance, constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties regarding the subject hereof and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, and communication, whether written 
or oral, except agreements at zollonline.com. Any other representation or agreement, whether written or oral, including but not limited to any purchase order issued by
Customer, shall be wholly inapplicable to the Software and Services and shall not be binding in any way on ZOLL. This Agreement may not be amended or changed or
any provision hereof waived except in writing signed by both parties. Any different or additional terms in any purchase order, confirmation or similar form issued or
otherwise provided by Customer but not signed by an authorized representative of ZOLL shall have no force or effect. There are no third party beneficiaries of this
Agreement. Those provisions of this Agreement that may be reasonably interpreted as surviving termination of this Agreement or the survival of which is necessary for
the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with their terms notwithstanding the termination hereof including, 
but not limited to, Section 7 (Confidentiality), Section 8 (Indemnification), Section 9 (Limitation on Liability), Section 10 (Ownership), Section 11.3 (Effects of
Termination) and Section 12 (General Provisions). This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be considered an original, but all of which
together will constitute the same instrument.
13. HIPAA. This Section 13 applies if and to the extent that ZOLL creates, receives, maintains or transmits, directly or indirectly, any protected health information of
Customer (“PHI”) in the course of providing Software or Services to Customer. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Section 13 have the meanings assigned to 
them elsewhere in the Agreement or, if not defined therein, as defined in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (P.L. 104 191), 42 U.S.C.
Section 1320d, et seq., and regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended from time to time (such statute and regulations collectively referred to as “HIPAA”).
“Covered Entity” as used herein means Customer. “Business Associate” as used herein means ZOLL. The purpose of this Section 13 is to comply with 45 C.F.R.
§164.502(e) and §164.504(e), governing PHI and business associates under HIPAA
13.1. Applicability. This Section 13 applies if and to the extent that Business Associate creates, receives, maintains or transmits, directly or indirectly, any PHI in the 
course of providing Software or Services to Covered Entity.  
13.2. Compliance and Agents. Business Associate agrees that, to the extent it has access to PHI, Business Associate will fully comply with the requirements of this 
Section 13 with respect to such PHI. Business Associate will ensure that every agent, including a subcontractor, of Business Associate to whom it provides PHI received 
from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of, Covered Entity will comply with the same restrictions and conditions as set forth herein.  
13.3. Use and Disclosure; Rights. Business Associate agrees that it shall not use or disclose PHI except as permitted under this Agreement, and in compliance with each 
applicable requirement of 45 CFR Section 164.504(e). Business Associate may use or disclose the PHI received or created by it, (a) to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement, (b) to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, Covered Entity as specified in the Agreement, or (c) to provide data aggregation functions 
to Covered Entity as permitted by HIPAA. Further, Business Associate may use the PHI received by it in its capacity as Business Associate, if necessary, to properly 
manage and administer its business or to carry out its legal responsibilities. Business Associate may disclose the PHI received by it in its capacity as Business Associate 
to properly manage and administer its business or to carry out its legal responsibilities if: (a) the disclosure is required by law, or (b) the Business Associate obtains 
reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that it will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for 
the purpose for which it is disclosed to the person and the person notifies Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware that the confidentiality of the information 
has been breached. Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be permissible under HIPAA if done by 
Covered Entity.  

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 27

50

Item 5.



13.4. Safeguards. Business Associate agrees to develop, document, use, and keep current appropriate procedural, physical, and electronic safeguards, as required in 45 
C.F.R. §§164.308 - 164.312, sufficient to prevent any use or disclosure of electronic PHI other than as permitted or required by this Agreement.
13.5. Minimum Necessary. Business Associate will limit any use, disclosure, or request for use or disclosure to the minimum amount necessary to accomplish the 
intended purpose of the use, disclosure, or request.   
13.6. Report of Improper Use or Disclosure. Business Associate shall report to Covered Entity any information of which it becomes aware concerning any use or 
disclosure of PHI that is not permitted by this Agreement and any security incident of which it becomes aware. Business Associate will, following the discovery of a 
breach of “unsecured protected health information,” as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 164.402, notify Covered Entity of such breach within 15 days. The notice shall include 
the identification of each individual whose unsecured protected health information has been, or is reasonably believed by Business Associate to have been, accessed, 
acquired, or disclosed during such breach. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Business Associate of a 
use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in violation of this Agreement.  
13.7. Individual Access. In accordance with an individual’s right to access to his or her own PHI in a designated record set under 45 CFR §164.524 and the individual’s 
right to copy or amend such records under 45 CFR §164.524 and §164.526, Business Associate shall make available all PHI in a designated record set to Covered Entity 
to enable the Covered Entity to provide access to the individual to whom that information pertains or such individual’s representative. 
13.8. Amendment of and Access to PHI. Business Associate shall make available for amendment PHI in a designated record set and shall incorporate any amendments 
to PHI in a designated record set in accordance with 45 CFR §164.526 and in accordance with any process mutually agreed to by the parties.  
13.9. Accounting. Business Associate agrees to document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity 
to respond to an individual’s request for an accounting of disclosures of their PHI in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528. Business Associate agrees to make available to 
Covered Entity the information needed to enable Covered Entity to provide the individual with an accounting of disclosures as set forth in 45 CFR §164.528.   
13.10. DHHS Access to Books, Records, and Other Information. Business Associate shall make available to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
(“DHHS”), its internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of, 
Covered Entity for purposes of determining the Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA. 
13.11. Individual Authorizations; Restrictions. Covered Entity will notify Business Associate of any limitation in its notice of privacy practices, any restriction to the 
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to with an individual and of any changes in or revocation of an authorization or other permission by an individual, 
to the extent that such limitation, restriction, change, or revocation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.  
13.12. HITECH Act Compliance. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to comply with the amendments to HIPAA included in the Health Information 
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (the “HITECH Act”), including all privacy and security regulations issued under the HITECH Act that apply to 
Business Associate.  
13.13. Breach; Termination; Mitigation. If Covered Entity knows of a pattern of activity or practice of Business Associate that constitutes a material breach or violation 
of Business Associate’s obligations under this Section 13, Covered Entity and Business Associate shall take any steps reasonably necessary to cure such breach and make 
Business Associate comply, and, if such steps are unsuccessful, Covered Entity may terminate this Agreement. Business Associate shall take reasonable actions available 
to it to mitigate any detrimental effects of such violation or failure to comply. 
13.14. Return of PHI. Business Associate agrees that upon termination of this Agreement, and if feasible, Business Associate shall (a) return or destroy all PHI received 
from Covered Entity, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, that Business Associate has continued to maintain in any form or manner 
and retain no copies of such information or, (b) if such return or destruction is not feasible, immediately notify Covered Entity of the reasons return or destruction are not 
feasible, and extend indefinitely the protection of this Section 13 to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction 
of the PHI not feasible.  
13.15. De-identified Health Information. Business Associate may de-identify any and all PHI and may create a “Limited Data Set” in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 
164.514(b) & (e). Covered Entity acknowledges and agrees that de-identified information is not PHI and that Business Associate may use such de-identified information 
for any lawful purpose. Use or disclosure of a Limited Data Set must comply with 45 CFR 164.514(e). 
13.16. Survival. All representations, covenants, and agreements in or under this Section 13 shall survive the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement. 
13.17. Further Assurances; Conflicts. Each party shall in good faith execute, acknowledge or verify, and deliver any and all documents which may from time to time 
be reasonably requested by the other party to carry out the purpose and intent of this Section 13. The terms and conditions of this Section 13 will override and control any 
expressly conflicting term or condition of the Agreement. All non-conflicting terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Any ambiguity 
shall be resolved in a manner that will permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. For the avoidance of doubt, a limitation on liability in the Agreement does not 
conflict with this Section 13. 
13.18. Applicable Law. The parties acknowledge and agree that HIPAA may be amended and additional guidance or regulations implementing HIPAA may be issued 
after the date of the execution of this Agreement and may affect the parties’ obligations hereunder. The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this 
Agreement from time in order as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. 

By signing below, the Customer acknowledges and agrees to those terms and conditions.  The person signing below represents and warrants that she or he has the 
authority to bind the Customer to those terms and conditions.  

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 27

51

Item 5.



Customer     
Signature:    

_________________________________________________ 

Name: ___________________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________________ 

Company: ________________________________________ 

Company Address: _________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________________  

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 27

52

Item 5.



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 27

53

Item 5.

R



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 17 of 27

54

Item 5.

R



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 18 of 27

55

Item 5.

R



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 19 of 27

56

Item 5.

R



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 20 of 27

57

Item 5.

R



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 21 of 27

58

Item 5.

R



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 22 of 27

59

Item 5.

R



EXHIBIT 3 

ZOLL Medical Corporation Quote No: 400188 V:1 
EXTENDED WARRANTY & PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE 

Preventive Maintenance Terms and Conditions 
1. Preventive maintenance (“PM”) will be invoiced upon ZOLL’s receipt of quote with an authorized
signature (the “PM Contract”) and, if available, a purchase order.

2. Any PMs that remain unused as of the end of a one-year PM contract will be forfeited and no monies
will be refunded to the customer. Any PMs that remains unused as of the end of the initial term of the Multi-
year PM Contract will automatically roll over into the next year of the PM Contract. Any PMs that remains
unused as of the end of the second and subsequent years of the PM Contract, will be forfeited and no monies
will be refunded to the customer.

3. If the customer purchases new ZOLL equipment, unused PMs will be transferred to the new equipment at
the end of the factory warranty.

4. If ZOLL determines during the course of performing PM that a repair is required and the device is not
covered under warranty, ZOLL will request customer authorization in order to repair the device.

5. Upon the customer’s request, a loaner will be provided free of charge pursuant to ZOLL’s Loaner Policy.
The loaner will be provided for use while the device is being serviced by ZOLL.

6. It is e available for Preventative Maintenance at the scheduled times.

   Extended Warranty Terms and Conditions 
1. The ZOLL Extended Warranty (“EW”) extends the term of ZOLL’s Factory Warranty by the number of
years selected by the customer. EW coverage commences upon the expiration of the Factory Warranty, and
is subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Factory Warranty. The EW does not apply to
accessories.

2. The price of the EW will be invoiced upon ZOLL’s receipt of quote with an authorized signature from
the customer and, if available, a purchase order from the customer.

3. The EW is not transferrable and cannot be cancelled. However, if the customer replaces equipment
covered by an EW with new ZOLL equipment, upon customer’s request, the remaining time under the EW will
be transferred to the new equipment at the end of the factory warranty. All requests to transfer the
remaining balance of an EW must be submitted in writing to the ZOLL Service Contracts department within 60
days of date of shipment of new equipment. Failure to submit EW transfer request will result in the forfeiture
of remaining EW.

4. If the customer has a claim under an EW, customer must call the ZOLL Help Desk (800-348-9011)
to arrange for a Return Authorization in advance of sending the unit for evaluation at ZOLL
Headquarters.

5. All repairs are performed at ZOLL headquarters in Chelmsford, MA. If a unit needs to be repaired, upon
the customer’s request, a loaner will be provided free of charge pursuant to ZOLL’s Loaner Policy.

6. If no claims are made under the EW during the EW period, the purchase price of the EW is not
refundable.

Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 23 of 27

60

Item 5.

R



The Worry-Free Service Plan is designed for customers who want the maximum coverage for their ZOLL device. 

No surprises. No worrying. 
The Worry-Free Service Plan is our most comprehensive plan, combining accidental damage coverage,* battery 
replacement, greater discounts on accessories, cables, and upgrades, and an on-site support option, including 
deployment of devices.**

ExpertCare Services by ZOLL® 

Dedication Beyond Delivery

WORRY-FREE SERVICE PLAN: X Series®

The Worry-Free Service Plan provides:
• �Accidental damage coverage*
• �Lithium-ion SurePower™ battery replacement
• �Annual on-site** preventive maintenance
• �24/7 Technical phone support
• �Discounts on accessories and cables, additional

batteries, and parameter upgrades
• �Parts/labor on repairs for normal wear and tear

• �ECG 12-lead cable replacement***
• �Available on-site response option**

*�Exclusions: Catastrophic damage/beyond repair will
not be covered

**Dependent on geographical location
***��Upon failure (excluding physical damage), 

with on-site support option

© 2020 ZOLL Medical Corporation. All rights reserved. ExpertCare, SurePower,  
X Series, and ZOLL are trademarks or registered trademarks of ZOLL Medical 
Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.   MCN CRP 1911 0073

TRUST YOUR EQUIPMENT TO THE PEOPLE WHO KNOW IT BEST 
We are committed to providing you with unparalleled service for all of your ZOLL devices.

NEED MORE INFORMATION?  
Email: ServiceContractsAdmin@zoll.com
Phone: 800.348.9011
Contact your ZOLL representative

Battery Replacement Program: 
• ��Batteries must be maintained per ZOLL’s recommended maintenance program

• �Batteries are replaced upon failure, one for one, throughout the term of the ExpertCare Service contract,

should the SurePower battery or SurePower Charger display a fault

• ���Batteries must be evaluated and confirmed of failure through ZOLL Technical Support and/or an on-site

field service technician

• ��Up to three batteries per device will be covered for batteries acquired from ZOLL in last 36 months.

• For batteries acquired from ZOLL over 36 months ago, one battery per device will be covered

Exhibit 3 Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 24 of 27

61

Item 5.



ExpertCare Service Plans: X Series PM BASIC PRECISION WORRY-FREE

Field Preventive Maintenance*
• Handle replacement as needed
• Screen protector installation
• Tracking of PM schedule
• Documentation for regulatory agencies

• • •

Free loaner equipment shipped to arrive 
by 10 a.m. next business day • • • •
Telephone support 24/7 • • • •
General software updates ($499 value) • • • •
Shipping fees waived** ($30 value) • • • •
Minimum service fee waived ($285 value) • • • •
Discounted accessories/cables • • •
Discounted lithium-ion SurePower™ II batteries • • •
Repairs: Parts/labor covered for normal wear and tear • • •
SurePower Charger: Parts/labor covered for normal 
wear and tear • •
Discounted parameter upgrade • •
Lithium-ion SurePower battery replacement 
upon end of life (exclusions apply) •
Accidental damage coverage*** •
ON-SITE* SUPPORT (OPTIONAL)
48-72 hour response
Technician will evaluate and pack device to return to
ZOLL for repair

• •

ECG 12-lead cable replacement ($325 value) 
�Upon failure (excluding physical damage), one for one/unit/year • •
On-site device deployment when repaired 
unit is returned •

*Dependent on geographical location.  **For PM Only Plan, will cover shipping of device for PM only.
***EXCLUSIONS: Catastrophic damage/beyond repair will not be covered.

We offer a variety of service contract options to suit your needs and your budget. 

Resolution No. 2021-179R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 25 of 27

62

Item 5.



Exhibit 4 Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 26 of 27

63

Item 5.

R



Resolution No. 2021-179 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 27 of 27

64

Item 5.

R



Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 6  December 01, 2021 File No. 0600-10 

SUBJECT: Purchase one (1) Type 3 Wildland Brush Engine from Boise Mobile Equipment Inc. 
(BME) of Boise, Idaho. 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Fleet Services 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-182, authorizing the Fleet Services Division 
to purchase one (1) Type 3 Boise Mobile Equipment wildland brush engine from Boise Mobile 
Equipment Inc. in the amount of $399,872.73 through a Cooperative Purchase Contract with the State 
of California, Contract No. 1-17-23-21B. The State of California cooperative purchase price includes all 
taxes, delivery, operator and mechanic training, and all associated fees. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

On October 27, 2021, the City Council approved a budget adjustment of $450,000 using Fiscal Year 
2021 General Fund end-of-year surplus for the purchase and replacement of one (1) Type 3 wildland 
brush engine and any necessary equipment. 

BACKGROUND: 

Type 3 wildland brush engines are specifically designed for fighting wildfires and are valuable during a 
large-scale wildland fire operation. All wildland brush apparatus are cross-staffed with on-duty crews to 
respond immediately within our community or can be deployed with call back personnel to assist other 
jurisdictions. The City currently owns three Type 3 brush engines located at Fire Stations 2, 3, and 4.   

One of the existing Fire Department’s Type 3 wildland brush engines has aged to the point that a critical 
failure in the near future is highly likely. Unit No. 3121 has been in service for 30 years and has 
exceeded the standard life expectancy of 20 years. With a 30-year-old firefighting apparatus, it has 
become extremely difficult to find replacement parts to properly repair and maintain. Many replacement 
parts are currently unavailable and have to be custom made or fabricated.  

In recent years, for accessibility to remote areas and for firefighter safety, nearly all wildland firefighting 
apparatus are designed and built on 4-wheel drive chassis. Unit 3121 was designed and built on a 2-
wheel drive chassis, which becomes problematic when called upon to fight remote wildland fires when 
access is almost always off-road. The new Type 3 BME replacement brush engine will be built on a 4-
wheel drive chassis, based off the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) 
Model 34 specifications, which will increase our wildland firefighting capabilities and effectiveness. 

65

Item 6.



Upon approval from the City Council, one (1) Type 3 wildland brush truck will be purchased from Boise 
Mobile Equipment Inc. of Boise, Idaho utilizing a Cooperative Purchasing Contract through the State of 
California, Contract No. 1-17-23-21B, as allowed per section 10-91 of the City of Escondido’s Municipal 
Code authorizing the purchase of supplies and equipment utilizing cooperative purchase programs. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Joseph Goulart, Director of Public Works 

11/23/21 5:45 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2021-182 
2. Resolution No. 2021-182 Exhibit “A”  

 

 

66

Item 6.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-182 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF ONE 2022 BOISE MOBILE 
EQUIPMENT WILDLAND BRUSH ENGINE 
(TYPE 3 WILDLAND BRUSH ENGINE) TO 
BOISE MOBILE EQUIPMENT OF BOISE, 
IDAHO 

 

WHEREAS, the Fleet Services Division is replacing one (1) existing Type 3 

wildland brush engine, City unit No. 3121, due to exceeding the standard life expectancy 

of twenty years, extensive hours of use, and current mechanical condition; and 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2021, City Council approved a budget adjustment of 

$450,000 using FY 2021 General Fund end-of-year surplus for the purchase of a 

replacement Type 3 brush engine; and 

WHEREAS, staff evaluated alternative manufacturers and the Boise Mobile 

Equipment Model 34 Wildland Brush Engine was selected as the best suited and most 

cost-effective unit; and 

WHEREAS, Boise Mobile Equipment Inc. is the manufacturer of the Type 3 

Wildland Brush Engine; and 

WHEREAS, the State of California conducted a competitive bid process for Type 

3 wildland brush apparatus and Boise Mobile Equipment Inc. was deemed to be the 

lowest most responsive bidder; and 

WHEREAS, the City may utilize a cooperative purchase contract, which has been 

conducted in a competitive manner by the State, County or any other Public or Municipal 

Agency; and  

67

Item 6.



WHEREAS, the City is utilizing cooperative purchasing with the State of California, 

under Contract No. 1-17-23-21B, as per section 10-91 of the Escondido Municipal Code; 

and  

WHEREAS, staff recommends purchasing one (1) Boise Mobile Equipment Model 

34 Type 3 Wildland Brush Engine in the amount of $399,872.73, which includes sales tax 

and all other fees; and 

WHEREAS, the purchase price includes all published and unpublished options, as 

shown in Exhibit “A”, which is attached to this Resolution and is incorporated by this 

reference; and  

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in Fund No. 229, Project No. 166102; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to authorize the purchase of one (1) Boise Mobile Equipment Model 34 

Type 3 Wildland Brush Engine; and 

WHEREAS, the existing Type 3 wildland brush engine being replaced by this 

purchase, as listed above, is deemed surplus property and is no longer required for public 

use; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to approve the disposal of the surplus Type 3 brush engine by public 

auction.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California: 

68

Item 6.



1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council is authorized to approve, on behalf of the City, the 

Cooperative Purchase through the State of California, as allowed per Escondido 

Municipal Code section 10-91. 

3.  That the City Council approves Resolution No. 2021-182 authorizing the 

Mayor, or his designee, to execute such documents necessary to purchase one (1) Boise 

Mobile Equipment Model 34 Wildland Brush Engine in the amount of $399,872.73, which 

includes sales tax, delivery, operator and mechanic training, and all other fees. 

4. That the City Council authorizes the disposal of the surplus Type 3 brush 

engine being replaced by this purchase through public auction by the City’s contracted 

auction company. 

 

 

69

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 67

70

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 67

71

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 67

72

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 67

73

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 67

74

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 67

75

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 67

76

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 67

77

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 67

78

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 67

79

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 67

80

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 67

81

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 67

82

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 67

83

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 67

84

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 67

85

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 17 of 67

86

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 18 of 67

87

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 19 of 67

88

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 20 of 67

89

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 21 of 67

90

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 22 of 67

91

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 23 of 67

92

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 24 of 67

93

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 25 of 67

94

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 26 of 67

95

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 27 of 67

96

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 28 of 67

97

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 29 of 67

98

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 30 of 67

99

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 31 of 67

100

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 32 of 67

101

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 33 of 67

102

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 34 of 67

103

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 35 of 67

104

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 36 of 67

105

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 37 of 67

106

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 38 of 67

107

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 39 of 67

108

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 40 of 67

109

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 41 of 67

110

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 42 of 67

111

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 43 of 67

112

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 44 of 67

113

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 45 of 67

114

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 46 of 67

115

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 47 of 67

116

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 48 of 67

117

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 49 of 67

118

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 50 of 67

119

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 51 of 67

120

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 52 of 67

121

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 53 of 67

122

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 54 of 67

123

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 55 of 67

124

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 56 of 67

125

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 57 of 67

126

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 58 of 67

127

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 59 of 67

128

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 60 of 67

129

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 61 of 67

130

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 62 of 67

131

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 63 of 67

132

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 64 of 67

133

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 65 of 67

134

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 66 of 67

135

Item 6.



Resolution No. 2021-182 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 67 of 67

136

Item 6.



 

Staff Report - Council 

 Consent Item No. 7      December 01, 2021   File No. 0600-10 
 
 

SUBJECT: Purchase Three (3) Medix Ambulances from Republic Emergency Vehicle Sales 
(Republic-EVS) through Southwest Ambulance Sales of Kennedale, Texas      

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Fleet Services 

RECOMMENDATION:  

It is requested that City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-181, authorizing the Fleet Services Division 
to purchase three (3) Medix Ambulances from Republic-EVS through Southwest Ambulance Sales in 
the amount of $786,290.26 through a Cooperative Purchase Contract with the Houston Galveston Area 
Council (HGAC), Contract No AM10-20. The HGAC purchase price includes all taxes, delivery, operator 
and mechanic training, and all associated fees. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  

On October 27, 2021, City Council approved a Budget Adjustment of $775,000 using Fiscal Year 2021 
end-of-year General Fund surplus for the purchase of three (3) new ambulances. The remaining 
$11,290.26 balance of the purchase amount will be supplemented by the Fleet Vehicle Replacement 
Fund. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
In order to meet the demand for services and community needs, five (5) front line ambulances are 
needed along with four (4) ambulances in reserve status. Reserve ambulances are required in the fleet 
to supplement front line ambulances that are placed out of service for preventative maintenance or 
repairs. Reserve ambulances also can be staffed to add surge capacity during major incidents or to 
assist communities requesting mutual aid. The City currently has the appropriate number of reserve 
ambulances; however, with an aging fleet, the reliability has deteriorated.   
 
Within the City’s ambulance fleet, 5 ambulances have aged to their recommended life cycle of seven 
(7) years.  Three (3) existing 2012 ambulances will be replaced due to excessive engine hours, mileage, 
increased downtime and costly repairs. Due to the type of service an ambulance provides, the hours of 
engine idle time and the miles traveled, these ambulances have met their standard service life 
expectancy and are scheduled for replacement.  
 
In Fiscal Year 2020, two (2) identically specified Medix Ambulances were approved by Council. These 
two (2) ambulances have proven to be very reliable, provide excellent space efficiency for equipment 
& supplies, and provides ample space for patients and emergency providers. In addition, the liquid 

137

Item 7.



Purchase Three (3) Medix Ambulances from Republic Emergency Vehicle Sales (Republic-EVS) 
through Southwest Ambulance Sales of Kennedale, Texas     
December 1, 2021  
Page 2  
spring rear suspension system allows patients a smooth and comfortable ride while being transported 
to the hospital. 
 
Upon approval from the City Council, three (3) ambulances will be purchased from Republic-EVS 
through Southwest Ambulance Sales of Kennedale, Texas, utilizing a Cooperative Purchasing Contract 
through the HGAC, Contract No. AM10-20, as allowed per section 10-91 of the City of Escondido’s 
Municipal Code which authorizes the purchase of supplies and equipment utilizing cooperative 
purchase programs. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Joseph Goulart, Director of Public Works 

11/23/21 5:45 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2021-181 
2. Resolution No. 2021-181 Exhibit “A” 

 

138

Item 7.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-181 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AWARDING THE CONTRACT TO PURCHASE 
THREE 2022 MEDIX AMBULANCES TO 
REPUBLIC EMERGENCY VEHICLE SALES, 
THROUGH SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE 
SALES OF KENNEDALE, TEXAS  

 

WHEREAS, the Fleet Services Division is replacing three existing ambulances due 

to exceeding their standard life expectancy of seven years, extensive hours of use, and 

current mechanical condition; and 

WHEREAS, the three existing Ambulances due for replacement are City unit 

numbers 3815, 3816, and 3817; and 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2021, the City Council approved a budget adjustment 

of $775,000 using Fiscal Year 2021 end-of-year General Fund surplus; and 

WHEREAS, staff evaluated alternative manufacturers and the Medix Ambulance 

was selected as the best suited and most cost-effective ambulance for the City; and 

WHEREAS, MEDIX Specialty Vehicles Inc. is the manufacturer of the ambulances; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Houston-Galveston Area Council (“HGAC”) conducted a 

competitive bid process for ambulances and MEDIX Specialty Vehicles Inc. was deemed 

to be the lowest responsive bidder, Contract No. AM10-20; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) is a member of HGAC, member number 

15-4548; and 

139

Item 7.



WHEREAS, the City is utilizing cooperative purchasing with HGAC, and as per 

section 10-91 of the Escondido Municipal Code, the City may utilize a cooperative 

purchase contract, which has been conducted in a competitive manner by the State, 

County or any other Public or Municipal Agency; and 

WHEREAS, $775,000 for the purchase of these ambulances is available in fund 

229, Project No. 166103; and 

WHEREAS, the remaining $11,290.26 balance of the purchase will be 

supplemented by the fleet vehicle replacement fund; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends purchasing three MEDIX Ambulances from 

Republic-EVS through Southwest Ambulance Sales in the amount of $786,290.26, which 

includes sales tax and all other fees; and 

WHEREAS, the purchase price includes all published and unpublished options, as 

shown in Exhibit “A”, which is attached to this Resolution and is incorporated by this 

reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Ambulances being replaced by this purchase, as listed above, are 

deemed surplus property and are no longer required for public use; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to authorize the purchase of three Medix Ambulances from Republic-EVS 

through Southwest Ambulance Sales, Inc.; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to accept the recommendations and approve the disposal of the surplus 

vehicles via auction. 

140

Item 7.



  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council is authorized to approve, on behalf of the City, the 

Cooperative Purchase through the Houston-Galveston Area Council, as allowed per 

Escondido Municipal Code section 10-91. 

3.  That the City Council approves Resolution No. 2021-185 authorizing the 

Mayor, or his designee, to execute such documents necessary to purchase three (3) 

Medix Ambulances from Republic-EVS through Southwest Ambulance Sales Inc. in the 

amount of $786,290.26, which includes sales tax, delivery, operator and mechanic 

training, and all other fees. 

4. That the City Council authorizes the dispose of the surplus vehicles that are 

being replaced by this purchase via auction with the City contracted auction company. 

 

 

141

Item 7.



Contract Pricing Worksheets
Rev 02-05-07

NOTE:  Purchase Orders are not valid unless 
a copy of the completed worksheet and the 
customer's order are faxed to HGACBuy at:

713-993-4548

This Workbook contains three versions of HGACBuy's Contract Pricing 
Worksheet.  One is for Standard Equipment / Services, one is for 
Catalog or Price Sheet type purchases, and the third is for Motor 
Vehicles only.  See tabs at bottom to select appropriate Worksheet.

Please contact H-GAC staff about use of the worksheets if you have any questions.

Resolution No. 2021.181 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 4

142

Item 7.



Contract
No.:

AM10-20
Date

Prepared:
11/4/2021

Buying
Agency:

Contractor:

Contact
Person:

Prepared
By:

Phone: Phone:

Fax: Fax:

Email: Email:

Product
Code: AM20RA23 Description:

142,800.00

Cost Cost

55,143

        Subtotal B: 55143

Cost Cost

33,917

Subtotal C: 33916.52

17%

3 231859.52 = Subtotal D: 695578.56

Subtotal E: 1000

Cost Cost

24195 56479.95

9000 36.75

Subtotal F: 89711.7

786290.26

Please See Attached

Description Description

C. Unpublished Options - Itemize below / attach additional sheet(s) if necessary.
(Note: Unpublished options are items which were not submitted and priced in Contractor's bid.)

Subtotal From Additional Sheet(s): 

B. Published Options - Itemize below - Attach additional sheet(s) if necessary - Include Option Code in description if applicable.
(Note: Published Options are options which were submitted and priced in Contractor's bid.)

bobby@southwestambulancesales.com

E. H-GAC Order Processing Charge (Amount Per Current Policy)

D. Total Cost Before Any Applicable Trade-In / Other Allowances / Discounts (A+B+C)

F. Trade-Ins / Other Allowances / Special Discounts / Freight / Installation

X   Subtotal of A + B + C: 

Description

Please See Attached

Description

CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET
For MOTOR VEHICLES Only

Type I MSV II 170 Ford F450 4x2 Gas

A. Product Item Base Unit Price Per Contractor's H-GAC Contract:

This Worksheet is prepared by Contractor and given to End User.  If a PO is issued, both documents 
MUST be faxed to H-GAC @ 713-993-4548.  Therefore please type or print legibly.

Escondido  Fire

Craig Tebbe

760-473-0796

ctebbe@escondido.org

Southwest Ambulance Sales

Bobby Davis

806-336-3949

G. Total Purchase Price (D+E+F): Delivery Date:    120-150 Days          

Subtotal From Additional Sheet(s): 

Quantity Ordered: 

For this transaction the percentage is: 
Check: Total cost of Unpublished Options (C) cannot exceed 25% of the total of the Base Unit 

Price plus Published Options (A+B).

Description Description

Tire Fee

Sales TaxDiesel Upgrade 3 x 8065

Freight 3 units

Resolution No. 2021.181 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 4

143

Item 7.



Code# Published Options
MX09166 Liquid Springs Suspension 12,870.00$ 
100020 Lonseal- LonPlate (Diamond Plate) 630.00$      
100030 Dri-Dek in Exterior Compartments- Black 448.00$      
100040 Cabinet Laminate: Gloss Gray 770.00$      

200011
Air Horns, Buell dual horns through front bumper, momentary switch on front 
console, standard compressor, tank, fittings. 2,240.00$   

200200
Power Door Locks: All Entry and Compartment Doors, wired to OEM door 
lock system 1,232.00$   

99-0701 Power Door Locks: Key pad, Ford chassis only. 266.00$      
99-0678 Power Door Locks: Stealth Switch. 91.00$        
200240 Running Boards 843.00$      

99-0404 Momentary disable switch for scene and load lights on curbside wall ahead of 
squad bench & rear entry doors 259.00$      

99-0007 Splash Guard, stainless steel plate installed below fuel fill and DEF fill. 182.00$      
99-1776 Tow Eyes: Frame mounted through rear kick plate. 539.00$      
99-1761 Anti Theft device: Idle lock ignition security system 350.00$      
99-0764 Back-Up Camera, Color Monitor in Cab 1,650.00$   
99-0522 Dome Light: LED 11x180.00 1,980.00$   
400160 Inverter, Vanner 20-1050CUL- 1000watt, remote control w/switch in rear 1,880.00$   
99-0717 Shoreline: Auto Eject, 125 VAC, 20-Amp, 60 Hz straight-blade inlet w/hinged, 630.00$      
500118 All LED Light Package. 3,640.00$   
99-0700 M9 LED scene/load light 6x504.00 3,024.00$   
600100 Oxygen Outlet, Green Face Plate, Additional 175.00$      

99-0912
Suction System: SSCOR wall mount system with guage/regulator and 
canister holder. 945.00$      

99-0966 Oxygen oxy minder digital contents guage with maunal bypass 805.00$      
99-0718 ACC Super tie in Hot Weather package. 2,275.00$   
800005 Cabinets with CPR Seat and 2nd Action Area. 938.00$      
800057 Assist Rail, 1.25" Stainless w/Radius Ends, Over Squad Bench- IATS 175.00$      
99-0214 A-Bar with Sharps and Waste Holder 511.00$      
800140 Swivel Pedestal for EVS seat 249.00$      
800168 EVS Technician's Seat w/Child Restraint System with 4 point seat belt. 490.00$      

1000082 Paint: Type 1 module & chassis custom color 9,800.00$   
99-2009 Wheelen 295HFSA7 remote dual siren amplifier with flush mount control 294.00$      
99-0354 Whelen Low frequency howler. 1,225.00$   
600065 Bracket, O2 Cylinder, Portable, Medix M-14J w/mount plate 2 x 266.00 532.00$      
800170 Glove Box Holder 3-Slot 245.00$      
800090 Corian Countertop- 1st / 2nd Action Area, Color- Gray Mist 1,500.00$   
99-0753 Cabinet drawer, 1 aluminum pull out with HD key line slides. 2 x 630 1,260.00$   
99-0713 Compartment #3: Steetside rear, 3 quarter height with inside/putside access, 210.00$      

55,153.00$ 

Resolution No. 2021.181 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 4

144

Item 7.



Unpublished
Ferno Inline95 W/UFP 4,964.46$   
Priority Green Opticom Emitter 525.06$      
Cabinet above 2nd action Area 355.00$      
ALS Pass through cabinet 825.00$      
Custom Cabinet Over Rear Doors 275.00$      
Paint wheels to match Body/Chassis 1,785.00$   
Custom Graphics 3,325.00$   
Armrests 330.00$      
Stone Guards 30" High 185.00$      
Rub Rail Warning Lights 1,125.00$   
Electrical Pre Wire for Additional Equipment 545.00$      
Havis Cradle with triple pass through antenna 586.00$      
Havis pole and install 315.00$      
Additional; 15 Minute Timer Switch 177.00$      
2 Streamlight SL 20 XP Flashlights 450.00$      
LINZ6 Grill Lights 260.00$      
Pre Wire for Nova X-PAK Opticom 575.00$      
Modify 2nd Action Area with tilt out sharps 750.00$      
Latching door on base of Attendants Seat 95.00$        
Additional Counter below pass thru window 475.00$      
Seat Covers 585.00$      
Constant Torque Hinges overhead cabinets 250.00$      
Custom Console 495.00$      
UV-C Disinfection Light 2,825.00$   
Comm Equipment Install 4,300.00$   
Spray Foam Insulation 266.00$      
FatMat Insulation 190.00$      
Additional; 15 Minute Timer Switch 177.00$      
Digital Clock w/Emergency Timer 400.00$      
Intercom System 6,506.00$   

33,916.52$ 

Resolution No. 2021.181 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 4

145

Item 7.



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 8           December 01, 2021            File No. 0600-10 
 

SUBJECT: Purchase Three (3) Sutphen Monarch Fire Engines from Sutphen Inc. of Dublin, 
Ohio.  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Fleet Services 

RECOMMENDATION:  

It is requested that City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-180, authorizing the Fleet Services Division 
to purchase three (3) Sutphen Monarch fire engines from Sutphen Inc. in the amount of $2,452,493.03 
through a cooperative purchase contract with Sourcewell, Contract No. 022818-SUT. The cooperative 
purchase price through Sourcewell includes all taxes, delivery, operator and mechanic training, 
apparatus inspections in Dublin Ohio, and all associated fees. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  

On October 27, 2021, City Council approved a budget adjustment of $2,650,000 for the purchase of 
one (1) new Type 1 fire engine and the replacement of two (2) existing Type 1 fire engines. Fiscal Year 
2021 General Fund end-of-year surplus funds in the amount of $1,700,000 and $950,000 in Public 
Facilities Fees will be used to purchase the three (3) new Type 1 fire engines. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Front line Type 1 fire engines are needed at each of the seven fire stations in the City as they are the 
primary response apparatus for all emergency responses.  In addition, reserve engines are required to 
account for front line fire engines that are placed out of service for preventative maintenance or other 
repairs.  Reserve engines are also able to be staffed with off duty personnel to add surge capacity 
during major incidents locally or to assist other communities requesting help. Several of the current fire 
engines have aged beyond their recommended lifespan of 15 to 20-years and have reduced reliability, 
more frequent and longer repairs and higher costs to maintain.  Older fire apparatus also lacks modern 
safety features and do not meet current emission standards. 
 
Two existing 1999 Type 1 fire engines are being replaced due to exceeding their life expectancy of 20 
years. One (1) additional Type 1 fire engine will be purchased to increase the reserve fire engine fleet 
from three (3) to four (4) units. The lead time to construct fire engines is estimated at 18 to 24 months; 
therefore, Staff is recommending that the most critical fire engines be replaced immediately so that they 
can be placed in service by 2023.   
 
Upon approval from City Council, three (3) Type 1 pumper trucks will be purchased from Sutphen Inc. 
of Dublin, Ohio utilizing a Cooperative Purchasing Contract through Sourcewell, Contract No. 022818-

146

Item 8.



SUT, as allowed per section 10-91 of the City of Escondido Municipal Code, authorizing the purchase 
of supplies and equipment utilizing cooperative purchase programs. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Joseph Goulart, Director of Public Works 

11/23/21 5:45 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2021-180 
2. Resolution No. 2021-180 Exhibit “A” 

 

 

147

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-180 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AWARDING THE CONTRACT TO PURCHASE 
THREE (3) 2022 SUTPHEN MONARCH FIRE 
ENGINES TO SUTPHEN INC.   

 
 

WHEREAS, the Fleet Services Division is replacing two existing Type 1 fire 

engines due to exceeding their standard life expectancy of twenty years, extensive hours 

of use, their current mechanical condition; and 

WHEREAS, the two (2) existing Type 1 fire engines due for replacement are 1999 

Kovatch Mobile Equipment (KME) fire engines, City unit No. 3129 and unit No. 3137: and 

WHEREAS, staff evaluated the need for an additional Type 1 reserve fire engine 

and concluded that the Fire Department has an operational need for one (1) additional 

reserve Type 1 fire engine; and 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2021, City Council approved a budget adjustment of 

$2,650,000, which consisted of using FY 2020/21 General Fund end-of-year surplus 

funds in the amount of $1,700,000 and $950,000 in Public Facilities Fees for the purchase 

and replacement of three (3) Type 1 fire engines; and 

WHEREAS, SUTPHEN Inc. of Dublin, Ohio is the manufacturer of the Sutphen 

Monarch Fire Trucks; and 

WHEREAS, Sourcewell conducted a competitive bid process for fire apparatus 

equipment and SUTPHEN Inc. was deemed to be the lowest most responsive bidder; and 

WHEREAS, the Sourcewell Contract No. is 022818-SUT; and 

148

Item 8.



WHEREAS, the City is utilizing cooperative purchasing with Sourcewell, and as 

allowed per Escondido Municipal Code section 10-91, the City may utilize a cooperative 

purchase contract, which has been duly conducted in a competitive manner by a State, 

County or any other Public or Municipal Agency; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends purchasing three (3) Sutphen Monarch fire engines 

from SUTPHEN Inc. in the amount of $2,452,493.03, which includes sales tax and all 

other fees; and 

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in Fund 229, Project No. 166101, for the 

purchase of three (3) new Type 1 fire engines; and 

WHEREAS, the purchase price includes all options, as shown in Exhibit “A”, which 

is attached to this Resolution and is incorporated by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Type 1 fire engines being replaced by this purchase, as 

referenced above, are deemed surplus property and are no longer required for public use; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to authorize the purchase from SUTPHEN Inc. using a cooperative 

purchase agreement with Sourcewell, Contract No. 022818-SUT; and  

 

   

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to accept the recommendations and approve the disposal of the surplus 

vehicles via auction. 

149

Item 8.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council is authorized to approve, on behalf of the City, the 

Cooperative Purchase through Sourcewell, as allowed per Escondido Municipal Code 

section 10-91. 

3.  That the City Council approves Resolution No. 2021-180 authorizing the 

Mayor, or his designee, to execute such documents necessary to purchase three (3) 

Sutphen Monarch Type 1 fire engines from SUTPHEN Inc. in the amount of 

$2,452,493.03, which includes sales tax, delivery, operator and mechanic training, and 

all other fees. 

4. That the City Council authorizes the disposal of the existing two (2) fire 

engines which are being replaced by this purchase via auction with the City contracted 

auction company. 

 

 

150

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 143

151

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 143

152

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 143

153

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 143

154

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 143

155

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 143

156

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 143

157

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 143

158

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 143

159

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 143

160

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 143

161

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 143

162

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 143

163

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 143

164

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 143

165

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 143

166

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 17 of 143

167

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 18 of 143

168

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 19 of 143

169

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 20 of 143

170

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 21 of 143

171

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 22 of 143

172

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 23 of 143

173

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 24 of 143

174

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 25 of 143

175

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 26 of 143

176

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 27 of 143

177

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 28 of 143

178

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 29 of 143

179

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 30 of 143

180

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 31 of 143

181

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 32 of 143

182

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 33 of 143

183

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 34 of 143

184

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 35 of 143

185

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 36 of 143

186

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 37 of 143

187

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 38 of 143

188

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 39 of 143

189

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 40 of 143

190

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 41 of 143

191

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 42 of 143

192

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 43 of 143

193

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 44 of 143

194

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 45 of 143

195

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 46 of 143

196

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 47 of 143

197

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 48 of 143

198

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 49 of 143

199

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 50 of 143

200

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 51 of 143

201

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 52 of 143

202

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 53 of 143

203

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 54 of 143

204

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 55 of 143

205

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 56 of 143

206

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 57 of 143

207

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 58 of 143

208

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 59 of 143

209

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 60 of 143

210

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 61 of 143

211

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 62 of 143

212

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 63 of 143

213

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 64 of 143

214

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 65 of 143

215

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 66 of 143

216

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 67 of 143

217

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 68 of 143

218

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 69 of 143

219

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 70 of 143

220

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 71 of 143

221

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 72 of 143

222

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 73 of 143

223

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 74 of 143

224

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 75 of 143

225

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 76 of 143

226

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 77 of 143

227

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 78 of 143

228

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 79 of 143

229

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 80 of 143

230

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 81 of 143

231

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 82 of 143

232

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 83 of 143

233

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 84 of 143

234

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 85 of 143

235

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 86 of 143

236

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 87 of 143

237

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 88 of 143

238

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 89 of 143

239

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 90 of 143

240

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 91 of 143

241

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 92 of 143

242

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 93 of 143

243

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 94 of 143

244

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 95 of 143

245

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 96 of 143

246

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 97 of 143

247

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 98 of 143

248

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 99 of 143

249

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 100 of 143

250

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 101 of 143

251

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 102 of 143

252

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 103 of 143

253

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 104 of 143

254

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 105 of 143

255

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 106 of 143

256

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 107 of 143

257

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 108 of 143

258

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 109 of 143

259

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 110 of 143

260

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 111 of 143

261

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 112 of 143

262

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 113 of 143

263

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 114 of 143

264

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 115 of 143

265

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 116 of 143

266

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 117 of 143

267

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 118 of 143

268

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 119 of 143

269

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 120 of 143

270

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 121 of 143

271

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 122 of 143

272

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 123 of 143

273

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 124 of 143

274

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 125 of 143

275

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 126 of 143

276

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 127 of 143

277

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 128 of 143

278

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 129 of 143

279

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 130 of 143

280

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 131 of 143

281

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 132 of 143

282

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 133 of 143

283

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 134 of 143

284

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 135 of 143

285

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 136 of 143

286

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 137 of 143

287

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 138 of 143

288

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 139 of 143

289

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 140 of 143

290

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 141 of 143

291

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 142 of 143

292

Item 8.



Resolution No. 2021-180 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 143 of 143

293

Item 8.



 

Staff Report - Council 

 Consent Item No. 9     December 1, 2021   File No. 0600-10 
 
SUBJECT: Joint-Use Parking Agreement with Classical Academy for Use of Parking Spaces 

in a City-Owned Parking Lot on the South Side of Woodward Avenue, located at 
251 Woodward Avenue (PL21-0026)   

 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department, Planning Division  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-186, authorizing the Director of 
Community Development to execute a Joint-Use Parking Agreement with Classical Academy for the 
use of up to 33 parking spaces in the City-owned Woodward Avenue parking lot. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 
There will be no fiscal impact to the City of Escondido. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
Multiple Conditional Use Permits have been approved for The Classical Academy beginning in 2000. 
On April 27, 2021, the Zoning Administrator approved the latest Minor Conditional Use Permit for the 
expansion of the middle school at 144 Woodward Avenue (across Woodward Avenue from the City-
owned parking lot). On October 12, 2021, the Planning Commission recommended City Council 
approve the Joint-Use parking agreement  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Classical Academy operates multiple charter schools across northern San Diego County, serving 
grade levels from transitional kindergarten through high school.  The organization first established a 
presence on Woodward Avenue in 2000, under Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Case No. 99-54.  This 
original CUP authorized an elementary and middle school within a portion of the former North County 
Church of Christ building at 130 Woodward Ave.  Over the years, the CUP has been modified six times, 
with changes to the grades served, buildings occupied, and the maximum enrollment permitted.   
 
Prior to this school year, The Classical Academy middle school occupied several buildings, including a 
portion of the building located at 235 W. Washington Avenue. On April 27, 2021, the Zoning 
Administrator approved a request for a CUP modification (Case No. PL21-0026) to convert the 
remainder of that building into additional classroom and office space for Classical Academy.   

294

Item 9.



Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement (PL21-0026) 
December 1, 2021  
Page 2 

 
As a result of the expansion of the campus and the increased attendance, 33 additional parking spaces 
are required for the facility. To address this, a condition of approval was included with the project to 
provide off-site parking through one of two options:  
 
Option One: Require the middle school staff to use a parking lot approximately a 1/4 of a mile to the 
east, at the northwest corner of Waverly Place and East Pennsylvania Avenue.  This lot is one of 
multiple lots already owned and used by The Classical Academy for their other facilities in the vicinity.  
There is currently a parking surplus in that lot.   
 
Option Two: Require the Classical Academy to enter into a shared parking agreement with the City of 
Escondido for use of the City-owned parking lot on the south side of Woodward Avenue (directly across 
the street from the subject property).  There is sufficient parking within the City-owned lot to provide for 
the required 33 parking spaces.   
 
The applicant is requesting to utilize the City’s Woodward Avenue parking lot to satisfy the condition of 
approval described above.  
 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Adam Finestone, Interim Director of Community Development     

11/24/21 8:47 a.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Attachment “1” Location and General Plan Map 

2. Resolution No. 2021-186  

3. Resolution No. 2021-186 – Exhibit “A” 

4. Resolution No. 2021-186 – Exhibit “B” 

5. Resolution No. 2021-186 – Exhibit “C” 

6. Resolution No. 2021-186 – Exhibit “D” 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

295

Item 9.



ATTACHMENT “1” 

 

296

Item 9.



Project Name: The Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement (PL21-0026) 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: October 12, 2021 
 

 

2 
 
 

 

297

Item 9.



Project Name: The Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement (PL21-0026) 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: October 12, 2021 
 

 

3 
 
 

 

298

Item 9.



Project Name: The Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement (PL21-0026) 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: October 12, 2021 
 

 

4 
 
 

 

299

Item 9.



Project Name: The Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement (PL21-0026) 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: October 12, 2021 
 

 

5 
 
 

 

300

Item 9.



Project Name: The Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement (PL21-0026) 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: October 12, 2021 
 

 

6 
 
 

 

301

Item 9.



Project Name: The Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement (PL21-0026) 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Date: October 12, 2021 
 

 

7 
 
 

 
 

302

Item 9.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-186 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING A JOINT USE PARKING 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CLASSICAL 
ACADEMIES AND THE CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO. 

 
 

Applicant:   Partnering with Parents, LLC (The Classical 
Academies) 

 
Planning Case Nos. PL 21-0026 
 

WHEREAS, Partnering with Parents, LLC (The Classical Academies) (“Applicant”), 

filed a land use development application (Planning No. Pl 21-0026) constituting a request 

for a minor Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) for the expansion of an existing middle school 

located at 235 W. Washington Avenue, 237 W. Washington Avenue, 144 Woodward 

Avenue, and 146 Woodward Avenue (“Project), more particularly described in Exhibit “A,” 

attached to this Resolution and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set 

forth; and   

  WHEREAS, off-site joint use parking is permitted within the Downtown Specific Plan, 

subject to the approval of an off-site Joint Use Parking Agreement (“Agreement”) by the City 

Council; and 

 WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021, the Zoning Administrator approved the Project at a 

duly noticed public hearing; and 

  WHEREAS, as a condition of approval of the CUP, the applicant was given 

the option to enter into an Agreement to use 33 parking spaces in a parking lot owned by 

the City of Escondido (“City”) located at 251 Woodward Avenue for staff parking and off-

street student drop-off and pick-up zone, more particularly described in Exhibit "A," which is 

attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference as though fully set forth herein 

(“Property”); and 303

Item 9.



 WHEREAS, the request to enter into the Agreement was submitted to, and 

processed by, the Planning Division of the Community Development Department in 

accordance with the rules and regulations of the Escondido Zoning Code and the Downtown 

Specific Plan, and the applicable procedures and time limits specified by the Permit 

Streamlining Act (Government Code section 65920 et seq.) and the California 

Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq.) (“CEQA”); and   

 WHEREAS, the Planning Division of the Community Development Department 

completed its review of the project and scheduled the request for consideration by the 

Planning Commission at a public meeting on October 12, 2021.  At that meeting, Planning 

Commission adopted Planning Commission Resolution No. 2021-14, recommending to the 

City Council the approval of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the request for the Agreement at its 

regularly scheduled meeting on December 1, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, this action is categorically exempt from environmental review under the 

California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15311(b).  The City has determined that all environmental issues have been addressed and 

finds that no significant environmental impact will result from approving the code 

amendment and conditional use permit 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Escondido, 

California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by 

this reference as though fully set forth herein, are hereby made by this City Council, and 

represent the City Council’s careful consideration of the record. The findings of this City 

Council on Exhibit "B" shall be the final and determinative Findings of Fact on this matter. 

304

Item 9.



3. That upon consideration of the staff report (a copy of which is on file in the Office 

of the City Clerk), the findings, the conditions of approval attached as Exhibit “C” and 

incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein, and applicable law, the 

City Council finds that the project is consistent with the General Plan. 

4. That upon consideration of the staff report (a copy of which is on file in the 

Planning Division); the comments provided at the Planning Commission meeting on October 

12, 2021; public testimony presented at the City Council meeting; the findings of fact; the 

conditions of approval; and applicable law, the City Council finds that the project is 

consistent with the General Plan and hereby approves the Agreement as set forth in Exhibit 

“D” and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, pursuant to Government Code Section 

66020(d)(1): 

1.  NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the project is subject to certain fees 

described in the City of Escondido’s Development Fee Inventory on file in both the 

Community Development Department and Public Works Department. The project is also 

subject to dedications, reservations, and exactions, as specified in the Conditions of 

Approval. 

2.  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the 90-day period during which to protest 

the imposition of any fee, dedication, reservation, or other exaction described in this 

Resolution begins on the effective date of this Resolution and any such protest must be in 

a manner that complies with Government Code Section 66020 

305

Item 9.



Exhibit A 

Legal Description of Owner Property 

Certain real property located in the County of San Diego, State of California, more particularly 
described as follows: 

Parcel 1: 

THE WESTERLY 30 FEET OF THE EASTERLY 130 FEET OF THE SOUTHERLY 140 FEET 
OF THE NORTHERLY 354 FEET OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY 
OF ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO 
MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION THEREOF, IF ANY, LYING WITHIN THE 
SOUTHERLY 267 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

Parcel 2: 

THE WESTERLY 55 FEET OF THE EASTERLY 185 FEET OF THE SOUTHERLY 140 FEET 
OF THE NORTHERLY 354 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF 
ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION THEREOF, IF ANY, LYING WITHIN THE 
SOUTHERLY 267 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

Parcel 3: 

THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO 
MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 25; THENCE 
NORTHERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT, A DISTANCE OF 267 FEET 
TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE WESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO 
SAID EASTERLY LINE, 330 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID 
LOT; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE 140 FEET MORE OR LESS 
TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE NORTHERLY 214 FEET OF SAID LOT 25; THENCE 
EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE 330 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE 
EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE 
140 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE EASTERLY 185 FEET AND THE WESTERLY 50 FEET. 

Parcel 4: 

THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 3

306

Item 9.



MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE NORTHERLY 140 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

EXCEPTING THE WESTERLY 50 FEET THEREOF, AND EXCEPT THE EASTERLY 200 
FEET THEREOF. 

Parcel 5: 

THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO 
MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE SOUTHERLY 74 FEET OF THE NORTHERLY 214 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE EASTERLY 100 FEET THEREOF, ALSO EXCEPTING 
THEREFROM THE WESTERLY 45 FEET THEREOF. 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 3

307

Item 9.



EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description of City Property 

All that certain real property situated in the City of Escondido, County of San Diego, State of 
California, described as follows: 

Parcels 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 as described in Exhibit “A” of that certain Grant Deed recorded 

on July 15, 1992, as Document No. 199200443955 in the Official Records of the San Diego County 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 3

308

Item 9.



EXHIBIT B 
FINDINGS OF FACT 

Classical Academy Shared Parking Agreement 
PL21-0026 

Environmental Determination 

1 Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act or CEQA (Public Resources Code 
Section 21000 et. seq.) and its implementing regulations, the State CEQA Guidelines 
(Article 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 15000 et. seq.), the City of 
Escondido is the Lead Agency for the project ("Project"), as the public agency with the 
principal responsibility for approving the Project. 

2 All of the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act have been met 
because it was found that the project will not have a significant effect on the 
environment per the Class 11 CEQA Exemption (Sections 15311 (b) of the CEQA 
Guidelines). The proposed project qualifies for the Class 11 CEQA Exemption because 
it is a small parking lot that is an accessory to an existing institutional use.  

Off-site Joint-Use Parking 

1. The Joint Use Parking Agreement is being granted since the building that needs
additional parking is within ¼ mile of a parking facility that has available spaces.

2. The request for a Joint Use Parking Agreement will not cause any conflict in the
principal operating hours of the building or uses for which the joint use off-street
parking facilities is proposed because the school facility are requesting a
morning/afternoon Shared Parking Agreement.

3. The parties involved in the request for a joint use parking agreement have provided a
Joint Use Parking Agreement that is suitable for recordation.

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "B" 

Page 1 of 1

309

Item 9.



EXHIBIT C 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

PLANNING CASE NO. PL21-0026 

This Joint Use Parking Agreement (“Agreement”) attached to this Planning Commission Resolution 

No. 2021-14 as Exhibit “C” satisfies a Condition of Approval for the Project which was previously 

conditionally approved by the Escondido Zoning Administrator on April 27, 2021, by Zoning 

Administrator Resolution No. 2021-02. All conditions of approval applied to the project remain valid 

and in effect unless specifically modified herein. 

For the purpose of these conditions, the term “Applicant” shall also include the Project proponent, 

owner, permittee, or its successor(s) in interest, as may be applicable. 

1. The Agreement shall be recorded with the County Recorder’s Office to ensure that sufficient

parking will be available for the Project.  The Agreement shall be in the form specified in Exhibit

“C” to this resolution, and shall be approved to form by the City Attorney, approved by the City

Council, and signed by the Mayor prior to recordation

2. Activities/uses that are not directly related to on-site instruction and school assembly use, which

would generate traffic and parking demand in addition to the traffic and parking demand

generated by the school, are prohibited to be conducted simultaneously with on-site instruction

or any other student-related services assembled on the school campus.

3. The on-site activities/uses shall not create overflow parking that results in patrons parking on

adjacent streets, or in adjacent parking facilities, other than the parking lot specified in the

agreement.

4. The school shall continue to use the Woodward parking lot as part of the overall temporary

student drop-off and pick-up system.  In the event that the off-site spaces associated with the

Woodward parking lot are no longer available, the potential loss of parking would have to be

mitigated by conditions, which may also require removal of fixed-seating, student enrollment

capacity reductions, and/or other measures to reduce peak parking or traffic flow demand.

5. Any parking complaints received by the City are required to be mitigated by the Applicant, to the

satisfaction of the Director of Community Development and the City Engineer.

6. No queuing of vehicles shall be permitted on adjacent public streets.  If any queuing is not

remedied to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, the Project may be referred to the Planning

Commission for review and possible revocation or modification of the Permit regarding non-

compliance with the Conditions of Approval.

7. The Applicant shall provide a parking monitor (i.e. school site administration or staff) to guide

student drop-off and pick-up and to guide motorists to designated areas and to discourage

motorists from parking on public streets.  A crossing guard shall be provided by the Applicant at

all crossing points on Woodward Avenue.  (The parking monitor and crossing guard(s) shall be

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "C" 

Page 1 of 2

310

Item 9.



contracted entirely at the Applicant’s expense.)  The Applicant, parking monitor, and crossing 

guard(s) shall continuously monitor the overall temporary student drop-off and pick-up system 

to ensure that students enter and exit the school grounds safely.     

8. The Parking and Drop-off/Pick-up Management Plan shall identify the approach to ensuring

continued compliance with required conditions of approval.  Among other things, the Plan shall

include 1) parking counts for on-site, off-site, and street parking that is related to parking demand

from school-related activities; 2) information regarding queuing on Woodward Avenue as it

related to vehicles entering the school site or Woodward Parking lot; 3) the manner in which the

Applicant monitors drop-off and pick-up behaviors for compliance with the conditions, which may

include an annual program reviews, field inspections, or surveys which the City may deem

appropriate; and 4) all effectual design and operational controls/features in the Applicant’s

development plans (such as staggered start/end times, parking agreements, short-term parking,

transit subsidies, bike parking, traffic control enforcement, or other tools) to achieve parking

efficiency.

a. If legitimate and verified complaints (regarding school related parking lot capacity, overflow

parking, queuing, etc.) are received by the City in regard to parking and traffic related to

Project activities, the Director of Community Development shall notify the Applicant, which

shall have 30 days to remedy the issue to the satisfaction of the Director.  If the issue is not

remedied satisfactorily within this time frame or the same valid and verified complaint is

received after the 30-day period, the Director may request an independent parking study be

prepared.  (The traffic/parking consultant shall be contracted entirely at the Applicant’s

expense.)  In addition, implementation of additional design and operational control/features

may be required by the Director of Community Development in the event that the specified

performance standards relating to parking and traffic are not adhered to by the Project.

Thereafter, the Director may at his/her discretion require independent parking studies be re-

initiated and conducted at the same frequency and intervals as previously required if the City

receives legitimate parking complaints related to on-street or off-site parking and traffic

issues.

b. The City shall have every right to pursue every available remedy at law for any failure to

comply with the conditions of the Project or any breach of the approved components of the

Parking and Drop-off/Pick-up Management Plan.

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "C" 

Page 2 of 2

311

Item 9.



SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT 

EXEMPT FROM FEES pursuant to  

Gov’t Code §§ 6103, 27383, and 27388.1        

(filing requested/executed by municipality) 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY, AND 

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

Planning Division 

City of Escondido 

201 North Broadway 

Escondido, California 92025-2798 
This Space for Recorder’s Use Only 

SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT 

This SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into effective 

this _____ day of ____________________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of 

Escondido, a California municipal corporation (“City”) and Partnering with Parents, LLC, a 

California limited liability company (“Owner”).  (The City and Owner may each be referred to herein 

as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”) 

WHEREAS, Owner represents that it is the owner of that certain real property located in the 

County of San Diego, State of California, having assessor’s parcel numbers (APNs) 229-281-17-00, 

229-281-18-00, 229-281-19-00, 229-281-29-00, and 229-281-30-00, and more particularly

described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Owner

Property”);

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of that certain real property located in the County of San 

Diego, State of California, having assessor’s parcel number (APN) 229-352-12-00, and more 

particularly described  in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“City 

Property”);   

Parcels 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 as described in Exhibit “A” of that certain Grant Deed recorded on 
July 15, 1992 as Document No. 199200443955 in the Official Records of the San Diego County 
Recorder’s Office.  

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021, the City, through its Zoning Administrator, in Planning Case 

No. PL 21-0026, approved a modification to a Conditional Use Permit for improvements to the 

school campus operated by Owner and located on the Owner Property (“Project”); 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 1 of 16

312

Item 9.



WHEREAS, pursuant to Escondido Municipal Code section 33-765 and the development 

standards for off-site joint-use parking within the Downtown Specific Plan, the Project is required 

to provide one parking space for each school employee and faculty member, and such parking may 

be provided on the City Property through the use of a joint parking agreement; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the City’s April 27, 2021, approval of the Project, and Escondido 

Municipal Code section 33-1103(a), the Owner may use the City Property for off-street student 

loading and unloading from vehicles, which shall be made part of this Agreement, subject to the 

terms and conditions stated herein; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement has been approved by the Planning Commission, pursuant to 

Resolution 2021-14, and by the City Council, pursuant to resolution 2021-168. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, terms, and 

conditions set forth herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Authority.  This Agreement is made pursuant to Escondido 

Municipal Code sections 33-765 and 33-1103(a), and the City’s Downtown Specific Plan, and in 

accordance with the City’s conditions for approval of the Project. 

2. Grant of Licenses for Shared Parking.  

2.1 The City agrees to license to Owner the non-

exclusive use of 33 parking spaces on the City Property, as depicted on Exhibit C, attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by this reference (“Parking Spaces”), specifically for the employee and 

faculty parking requirements in connection with the Project and the Owner Property.  Owner’s non-

exclusive license for use of the Parking Spaces pursuant to this Agreement is limited to normal 

business hours occurring Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., excluding holidays (“School 

Hours”).  The Parking Spaces have been determined to conform to current City standards for parking 

spaces, and the Parties agree to maintain the Parking Spaces to meet those standards.   

2.2 The City further agrees to license to Owner non-

exclusive use of the City Property for the off-street loading and unloading of students from vehicles 

during School Hours, as further described within Exhibit C.   

3. Term.  This Agreement and the covenants herein shall remain 

in effect unless and until rescinded and released by mutual written agreement of the City and Owner 

by the authority of the City’s Director of Community Development upon submittal of request, 

applicable fees, and evidence that this Agreement is no longer required by law.  Notwithstanding any 

other provision of this Agreement, the City shall have the right to unilaterally terminate this 

Agreement upon providing 30 days’ written notice to Owner.  Nothing herein, including any potential 

termination of this Agreement, shall be deemed to constitute the City’s waiver of Owner’s obligations 

to comply with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations, including but not limited to all 

parking requirements for the Project.  Owner shall comply with all such laws and regulations, and 

the City reserves its full authority to enforce such laws and regulations.  

4. Indemnification, Hold Harmless, Duty to Defend.  Owner 

(including Owner’s agents, employees, volunteers, contractors, and subcontractors, if any) shall 

 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 2 of 16

313

Item 9.



indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its boards, commissions, departments, officials, 

officers, agents, employees, and volunteers (collectively, “Indemnified Parties”) from and against 

any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, proceedings (including but not limited to legal 

and administrative proceedings of any kind), suits, fines, penalties, judgments, orders, liens, levies, 

costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages, or injuries, at law or in equity, including without 

limitation the payment of all consequential damages and attorney’s fees and other related litigation 

costs and expenses (collectively, “Claims”), and any attorney’s, consultant, or expert fees and City 

staff costs for investigating and responding to any Claims, and provide and pay all costs for a defense 

of any and all Claims against any of the Indemnified Parties, in any legal action filed in a court of 

competent jurisdiction by a third party in connection with this Agreement or any component thereof; 

the validity, applicability, or implementation of this Agreement; or Owner’s use of the City Property 

in relation to the Project or in connection with the Owner Property.  All provisions within this Section 

4 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

5. Insurance. 

5.1 Owner shall procure and maintain, at its own cost, during the 

entire term of this Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property 

that may arise from or in connection with this Agreement, and the results of Owner’s use of the City 

Property, by Owner, its agents, representatives, employees, or volunteers.  Insurance coverage shall 

be at least as broad as the following: 

a. Commercial General Liability.  Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Form

CG 00 01 covering Commercial General Liability on an “occurrence” basis, including products and 

completed operations, property damage, bodily injury, and personal & advertising injury, with limits 

no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence/$4,000,000 general aggregate.  

b. Workers’ Compensation.  Workers' Compensation as required by the State

of California, with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less than 

$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

c. If Owner maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the

minimums otherwise required by this Agreement, the City requires and shall be entitled to the broader 

coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by Owner. 

5.2 Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be 

acceptable to the City Attorney and shall meet the following requirements: 

a. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance coverage must be provided by an 
insurer authorized to conduct business in the state of California with a current A.M. Best’s rating of 

no less than A-:VII, or as approved by the City. 

b. Additional Insured Status.  Owner’s Commercial General Liability policy 
must name the City (including its officials, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers) specifically 

as an additional insured under the policy on a separate endorsement page.  The Commercial General 

Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85, or 

if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38, and CG 

20 37 if a later edition is used. 

c. Primary Coverage.  Owner’s insurance coverage shall be primary coverage

at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 with respect to the City, its officials, officers, agents, 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 3 of 16

314

Item 9.



employees, and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officials, 

officers, agents, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of Owner’s insurance and shall not 

contribute with it. 

d. Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy shall provide that coverage

shall not be canceled, except with prior written notice to the City. 

e. Waiver of Subrogation.  Owner hereby grants to the City a waiver of any

right to subrogation that any insurer of Owner may acquire against the City by virtue of the payment 

of any loss under such insurance.  Owner agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to 

affect this waiver of subrogation, but this subsection shall apply regardless of whether or not the City 

has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  Any Workers’ Compensation 

policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the city 

for all work performed by Owner, its agents, representatives, employees, and volunteers. 

f. Self-Insurance.  Owner may, with the City’s prior written consent, fulfill

some or all of the insurance requirements contained in this Agreement under a plan of self-insurance.  

Owner shall only be permitted to utilize such self-insurance if, in the opinion of the City, Owner’s 

(i) net worth and (ii) reserves for payment of claims of liability against Owner are sufficient to

adequately compensate for the lack of other insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  Owner’s

utilization of self-insurance shall not in any way limit the liabilities assumed by Owner pursuant to

this Agreement.

g. Self-Insured Retentions.  Self-insured retentions must be declared to and

approved by the City.   

5.3 Verification of Coverage.  At the time Owner executes this 

Agreement, Owner shall provide the City with original Certificates of Insurance including all 

required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting the 

insurance coverage required by this Agreement), which shall meet all requirements under this 

Agreement.  The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 

policies, including endorsements required by this Agreement, at any time.   

5.4 Special Risks or Circumstances.  The City reserves the right, 

at any point during the term of this Agreement, to modify the insurance requirements in this 

Agreement, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or 

other special circumstances.   

5.5 No Limitation of Obligations.  The insurance requirements 

within this Agreement, including the types and limits of insurance coverage Owner must maintain, 

and any approval of such insurance by the City, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit 

or qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by Owner pursuant to this Agreement, 

including but not limited to any provisions within this Agreement concerning indemnification. 

5.6 Failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements in 

this Agreement, including but not limited to a lapse in any required insurance coverage during the 

term of this Agreement, shall be a material breach of this Agreement.  In the event that Owner fails 

to comply with any such insurance requirements in this Agreement, in addition to any other remedies 

the City may have, the City may, at its sole option, (i) immediately terminate this Agreement; or (ii) 

order Owner to immediately vacate the City Property until Owner demonstrates compliance with the 

insurance requirements in this Agreement. 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 4 of 16

315

Item 9.



6. Runs with the Land.  So long as this Agreement remains in 

effect, the obligations and benefits provided for in this Agreement shall run with the above-described 

land and shall be binding on the Parties hereto; all parties having or acquiring any right, title, or 

interest in the Owner Property or City Property; and their heirs, legal representatives, successors, and 

assigns. 

7. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed on separate 

counterparts that, upon completion, may be assembled into and shall be construed as one document.  

8. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, together with its 

attachments or other documents, if any, described or incorporated herein, contains the entire 

Agreement and understanding concerning the subject of this Agreement and supersedes and replaces 

all prior negotiations, understandings, or proposed agreements, written or oral, except as otherwise 

provided herein.  Each of the Parties hereto acknowledges that no other Party, nor the agents nor the 

attorneys for any Party, has made any promise, representation, or warranty whatsoever, express or 

implied, not contained herein, to induce the execution of this Agreement and acknowledges that this 

Agreement has not been executed in reliance upon any promise, representation, or warranty not 

contained herein.   

9. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be amended except in 

a writing signed by all of the Parties hereto, and then only in the specific instance and for the specific 

purpose given. 

10. Anti-Assignment Clause.  Licensee shall not assign, delegate, 

transfer, or sublicense any duty or right under this Agreement, or any portion of the Licensee's use 

of the Premises. 

11. Provisions Cumulative.  All provisions contained herein are 

cumulative and in addition to and not in limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the 

City. 

12. Merger Clause.  This Agreement and its attachments, if any, 

constitute the entire understanding of the Parties, and there are no other terms or conditions, written 

or oral, controlling this matter.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement 

and any attachments, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

13. Anti-Waiver Clause.  None of the provisions contained herein 

shall be waived because of previous failure to insist upon strict performance, nor shall any provision 

be waived because any other provision has been waived, in whole or in part. 

14. Severability.  The Agreement shall be performed and shall be 

enforceable to the full extent allowed by applicable law, and the illegality, invalidity, waiver, or 

unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the legality, validity, 

applicability, or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

15. Notice.  Any notice required to be given pursuant to this 

Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows: 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 5 of 16

316

Item 9.



If to the City: 

Vincent McCaw 

Real Property Manager 

City of Escondido 

201 N. Broadway 

Escondido, CA 92025 

If to Owner: 

Mark Kalpakgian 

Manager 

Partnering with Parents, LLC 

355 E. Grand Ave. 

Escondido, CA 92025 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 6 of 16

317

Item 9.



16. Independent Investigation.  The Parties acknowledge that 

they have conducted an independent investigation of the facts concerning the subject matter of this 

Agreement.  The Parties agree that the factual recitals are correct and expressly assume the risk 

that the true facts concerning the foregoing may differ from those currently understood by them. 

17. Advice of Counsel.  The Parties hereby acknowledge that 

they have executed this Agreement after having the opportunity to consult with, and receive the 

advice of, their own counsel. 

18. Capacity.  Each individual signing this Agreement 

represents and warrants that he or she has been authorized to do so by proper action of the Party 

on whose behalf he or she has signed. 

19. Attorney’s Fees.  In any action to enforce the terms of this 

Agreement, the Parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled to its reasonable attorney’s 

fees and all costs, fees, and expenses, including the fees of expert witnesses and consultants, 

whether or not such costs, fees, and expenses are recoverable or allowed as costs under section 

1033.5 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  In addition to the foregoing award of attorney’s 

fees and costs, the prevailing party shall be entitled to its attorney’s fees and costs incurred in any 

post-judgment proceedings to collect or enforce any judgment.  This provision is separate and shall 

survive the merger of this provision into any judgment on this Agreement. 

20. Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are included herein 

by reference as part of this Agreement and the Parties agree that said Recitals are essential facts to 

this Agreement. 

21. Effective Date.  Unless a different date is provided in this 

Agreement, the effective date of this Agreement shall be the latest date of execution set forth by 

the names of the signatories below. 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 7 of 16

318

Item 9.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties or their duly 

authorized representatives as of the Effective Date: 

PARTNERING WITH PARENTS, LLC 

Date:  _________________ By ____________ 

Mark Kalpakgian 

Manager 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Date:  _________________ By ____________ 

Paul McNamara 

Mayor 

(ABOVE SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED; ACKNOWLEDGMENT PAGES 
FOLLOW) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

Michael R. McGuinness, City Attorney 

  Kurt Whitman, Senior Deputy City Attorney 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 8 of 16

319

Item 9.



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ] 
 
COUNTY OF ______________________ ] 
 

On ___________________________________, before me, 

_______________________________________________, a Notary Public, personally appeared 

_______________________________________________, who proved to me on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

Signature: ________________________________________ (Seal) 

 
 

Owner 
 

  

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 

individual who signed the document, to which this certificate is attached, and not the 

truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 9 of 16

320

Item 9.



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ] 

COUNTY OF ______________________ ] 

On ___________________________________, before me, 

_______________________________________________, a Notary Public, personally appeared 

_______________________________________________, who proved to me on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 

capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature: ________________________________________ (Seal) 

City 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 

individual who signed the document, to which this certificate is attached, and not the 

truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 10 of 16

321

Item 9.



Exhibit A 

Legal Description of Owner Property 

Certain real property located in the County of San Diego, State of California, more particularly 
described as follows: 

Parcel 1: 

THE WESTERLY 30 FEET OF THE EASTERLY 130 FEET OF THE SOUTHERLY 140 
FEET OF THE NORTHERLY 354 FEET OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ACCORDING TO MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY 
RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION THEREOF, IF ANY, LYING WITHIN THE 
SOUTHERLY 267 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

Parcel 2: 

THE WESTERLY 55 FEET OF THE EASTERLY 185 FEET OF THE SOUTHERLY 140 
FEET OF THE NORTHERLY 354 FEET OF THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF 
ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF 
THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION THEREOF, IF ANY, LYING WITHIN THE 
SOUTHERLY 267 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

Parcel 3: 

THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO 
MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 25; THENCE 
NORTHERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT, A DISTANCE OF 267 FEET 
TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE WESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO 
SAID EASTERLY LINE, 330 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID 
LOT; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE 140 FEET MORE OR LESS 
TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE NORTHERLY 214 FEET OF SAID LOT 25; THENCE 
EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE 330 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE 
EASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE 
140 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE EASTERLY 185 FEET AND THE WESTERLY 50 FEET. 

Parcel 4: 

THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 11 of 16

322

Item 9.



ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO 
MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE NORTHERLY 140 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

EXCEPTING THE WESTERLY 50 FEET THEREOF, AND EXCEPT THE EASTERLY 200 
FEET THEREOF. 

Parcel 5: 

THAT PORTION OF LOT 25 IN BLOCK 10 OF ESCONDIDO, IN THE CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO 
MAP THEREOF NO. 336, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN 
DIEGO COUNTY, JULY 10, 1886, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE SOUTHERLY 74 FEET OF THE NORTHERLY 214 FEET OF SAID LOT 25. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE EASTERLY 100 FEET THEREOF, ALSO EXCEPTING 
THEREFROM THE WESTERLY 45 FEET THEREOF. 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 12 of 16

323

Item 9.



Exhibit B 
 

Legal Description of City Property 
 

 
All that certain real property situated in the City of Escondido, County of San Diego, State of 
California, described as follows: 
 
Parcels 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 as described in Exhibit “A” of that certain Grant Deed recorded on 
July 15, 1992 as Document No. 199200443955 in the Official Records of the San Diego County 
Recorder’s Office.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 13 of 16

324

Item 9.



Exhibit C 
 

Depiction of Parking Spaces and Description of Student Drop-Off/Pick-Up Plan 
 

 

Owner shall have non-exclusive use of 33 parking spaces in the City of Escondido parking lot on 

the south side of Woodward Avenue, as identified in Figure 1 below, and subject to the terms of 

the Agreement. 

 

 

Figure 1:  The Classical Academy Middle School- Faculty and Staff Parking 

 
 

 

Morning student drop-off occurs Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday from 8 a.m. to 8:25 a.m. The 

campus opens for students at 8 a.m., and instruction starts at 8:25 a.m. 

 

Two methods of student drop-off are available.  The first method involves a drive-through drop-

off zone on Woodward Avenue, indicated with the green arrow in Figure 2.  Each morning, cones 

are placed on Woodward Avenue to identify and delineate this zone.  Within the zone, parents may 

pull up to the curb along the north side of Woodward Avenue, and students may safely exit the 

vehicles from the sidewalk side.  If the queue for drop-off extends eastward past the crosswalk that 

is located directly in front of the middle school, parents are directed to wait at the curb just east of 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 14 of 16

325

Item 9.



the eastern neighbor’s driveway until there is room in the drop-off zone. The drop-off zone does 

not block or impede through traffic on Woodward Avenue.  Approximately 35% of students are 

dropped off this way.   

The second drop-off method utilizes the City parking lot on the south side of Woodward Avenue.  

Parents enter this parking lot from either Woodward Avenue or Escondido Boulevard, pull into 

parking spaces, and let their students out of their vehicles while parked (the parking spaces colored 

in green in Figure 2 depict the approximate area used by parents dropping off students, though this 

Agreement is not establishing exclusive use of these spaces for student drop-off purposes).  

Students then proceed to the public crosswalk located in front of the middle school, where a 

crossing guard is stationed between 8 a.m. and 8:30 a.m. to escort them across the street to school.  

Approximately 65% of students are dropped off this way.   

During school hours, temporary signs are placed along Woodward Avenue to alert the community 

of students present, as well as to prohibit drop-off in the red zones identified in Figure 2.  A 

permanent speed limit sign (with flashing yellow light) restricts speed on Woodward to 25 miles 

per hour in the vicinity of the school, when children are present.  Additional permanent signage 

identifies the crosswalk and shows drivers where to yield to pedestrians so as not to block any 

driveways along Woodward. 

Figure 2:  Morning Drop-Off Areas 

Afternoon student pick-up occurs Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday from 3:25 p.m. to 3:45 p.m.  

The last class of the day releases at 3:25 p.m.  

At the end of the school day, all students are ushered off campus, across the public crosswalk, and 

into a “waiting area” within the City parking lot, as indicated by the red block in Figure 3.  This 

area is blocked off by cones and caution signs to keep students safely out of the path of traffic 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 15 of 16

326

Item 9.



while they wait for their parents to arrive.  The waiting area impacts 11 parking spaces, and non-

exclusive use of these 11 spaces is granted to the school through the Agreement. 

Staff members are stationed within the waiting area and at various other points in the City parking 

lot, as well as on Woodward Avenue, as indicated by the yellow diamonds in Figure 3.  These staff 

members and teachers wear brightly-colored construction vests for visibility and provide 

supervision to the students as well as traffic control for vehicles moving through the parking lot. 

Parents enter the parking lot from Woodward Avenue or Escondido Boulevard and pull into 

parking spaces (the parking spaces colored in green in Figure 3 depict the approximate area used 

by parents picking up students, though this Agreement is not establishing exclusive use of these 

spaces for pick-up purposes).  Parents may then exit their vehicles to walk over to the red waiting 

area to get their children and escort them back to the car.  Alternatively, students may point out 

their parents to a staff member, who may then escort them to the car, or may allow the student to 

walk to the car alone if there are no moving vehicles in the area.   

Unlike the morning drop-off, no afternoon pick-up occurs along Woodward Avenue.  All pick-up 

takes place within the City parking lot, as described above and depicted below in Figure 3. 

Figure 3:  Afternoon Pick-Up Area 

Resolution No. 2021-186 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 16 of 16

327

Item 9.



 

Staff Report - Council 

  Consent Item No.  10             December 1, 2021             File No. 0480-70 
 
SUBJECT:  Acceptance of $3,375 San Diego Seniors Community Foundation Holiday Grant 
 

DEPARTMENT: Communications and Community Services 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-187 authorizing the Communications 
and Community Services Department to accept up to $3,375 in grant funds from the San Diego Seniors 
Community Foundation, and to approve the budget adjustment (see Attachment “1”) needed to expend 
the funds. These funds will be utilized to provide holiday-themed meals, events and activities to the 
older adults in Escondido. 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

This action will have no impact on the General Fund Budget and does not require matching funds. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION: 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City of Escondido (“City”) has been awarded up to $3,375 from the San Diego Seniors Community 
Foundation, a 501(c)(3) not-for-profit organization, established in 2017, whose aim is to support and 
enhance senior centers in the region by connecting them with philanthropic organizations to further the 
mission of improving quality of life for seniors in the community. Their research shows that senior 
centers are an essential gateway connecting older adults to vital services that help them stay healthy, 
engaged, and independent.  
 
These funds will be utilized to provide a holiday dinners, cards, and flowers to 25 older adults who do 
not have families/friends to visit them this holiday season and/or are isolated, as well as a variety of 
holiday décor and activities at the Park Avenue Community Center. With the grant funds, the City of 
Escondido staff will be able bring holiday cheer to 200-400 seniors this holiday season. 
  
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Joanna Axelrod, Deputy City Manager/ Director of Communications and Community Services 

11/23/21 4:01 p.m. 
 

328

Item 10.



Acceptance of San Diego Seniors Community Foundation Holiday Grant 
December 1, 2021 
Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Attachment “1” Budget Adjustment 
2. Resolution No. 2021-187 

329

Item 10.



ATTACHMENT 1

330

Item 10.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-187 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE DEPUTY CITY 
MANAGER / DIRECTOR OF 
COMMUNICATIONS AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES TO ACCEPT UP TO $3,375 IN 
GRANT FUNDS FROM THE SAN DIEGO 
SENIORS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AND 
APPROVE A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) is a Live Well San Diego partner and 

supports efforts to promote age-friendly resources that enhance the health and quality of 

life of the community; and 

WHEREAS, the City provides centralized services dedicated to supporting its older 

adult population including nutritious meals, activities, resource connections, and co-

located non-profit service organizations at the Park Avenue Community Center; and 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that significant isolation issues exist among older 

adults with no family or nearby support system;  and 

WHEREAS, the San Diego Seniors Community Foundation is devoted to the 

welfare of seniors through philanthropic support; and 

WHEREAS, the Deputy City Manager / Director of Communications and 

Community Services recommends the acceptance of up to $3,375 in grant funds from the 

San Diego Seniors Community Foundation to be used for holiday meals, events and 

activites at  the Park Avenue Community Center. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

331

Item 10.



1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council authorizes the Deputy City Manager / Director of the 

Communications and Community Services, or her designee, to execute all necessary 

documents, in forms approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to accept all grant funds. 

3. That the City Council approves of any necessary budget adjustments to 

expend funds received for the purposes stated herein. 

4. That the Older Adult Services division of the Communications and 

Community Services Department shall expend up to $3,375 in grant funds in accordance 

with the terms and requirements of the grant agreement. 

332

Item 10.



 Public Hearing Item No. 11 December 1, 2021  File No. 0690-50 

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Resolution of Necessity for the Acquisition of a 
Drainage Easement over a Portion of Felicita County Park Identified as 
County Assessor Parcel No. 238-380-06-00. 

DEPARTMENT: City Attorney 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council conduct a public hearing to consider adoption of a Resolution of 
Necessity (“Resolution”) finding that the public interest and necessity require the acquisition of a 
drainage easement over a portion of Felicita County Park to improve existing drainage facilities 
under Felicita Road and adopt Resolution No. 2021-174R. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  

The City of Escondido (“City”) as the condemning agency is required to pay just compensation for the 
property interests being acquired. The City had the property interests appraised by an independent 
appraiser who valued the property interests at $1,450 as of August 2, 2021.  The fair market value of 
the property interests being acquired will ultimately be determined in the eminent domain proceeding.  
Additional costs will be incurred including legal fees, appraisal fees and costs in connection with any 
approved eminent domain proceeding. Pursuant to the Settlement and Subdivision Agreements with 
KB Homes Coastal, Inc. (“developer”), the developer of the Oak Creek Project, discussed in detail 
below, the developer will pay the legal and acquisition costs associated with this matter.   

PREVIOUS ACTIONS: 

In 2015, the City originally approved a subdivision and residential development of 65 single family 
homes on 43.73 acres of real property ("Oak Creek Project") which was located within the 
unincorporated area of San Diego County and was annexed into the City.  The Project site is generally 
located several hundred feet west of Interstate 15, one mile north of Lake Hodges, and approximately 
1.5 miles south/southeast of Valley Parkway.  It is bounded on the north by Hamilton Lane, on the east 
by Miller Avenue, on the west by Felicita Road, and to the south by a small existing neighborhood at 
the intersection of Miller Avenue and Felicita Road. Felicita County Park is located south of the Oak 
Creek Property across Felicita Road. 

On July 24, 2020, KB Home Coastal, Inc. (“developer”) filed a Verified Petition for Writ of Mandate and 
Complaint against the City in KB Home Coastal, Inc. v. City of Escondido, San Diego Superior Court 
Case No. 37-2020-00025968-CU-WM-NC.  The developer alleged that the City was in violation of the 
Subdivision Map Act (and related actions) by failing or refusing to certify the Oak Creek Project Final 
Map based on a requirement that the developer must secure the offsite drainage rights from the County. 

333

Item 11.



Resolution of Necessity for Acquisition of Drainage Easement 
December 1, 2021 
Page 2 

The City denied the claims but the parties worked to resolve their dispute to allow for the Oak Creek 
Project to proceed with construction while working with the County to secure the drainage easement 
rights.  

On November 18, 2020, the City Council in closed session authorized the execution of a Settlement 
Agreement and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the developer to resolve the pending lawsuit. 
The settlement acknowledged the developer’s obligation to make certain drainage improvements on 
land owned by the County as part of its project but that an impasse with the County on securing those 
rights had significantly delayed the progress on the project.  Pursuant to California law, the City elected 
to address the issue of the drainage construction improvements itself through an eminent domain 
action, if necessary.  As a part of the settlement, the developer agreed to pay for all costs and expenses 
reasonably incurred by the City in connection with the acquisition of the County property rights. 

The Oak Creek Project’s Final Map was thereafter approved by the City Council on January 13, 2021.  
At this time, the developer has completed construction of seventeen homes and pulled permits for the 
balance of homes in this development.  Apart from the completion of some off-site improvements and 
this County property acquisition issue, the Oak Creek Project should proceed to completion sometime 
in the Spring of 2022.   

BACKGROUND: 

1. Historic Drainage Issues.

The Oak Creek Project included proposed offsite improvements, including improvements of the existing 
drainage facilities under Felicita Road.  Prior to the development, the project site relied on sheet flows 
to two drainages running north-south through the property.  The westerly drainage crossed under 
Hamilton Lane via a 5-foot by 5-foot concrete culvert, and the easterly drainage crossed Hamilton Lane 
via a 72-inch culvert.  The two drainages confluence within the boundaries of the project site and then 
confluence with the runoff from the east before leaving the project site through the 60-inch diameter 
culvert crossing to the southwest, under Felicita Road.   

Stormwater runoff crosses under Felicita Road through a 60” corrugated metal pipe (“CMP”) that 
discharges onto an existing rip rap energy dissipater before continuing through Felicita Park in an 
unlined earthen channel and then into Felicita Creek. The existing 60” CMP crossing under Felicita 
Road is undersized.  The 1992 Drainage Master Plan for the City of Escondido (“DMP”) recommended 
the addition of a 63” CMP to parallel the existing 60” CMP in order to deliver drainage to Felicita Creek 
efficiently. As part of the Oak Hill Project, City Engineering staff requested installation of a 72” reinforced 
concrete pipe (“RCP”) instead of the 60” CMP shown in the DMP in order to ensure that the 100-year 
storm event is conveyed under Felicita Road to Felicita Creek to relieve the existing condition which 
would flood the road. 

The proposed improvements to the existing drainage system are based on the existing deficiencies 
identified in the DMP and are not due to an increase of runoff from the Oak Creek Project.  The Oak 

334

Item 11.



Resolution of Necessity for Acquisition of Drainage Easement 
December 1, 2021 
Page 3 

Creek Project maintains or reduces the post-project runoff to pre-project levels for the 100-year storm 
event. The Project also implemented on-site mitigation for more frequent storm events in order to 
comply with additional site requirements.  

The Oak Creek Project was subject to the County of San Diego Hydrology Manual, dated June 2003, 
and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) National Floodplain Insurance Program 
(NFIP) requirements since a portion of the Project is located within a 100-Year Flood Zone.  The Project 
will improve existing deficiencies for two (2) existing culvert crossings adjacent to the Project, within 
Hamilton Lane and Felicita Road and will not increase peak flow rates for the 100-year design storm 
event. 

Based on the Drainage Study prepared for the Oak Creek Project, the 100-year peak flow rate will be 
reduced from 757 cubic feet per second (“cfs”) to 755 cfs. On-site bioretention basins and a detention 
basin also reduce the 100-Year post-project peak flow rates to equal or less than the pre-project peak 
flow rates.  This small reduction in peak flow rate is consistent with what would be expected since the 
majority of runoff reaching this crossing is from upstream portions of the watershed that will be 
conveyed through the site within each of the three (3) existing drainage courses. The runoff associated 
with the drainage project will be detained on-site prior to discharging into the existing drainage course 
and ultimately reaching the crossing at Felicita Road.  Drainage patterns will remain generally 
unchanged, and all mitigated runoff will drain to the existing 60” and proposed 72” culverts under Felicita 
Road.  

2. Proposed Drainage Improvement Project and Property Acquisition.

To make the needed offsite drainage improvements, the City needs to acquire a slightly trapezoidal 
shaped drainage easement of approximately 1,780 square feet. The proposed easement area is in the 
same location as, and consistent and compatible with, the existing drainage facilities.  A legal 
description and depiction of the proposed drainage easement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” to 
the (Proposed) Resolution of Necessity No. 2021-174R. 

To resolve the insufficiency of the existing drainage facilities, the proposed drainage improvements 
include installation of a 72” diameter drainage pipe parallel to the existing 60” pipe.  An approximately 
13’ x 19’ concrete headwall will be constructed and large boulder rip rap will be placed in the easement 
area west of the drainage pipes (collectively the “Project”).  The proposed improvements are compatible 
with the existing drainage facility and will alleviate the hazards associated with the historic condition.  

On or about August 7, 2014, the City released a Draft EIR (“DEIR”) for the Oak Creek Project.  The 
description of the Oak Creek Project included, in part, improvements to an existing drainage 72-inch 
pipe under Felicita Road directing storm water runoff into Felicita Park.  The DEIR proposed installation 
of an additional 72-inch drainage pipe in the same location, as well as the construction of energy-
dissipating facilities (a headwall and rip-rap) on County owned property in Felicita Park.   

335

Item 11.



Resolution of Necessity for Acquisition of Drainage Easement 
December 1, 2021 
Page 4 

In a letter dated September 19, 2014, the County submitted comments in response to the DEIR.  On 
January 7, 2015, the City completed a Final EIR ("FEIR") for the Project, which incorporated responses 
to the County's DEIR comments.  In its responses, the City unequivocally concluded that "[t]he Project 
will not result in significant impacts to Felicita Park." 

In a January 27, 2015 response letter to the City, the County noted continuing concerns regarding the 
FEIR's analysis of Project impacts to Felicita Park, stating "[i]n review of the Final EIR, County 
Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) staff has expressed concerns that comments regarding 
drainage improvements, easements on park property, park user access and pedestrian safety provided 
in the September 29, 2014 comment letter ... regarding the Draft EIR for the Oak Creek Residential 
Project have not been adequately address in the FEIR." The County further requested "that the City 
and the project applicant consider further discussion with DPR staff to resolve concerns associated 
with park user access, conversion of usable park lands to facility infrastructure and location of mitigation 
for associated impacts." The County concluded that resolution of remaining issues "will need to be 
worked out with DPR, as the owner and manager of the Park, prior to the County agreeing to future 
easements and/or infrastructure improvements in parkland areas." 

On March 4, 2015, the City approved the FEIR and Oak Creek Project. The certified FEIR for the Oak 
Creek Project was never challenged by the County and conclusively determined that the Project would 
have no significant environmental impacts on Felicita Park.   

Despite numerous meetings and communications over several years, the City, developer and County 
could not reach a resolution of their respective positions as to the County’s legal contention that further 
environmental study was required to allow for the drainage easement.  Given the failure to work this 
issue out through such informal efforts, the City is left with the need to bring an eminent domain action 
in San Diego Superior Court to allow a judge to assist the parties with resolving this matter.   

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS: 

The City may not commence an eminent domain proceeding until its governing body has held a public 
hearing and adopted a Resolution of Necessity that meets the requirements of California Eminent 
Domain Code (Code of Civ. Proc. §§ 1245.210, et seq.)  At the public hearing, each party with an 
interest in the affected property or their representatives must be given a reasonable opportunity to 
appear and be heard on the following matters: 

1. The public interest and necessity required for the Project.

2. The Project is planned or located in the manner that will be most compatible with the greatest
public good and the least private injury.

3. The real property to be acquired is necessary for the Project.

4. An offer of just compensation has been made to the property owner.

336

Item 11.



Resolution of Necessity for Acquisition of Drainage Easement 
December 1, 2021 
Page 5 

As discussed below, the City has fully satisfied each of these legal requirements and City staff 
recommend that the City Council adopt the Resolution of Necessity. 

Finding 1:  Public Interest and Necessity Require the Project 
The public interest and necessity require securing the specific County property, in that this Project is 
designed to improve the existing drainage facilities in order to alleviate the historic flooding conditions 
that result from the existing insufficient facilities owned and maintained by the County.  As noted above, 
prior to the Oak Creek Project, drainage in the area was insufficient and the existing drainage facilities 
are deficient. 
Finding 2:  The Project is Planned or Located in a Manner Most Compatible with Greatest Public Good 
and Least Private Injury 
The Project is located in a manner most compatible with the greatest public good and least private 
injury, in that the Project is proposed to be located in the same location as the existing drainage 
facilities.  The proposed drainage improvements to the existing culvert crossings are based on the 
existing deficiencies identified in the DMP and are not due to an increase of runoff from the Oak Hill 
Project which maintained or reduced the post-Project runoff to pre-Project levels for the 100-year storm 
event.  The existing culvert under Felicita Road is deficient in the existing condition. During a 100-year 
peak rainfall event, the 60-inch culvert would experience overtopping. While the Oak Hill Project did not 
increase peak flow rates for the 100-year design storm event, the Project proposes to improve the 
existing deficiencies by replacing the existing 52-inch culvert under Hamilton Lane (the centrally located 
crossing) with a 72-inch RCP and adding a 72-inch RCP to supplement the existing 60-inch CMP in 
Felicita Road. These improvements are similar to those identified in the 1992 DMP in terms of capacity. 
Finding 3:  The Real Property to be Acquired is Necessary for the Project 
As noted above, the City is seeking to acquire a slightly trapezoidal shaped drainage easement of 
approximately 1,780 square feet.  A legal description and depiction of the proposed drainage easement 
is attached to proposed Resolution No. 2021-174 as Exhibit “A”.  All of this property is needed to 
complete the proposed improvements which include installation of a 60” diameter drainage pipe parallel 
to the existing 72” pipe.  An approximately 13’ x 19’ concrete headwall will be constructed and large 
boulder rip rap will be placed in the easement area west of the drainage pipes. 

Finding 4:  Offers of Just Compensation Have Been Made to the Property Owners 
Pursuant to applicable requirements of law, the City had the subject property interests appraised.  The 
appraisal resulted in an offer letter being sent to the County pursuant to Government Code section 
7267.2 on September 17, 2021.  A copy of that letter is included as Attachment “1”.  

As noted above, City staff has attempted to undertake negotiations with the County, but to date has not 
been able to secure an agreement for the transfer of the property by way of negotiated agreement. 
Staff will continue to pursue discussions with the County, regardless of the City Council’s actions with 
respect to the proposed Resolution, in an attempt to reach mutually agreeable terms for such a 
negotiated transfer.  The amount of compensation due for the property interests involved is not a subject 

337

Item 11.



Resolution of Necessity for Acquisition of Drainage Easement 
December 1, 2021 
Page 6 

of the Resolution, and therefore not before the City Council as an issue to be considered as part of this 
Resolution. 

Additional Finding: Proposed Use Does Not Interfere with Existing Public Uses and/or Is More 
Necessary Than Those Public Uses. 

As noted above, the property interest to be acquired is located in the area of existing drainage 
improvements and within the Felicita Regional Park.  The proposed improvement of the existing 
drainage facilities with the proposed improvements will not unreasonably interfere with or impair the 
continuance of the public use as it now exists or may reasonably be expected to exist in the future.  
Moreover, to the extent that the proposed use will unreasonably interfere with or impair the continuance 
of the public use as it now exists or may reasonably be expected to exist in the future, the proposed 
use is more necessary in that it will enhance the efficiency of the current facilities which are undersized 
and deficient. 

The County Was Given Notice and Has the Right to Appear and Be Heard. 

On or about October 29, 2021, a notice of this hearing was sent by first class mail to the County.  A 
copy of that letter is attached to this Report as Attachment “2”.   The notice states the City’s intent to 
consider the adoption of a Resolution of Necessary and provides that the County, as the owner of the 
Subject Property, has the right to appear and be heard on the issues outlined above.  The notice further 
provides that failure to file a written request to appear would result in a waiver of the right to appear 
and be heard. 

On November 19, 2021, the County submitted a letter requesting to be heard and outlining its objections 
to adoption of the Resolution of Necessity. A copy of that letter is attached to this Report as Attachment 
“3”.  In the letter, the County states that it “recognizes the importance of appropriately conveying the 
drainage off Felicita Road and is supportive of the concept of diverting the drainage to a drainage 
structure in the Park. As a result, the County has never denied the request to provide an easement to 
either the City or the Project applicant.”  The County represents that its “intention has always been to 
work with the City and Project applicant to find a suitable agreement where the Project can proceed 
forward.” 

Nonetheless, the County contends that “at this time, the County does not concur with the easement 
description or proposed offer, as the City has not provided adequate information to allow the County to 
determine whether the easement area is adequate or if the increased drainage to the Park will cause 
harm to recreational, biological, and cultural resources.”  As the County letter acknowledges, the parties 
have been in protracted discussions since 2015.  The County has continued to insist on additional 
analysis beyond what was done prior to approval of the Oak Creek Project and the FEIR.  The County 
failed to challenge the FEIR and has since continued to insist on revisiting various issues, including 
demands for further hydrological analysis reports, that should have been resolved and/or litigated 
before the Oak Creek Project got under way. 

338

Item 11.



Resolution of Necessity for Acquisition of Drainage Easement 
December 1, 2021 
Page 7 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 

Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act has been satisfied.  Specifically, the District 
served as the lead agency for purposes of completing and publicly circulating an Environmental Impact 
Report, which comprehensively analyzed the Project’s potential environmental impacts.  On or about 
August 7, 2014, the City released a draft EIR (“DEIR”) for the Project.  On January 7, 2015, the City 
completed a Final EIR ("FEIR") for the Project.  The City approved the FEIR and Oak Creek Project on 
March 4, 2015.  The certified FEIR for the Oak Creek Project conclusively determined that the Project 
would have no significant environmental impacts on Felicita Park.  

CONCLUSION: 

The City Council has the option of either adopting, or refusing to adopt, the proposed Resolution.  If the 
Resolution is adopted, City staff and Special Counsel will proceed to initiate eminent domain 
proceedings, which ultimately would lead to a determination of the fair market value of the property 
interests proposed to be taken through court proceedings.  If the City Council does not adopt the 
Resolution, the City can either (i) commit to acquiring the identified Subject Property from the owner 
only by negotiated acquisition; (ii) decide not to implement the Project; or (iii) provide alternative 
direction to staff.  Based on all the foregoing, and on the matters recited in more detail in the Resolution 
itself, City Staff requests that the City Council adopt the Resolution of Necessity.   

Pursuant to State law, the Resolution must pass by a 2/3 vote thereby requiring at least four 
councilmembers to affirmatively vote to adopt the resolution.   

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
Michael McGuinness, City Attorney 
11/24/21 11:48 a.m. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Attachment “1” - Letter to Brooke Miller at the County of San Diego dated September 17, 2021, 
regarding the City of Escondido’s Offer to Purchase a portion of Assessor’s Parcel No. 238-380-
6-00.

2. Attachment “2” - Letter to the County of San Diego dated October 29, 2021, giving Notice of 
Hearing Re:  Adoption of Resolution of Necessity to Acquire Property by Eminent Domain 
(California Code of Civil Procedure section 1245.235).

3. Attachment “3” - Letter from County of San Diego, Department of Parks and Recreation, dated 
November 12, 2021, regarding Notice of Hearing Re: Adoption of Resolution of Necessity to 
Acquire Property by Eminent Domain (California Code of Civil Procedure section 1245.235), 
Escondido, California (APN 238-380-06-00).

4. Resolution No. 2021-174R of the City Council of the City of Escondido Declaring That 
Acquisition of a Drainage Easement In Certain Real Property By Eminent Domain is 
Necessary to Expand 

339

Item 11.



Resolution of Necessity for Acquisition of Drainage Easement 
December 1, 2021 
Page 8 

the Existing Drainage Facilities Located at the North End of the Felicita County Park in 
Connection with the Previously Approved Oak Creek Project. 

5. Resolution No. 2021-174R- Exhibit “A”

340

Item 11.



Attachment "1" 

341

Item 11.



Attachment "1" 

342

Item 11.



Attachment "1" 

343

Item 11.



Attachment "1" 

344

Item 11.



Attachment "1" 

345

Item 11.



Attachment "1" 

346

Item 11.



Attachment "2" 

347

Item 11.



Attachment "2" 

348

Item 11.



Attachment "2" 

349

Item 11.



Attachment "2" 

350

Item 11.



Attachment "2" 

351

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

352

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

353

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

354

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

355

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

356

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

357

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

358

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

359

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

360

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

361

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

362

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

363

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

364

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

365

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

366

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

367

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

368

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

369

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

370

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

371

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

372

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

373

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

374

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

375

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

376

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

377

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

378

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

379

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

380

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

381

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

382

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

383

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

384

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

385

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

386

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

387

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

388

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

389

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

390

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

391

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

392

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

393

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

394

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

395

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

396

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

397

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

398

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

399

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

400

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

401

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

402

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

403

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

404

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

405

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

406

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

407

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

408

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

409

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

410

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

411

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

412

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

413

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

414

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

415

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

416

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

417

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

418

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

419

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

420

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

421

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

422

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

423

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

424

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

425

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

426

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

427

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

428

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

429

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

430

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

431

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

432

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

433

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

434

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

435

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

436

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

437

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

438

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

439

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

440

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

441

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

442

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

443

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

444

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

445

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

446

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

447

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

448

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

449

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

450

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

451

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

452

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

453

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

454

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

455

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

456

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

457

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

458

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

459

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

460

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

461

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

462

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

463

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

464

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

465

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

466

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

467

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

468

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

469

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

470

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

471

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

472

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

473

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

474

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

475

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

476

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

477

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

478

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

479

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

480

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

481

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

482

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

483

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

484

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

485

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

486

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

487

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

488

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

489

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

490

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

491

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

492

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

493

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

494

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

495

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

496

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

497

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

498

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

499

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

500

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

501

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

502

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

503

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

504

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

505

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

506

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

507

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

508

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

509

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

510

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

511

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

512

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

513

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

514

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

515

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

516

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

517

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

518

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

519

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

520

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

521

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

522

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

523

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

524

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

525

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

526

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

527

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

528

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

529

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

530

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

531

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

532

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

533

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

534

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

535

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

536

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

537

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

538

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

539

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

540

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

541

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

542

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

543

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

544

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

545

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

546

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

547

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

548

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

549

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

550

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

551

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

552

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

553

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

554

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

555

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

556

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

557

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

558

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

559

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

560

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

561

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

562

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

563

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

564

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

565

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

566

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

567

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

568

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

569

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

570

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

571

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

572

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

573

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

574

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

575

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

576

Item 11.



Attachment "3" 

577

Item 11.



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-174R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO DECLARING 
THAT ACQUISITION OF A DRAINAGE 
EASEMENT IN CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
BY EMINENT DOMAIN IS NECESSARY TO 
EXPAND THE EXISTING DRAINAGE 
FACILITIES LOCATED AT THE NORTH END 
OF THE FELICITA COUNTY PARK IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE PREVIOUSLY 
APPROVED OAK CREEK PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) proposes to acquire a drainage 

easement interest in certain real property located at the south corner of Felicita Road and 

Park Drive in the City of Escondido, otherwise known as a portion of Assessor’s Parcel 

Number 238-380-06-00 (“Subject Property”), which is necessary to expand the existing 

drainage facilities located at the north end of the Felicita County Park in connection with 

the previously approved Oak Creek Project (“Project”), pursuant to the authority granted 

to the City by Government Code section 37350.5 and Code of Civil Procedure sections 

1240.040, 1240.110, and 1240.120; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1245.235, the City 

scheduled a public hearing for December 1, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. at the City Council 

chambers located at City Hall, 201 North Broadway, Escondido, California, 92025, and 

gave to each person whose property is to be acquired and whose name and address 

appears on the last equalized county assessment roll, notice and a reasonable 

opportunity to appear at said hearing and be heard on the matters referred to in Code of 

Civil Procedure section 1240.030; and  

WHEREAS, said hearing has been held by the City and each person whose 

578

Item 11.



2 

property is to be acquired by eminent domain was afforded the opportunity to be heard 

on said matters; and 

WHEREAS, the City may not adopt a resolution of necessity pursuant to Code of 

Civil Procedure section 1240.040. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED, by a 

vote of four or more of all members of the City Council of the City of Escondido as follows: 

1. The above recitations are true.

2. Notice and Hearing Compliance.  The City has provided notice of this

hearing as required by Code of Civil Procedure section 1245.235. 

3. Public Use.  The public use for which the real property is to be acquired is

necessary to expand the existing drainage facilities located at the north end of the Felicita 

County Park in connection with the previously approved Oak Creek Project.  The City is 

authorized to acquire by eminent domain property which is necessary for such a 

purpose in accordance with Government Code section 37350.5 and Code of Civil 

Procedure sections 1240.040, 1240.110, and 1240.120.   

4. Description of Property.  The Subject Property is generally described as

being located at the south corner of Felicita Road and Park Drive in the City of Escondido, 

County of San Diego, California, otherwise known as a portion of Assessor’s Parcel 

Number 238-380-06-00.  Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is the legal description and 

depiction of the real property interests required for the Project, which describe the general 

location of the Subject Property to be acquired by the City as a drainage easement with 

579

Item 11.



3 

sufficient detail for reasonable identification. 

5. Findings.  The City hereby finds and determines the following:

a. The public interest and necessity require the Project; and

b. The Project is planned or located in the manner that will be the most

compatible with the greatest public good and least private injury; and 

c. The Subject Property is necessary for the Project; and

d. The offer required by Government Code section 7267.2 was made. 

6. Use Not Unreasonably Interfering with Existing Public Use(s).  Some or all

of the real property to be acquired is subject to easements and rights-of-way 

appropriated to existing public uses.  The legal descriptions of these easements and 

rights-of-way are on file with the City and describe the general location and extent of the 

easements and rights-of-way with sufficient detail for reasonable identification.  In the 

event the herein described use or uses will not unreasonably interfere with or impair the 

continuance of the public use as it now exists or may reasonably be expected to exist in 

the future, counsel for the City is authorized to acquire the real property subject to such 

existing public use(s) pursuant to section 1240.510 of the California Code of Civil 

Procedure.   

7. More Necessary Public Use.  Some or all of the real property to be acquired

may be devoted to other public uses or easements and rights-of-way appropriated to 

existing public uses.  To the extent that the herein described use or uses will unreasonably 

580

Item 11.



4 

interfere with or impair the continuance of the public use as it now exists or may 

reasonably be expected to exist in the future, the City finds and determines that the herein 

described use or uses are more necessary than said existing public use.  Counsel for the 

City is authorized to acquire the real property appropriated to such existing public use(s) 

pursuant to section 1240.610 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  Staff is further 

authorized to make such improvements to the real property being acquired that it 

determines is reasonably necessary to mitigate any adverse impact upon the existing 

public use.   

7. Further Activities.  The City Attorney and/or Best Best & Krieger LLP (“BBK”)

is hereby authorized to acquire the described real property in the name of and on behalf 

of the City by eminent domain.  BBK is further authorized to institute and prosecute such 

legal proceedings as may be required.  BBK may take such steps as may be authorized 

and required by law, and make such deposits as may be required, to permit the City to 

take possession of and use said real property at the earliest possible time.  BBK is further 

authorized to correct any errors or to make or agree to non-material changes in the legal 

description of the real property that is deemed necessary for the conduct of the 

condemnation action, or any other proceedings or transactions required to acquire the 

Subject Property.   

581

Item 11.



Resolution No. 2021-174R 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 2

582

Item 11.



Resolution No. 2021-174R 

Exhibit "A" Page 2 of 2

583

Item 11.



Staff Report - Council 

Public Hearing Item No. 12  December 1, 2021 File No. 0680-50 

SUBJECT:  Amendment to Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 14 Pertaining to Solid Waste 
and Recycling, and Chapter 22 Pertaining to Wastewaters, Stormwaters, and 
Related Matters.  

DEPARTMENT: Utilities Department, Wastewater Division, Environmental Programs and Recycling 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council introduce: 

 Ordinance No. 2021-15, amending Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 14 - Solid Waste and
Recycling; and

 Ordinance No. 2021-16 amending Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 22 - Wastewaters,
Stormwaters, and Related Matters.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with these Ordinances.  Funds needed to support staff in 
implementing and enforcing the provisions of these ordinances will be presented to City Council during 
review of the Annual Operating Budget, during rate hearings for Solid Waste and Recycling Service, 
and during rate hearings for Wastewater Collection Service.   

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

Concerning Ordinance 2021-15, the City Council most recently heard an update on the City of 
Escondido (“City”) recycling programs and partnership with Escondido Disposal, Inc. (“EDI”) on August 
11, 2021.  The annual rate increase for EDI was approved on consent at the November 3, 2021 City 
Council Meeting.  Previously, at the November 28, 2018 City Council Meeting, staff provided an 
overview and analysis of programming and resource needs for organic waste regulatory compliance, 
and described the need for an update to the Municipal Code.  

Concerning Ordinance 2021-16, the City Council adopted updates to Chapter 22 Municipal Code 
language in 2018 (Ordinance No. 2018-01) and in 2015 (Ordinance No. 2015-09) 

BACKGROUND: 

Staff are introducing updates to Chapters 14 and 22 of the Municipal Code in accordance with state 
and federal laws, and in alignment with model ordinances developed by state regulatory agencies. 
These items are brought to the City Council as a single agenda item, with two separate Ordinances for 

584

Item 12.



Amendment of Municipal Code Chapters 14 and 22 
December 1, 2021 
Page 2 

consideration.  In both cases, updates and reorganizations were significant enough to warrant repeal 
and replacement of Code language. Therefore, no tracked changes versions have been developed as 
part of this staff report.  Summaries of the updates are described below.  
 
Ordinance No. 2021-15 amending Chapter 14 – Solid Waste and Recycling 
 
In September 2016, Senate Bill 1383 (SB 1383) was signed into law to reduce – by 2025 – organic 
waste disposal by 75% and increase edible food recovery by 20%.  SB 1383 is the most significant 
waste reduction mandate to be adopted in the State of California in the last 30 years.  SB 1383 
regulations outline specific requirements related to organics collection, edible food recovery, and 
compliance tracking and monitoring; mandating actions by the City, residential, and commercial 
organics generators and haulers to significantly reduce organics landfill disposal.  
 
SB 1383 mandates that the City establish legal authority through the adoption of a mandatory organics 
recycling ordinance by January 1, 2022.  Draft Ordinance 2021-15 (Attachment 1) combines and 
updates the City’s existing Municipal Code Chapter 14 with the model ordinance provided by the 
Department of Recycling and Resources Recovery (CalRecycle).  The Utilities Department and the City 
Attorney’s Office have reviewed and updated the following provisions in Chapter 14 in accordance with 
state and federal law (Attachment 1): 
 

 Changed title of Chapter 14 from “Garbage and Rubbish” to “Solid Waste and Recycling.” 

 Updated, removed, and added definitions per state requirements and guidance. 

 Changed Division 4. Mandatory Recycling of Article 2. Collection and Transportation to Article 
5. Mandatory Separation of Recyclables, Collection and Disposal of Solid Waste and 
Recyclables. 

o This amendment adds multifamily residences of five (5) units or more to the definition of 
commercial generators to provide annual education for employees and tenants on the 
proper separation of waste, sufficient collection containers with labels or colors that 
indicate their purpose, and access to the City or EDI for inspections to confirm compliance 
with the requirements of this ordinance.  

 Added requirements for Single Family Organic Waste Generators and Commercial Edible Food 
Generators.  The latter category includes requirements for large events with an average of more 
than 2,000 individuals per day of operation that charge an admission fee.  

 Added requirements for Food Recovery Organizations, including Food Recovery Capacity 
Planning. 

 Expanded requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators to reflect addition of food waste to 
Organic Waste collection.  

 Updated franchisee requirements related to organic waste diversion and processing.  

 Other housekeeping amendments for clarity and compliance with SB 1383 regulations.  
 
The City and EDI will continue to focus outreach efforts on education and technical assistance.  Most 
recently, through a joint letter from the City and EDI, most commercial account holders in Escondido 

585

Item 12.



Amendment of Municipal Code Chapters 14 and 22 
December 1, 2021 
Page 3 

were notified of the state regulations on mandatory organics recycling with instructions for enrollment 
and obtaining collection implementation assistance.  Another mass mailing to commercial account 
holders is planned in the coming weeks.  Information is available from EDI in English and Spanish.  
Formal enforcement of the requirements defined in the ordinance must begin by January 1, 2024.  
Ordinance 2021-16 Amending Chapter 22 - Wastewaters, Stormwaters, and Related Matters 
 
Ordinance No. 2021-16 amending Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 22 - Wastewaters, Stormwaters, 
and Related Matters 
 
The City is subject to the requirements of a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) 
Permit to safely operate the Hale Avenue Resource Recovery Facility (HARRF) wastewater treatment 
plant.  Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board) Order Number R9-2018-002 requires 
the City to regulate its sewer collection and treatment system to ensure effluent limits are met.  In 
addition, the City is subject to an NPDES Permit for operation of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
System (MS4), Order No. R9-2013-0001 as amended.  Chapter 22 of the Escondido Municipal Code, 
“Wastewaters, Stormwaters, and Related Matters,” implements those NPDES permits and establishes 
general requirements, discharge controls and prohibitions, private connections, pretreatment, and 
industrial waste programs to help prevent sewage spills and other illicit discharges.  
 
Chapter 22 was last updated by Ordinance 2018-01 on April 4, 2018.  Since that time, City staff in the 
Utilities Department’s Wastewater Division, Environmental Programs, and the City Attorney’s office 
identified several sections needing clarification for the purposes of enforcement, sewer system 
maintenance, and pollution prevention program implementation.  The City Attorney’s office also 
performed a thorough comparison of Chapter 22 with model pretreatment ordinance developed by the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  Ordinance 2021-16 (Attachment 2) includes the following 
updates to Chapter 22 in accordance with state and federal law: 
 

 Abbreviations (new). 

 Sec. 22-1. Definitions. Added, updated, and removed select definitions per state requirements.  

 Sec. 22-22. Discharges of potable irrigation runoff or overspray water is prohibited.  

 Sec. 22-28. Clarified language to ensure maintenance of drainage through private property, and 
also prohibit blocking which may cause flooding upstream.  

 Sec. 22-29. Allows the Director to execute stormwater facility maintenance agreements (new).  

 Combined two lists of wastewater discharge prohibitions in section 22-37 (Specific Discharges 
Prohibited in Article 3. Harmful Waters and Wastes) and 22-173 (Prohibited Discharges from 
Article 8. Industrial Wastewaters). Specified prohibitions on discharges of the following to the 
sewer system: Plaster and construction material; beer or wine product; medical waste. 

 Sec. 22-43. Dental Amalgam Separators (new).  The EPA “Dental Rule” 40 CFR Part 441 
requires dental facilities to manage amalgam waste by using separators to dispose of wastes 
generated prior to discharge to the HARRF. The rule went into effect in 2017 and the City has 
since been implementing a program to notify dental facilities and obtain one-time compliance 
reports since 2020, per federal regulations.   

586

Item 12.



Amendment of Municipal Code Chapters 14 and 22 
December 1, 2021 
Page 4 

 Sec. 22-44. National Categorical Pretreatment Standards (new). 

 Sec. 22-177. Applications.  Added required information for Wastewater Discharge Permits.  

 Sec. 22-182. Revocation of Permit. Removed 3-day notice and added a list of reasons for 
revocation of a permit.  

 Sec. 22-183. Unusual conditions, special agreements, and waivers.  Amended to include 
language about inter-municipal agreements.  

 Sec. 22-187. Discharge Reports. Added analytical requirements, sample collection, certification 
statements. 

 Sec. 22-189. Inspection of Facilities.  Clarify requirements with regards to City access to 
properties for prompt inspection of facilities.  

 Other housekeeping amendments for clarity and compliance.  
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Christopher W. McKinney, Deputy City Manager/Director of Utilities 

11/24/21 11:55 a.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2021-15  
2. Ordinance No. 2021-15 Exhibit “A” 
3. Ordinance No. 2021-16  
4. Ordinance No. 2021-16 Exhibit “A”  

 

587

Item 12.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-15 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF THE MUNICPAL 
CODE PERTAINING TO SOLID WASTE AND 
RECYCLING 

 

The City Council of the City of Escondido, California, does hereby ordain as 

follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That proper notices of a public hearing have been given and public 

hearings have been held before the City Council on this issue.     

  SECTION 2.  The City Council has duly reviewed and considered all evidence 

submitted at said hearings, including, without limitation:  

a. Written information;  

b. Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public;  

c. The staff report, dated December 1, 2021, which along with its 

attachments is incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein; and  

d. Additional information submitted during the Public Hearing.   

SECTION 3.  The City Council makes the following findings: 

a. That the City Council has reviewed and considered the requirements 

of the State of California regarding solid waste recycling (Assembly Bill 939 of 1989 and 

Assembly Bill 341 of 2011), organic waste recycling (Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014), and 

short-lived climate pollutants to reduce organics in landfills as a source of methane (SB 

1383 of 2016); and  

b. That the amendments to Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 14 

pertaining to Solid Waste and Recycling as proposed by this Ordinance reflect revisions 

588

Item 12.



 

necessary to ensure compliance with State requirements prior to January 1, 2022 and 

incorporate recommendations of the Model Ordinance developed by the California 

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (“CalRecycle”).  

SECTION 4.  That upon consideration of the staff report, City Staff 

recommendation, all public testimony presented at the hearing held on this issue, and the 

findings set forth in Section 3 this Ordinance, this City Council finds that adoption of the 

proposed Municipal Amendments to Chapter 14 pertaining to Solid Waste and Recycling 

is in the best interest of the City.  

SECTION 5.  That Chapter 14 of the Escondido Municipal Code is hereby renamed 

to “Solid Waste and Recycling” and amended as set forth in Exhibit “A” to this Ordinance 

and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 6.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.  The proposed Ordinance is exempt 

from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to State CEQA 

Guidelines Sections 15308, in that the proposed Ordinance will not result in any 

significant effect on the environment. 

SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection sentence, clause, phrase 

or portion of this ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by any court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions. 

 SECTION 8.   As of the effective date of this Ordinance, all ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  Renumbering and relabeling of 

existing ordinance title, chapter, article, and/or section headings by this ordinance does 

589

Item 12.



 

not affect the continuing validity of existing laws.  Any existing reference to an ordinance, 

title, chapter, article, or section heading which is renumbered or relabeled by this 

ordinance must be construed to apply to the corresponding provisions contained within 

this ordinance.  

 SECTION 9.   The adoption of this Ordinance is not intended to affect or disrupt 

the continuity of the City’s business or administration of its law, including but not limited 

to the following:    

a. Actions and proceedings that began before the effective date of this 

Ordinance;  

b. Prosecution for ordinance violations committed before the effective 

date of this Ordinance; and/or  

c. The amount, or collection, of license, fee, penalty debt, forfeiture, or 

obligations due and unpaid as of the effective date of this Ordinance.  

 SECTION 10. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of 

this Ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be prepared in accordance with 

Government Code Section 36933, to be published one time within 15 days of its passage 

in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the County and circulated 

in the City of Escondido. 

 SECTION 11.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the 30th day following the 

date of its adoption.  

590

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 37 

 

 

MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDEMENT 
 
SECTION I. 
 
Repealing in its entirety, Chapter 14 of the Escondido Municipal Code and adopting 

in full new text to read as specified below. 

 
CHAPTER 14 

SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING 
 

ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAL 

Sec. 14-1.1. Definitions. 

Whenever the following defined words and phrases are used in this chapter, they shall 
have the definition or meaning established by this section, unless it is clearly apparent from the 
context in which the word or phrase appears that a different definition or meaning is intended. 

1. “Animal Waste” means pet waste, manure, fertilizer, or any form of solid excrement 
produced by any and all forms of domestic or commercial livestock. 

2. “Blue Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(5) and 
shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials. 

3. “CalRecycle” means the California Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery, which is the Department designated with responsibility for developing, implementing, 
and enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on Jurisdictions (and others). 

4. “California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code of 
Regulations. CCR references in this ordinance are preceded with a number that refers to the 
relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 CCR” refers to Title 14 of CCR). 

5. “Cardboard” means post-consumer waste paper grade corrugated Cardboard 
(#11), kraft (brown) paper bags or solid fiber boxes. 

6. “City” means the City of Escondido. 

7. “City Manager” means the City Manager of the City of Escondido. 

8. “Commercial Business” or “Commercial” means a firm, partnership, proprietorship, 
joint-stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-profit or nonprofit, strip mall, 
industrial facility, or a Multifamily Residential Dwelling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(6). A Multifamily Residential Dwelling that consists of fewer than five units is not a 
Commercial Business for purposes of implementing this ordinance.   

9. “Commercial Edible Food Generator” includes a Tier One or a Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generator as defined in this ordinance or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(73) and (a)(74). For the purposes of this definition, Food Recovery 

591

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 2 of 37 

 

 

Organizations and Food Recovery Services are not Commercial Edible Food Generators 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 

10.  “Commercial Solid Waste” means Solid Waste originating from stores, offices, and 
other commercial sources, but does not include construction and demolition waste. 

11. “Compliance Review” means a review of records by the City to determine 
compliance with this ordinance. 

12. “Community Composting” means any activity that composts green material, 
agricultural material, food material, and vegetative food material, alone or in combination, and the 
total amount of feedstock and Compost on-site at any one time does not exceed 100 cubic yards 
and 750 square feet, as specified in 14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as otherwise defined by 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(8). 

13. “Compost” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), which 
stated, as of the effective date of this ordinance, that “Compost” means the product resulting from 
the controlled biological decomposition of organic Solid Wastes that are Source Separated from 
the municipal Solid Waste stream, or which are separated at a centralized facility. 

14. “Compostable Plastics” or “Compostable Plastic” means plastic materials that 
meet the ASTM D6400 standard for compostability, or as otherwise described in 14 CCR Section 
18984.1(a)(1)(A) or 18984.2(a)(1)(C). 

15. “Container Contamination” or “Contaminated Container” means a container, 
regardless of color, that contains Prohibited Container Contaminants, or as otherwise defined in 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(55). 

16. “Construction Waste” or “Construction Site Debris” means and includes 
sweepings, rocks, stones, bricks, plaster, or other building materials whether combustible or 
noncombustible, resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, or demolition of old buildings or 
resulting from new construction of any other structure and pavement. 

17. “City Council” or “Council” means the city council of the City of Escondido. 

18. “Curbside Collection” means the collection of recyclables or refuse from the curb 
or alleyway. 

19.  “Designated Source Separated Organic Waste Facility”, as defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(14.5), means a Solid Waste facility that accepts a Source Separated Organic 
Waste collection stream as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(26.6) and complies with one of 
the following: 

a. The facility is a “transfer/processor,” as defined in 14 CCR Section 
18815.2(a)(62), that is in compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 
18815.5(d), and meets or exceeds an annual average Source Separated organic content 
Recovery rate of 50 percent between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2024 and 75 percent 
on and after January 1, 2025 as calculated pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18815.5(f) for Organic 
Waste received from the Source Separated Organic Waste collection stream. 

592

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 3 of 37 

 

 

i. If a transfer/processor has an annual average Source Separated 
organic content Recovery rate lower than the rate required in Paragraph 1 of this definition for 
two consecutive reporting periods, or three reporting periods within three years, the facility shall 
not qualify as a “Designated Source Separated Organic Waste Facility”. 

b. The facility is a “composting operation” or “composting facility” as defined 
in 14 CCR Section 18815.2(a)(13), that pursuant to the reports submitted under 14 CCR Section 
18815.7 demonstrates that the percent of the material removed for landfill disposal that is Organic 
Waste is less than the percent specified in 14 CCR Section 17409.5.8(c)(2) or 17409.5.8(c)(3), 
whichever is applicable, and, if applicable, complies with the digestate handling requirements 
specified in 14 CCR Section 17896.5. 

i. If the percent of the material removed for landfill disposal that is 
Organic Waste is more than the percent specified in 14 CCR Section 17409.5.8(c)(2) or 
17409.5.8(c)(3), for two consecutive reporting periods, or three reporting periods within three 
years, the facility shall not qualify as a “Designated Source Separated Organic Waste Facility.”  
For the purposes of this ordinance, the reporting periods shall be consistent with those defined in 
14 CCR Section 18815.2(a)(49).  

20. “Designee” means an entity that the City contracts with or otherwise arranges to 
carry out any of the City’s responsibilities of this ordinance as authorized in 14 CCR Section 
18981.2. A Designee may be a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a combination of 
those entities. 

21. “Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this ordinance or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), “Edible Food” is not Solid Waste if it is recovered and 
not discarded. Nothing in this ordinance or in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or 
authorizes the Recovery of Edible Food that does not meet the food safety requirements of the 
California Retail Food Code. 

22. “Franchisee” means any refuse collector or recycling agent authorized by the City 
Council of the City of Escondido, pursuant to the procedures established by this chapter. 

23. “Enforcement Action" means an action of the City to address non-compliance with 
this ordinance including, but not limited to, issuing administrative citations, fines, penalties, or 
using other remedies. 

24. “Enforcement Official” means the City Manager or other executive in charge or 
their authorized Designee(s) who is/are partially or entirely responsible for enforcing this 
ordinance. 

25. “Excluded Waste” means hazardous substance, hazardous waste, infectious 
waste, designated waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, regulated radioactive waste, and 
toxic substances or material that facility operator(s), which receive materials from the City and its 
generators, reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon acceptance, transfer, processing, 
or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, regulation, or ordinance, including: land 
use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot be disposed of in Class III landfills or accepted 
at the facility by permit conditions, waste that in the City’s, or its Designee’s, reasonable opinion 

593

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 4 of 37 

 

 

would present a significant risk to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance or 
otherwise create or expose City, or its Designee, to potential liability; but not including de minimis 
volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally found in Single-Family or 
Multifamily Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the safe collection, processing, 
recycling, treatment, and disposal of batteries and paint in compliance with Sections 41500 and 
41802 of the California Public Resources Code. Excluded Waste does not include used motor oil 
and filters, household batteries, universal wastes, and/or latex paint when such materials are 
defined as allowable materials for collection through the City’s or its Designee’s collection 
programs and the generator or customer has properly placed the materials for collection pursuant 
to instructions provided by Jurisdiction or its Designee for collection services. 

26. “Food Distributor” means a company that distributes food to entities including, but 
not limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(22). 

27. “Food Facility” has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and 
Safety Code. 

28. “Food Recovery” means actions to collect and distribute food for human 
consumption that otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(24). 

29. “Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that engages in the collection or 
receipt of Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and distributes that Edible Food 
to the public for Food Recovery either directly or through other entities or as otherwise defined in 
14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25), including, but not limited to: 

a. A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety Code; 

b. A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the 
Health and Safety code; and, 

c. A nonprofit charitable temporary Food Facility as defined in Section 113842 
of the Health and Safety Code. 

A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the 
purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(7). If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery 
Organization differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) shall apply 
to this ordinance. 

30. “Food Recovery Service” means a Person or entity that collects and transports 
Edible Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery Organization or other 
entities for Food Recovery, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(26). A Food 
Recovery Service is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this ordinance 
and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 

31. “Food Scraps” means all food such as, but not limited to, fruits, vegetables, meat, 
poultry, seafood, shellfish, bones, rice, beans, pasta, bread, cheese, and eggshells. Food Scraps 

594

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 5 of 37 

 

 

excludes fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other Food 
Scraps. 

32. “Food Service Provider” means an entity primarily engaged in providing food 
services to institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of others based on 
contractual arrangements with these types of organizations, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(27). 

33. “Food-Soiled Paper” is compostable paper material that has come in contact with 
food or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper plates, paper coffee cups, napkins, 
pizza boxes, and milk cartons. 

34. “Food Waste” means Food Scraps and Food-Soiled Paper. 

35.  “Glass Bottles and Jars” means food and beverage glass containers including 
container glass covered by the deposit law, and excluding household and kitchen containers such 
as drinking glasses, cups, and cooking and serving dishes. 

36. “Gray Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(28) and 
shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Gray Container Waste. 

37. “Gray Container Waste” means Solid Waste that is collected in a Gray Container 
that is part of a three-container Organic Waste collection service that prohibits the placement of 
Organic Waste in the Gray Container as specified in 14 CCR Sections 18984.1(a) and (b), or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(6.5). 

38. “Green Container” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 18982.2(a)(29) 
and shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection of Source Separated Green Container 
Organic Waste. 

39. “Grocery Store” means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned food; 
dry goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and any area that is not 
separately owned within the store where the food is prepared and served, including a bakery, deli, 
and meat and seafood departments, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(30). 

40. “Hauler Route” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each 
segment of the City’s collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(31.5). 

41. “High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility” means a facility that is in 
compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and meets or exceeds 
an annual average Mixed Waste organic content Recovery rate of 50 percent between January 
1, 2022 and December 31, 2024, and 75 percent after January 1, 2025, as calculated pursuant 
to 14 CCR Section 18815.5(e) for Organic Waste received from the “Mixed waste organic 
collection stream” as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(11.5); or, as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(33). 

42.   “Inspection” means a site visit where the City reviews records, containers, and an 
entity’s collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Organic Waste or Edible Food 

595

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 6 of 37 

 

 

handling to determine if the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this ordinance, or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35). 

43. “Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or a 
flea market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, and serves an 
average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of the event, at a location that 
includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, 
street system, or other open space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(38) 
shall apply to this ordinance. 

44. “Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves an 
average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per day of operation of 
the venue facility. For purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, 
Chapter 12, a venue facility includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned 
or operated stadium, amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, 
aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, museum, theater, or 
other public attraction facility. For purposes of this ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, 
Division 7, Chapter 12, a site under common ownership or control that includes more than one 
Large Venue that is contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If 
the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(39) shall apply to this ordinance. 

45. “Local Education Agency” means a school district, charter school, or county office 
of education that is not subject to the control of city or county regulations related to Solid Waste, 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(40). 

46. “Metal” means recoverable aluminum, tin and bi-metal materials such as used 
beverage containers, siding, and other recyclable manufactured metal items. 

47. “Mixed Paper” means and includes catalogs, cereal boxes, colored paper, 
computer paper, construction paper, cracker boxes, envelopes (non-padded), envelopes with 
windows, grocery bags (brown), junk mail, legal pad backings, magazines, shoe boxes, telephone 
books and white ledger paper. 

48. “Multifamily Residential Dwelling” or “Multifamily” means of, from, or pertaining to 
residential premises with five or more dwelling units.  Multifamily premises do not include hotels, 
motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, which are considered Commercial Businesses. 

49. “Non-Compostable Paper” includes but is not limited to paper that is coated in a 
plastic material that will not breakdown in the composting process, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(41). 

50.  “Non-Local Entity” means the following entities that are not subject to the City’s 
enforcement authority, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(42): 

a. Special district(s) located within the boundaries of the City; 

596

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 7 of 37 

 

 

b. Federal facilities, if any, including military installations, located within the 
boundaries of the City; 

c. Facilities operated by the State park system located within the boundaries 
of the City, if any; 

d. Public universities (including community colleges) located within the 
boundaries of the City; 

e. County fairgrounds located within the boundaries of the City; 

f. State agencies located within the boundaries of the City, if any. 

51.  “Notice of Violation” or “NOV” means a notice that a violation has occurred that 
includes a compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 18995.4. 

52. “Occupant” means and includes every owner of and every tenant or Person who 
is in possession of, is the inhabitant of, or has the care and control of an inhabited residence or a 
Place of Business including, but not limited to, the United States, the State of California, the county 
of San Diego, the city of Escondido, and every other local agency. 

53.  “Organic Waste” means Solid Wastes containing material originated from living 
organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food, green material, 
Yard Waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, wood, Paper Products, printing and writing 
Paper, biosolids, digestate, and sludges or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(46). 
Biosolids and digestate are as defined by 14 CCR Section 18982(a). 

54. “Organic Waste Generator” means a Person or entity that is responsible for the 
initial creation of Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(48). 

55. “Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, cartons, 
wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, tissue, and toweling, or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51). 

56. “Person” as used in this chapter means any individual, firm, corporation, 
association or group or combination acting as a unit. 

57. “Place of Business” means any hotel, motel, trailer court, Restaurant, cafeteria, 
market, hospital, or any educational, professional, commercial or industrial establishment of any 
nature whatsoever, where there is an accumulation of refuse. 

58.  “Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (a) discarded materials 
placed in the Blue Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials for the City’s Blue Container; (b) discarded materials placed in the Green Container that 
are not identified as acceptable Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste for the City’s 
Green Container; (c) discarded materials placed in the Gray Container that are acceptable Source 
Separated Recyclable Materials and/or Source Separated Green Container Organic Wastes to 

597

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 8 of 37 

 

 

be placed in City’s Green Container and/or Blue Container; and, (d) Excluded Waste placed in 
any container. 

59. “Recovered Organic Waste Products” means products made from California, 
landfill-diverted recovered Organic Waste processed in a permitted or otherwise authorized 
facility, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(60). 

60. “Recovery” means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 
18983.1(b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49). 

61. “Recyclable Material” means materials that are recyclable and/or reusable within 
the following categories of residential, commercial (office and hospitality), and industrial as 
defined more specifically by resolution of the City Council, including: printing and writing papers, 
glass, Cardboard, rigid plastics and empty plastic beverage bottles and containers, newspaper, 
White Goods, tin cans, ferrous Metal, aluminum, or other materials which may be recycled for use 
in an altered form, that has been segregated from other Solid Waste and placed at a designated 
collection location for the purpose of collection and recycling.  

62. “Recycling Operator” means a Person or Persons, firm, partnership, joint venture, 
association or corporation engaged in the collection and recycling of waste and other discarded 
materials. For the purposes of this chapter, “recycling” shall mean as established by Government 
Code Section 66716.6 

63. “Regional Agency” means regional agency as defined in Public Resources Code 
Section 40181. 

64. “Remote Monitoring” means the use of the internet of things (IoT) and/or wireless 
electronic devices to visualize the contents of Blue Containers, Green Containers, and Gray 
Containers for purposes of identifying the quantity of materials in containers (level of fill) and/or 
presence of Prohibited Container Contaminants. 

65. “Renewable Gas” means gas derived from Organic Waste that has been diverted 
from a California landfill and processed at an in-vessel digestion facility that is permitted or 
otherwise authorized by 14 CCR to recycle Organic Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 18982(a)(62). 

66. “Residential Dwelling Unit” means each place used for residential dwelling 
purposes for a single family. A structure may have one or more Residential Dwelling Units. No 
place used primarily for business purposes shall be considered as a Residential Dwelling Unit. 

67.  “Restaurant” means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of food 
and drinks for on-premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(64). 

68. “Route Review” means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route for 
the purpose of determining Container Contamination, and may include mechanical Inspection 
methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(65). 

598

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 9 of 37 

 

 

69. “SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on 
September 19, 2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the 
Health and Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) to Part 3 of 
Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a 
Statewide effort to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, 
superseded, and replaced from time to time.  

70. “SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the 
purposes of this ordinance, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste Reduction 
regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that created 14 CCR, Division 7, 
Chapter 12 and amended portions of regulations of 14 CCR and 27 CCR. 

71. “Scavenging” means the uncontrolled and/or unauthorized removal of Solid Waste 
materials, Recyclable Materials, or Organic Waste. 

72. “Self-Hauler” means a Person, who hauls Solid Waste, Organic Waste or 
Recyclable Material he or she has generated to another Person. Self-Hauler also includes a 
Person who back-hauls waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(66). Back-
haul means generating and transporting Organic Waste to a destination owned and operated by 
the generator using the generator’s own employees and equipment, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(66)(A). 

73. “Single-Family” means of, from, or pertaining to any residential premises with fewer 
than five units. 

74. “Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources Code 
Section 40191, which defines Solid Waste as all putrescible and non-putrescible solid, semisolid, 
and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, rubbish; ashes, bottles, broken crockery, 
glass; such industrial, domestic, and organic Solid Wastes or residue of animals sold for meat; 
Offal, animal excreta, or the carcasses of animals, fish or fowl; industrial wastes; demolition and 
Construction Wastes that cannot be reused; abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded 
home and industrial appliances, dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is 
not hazardous waste, and other discarded solid and semi Solid Wastes, with the exception that 
Solid Waste does not include any of the following wastes: 

a. Hazardous waste, as defined in the State Public Resources Code Section 
40141. 

b. Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the State Radiation Control Law 
(Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 104 of the State Health and 
Safety Code). 

c. Medical waste regulated pursuant to the State Medical Waste Management 
Act (Part 14 (commencing with Section 117600) of Division 104 of the State Health and Safety 
Code). Untreated medical waste shall not be disposed of in a Solid Waste landfill, as defined in 
State Public Resources Code Section 40195.1. Medical waste that has been treated and deemed 
to be Solid Waste shall be regulated pursuant to Division 30 of the State Public Resources Code.  

599

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 10 of 37 

 

 

75. “Solid Waste Collector” means any Person or Persons, firm, partnership, joint 
venture, association or corporation engaged in the collection, transportation or disposal of refuse 
in the City. 

76. “Solid Waste Disposal” includes the collecting, transporting and disposal of Solid 
Waste in the City. 

77. “Solid Waste Disposal Operator” is synonymous with “refuse collector,” 
“contractor” or “collector.” 

78. “Source Separated” means materials, including commingled Recyclable Materials 
or Organic Waste, that have been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at 
the point of generation, for the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials for 
recycling or reuse in order to return them to the economic mainstream in the form of raw material 
for new, reused, or reconstituted products, which meet the quality standards necessary to be used 
in the marketplace, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes 
of the ordinance, Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the generator, 
property owner, property owner’s employee, property manager, or property manager’s employee 
into different containers for the purpose of collection such that Source Separated materials are 
separated from Gray Container Waste or other Solid Waste for the purposes of collection and 
processing.  

79. “Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste” means Source Separated 
Organic Waste that can be placed in a Green Container that is specifically intended for the 
separate collection of Organic Waste by the generator, excluding carpets, Non-Compostable 
Paper, and textiles. 

80. “State” means the State of California. 

81. “Streets” mean the public Streets, ways, alleys and places, except State freeways, 
as the same now or may hereafter exist within the City. 

82. “Supermarket” means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales of 
$2,000,000 or more, and which sells a line of dry grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items and 
some perishable items, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(71). 

83. “Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following: 

a. Supermarket; 

b. Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 
square feet; 

c. Food Service Provider; 

d. Food Distributor; or 

e. Wholesale Food Vendor. 

600

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 11 of 37 

 

 

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible 
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) shall 
apply to this ordinance. 

84. “Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible Food 
Generator that is one of the following: 

a. Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or greater 
than 5,000 square feet; 

b. Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms; 

c. Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds; 

d. Large Venue;  

e. Large Event; 

f. A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria 
facility size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet; or 

g. A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility. 

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible 
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) shall 
apply to this ordinance. 

85. “Transfer Station” means the City’s designated site where collected refuse may be 
transferred to vehicles which will haul the refuse to a disposal site. 

86. “Truck” means any Truck, trailer, semi-trailer, conveyance or vehicle used or 
intended to be used for the purpose of collecting refuse or to haul or transport refuse. 

87.  “White Goods” means large enameled appliances such as refrigerators, ovens, 
and washing machines. 

88. “Wholesale Food Vendor” means a business or establishment engaged in the 
merchant wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and vegetables) is received, 
shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer, warehouse, distributor, or other destination, 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 189852(a)(76). 

89. “Wood Waste” means lumber and wood products but excludes painted wood, 
wood treated with chemicals and pressure treated wood. 

90. “Yard Waste” means landscaping and pruning waste such as leaves, grass, 
weeds, and wood material from trees and shrubs that are less than four feet in length and six 
inches in diameter.  

601

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 12 of 37 

 

 

Sec. 14-1.2. City Manager duties and authority. 

A. The City Manager is hereby authorized and empowered to adjust, settle, or cancel any 
charge required or made under this chapter or any controversy which may arise in the 
administration of this chapter.  

B. The City Manager, or his/her Designee, is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the 
City, any contract, agreement, or other authorization pursuant to this chapter.  

C. The City Manager shall have charge and supervision of the collection and removal of Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste and shall prescribe and establish the routes and 
days for such collection and removal from the various parts of the City so as to conform with the 
provisions of this chapter. The manager shall have the authority to change such routes and days 
from time to time.  

D. When the routes and days of collection of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic 
Waste are established or changed as authorized by this chapter, the City Manager shall give 
notice thereof in such manner as he/she deems best.  

E. The type of watertight, Metal body, or container required in vehicles transporting or 
carrying Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste over the public Streets and the 
method of hauling Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste in vehicles shall be 
subject to the regulation and approval of the City Manager.  

F. The City Manager, or his/her Designee, shall have responsibility for the enforcement of all 
provisions of this chapter. Violations of this chapter and regulations adopted pursuant to this 
chapter will be prosecuted in the same manner as other violations of the City code; however, 
nothing in the regulations shall prevent the authorized agents or deputies from efforts to obtain 
voluntary compliance by way of warning, Notice of Violation, or educational means.  

Sec. 14-1.3. Severability. 

A. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter is for any reason 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions. The City Council of the City of Escondido hereby declares that it would have passed this 
chapter and each section, subsection, clause, and phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that any 
one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional, and would have passed and adopted the same, even though any parts, sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases that may be held invalid had been omitted therefrom. 

B. The provisions of this chapter are intended to augment and be in addition to other 
provisions of the Escondido Municipal Code. Whenever the provisions of this chapter impose a 
greater restriction upon Persons, premises, or practices than are imposed by other provisions of 
the Escondido Municipal Code or applicable law, the provisions of this chapter shall control.  

Sec. 14-1.4. City Council authority. 

A. The City Council will, from time to time, appropriate such funds as are necessary to carry 
out the provisions of this chapter.  

602

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 13 of 37 

 

 

B. The City Council shall have the authority to make other reasonable rules and regulations 
concerning individual collection, disposal, and hauling of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or 
Organic Waste over City Streets by private Persons, or relating to the operation of a Transfer 
Station. 

C. The City Council by resolution shall designate materials to be recycled in accordance with 
this chapter.  

D. Recycling fees and exceptions from recycling fees under this chapter may be established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

ARTICLE 2. CONTAINERS 

Sec. 14-2.1. Use of containers required. 

All accumulations of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste shall be placed in the 
containers as required by this chapter.  

Sec. 14-2.2. Containers. 

A. It shall be the duty of the Occupants of residential, Commercial, and industrial occupancies 
to maintain containers for the accumulation and disposal of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and 
Organic Waste. Such containers must be adequate to contain the amount of refuse ordinarily 
accumulated at such place during the intervals between collection. 

B. All containers or receptacles used for the reception, removal, and disposal of Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste or other refuse shall be water-tight, in good condition, 
clean and free of putrescible residue, constructed of a material of suitable strength and durability, 
shall be tight-seamed and provided with handles and tight-fitting lid or cover, which lid shall be 
and remain affixed to the container at such time as the Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, Organic 
Waste, and other refuse are placed within the container.  

C. Organic Waste, including Yard Wastes, may be deposited in well-constructed containers 
having a capacity not in excess of 96 gallons each (residential) and which, when filled, do not 
collectively exceed a weight of 50 pounds.  

D. No Person shall fill any container with Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, Organic Waste, 
or other refuse above the top of the container to such extent as to permit the contents of any 
container to be blown or otherwise strewn about. Paper bags and Cardboard containers shall not 
be used as containers for the disposal of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, Organic Waste, and 
other refuse.  

E. Where a Franchisee, pursuant to a franchise agreement under this chapter, provides 
carts/containers for refuse, all refuse and recyclables must be containerized only in the 
carts/containers provided by the Franchisee at the cost and under the terms set out in the 
franchise agreement. Containers provided by the Franchisee are the sole property of the 
Franchisee and may not be removed from the residential premises for which they are provided. 
Franchisee shall be responsible for normal wear and tear of such containers. Costs to repair 
damages beyond ordinary wear and tear shall be borne by the resident. Costs for additional 

603

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 14 of 37 

 

 

carts/containers shall be borne by the resident. All costs shall be as set out in the franchise 
agreement 

F. All containers provided by a Franchisee for collection of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, 
and Organic Waste shall be clearly labeled and shall contain the name, address, and phone 
number of the Franchisee. 

G. In Commercial and business zones, containers shall be metal lined, leak proof, 
constructed of noncombustible materials, provided with an impervious lid, and approved by the 
fire department or its representative as providing adequate protection against fire hazard. 

H. Containers which fail to comply with the requirements of this chapter, or which have 
deteriorated to the point where they are no longer in compliance will be marked by the collector 
and will not be collected.  

Sec. 14-2.3. Placement of containers generally. 

A. It shall be the duty of Occupants of residential property to set out or place containers or 
receptacles for collection and removal of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste 
not otherwise transported by the Occupant pursuant to this chapter, as follows: in the street at the 
curb line in front of the premises occupied by the Person for collection by the Franchisee on the 
day specified by the Franchisee for collection of the Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic 
Waste; provided, that the Franchisee may designate some other location for the placement of 
containers and receptacles to expedite collection. 

B. It shall be unlawful to place, deposit, or permit to remain any Solid Waste, Recyclable 
Material, or Organic Waste containers on the curbs, parkways, or sidewalks of any public street 
located in residential areas before 6 p.m. on the day prior to collection, or after 6 p.m. on the day 
of collection after the materials have been removed or collected. 

C. Each owner, Occupant, tenant, or lessee of a house or building used for residential, 
business or Commercial purposes shall maintain supervision and surveillance over the Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste containers and receptacles on the premises, and 
shall maintain the same in a sanitary condition. If the containers or receptacles should not be 
emptied and the contents removed on the date and time scheduled by the Franchisee, they should 
immediately notify the City or the Franchisee to forthwith arrange for the collection and disposal 
of the refuse. 

D. Junk, salvage, and other Solid Waste which exceeds the limitations specified in this 
chapter may, in the discretion of the Franchisee, be scheduled for special collection upon the 
application of the Occupant of the premises. Special collection charges may be assessed by the 
Franchisee for this service. 

E. Notwithstanding subsection B of this ordinance, the City Manager may temporarily allow 
a Franchisee to place a Commercial Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste 
collection container in that portion of a roadway reserved for the parking of vehicles; provided, 
that the Franchisee shall first agree to defend and indemnify the City for any damage, liability, or 
claim in any manner caused by the existence of the container at the allowed location; and provided 

604

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 15 of 37 

 

 

further, that the Franchisee shall agree to comply with any conditions deemed necessary by the 
City Manager to protect the public health, safety, or welfare. 

Sec. 14-2.4. Placement of containers for Recyclable Material. 

A. A Recycling Operator holding a valid Class II franchise may place collection containers on 
public or private property as follows: 

1. On public property with the written permission of the City Manager; 

2. On private property with the written permission of the owner, lessee or Person 
entitled to immediate possession of the property. 

B. All collection containers for Recyclable Materials shall be constructed of a solid material 
and be designed to ensure that the Recyclable Material is confined within the container. All 
collection containers shall contain the name, address and telephone number of the Recycling 
Operator. 

C. Any container for Recyclable Material placed upon public property in violation of this 
chapter may be removed by the City according to the following provisions: 

1. If the container is placed upon a public street or on a public street right-of-way, so 
as to cause a hazard to the traveling public, the container may be immediately removed without 
notice. After removal, the City shall attempt to ascertain the identity of the owner, and if the identity 
of the owner is ascertained, shall notify the owner of the removal and of the owner’s right to 
reclaim the container. 

2. If the container is placed upon public property other than in a manner subject to 
subparagraph 1 of this subsection C, the container may be removed by the City 10 days after the 
posting of a notice to remove on the container. The notice to remove shall be of a size not less 
than eight and one-half by 11 inches and shall contain a statement substantially as follows: 

THIS CONTAINER HAS BEEN PLACED ON PUBLIC PROPERTY 
IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE ESCONDIDO 
MUNICIPAL CODE. IF THIS CONTAINER IS NOT REMOVED ON 
OR BEFORE _____ (DATE 10 DAYS FROM DATE OF POSTING 
OF NOTICE), IT WILL BE REMOVED BY THE CITY, YOU WILL 
BE REQUIRED TO PAY THE COSTS OF REMOVAL. IF YOU DO 
NOT CLAIM THIS CONTAINER FROM THE CITY WITHIN 30 
DAYS AFTER ITS REMOVAL, THE CONTAINER MAY BE 
DESTROYED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF BY THE CITY. 

3. If the container is removed by the City according to this subsection C, the City shall 
retain the container for 30 days, during which it shall use reasonable efforts to identify the owner. 
If the container is not reclaimed by the owner within the 30-day period, the City may destroy or 
otherwise dispose of the container. 

4. If the container is removed by the City, the cost of the removal shall be charged 
against the owner of the container.  

605

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 16 of 37 

 

 

ARTICLE 3. STORAGE, DUMPING, BURYING, BURNING, AND DISPOSAL 

Sec. 14-3.1. Duration of storage. 

It is unlawful for any Person to store or accumulate any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, Organic 
Waste or   other refuse in any container or at any location other than as hereinabove set forth, or 
for any length of time determined by the City Manager or Designee to be an environmental 
concern, public health hazard, or nuisance.   

Sec. 14-3.2. Storage, Dumping, Burning, Burying Prohibited  

A. Other than as herein set forth, it is unlawful and a misdemeanor for any Person to dump, 
burn, bury or otherwise dispose of, or store or accumulate, any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, 
or Organic Waste on any private or public property within the City; provided, however, that Yard 
Waste or Organic Waste may be permitted for the purpose of composting under such 
circumstances and conditions as are established by the City Manager.  

Sec. 14-3.3. Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste disposal. 

A. Solid Waste Disposal operators shall dispose of collected wastes, at contractor’s or 
Franchisee’s expense, at an authorized landfill or Transfer Station in a manner satisfactory to the 
City, and in accordance with all state and local taxes and regulations. 

B. Recyclable Material and Organic Waste operators shall properly dispose of all collected 
waste not recycled in the manner established by this chapter. 

Sec. 14-3.4. Special provisions regarding method of disposal. 

A. The removal of wearing apparel, bedding or other refuse from homes, hospitals or other 
places where highly infectious or contagious diseases have prevailed shall be performed under 
the supervision and discretion of the County Health Officer, and such Solid Waste, Recyclable 
Material, or Organic Waste shall neither be placed in containers or receptacles nor left for regular 
collection and disposal. 

B. Highly flammable or explosive or radioactive Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic 
Waste shall not be placed in containers or receptacles for regular collection and disposal, but shall 
be removed under the supervision of the City Fire Department at the expense of the owner or 
possessor of the material. 

C. Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste containing water or other liquids shall 
be drained before being placed in a container or receptacle. Matter which is subject to 
decomposition shall be wrapped in paper or other material before being placed in a container or 
receptacle. 

D. No battery acid, poisonous, caustic or toxic material, or other substance capable of 
damaging clothing or causing injury to Persons shall be mixed or placed with any Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste which is to be collected, removed or disposed of by the City 
or its agent. Such items shall be removed at the Occupant’s expense only after arrangements have 
been made with the City or its agent for such removal. 

606

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 17 of 37 

 

 

E.        Animal Wastes, as herein defined, shall be treated as Solid Waste unless or until the City 
establishes a program to process it as Organic Waste.  

ARTICLE 4. SCAVENGING, TRANSPORTATION, AND COLLECTION 

Sec. 14-4.1. General prohibitions.  

A. Unless otherwise authorized pursuant to this chapter, it shall be unlawful to remove, 
collect, carry, or transport Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste within the City.  

B. No Persons shall cast, place, sweep or deposit anywhere within the City, any Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste in such manner that it may be carried or deposited by wind 
or rain on any Streets, sidewalk, alley, sewer, storm drain, parkway, or other public place, or into 
any occupied premises within the City.  

C. No Person shall gather, collect, or remove any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, Organic 
Waste, Construction Site Debris, Yard Waste, or other refuse from any receptacle or place in 
which the same may be placed for collection or removal, or interfere with or disturb any such 
receptacle from any location where the same is placed by the owner thereof, without having a 
written contract or franchise with the City to collect and remove Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, 
or Organic Waste, and unless such Person shall be designated by such contract or franchise to 
collect Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste and dispose of the same; provided, 
however, that the Occupant of any premises may remove any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, 
or Organic Waste accumulated on the premises occupied by him and dispose of the same in a 
lawful manner; and further, one who enters into a contract to trim trees, shrubbery, gardens or 
lawns may dispose of the resultant Yard Waste.  

D. No Person, including a contractor or Franchisee authorized to collect Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste shall drop, spill, or permit such material to fall upon private 
grounds or public Streets in the City. 

Sec. 14-4.2. Scavenging prohibited. 

No Person, other than the owner thereof, the owner’s agents or employees, an officer or employee 
of the City, or a Person holding a franchise issued pursuant to this title, or a Franchisee’s agents 
or employees authorized for such purposes, shall do any of the following: 

A. Tamper or meddle with any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste collection 
container; 

B. Tamper or meddle with the contents of any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic 
Waste collection container; 

C. Remove the contents of any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste 
collection container; 

D. Remove any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste collection container from 
the location where the container has been placed by the owner of the container or the owner’s 
agent; or 

607

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 18 of 37 

 

 

E. Remove, tamper, or meddle with, any Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste 
set out for collection, pursuant to the provisions of this title, on private property or on any sidewalk, 
street or public right-of-way. 

Sec. 14-4.3. Special collections available; payment for services. 

In the event any Person within the City desires to have Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or 
Organic Waste collections more frequent than provided by this chapter, or amounts of Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste collected at each collection in excess of the 
maximum amount permitted by this chapter, such Person shall enter into an agreement with one 
contracting with the City for the removal and transportation of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, 
or Organic Waste for the providing of such additional service upon such terms as may be mutually 
agreeable between such Person and the contractor, and payment for such additional service shall 
be made directly to the contractor.  

Sec. 14-4.4. Transfer of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste 

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prevent the transfer of Solid Waste, Recyclable 
Material, or Organic Waste to Transfer Stations within City limits for collection authorized by this 
chapter; provided, that such Transfer Stations should not be conducted in violation of any county, 
State, or federal or City ordinance. Where the City operates a Transfer Station, users of the station 
shall follow the rules established for the station by the City Manager.  

Sec. 14-4.5. Transporting vehicles to have metal-lined, watertight body. 

All vehicles used to collect, remove, transport, or carry Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or 
Organic Waste over the public Streets of the City shall have a metallic-lined and watertight body. 

Sec. 14-4.6. Body of vehicle to be covered when not in use. 

When not actually collecting Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste the body of a 
vehicle used to collect Solid Waste shall be covered with a tarpaulin or other suitable covering in 
order to eliminate offensive odors, flies, or loss of garbage.  

Sec. 14-4.7. No parking of loaded Trucks at night. 

No Person shall leave trailers or Trucks loaded with Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic 
Waste parked for over a 24-hour period on the City Streets.  

Sec. 14-4.8. Collection from parks, playgrounds, government buildings. 

A Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste contractor or Franchisee shall, without 
charge, collect the Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste from public parks, 
playgrounds, and City government buildings from the receptacles in which the same is confined. 
Pickups will be made as requested by City departments.  

608

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 19 of 37 

 

 

Sec. 14-4.9. Unlawful collection. 

A. Unless otherwise authorized pursuant to this chapter, it is unlawful for any Person to allow, 
franchise, or enter into any agreement whatsoever for the collection or transportation of refuse 
within the City. 

B. The following types of collection or transportation of Solid Waste are exempted from the 
contract and franchise requirements of this chapter: 

1. The collection and removal of Yard Waste by individual residents and by 
individuals doing business as professional landscapers, when the collection is directly related to 
work done on the property from which the Yard Waste are collected or removed. 

2. A contractor or Franchisee shall not be required to collect hazardous or dangerous 
materials as part of regular collection activity under any contract or franchise with the City 
pursuant to this chapter. Liquid and dry caustics, acids, biohazardous, flammable, explosive 
materials, insecticides, and similar substances shall not be deposited in collection containers. A 
contract or franchise for the collection of hazardous or dangerous materials shall be handled 
under separate agreement between the City’s contractor, City’s Franchisee, or other qualified 
haulers and the customer in accordance with the provisions of the California Health and Safety 
Code and all other applicable laws pertaining to the collection hazardous or dangerous materials. 

3. Medical waste (as defined in the California Medical Waste Management Act) shall 
not be collected by the City’s contractor or Franchisee. Institutions producing such medical wastes 
shall store, dispose, and handle such material only in the manner as approved by the San Diego 
County Health Officer or their designated deputy in accordance with the California Health and 
Safety Code. 

4. The use of garbage disposal devices authorized by the Uniform Plumbing Code.  

5. The periodic transportation and disposal of Solid Waste generated from the 
Occupant’s property by Occupants to an authorized landfill. 

C. Nothing in this chapter shall preclude from transporting for his or her own benefit 
Recyclable Material generated by the Person or on the Person’s property to an authorized 
Recyclable Material collection facility; provided, however, that nothing in this section shall be 
construed to allow the unauthorized collection or removal of Recyclable Material set aside for 
recycling or pick-up by a franchised Recycling Operator.  

Sec. 14-4.10. Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste removal. 

A. All Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste created, produced, or 
accumulated in or about a dwelling house or place of human habitation in the City shall be 
mandatorily removed from the premises at least once each week, with the exceptions that no 
pickup will occur on Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and New Year’s Day, providing one week’s 
prior notification is made to affected Persons or establishments.  

B. All Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste created, produced, or 
accumulated at hotels, Restaurants, boardinghouses, or other business houses shall be 

609

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 20 of 37 

 

 

mandatorily removed from the premises at least once a week. The San Diego County health 
department may require a greater number of collections per week. It is declared to be unlawful 
and a misdemeanor for the occupancy of any premises described in this section to fail or neglect 
to provide for the removal of refuse. An exemption to the mandatory service may be applied for 
under the condition that the individual or property owner shows proof of use of a City-approved 
Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste collection alternative. Such exemptions may 
be approved by the City Manager or City Manager’s Designee. Each day’s violation of this section 
shall be treated and considered as a separate and distinct offense. 

Sec. 14-4.11. Frequency between collections in residential areas. 

In the residential areas of the City, no more than eight days shall elapse between one collection 
of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste and the next, and the routes of collection 
shall be so arranged that collections will be made on the same days of each succeeding week.  

Sec. 14-4.12. Collections from Commercial and industrial establishments. 

Every Commercial or industrial business may enter into an agreement with the one contracting 
with or franchised by the City for the removal and transportation of Solid Waste, Recyclable 
Material, Organic Waste, Yard Waste, and Construction Site Debris for collection services as may 
be required, and the payment for such services in excess of the amount entered upon the water 
bills rendered by the City shall be made directly to the contractor pursuant to the requirements of 
this chapter.   

ARTICLE 5. MANDATORY SEPARATION OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL AND ORGANIC 
WASTE 

Sec. 14-5.1. Mandatory separation of Recyclable Materials, collection and disposal of Solid Waste 
and recyclables. 

A. It shall be mandatory for all Occupants to separate from Solid Waste, for recycling 
purposes, all Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste and otherwise participate in recycling 
through the collection service provided by an agency or Franchisee contracted with the City. 

B. A responsible Occupant is not prohibited from using alternative collection and disposal 
methods which are not in conflict with the provisions of this code. 

C. Nothing in this section shall preclude any Person from self-hauling Recyclable Materials 
generated by that Person to an authorized recycling facility or operator. An Occupant may 
transport Recyclable Materials generated at its business or property to an authorized recycling 
facility or operator (rather than utilizing an agency or Franchisee contracted with the City). The 
City Manager, or his/her Designee, may restrict or prohibit self-hauling by an Occupant if the City 
Manager, or his/her Designee, determines, after providing notice and an opportunity for a hearing, 
that the Occupant’s self-hauling activities violate the provisions of this chapter or any other 
applicable law or regulation. 

D. Nothing in this section shall preclude any Occupant from selling or exchanging at fair 
market value, for reuse or recycling, recyclables generated from that business, Commercial or 

610

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 21 of 37 

 

 

residential property; or from donating to another entity for reuse or recycling recyclables 
generated from that business, Commercial or residential property. 

E. It is unlawful for any Person to fail to separate Recyclable Material. Violations of this 
section shall be punishable as provided in this code. Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the 
City from obtaining voluntary compliance with the provisions of this section through educational 
programs, issuance of warning notices, or other means.  

Sec. 14-5.2. Single Family Organic Waste Generators 

Single Family Organic Waste Generators shall: 

A.       Subscribe to City’s Organic Waste collection services for all Organic Waste generated as 
described in this ordinance. The City shall have the right to review the number and size of a 
generator’s containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection 
service for proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Single-Family 
generators shall adjust its service level for its collection services as requested by the City. 
Generators may additionally manage their Organic Waste by preventing or reducing their Organic 
Waste, managing Organic Waste on site, and/or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 
14 CCR Section 18984.9(c). 

B.  Participate in the City’s Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated 
materials in designated containers, as described in this chapter, and shall not place Prohibited 
Container Contaminants in collection containers.   Generator shall place Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste, including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials in the Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray Container.  
Generators shall not place materials designated for the Gray Container into the Green Container 
or Blue Container.  

Sec. 14-5.3. Organic Waste Generators that are Commercial Businesses, including Multifamily 
Residential Dwellings 

Generators that are Commercial Businesses, including Multifamily Residential Dwellings, shall: 

A.  Subscribe to the City’s three-container collection services and comply with requirements 
of this ordinance, except Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-Hauler requirements in this 
ordinance.  The City shall have the right to review the number and size of a generator’s containers 
and frequency of collection to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of collection 
service for proper separation of materials and containment of materials; and, Commercial 
Businesses shall adjust their service level for their collection services as requested by the City. 

B.  Except Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-Hauler requirements of this ordinance, 
participate in the City’s Organic Waste collection service(s) by placing designated materials in 
designated containers as described below. 

1. Generator shall place Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste, 
including Food Waste, in the Green Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in the 
Blue Container; and Gray Container Waste in the Gray Container. Generator shall not place 
materials designated for the Gray Container into the Green Container or Blue Container. 

611

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 22 of 37 

 

 

C.  Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of collection containers 
with sufficient labels or colors (conforming with subparts G(4)(a) and G(4)(b) below) for 
employees, contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with the City’s Blue Container, Green 
Container, and Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per the Commercial 
Businesses’ instructions to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in accordance with 
section K of this ordinance. 

D.  Excluding Multifamily Residential Dwellings, provide containers for the collection of Source 
Separated Green Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials in all 
indoor and outdoor areas where disposal containers are provided for customers, for materials 
generated by that business. Such containers do not need to be provided in restrooms. If a 
Commercial Business does not generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type 
of container, then the business does not have to provide that particular container in all areas 
where disposal containers are provided for customers. Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), 
the containers provided by the business shall have either: 

1. A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided through the collection 
service provided by the City, with either lids conforming to the color requirements or bodies 
conforming to the color requirements or both lids and bodies conforming to color requirements. A 
Commercial Business is not required to replace functional containers, including containers 
purchased prior to January 1, 2022, that do not comply with the requirements of 14 CCR Section 
18984.9 prior to the end of the useful life of those containers, or prior to January 1, 2036, 
whichever comes first, or 

2. Container labels that include language or graphic images, or both, indicating the 
primary material accepted and the primary materials prohibited in that container, or containers 
with imprinted text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials accepted and primary 
materials prohibited in the container. Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.8, the container labeling 
requirements are required on new containers commencing January 1, 2022. 

E.  Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(b), Multifamily Residential Dwellings are not 
required to comply with container placement requirements or labeling requirement in subsection 
G(4) of this ordinance.   

F.  To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or other measures, 
excluding Multifamily Residential Dwellings, prohibit employees from placing materials in a 
container not designated for those materials per the City’s Blue Container, Green Container, and 
Gray Container collection service or, if self-hauling, per the Commercial Businesses’ instructions 
to support its compliance with its self-haul program, in accordance with section K of this ordinance.   

G.  Excluding Multifamily Residential Dwellings, periodically inspect Blue Containers, Green 
Containers, and Gray Containers for contamination and inform employees if containers are 
contaminated and of the requirements to keep contaminants out of those containers pursuant to 
14 CCR Section 18984.9(b)(3). 

H.  Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and customers about 
Organic Waste Recovery requirements and about proper sorting of Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials. 

612

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 23 of 37 

 

 

I.  Provide education information before or within 14 days of occupation of the premises to 
new tenants that describes requirements to keep Source Separated Green Container Organic 
Waste and Source Separated Recyclable Materials separate from Gray Container Waste (when 
applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing their use at each property. 

J.  Provide or arrange access for the City or its agent to their properties during all Inspections 
conducted in accordance with section L of this ordinance to confirm compliance with the 
requirements of this ordinance. 

K.  Accommodate and cooperate with the City’s Remote Monitoring program for Inspection of 
the contents of containers for Prohibited Container Contaminants, which may be implemented at 
a later date, to evaluate generator’s compliance with subsection G(2). The Remote Monitoring 
program shall involve installation of Remote Monitoring equipment on or in the Blue Containers, 
Green Containers, and Gray Containers. 

L.  At Commercial Business’s option and subject to any approval required from the City, 
implement a Remote Monitoring program for Inspection of the contents of its Blue Containers, 
Green Containers, and Gray Containers for the purpose of monitoring the contents of containers 
to determine appropriate levels of service and to identify Prohibited Container Contaminants. 
Generators may install Remote Monitoring devices on or in the Blue Containers, Green 
Containers, and Gray Containers subject to written notification to or approval by the City or its 
Designee. 

M.  If a Commercial Business wants to self-haul, meet the Self-Hauler requirements in section 
K of this ordinance. 

N.  Nothing in this section prohibits a generator from preventing or reducing waste generation, 
managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18984.9(c). 

O.  Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generators shall comply with Food Recovery requirements, pursuant to subsection I of this 
ordinance. 

Sec. 14-5.4. Waivers for Organic Waste Generators 

A.  De Minimis Waivers. The City may waive a Commercial Business’ obligation (including 
Multifamily Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the Organic Waste requirements 
of this ordinance if the Commercial Business provides documentation that the business generates 
below a certain amount of Organic Waste material as described in this section. Commercial 
Businesses requesting a de minimis waiver shall: 

1. Submit an application specifying the services that they are requesting a waiver 
from and provide documentation as noted in this section.  

2. Provide documentation that either: 

613

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 24 of 37 

 

 

a. The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is 
two cubic yards or more per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Green Container 
comprises less than 20 gallons per week per applicable container of the business’ total waste; or, 

b. The Commercial Business’ total Solid Waste collection service is 
less than two cubic yards per week and Organic Waste subject to collection in a Green Container 
comprises less than 10 gallons per week per applicable container of the business’ total waste. 

3. Notify the City if circumstances change such that Commercial Business’ Organic 
Waste exceeds threshold required for waiver, in which case waiver will be rescinded. 

4. Provide written verification of eligibility for de minimis waiver every 5 years, if the 
City has approved de minimis waiver. 

B.  Physical space waivers. The City may waive a Commercial Business’ or property owner’s 
obligations (including Multifamily Residential Dwellings) to comply with some or all of the 
Recyclable Materials and/or Organic Waste collection service requirements if the City has 
evidence from its own staff, a hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that 
the premises lacks adequate space for the collection containers required for compliance with the 
Organic Waste collection requirements. A Commercial Business or property owner may request 
a physical space waiver through the following process:  

1. Submit an application form specifying the type(s) of collection services for which 
they are requesting a compliance waiver. 

2. Provide documentation that the premises lacks adequate space for Blue 
Containers and/or Green Containers including documentation from its hauler, licensed architect, 
or licensed engineer.  

3. Provide written verification to the City that it is still eligible for physical space waiver 
every five years, if the City has approved application for a physical space waiver. 

C.  Review and Approval of Waivers by City.  The City Manager or the City Manager’s 
Designee shall be responsible for review and determination of any waiver submitted to the City 
for approval. 

Sec. 14-5.5. Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators 

A.  Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3, Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must 
comply with the requirements of this section I commencing on January 1, 2022, and Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the requirements of this section I 
commencing on January 1, 2024.  

B.  Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing for food 
to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the Large Venue or Large Event 
to comply with the requirements of this section, commencing on January 1, 2024. 

C.  Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following requirements:  

614

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 25 of 37 

 

 

1. Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would otherwise be 
disposed. 

2. Contract with, or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery Organizations 
or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible Food for Food Recovery; or, (ii) 
acceptance of the Edible Food that the Commercial Edible Food Generator self-hauls to the Food 
Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.  

3. Shall not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by a 
Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service. 

4. Allow City’s designated enforcement entity or designated third party enforcement 
entity to access the premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.4.  

5. Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise specified in 14 
CCR Section 18991.4: 

a. A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collects or 
receives its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR 
Section 18991.3(b). 

b. A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 14 CCR 
Section 18991.3(b). 

c. A record of the following information for each of those Food Recovery 
Services or Food Recovery Organizations: 

i. The name, address and contact information of the Food Recovery 
Service or Food Recovery Organization. 

ii. The types of food that will be collected by or self-hauled to the Food 
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization. 

iii. The established frequency that food will be collected or self-hauled. 

iv. The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per month, 
collected or self-hauled to a Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization for Food 
Recovery. 

6. Provide an annual Food Recovery report to the City: 

a. No later than July 1, 2022 for Tier One Commercial Edible Food 
Generators, and annually by July 1 thereafter; 

b. No later than July 1, 2024 for Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generators, and annually by July 1 thereafter; 

c. Each annual Food Recovery report shall include all records required in e(i); 

615

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 26 of 37 

 

 

d. Each annual Food Recovery report shall include the amount and type of 
Edible Food that was not accepted by Food Recovery Organizations or services for donation.  

D.  Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to limit or conflict with the protections provided 
by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 2017, the Federal Good Samaritan Act, 
or share table and school food donation guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of 2017 (approved 
by the Governor of the State of California on September 25, 2017, which added Article 13 
[commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Education 
Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health and Safety Code, relating to food safety, as 
amended, supplemented, superseded and replaced from time to time). 

Sec. 14-5.6. Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations  

A.  Food Recovery Services collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from Commercial 
Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 CCR Section 
18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise specified by 14 CCR Section 
18991.5(a)(1): 

1.   The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edible Food 
Generator from which the service collects Edible Food. 

2.  The quantity in pounds of Edible Food collected from each Commercial Edible 
Food Generator per month. 

3.  The quantity in pounds of Edible Food transported to each Food Recovery 
Organization per month. 

4.  The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Organization 
that the Food Recovery Service that transports Edible Food to for Food Recovery. 

B.  Food Recovery Organizations collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from 
Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement established under 14 
CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following records, or as otherwise specified by 14 
CCR Section 18991.5(a)(2): 

1. The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial Edible Food 
Generator from which the organization receives Edible Food. 

2. The quantity in pounds of Edible Food received from each Commercial Edible 
Food Generator per month. 

3. The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery Service that 
the organization receives Edible Food from for Food Recovery. 

C.  Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services shall inform generators about 
California and Federal Good Samaritan Food Donation Act protection in written communications, 
such as in their contract or agreement established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b).  

616

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 27 of 37 

 

 

D.  Commencing on January 1, 2022, and annually thereafter, Food Recovery Organizations 
and Food Recovery Services that have their primary address physically located in the City and 
contract with or have written agreements with one or more Commercial Edible Food Generators 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) shall report to the City the total pounds of Edible Food 
recovered in the previous calendar year from the Tier One and Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generators they have established a contract or written agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18991.3(b).  

E.  Food Recovery Capacity Planning: In order to support Edible Food Recovery capacity 
planning assessments or other studies conducted by the City, or its designated entity, Food 
Recovery Services and Food Recovery Organizations operating in the City shall provide 
information and consultation to the City, upon request, regarding existing, or proposed new or 
expanded, Food Recovery capacity that could be accessed by the City and its Commercial Edible 
Food Generators. A Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization contacted by the City 
shall respond to such request for information within 60 days, unless a shorter timeframe is 
otherwise specified by the City. 

Sec. 14-5.7. Requirements for Haulers  

A.  Exclusive franchised hauler providing residential, Commercial, or industrial Organic Waste 
collection services to generators within the City’s boundaries shall meet the following 
requirements and standards as a condition of approval of a contract, agreement, or other 
authorization with the City to collect Organic Waste: 

1. Through written notice to the City annually on or before January 1, identify the 
facilities to which they will transport Organic Waste including facilities for Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste. 

2. Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Green 
Container Organic Waste to a facility, operation, activity, or property that recovers Organic Waste 
as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, Article 2. 

3. Obtain approval from the City to haul Organic Waste, unless it is transporting 
Source Separated Organic Waste to a Community Composting site or lawfully transporting 
Construction Waste or Construction Site Debris in a manner that complies with 14 CCR Section 
18989.1 and the City’s municipal code. 

B.  Exclusive franchised hauler authorization to collect Organic Waste shall comply with 
education, equipment, signage, container labeling, container color, contamination monitoring, 
reporting, and other requirements contained within its franchise agreement, permit, license, or 
other agreement entered into with City. 

Sec. 14-5.8. Requirements for Facility Operators and Community Composting Operations 

A.  Owners of facilities, operations, and activities that recover Organic Waste, including, but 
not limited to, Compost facilities, in-vessel digestion facilities, and publicly-owned treatment works 
shall, upon City’s request, provide information regarding available and potential new or expanded 
capacity at their facilities, operations, and activities, including information about throughput and 

617

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 28 of 37 

 

 

permitted capacity necessary for planning purposes. Entities contacted by the City shall respond 
within 60 days. 

B.  Community Composting operators, upon City request, shall provide information to the City 
to support Organic Waste capacity planning, including, but not limited to, an estimate of the 
amount of Organic Waste anticipated to be handled at the Community Composting operation. 
Entities contacted by the City shall respond within 60 days. 

Sec. 14-5.9. Self-Hauler Requirements 

A.  Self-Haulers shall source separate all Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste generated 
on-site from Solid Waste in a manner consistent with 14 CCR Sections 18984.1 and 18984.2, or 
shall haul Organic Waste to a High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility as specified in 
14 CCR Section 18984.3. 

B.  Self-Haulers shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility that 
recovers those materials; and haul their Source Separated Green Container Organic Waste to a 
Solid Waste facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Source Separated 
Organic Waste. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may haul Organic Waste to a High Diversion Organic 
Waste Processing Facility. 

C.  Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses (including Multifamily Residential 
Dwellings) shall keep a record of the amount of Organic Waste delivered to each Solid Waste 
facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Organic Waste; this record shall 
be subject to Inspection by the City. The records shall include the following information: 

1. Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the waste. 

2. The amount of material in cubic yards or tons transported by the generator to each 
entity. 

3. If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-site, or employs 
scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler’s vehicle in a manner that allows it to determine the 
weight of materials received, the Self-Hauler is not required to record the weight of material but 
shall keep a record of the entities that received the Organic Waste.  

D.  Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses (including Multifamily Self-Haulers) shall 
provide information collected in subsection K(3) to the City.   

E.  A residential Organic Waste Generator that self-hauls Organic Waste is not required to 
record or report information in subparts K(3) and (4). 

Sec. 14-5.10.  Inspections and Investigations by City. 

A.  City representatives and/or its designated entity, including Designees are authorized to 
conduct Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection container, 
collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility for materials collected from 
generators, or Source Separated materials to confirm compliance with this ordinance by Organic 
Waste Generators, Commercial Businesses (including Multifamily Residential Dwellings), 

618

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 29 of 37 

 

 

property owners, Commercial Edible Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery 
Services, and Food Recovery Organizations, subject to applicable laws. This section does not 
allow City to enter the interior of a private residential property for Inspection. For the purposes of 
inspecting Commercial Business containers for compliance with subsection G(2) or H(2) of this 
ordinance, City may conduct container Inspections for Prohibited Container Contaminants using 
Remote Monitoring, and Commercial Businesses shall accommodate and cooperate with the 
Remote Monitoring pursuant to section G or H of this ordinance.  

B.  Regulated entity shall provide or arrange for access during all Inspections (with the 
exception of residential property interiors) and shall cooperate with the City’s employee or its 
designated entity/Designee during such Inspections and investigations.  Such Inspections and 
investigations may include confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, Edible 
Food Recovery activities, records, or any other requirement of this ordinance described herein.  
Failure to provide or arrange for: (i) access to an entity’s premises; (ii) installation and operation 
of Remote Monitoring equipment; or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or investigation is a 
violation of this ordinance and may result in penalties described.   

C.  Any records obtained by a City during its Inspections, Remote Monitoring, and other 
reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure exemptions of the Public 
Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section 6250 et seq.  

D.  City representatives, its designated entity, and/or Designee are authorized to conduct any 
Inspections, Remote Monitoring, or other investigations as reasonably necessary to further the 
goals of this ordinance, subject to applicable laws.   

E.  City shall receive written complaints from Persons regarding an entity that may be 
potentially non-compliant with SB 1383 Regulations, including receipt of anonymous complaints.  

Sec. 14-5.11.  Enforcement. 

A.  Violation of any provision of this ordinance shall constitute grounds for issuance of a Notice 
of Violation and assessment of a fine by the City’s Enforcement Official or representative. 
Enforcement Actions under this ordinance are issuance of an administrative citation and 
assessment of a fine. The City’s procedures on imposition of administrative fines are hereby 
incorporated in their entirety, as modified from time to time, and shall govern the imposition, 
enforcement, collection, and review of administrative citations issued to enforce this ordinance 
and any rule or regulation adopted pursuant to this ordinance, except as otherwise indicated in 
this ordinance.   

B.  Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or prosecution as 
misdemeanor or infraction. The City may pursue civil actions in the California courts to seek 
recovery of unpaid administrative citations.  The City may choose to delay court action until such 
time as a sufficiently large number of violations, or cumulative size of violations exist such that 
court action is a reasonable use of City staff and resources. 

 

 

619

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 30 of 37 

 

 

ARTICLE 6. CONTRACTS AND FRANCHISES 

Note 

*State law reference—Authority to contract for collection or disposal of Solid Waste, Public 
Resources Code 49300  

Sec. 14-6.1. Contract or Franchise for Solid Waste collection – Establishment of charges. 

A. Disposal and collection of Solid Waste and recycling of Recyclable Materials and Organic 
Waste are services to be performed in the City in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. 
The City Council may, from time to time, issue one or more exclusive or semi-exclusive contracts 
or franchises to those Persons or entities meeting the criteria of this chapter, and such other 
standards as may be established by resolution of the City Council, regarding the collection of 
Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste from Commercial, business, industrial and 
residential properties. So long as a contract or franchise remains in force, collection of material 
provided for herein may be made only in accordance with the terms and conditions of this chapter 
and the applicable contract or franchise. The fees and charges for such collection, removal, and 
disposal services shall be those which the City Council may, from time to time, hereafter approve 
by resolution.  

B. Except as specified herein, no Person shall collect, remove, or dispose of any Solid Waste,  
Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste within the City, nor transport the same over any public 
Streets or rights-of-way, unless a contract or franchise to do so has first been approved from the 
City Council. The contractor or Franchisee shall at all times comply with the provisions of this 
chapter, and all other applicable regulations and laws. For purposes of this chapter, collection 
does not include the random picking up of loose litter from public places or places open to the 
public. 

C. Collection, removal, and disposal of hazardous Solid Waste is not subject to the provisions 
of this chapter. 

D. The City Council shall not issue more than two Class I franchises or one Class II franchise, 
unless the City Council finds that public convenience and necessity require additional franchises.  

Sec. 14-6.2. Power of City Council to issue contracts or franchises for disposal and collection. 

The City Council shall have the power to issue and determine the terms of any contract or 
franchise for the collection and disposal as provided for in this chapter. The City Council may 
require as bond from a contractor or Franchisee in an amount determined by the City Council for 
the faithful performance of such franchise. Contracts or franchises may be exclusive or semi-
exclusive as determined by the City Council. Contracts or franchises may be issued with or without 
competitive bidding.  In issuing contracts or franchises for Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or 
Organic Waste collection and disposal, the City Council shall not be required to issue a contract 
or Franchise based upon the offer of lower or lowest rates, but shall be free to issue contracts or 
franchises to the Persons or entities deemed best suited to comply with the terms of this chapter 
and such other terms and conditions imposed by the City Council. In addition to all other remedies 
for violation of this chapter or default by a contractor or Franchisee, the City Council may terminate 

620

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 31 of 37 

 

 

a contract or revoke a franchise after a hearing called on 10 days’ written notice to the contractor 
or Franchisee.  

Sec. 14-6.3. Contractor’s or Franchisee’s employees. 

A. The contractor or Franchisee must guarantee a top quality of service by industry 
standards; competent, qualified, sober, identifiable, and uniformed personnel who serve the public 
in a courteous, helpful, and impartial manner. 

B. The City may, at its option, require fingerprinting of the contractor’s or Franchisee’s 
employees whose service will cause them to enter onto or work in close proximity to private 
property. 

C. Any employee driving a contractor’s or Franchisee’s vehicle(s) shall at all times have in 
their possession a valid and appropriate vehicle operator’s license issued by the State of 
California. 

D. The contractor or Franchisee and its employees shall be required to wear clean identifiable 
uniforms when engaged in refuse collection service on public Streets.  

Sec. 14-6.4. Franchise classification. 

The City Council may issue franchises based on the size and nature of the Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste collecting process as follows: 

A. Class I Franchise. A Class I franchise may be issued to Solid Waste Disposal operators 
who provide full-time residential and/or commercial collection services over established routes. 
Class I providers may also provide other Solid Waste collection services, such as the provision of 
temporary dump boxes, roll-off binds and temporary containers, but shall not provide Class II 
services unless a separate Class II franchise has been issued. 

B. Class II Franchise. A Class II franchise may be issued for recycling operations. No Person 
shall conduct recycling operations or be a Recycling Operator unless the Person has been issued 
a Class II franchise.  

Sec. 14-6.5. Minimum requirements for contracts or franchises. 

A. As a condition of the City issuing a contract or franchise, the contractor or Franchisee shall 
agree to appear and defend all actions against the City arising out of the exercise of the contract 
or franchise, and shall indemnify and hold the City, including its officers, employees and agents 
harmless of and from all claims, demands, actions, or causes of action of every kind and 
description resulting directly or indirectly, arising out of, or in any way connected with the exercise 
of the services under the contract or franchise, including, but not by way of limitation, any act or 
omission of any officer, employee, or agent of contractor or Franchisee. 

B. The contractor or Franchisee shall obtain and keep in force, during the term of the 
franchise, public liability and bodily injury insurance in an amount not less than $5,000,000 for the 
injuries or death to more than one Person arising out of any one accident or occurrence, unless 
a lesser amount is permitted by the City Council; and workers’ compensation insurance covering 

621

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 32 of 37 

 

 

all employees of the contract or franchise holder. Copies of such policies, or certificates 
evidencing such policies, shall be filed with the City Manager. The City shall be named an 
additional insured on all policies. All policies shall contain a provision requiring a 90-day notice to 
be given to the City prior to cancellation, modification or reduction of limits. The amounts of public 
liability insurance for bodily injury and property damage shall be subject to review and adjustment 
by the City Council. 

C. The contractor’s or Franchisee’s Trucks, trailers, or other vehicles must comply with the 
regulations as set forth in the California Motor Vehicle Code, all other applicable California codes, 
and this chapter. 

D. The contractor or Franchisee must agree to perform the terms of the contract or franchise 
in such a manner as to comply with all valid and applicable local and State laws and regulations 
pertaining to the collection, storage and transportation of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and 
Organic Waste. The contractor or Franchisee shall also comply with all other ordinances and 
regulations of the City and applicable laws and regulations of the County of San Diego and the 
State of California, and shall obtain and keep in force all required franchises and business 
licenses.  

E. Additional Requirements for Franchisees. 

1. Bulk Items. Class I Franchisees shall be required to collect and dispose of large 
bulk items on a 24-hour notice with a maximum charge and any limitations to be set by City 
Council resolution. 

2. Community Cleanup. Class I Franchisees shall undertake an annual community 
cleanup in accordance with criteria established by the City. 

Sec. 14-6.6. Contract or Franchise issuance. 

A. The City Manager shall investigate the information contained in the contract or franchise 
application and prepare a report to the City Council as to whether the applicant is capable of 
complying with the provisions of this chapter and the rules and regulations of the City. After the 
completion of the investigation, the City Manager shall schedule the matter for a public hearing 
before the City Council. Notice of the hearing shall be given to the applicant and shall be published 
in a newspaper of general circulation at least 10 days prior to the date of the hearing. 

B. The City Council may by resolution authorize the City Manager or the City Manager’s 
Designee to execute a contract or franchise agreement after the required public hearing. 

C. A contract or franchise may be issued for any period of time up to 10 years. A contract or 
franchise may be renewed pursuant to the procedures set forth in the contract or franchise 
agreement. In the case of a franchise, the Franchisee shall pay an annual franchise fee in an 
amount established by the franchise agreement. 

D. No assignment or transfer of a contract or franchise pursuant to this chapter, or any right 
occurring under such contract or franchise, shall be made in whole or in part by the contractor or 
Franchisee without the prior express consent of the City Council. In the event any assignment or 
transfer is authorized by the City Council, the assignee shall assume the liability and all other 

622

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 33 of 37 

obligations of the contractor or Franchisee. The City Council may approve or deny the transfer at 
its sole discretion. 

E. A contract or franchise may be revoked:

1. At the option of the City Council, in the event there is a change of ownership of any
kind or nature of the operating company, unless approval therefor has been obtained in writing 
from the City Council; or 

2. If it is determined by the City Manager that the contractor or Franchisee has not
complied with the provisions of this chapter and all other applicable statutes, ordinances, rules 
and regulations, the City Manager shall notify the contractor or Franchisee in writing of 
noncompliance and shall order compliance within 30 days. If noncompliance is not corrected, the 
City Council, after a hearing, shall be empowered to cancel the contract or franchise or take such 
other action as the City Council shall determine. 

F. When considering whether to issue a contract or franchise under this chapter, the City
Council may take into consideration the service performance of the existing Solid Waste,
Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste disposal operator or operators, or Recycling Operator or
operators, and may give preference to existing providers.

Sec. 14-6.7. Charges for service. 

A. When issuing an initial or renewed contract or franchise, the City Council shall approve
the charges for services. After approval of the charge by the City Council, a charge for the
collection of refuse shall be imposed by the contractor or Franchisee on the owner or Person in
control of each residential, Commercial, or individual property, or other entity subscribing to Solid
Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste collection service. The amount of such charges
may be fixed and changed from time to time by the contractor or Franchisee after approval by the
City Council.

B. All revisions in the rate or charge schedule must be submitted to the City Council for
review, and action must be approved by the City Council. The application for rate adjustment shall
be made by the contractor or Franchisee 90 days prior to the date of the proposed increase. The
City shall act thereon within the 90-day period. Any new rate adjustment will have a maximum
increase based on 100 percent of the Consumer Price Index and any unusual extraordinary cost
resulting in an increase to the contractor or Franchisee in the cost of providing service since the
last rate increase or establishment. Rates shall not be adjusted more than once annually, except
to accommodate unforeseen circumstances justifying an increase.

Sec. 14-6.8. Collection in emergencies. 

In emergencies such as the breakdown of equipment or other unforeseen or unpreventable 
circumstances, or where in the judgment of the City Manager the particular situation justifies such 
action, the City Manager may issue limited or temporary contracts or franchises to private Persons 
or entities to perform any of the services covered by this chapter, subject to such reasonable fees, 
charges and conditions as the circumstances may warrant and as the parties involved may agree 
upon; provided, that such fees and charges received from, or paid to, any private Persons or 

623

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 34 of 37 

 

 

corporations under this section for any period exceeding 15 days’ duration shall be approved by 
the City Council.  

Sec. 14-6.9. Hours of collection. 

The contractor or Franchisee shall not collect Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic 
Waste within a residential area between the hours of 6 p.m. and 6:30 a.m. the next day. With prior 
written permission of the City Manager, this time may be changed.  

Sec. 14-6.10. Spillage. 

The contractor or Franchisee shall exercise all reasonable care and diligence in collecting Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Material, and Organic Waste so as to prevent spilling, scattering or dropping 
refuse, and shall immediately, at the time of occurrence, clean up any spillage.  

Sec. 14-6.11. Use of vehicles. 

Any Persons who desire to operate privately owned Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, and 
Organic Waste collection vehicles under the provisions of this chapter shall provide that their 
vehicles are metallic-lined, watertight, and are provided with a tight cover. The City Manager shall 
require the contractor or franchise holder to remove from service or repair those vehicles that 
allow or permit offensive odors to escape and/or refuse to be blown, dropped, or spilled therefrom. 
The City Council may, when issuing a franchise for a Recycling Operator, establish requirements 
based upon the different nature and type of the materials collected.  

Sec. 14-6.12. Equipment required. 

Each vehicle of the contractor or Franchisee shall at all times have in the cab the registration of 
the Truck, certificate of insurance card, and an identification card with the name of whom to 
telephone in case of an accident. Each vehicle shall also be equipped with a five-pound fire 
extinguisher certified by the California State Fire Marshall.  

Sec. 14-6.13. Truck inspection. 

All of the contractor’s or Franchisee’s equipment shall be inspected at the discretion of the City 
Manager or any other appropriate agency at the point of operation as specified in the contractor 
or franchise.  

Sec. 14-6.14. Specifications and restrictions on collection vehicles. 

A. Unless otherwise specifically provided in the contract or franchise agreement, all vehicles 
used for Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste collection within the City shall: 

1. Be completely enclosed with a rigid, nonabsorbent cover while transporting Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste in or through the City. “Completely enclosed with 
a rigid, nonabsorbent cover” means that Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste shall 
not be visible from the street nor shall any of the substance be permitted to leak, spill or become 
deposited along the public Streets. 

624

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 35 of 37 

 

 

2. All Trucks or vehicles used in the course of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or 
Organic Waste collection shall be painted the same colors as approved by the City Manager, and 
identified by Truck numerals and company logo. The equipment used shall be kept clean and in 
good repair at all times. 

B. Notwithstanding subsection A, the specifications of vehicles used by Recycling Operators 
may be separately established by the City Council and specified in the contract or franchise 
agreement.  

Sec. 14-6.15. Inquiries and complaints. 

The Class I Franchisees shall provide an office with a full-time manager with toll-free telephone 
service from the entire City. Telephones will be attended by competent personnel from 8 a.m. to 
5 p.m. on regular workdays, and an answering service provided after hours, weekends and 
holidays.  

Sec. 14-6.16. Inspection of revenue records. 

Contractor or Franchisee shall keep and preserve during the term of the contract or franchise 
agreement full, complete, and accurate records of: 

A. Customer accounts in a manner that clearly identifies the number of customers within the 
City and subject to the contract or franchise fee. These records are subject to review by the City 
Manager at any reasonable time. 

B. Specific cost items, such as disposal fees, fuel and similar items that may provide the 
basis for future rate increases due to unusual circumstances. These records are subject to review 
by the City Manager at any time City staff has been asked to review special rate increase 
requests.  

ARTICLE 7. FEES AND CHARGES 

Sec. 14-7.1. Council to establish. 

For the collection services of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste, as provided in 
this chapter, and for the making available of such services, there shall be charged to each Single-
Family residence, each residential unit in every multiple dwelling, exclusive of hotels, each trailer 
park and each Place of Business and hotel, the sums necessary to cover the costs of such 
collection and the providing of such services, as such sums may be determined from time to time 
by written resolution of the City Council.  

Sec. 14-7.2. Basis for charges. 

All charges provided by this chapter shall be fair and reasonable considering the services 
rendered and the cost to the City for providing and maintaining the services described and 
required by this chapter.  

 

625

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 36 of 37 

 

 

Sec. 14-7.3. Liability for payment. 

The obligation to pay the charges provided in this chapter shall be upon the Person or Persons 
in whose name the water and/or sewer service is registered for each place of residence or 
business so served.  

Sec. 14-7.4. Payment with water and/or sewer bills. 

The charges referred to in this chapter, as determined by written resolution of the City Council, 
may be entered upon the water and/or sewer bills rendered by the City and shall be paid at the 
same time and place such water and/or sewer bills are paid.  

Sec. 14-7.5. Direct payment to contractor by nonusers of water. 

Any Occupant of any Single-Family residence or residential unit in any multiple dwelling, who 
does not receive water service from the City, or any Place of Business or hotel located within the 
City which does not receive such service, shall pay the sums so determined by the City Council 
by written resolution directly to the Person having a contract with the City for the collection and 
disposal of Solid Waste, Recyclable Material, or Organic Waste.  

Sec. 14-7.6. Mandatory collection and payment of charges. 

A. The accumulation of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, Organic Waste, and other refuse 
constitutes a menace to the health, welfare and safety of inhabitants of the City, and the orderly 
and regular collection of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, Organic Waste, and other refuse is 
necessary to prevent the spread of disease, the creation of health menace and fire hazards, and 
to further the use of reusable resources. 

B. The City Council finds and determines that the periodic collection of Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste  as provided herein, from all residences and places of 
business in the City benefits all Occupants of property within the City; therefore, all Occupants 
shall dispose of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste through the regular 
collection service, or recycling service, or a provider permitted by this chapter and shall be liable 
for the payment to the City, or to the contractor or Franchisee, of Solid Waste, Recyclable 
Materials, and Organic Waste collection charges including charges for contracted or franchised 
recycling services as may from time to time be approved by the City Council. 

C. Every Occupant of the City shall be billed periodically for the charges established pursuant 
to this chapter. Should any Person fail, refuse, or neglect to pay such bill within 30 days after the 
day that the same is rendered, then a penalty equal to 10 percent of the amount of the bill may 
be added to the bill and the sum, together with any costs incurred by the contractor or Franchisee, 
may be recovered by the contractor or Franchisee, as permitted by law. 

D. Should the Occupant of any property fail or refuse to pay the charge established in 
accordance with the provisions of this chapter, then the contractor or Franchisee shall advise the 
City Manager of such refusal. The failure to pay may, except for the provisions hereof, result in 
the non-collection of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste, which condition the 
City Council determines and declares to be a threat to the public health, safety, and welfare, and 
which condition is declared to be, if permitted to exist, a public nuisance. In the event that there 

626

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-15 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 37 of 37 

 

 

is nonpayment, the City Manager shall direct the contractor or Franchisee to make collection, and 
the expenses and charges of collection, including penalties, may be assessed against the 
property as provided by law or otherwise collected by the City. The contractor or Franchisee shall 
continue to collect Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste when directed to do so 
by the City Manager even though there is nonpayment. 

E. All costs incurred by the City and paid by the City to the contractor or Franchisee shall be 
recoverable by the City and charged against the property from which the Solid Waste, Recyclable 
Materials, and Organic Waste was collected. The City Manager shall notify all parties concerned 
of the cost of any such collection by directing a letter to the Occupant of the property at the address 
shown on the latest tax roll. Any such notice shall be given 10 days prior to a public hearing and 
City Council shall review and approve an assessment against the property for the costs incurred 
in abating the public nuisance. If the total assessment determined and confirmed by the City 
Council is not paid within 10 days after the determination by the City Council, then there shall be 
recorded in the office of the city recorder a statement of the total balance due, together with the 
legal description of the property affected. From and after the date of such recording, the balance 
due shall be a special assessment against the parcel plus a any administrative fees. The 
assessment shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as county taxes are 
collected, and shall be subject to the same penalties and to the same procedure and sale in case 
of delinquency as provided for ordinary county taxes. All laws applicable to the levy, collection 
and enforcement of county taxes shall be applicable to such special assessment.  

Sec. 14-7.8. Payment under protest. 

Any Occupant of any premises, residential, Commercial, industrial or otherwise, which has been 
billed for additional Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, or Organic Waste collection service for his 
place of residence or business, and which Persons desire to contest the extent or degree of 
reasonableness of the charge billed, shall make payment of such charges under protest and, at 
the same time, file a written statement of such protest with the City Manager. Within 30 days after 
the date of filing, the City Manager shall notify the protesting occupancy of the findings and 
adjudication and adjustment in the matter. The decision of the City Manager may be appealed by 
any Person upon submittal of any required appeal fees, in which event such appeal shall be 
directed to the City Council whose determination, in regular meeting, shall be final. The appeal 
fee shall be refunded to the protesting Occupant in those cases where the City Council finds in 
favor of the protest.  

 

 

SECTION II. Clerical Tasks.  

 

The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, 

article numbers, section and page numbers in the event that the adoption of this 

Municipal Code amendment reveals that there is a conflict, in order to avoid 

confusion and possible accidental repeal of existing provisions. 

 

 

627

Item 12.



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-16 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 22 OF THE MUNICPAL 
CODE PERTAINING TO WASTEWATERS, 
STORMWATERS, AND RELATED MATTERS 

 

The City Council of the City of Escondido, California, does hereby ordain as 

follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That proper notices of a public hearing have been given and public 

hearings have been held before the City Council on this issue.     

  SECTION 2.  The City Council has duly reviewed and considered all evidence 

submitted at said hearings, including, without limitation:  

a. Written information;  

b. Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public;  

c. The staff report, dated December 1, 2021, which along with its 

attachments is incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein; and  

d. Additional information submitted during the Public Hearing.   

SECTION 3.  The City Council makes the following findings: 

a. That the City of Escondido (“City”) is subject to the requirements of 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) Permits for wastewater 

treatment and stormwater management, issued by the State of California and the San 

Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board; and  

b. That the amendments to Escondido Municipal Code Chapter 22 

pertaining to Wastewaters, Stormwaters, and Related Matters as proposed by this 

Ordinance reflect revisions necessary to align with the model ordinance issued by the 

628

Item 12.



 

Environmental Protection Agency, as well as to improve enforcement, implementation, 

interpretation, and consistency in providing protection for public health, safety, and 

welfare.  

SECTION 4.  That upon consideration of the staff report, City Staff 

recommendation, all public testimony presented at the hearing held on this issue, and the 

findings set forth in Section 3 this Ordinance, this City Council finds that adoption of the 

proposed Municipal Amendments to Chapter 22 pertaining to Wastewaters, Stormwaters, 

and Related Matters in the best interest of the City.  

SECTION 5.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.  The proposed Ordinance is exempt 

from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to State CEQA 

Guidelines Sections 15308, in that the proposed Ordinance will not result in any 

significant effect on the environment. 

SECTION 6.  That Chapter 22 of the Escondido Municipal Code is hereby 

amended as set forth in Exhibit “A” to this Ordinance and incorporated herein by this 

reference as though fully set forth herein.  

SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection sentence, clause, phrase 

or portion of this Ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by any court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions. 

 SECTION 8.   As of the effective date of this Ordinance, all ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  Renumbering and relabeling of 

existing ordinance title, chapter, article, and/or section headings by this ordinance does 

629

Item 12.



 

not affect the continuing validity of existing laws.  Any existing reference to an ordinance, 

title, chapter, article, or section heading which is renumbered or relabeled by this 

ordinance must be construed to apply to the corresponding provisions contained within 

this ordinance.  

 SECTION 9.   The adoption of this Ordinance is not intended to affect or disrupt 

the continuity of the City’s business or administration of its law, including but not limited 

to the following:    

a. Actions and proceedings that began before the effective date of this 

Ordinance;  

b. Prosecution for ordinance violations committed before the effective 

date of this Ordinance; and/or  

c. The amount, or collection, of license, fee, penalty debt, forfeiture, or 

obligations due and unpaid as of the effective date of this Ordinance.  

 SECTION 10. That the City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of 

this Ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be prepared in accordance with 

Government Code Section 36933, to be published one time within 15 days of its 

passage in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the County and 

circulated in the City of Escondido. 

 SECTION 11. This Ordinance shall become effective on the 30th day following 

the date of its adoption.  

630

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 1 of 69 

 

 

MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDEMENT 
 
SECTION I. 
 
Repealing in its entirety, Chapter 22 of the Escondido Municipal Code and adopting 

in full new text to read as specified below. 

 
CHAPTER 22  

WASTEWATER, STORMWATER, AND RELATED MATTERS 
 

ARTICLE 1. IN GENERAL 
 

Sec. 22-1. Abbreviations and Definitions. 

Abbreviations.  The following abbreviations, when used in this chapter, shall have the 
designated meanings: 

BOD – Biochemical Oxygen Demand 
COD - Chemical Oxygen Demand 
BMPs – Best Management Practices 
C.F.R. – Code of Federal Regulations 
EPA – U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
FOG – fats, oils, and grease 
gpd – gallons per day 
IBCS – Industrial Brine Collection System  
mg/l – milligrams per liter 
MS4 - Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System 
NPDES – National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
POTW – Publicly Owned Treatment Works 
RCRA – Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
RWQCB - San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board 
SIC – Standard Industrial Classification 
SIU – Significant Industrial User 
SNC – Significant Noncompliance 
SWPPP – Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan  
TDS – Total Dissolved Solids 
TRC – Technical Review Criteria  
TSS – Total Suspended Solids 
U.S.C. – United States Code 

Definitions.  Unless a provision explicitly states otherwise, the following terms and phrases, as 
used in this chapter, shall have the designated meanings:  

Act shall mean the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water 
Act, 33 U.S.C. section 1251 et seq.   

631

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 2 of 69 

 
Approval Authority shall mean the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board, 

which is the California State Water Resources Control Board that regionally governs the City’s 
Pretreatment program. 

Authorized Representative of the User shall mean the following: 

(1)  If the User is a corporation: 

a.  A president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in 
charge of a principal business function, or any other Person who performs similar policy- or 
decision-making functions for the corporation; or 

b.  The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities, 
provided the manager is authorized to make management decisions that govern the operation 
of the regulated facility including having the explicit or implicit duty of making major capital 
investment recommendations, and initiate and direct other comprehensive measures to assure 
long-term environmental compliance with environmental laws and regulations; can ensure that 
the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather complete and accurate 
information for individual Wastewater Discharge Permit requirements; and where authority to 
sign documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate 
procedures. 

(2)  If the User is a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner or proprietor, 
respectively; 

(3)  If the User is a federal, state, or local governmental entity or an unincorporated 
association: a director or highest official appointed or designated to oversee the operation and 
performance of the activities of the governmental facility or unincorporated association, or their 
designee; 

(4)  The individuals described in subsections (1) through (3), above, may designate a 
Duly Authorized Representative if the authorization is in writing, the authorization specifies the 
individual or position responsible for the overall operation of the facility from which the 
Discharge originates or having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the entity, and 
the written authorization is submitted to the Director.  If a written authorization submitted under 
this subsection is no longer accurate because the individual no longer possesses the authority 
described herein, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of this subsection must be 
submitted to the Director prior to or together with, any reports to be signed by such individual.  

Automotive Service Establishment shall mean a gas station, automotive repair garage, 
or other facility that provides services for automobiles, trucks, vans, buses, heavy-duty 
construction equipment, recreational vehicles, off-road vehicles, or other self-propelled 
motorized vehicles or machines. 

Basin Plan shall mean the comprehensive water quality control plan for the San Diego 
Basin, adopted by the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board in 1975, and all 
subsequent amendments. 

632

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 3 of 69 

 
Beer Manufacturer shall mean a “beer manufacturer” as defined in California Business 

and Professions Code section 23012. 

Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall mean structural or managerial practices, 
including schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, and maintenance procedures to 
implement the prohibitions described in this chapter, including the prohibitions, standards, and 
requirements described in 40 C.F.R. sections 403.5(a)(1) and 403.5(b).  BMPs include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage or 
leaks, sludge or waste disposal, drainage from raw materials storage, or any other type of 
Pollution prevention, Pollution control measure, structural or management plan that may 
contribute to achieving compliance with this chapter. 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) shall mean the quantity of oxygen utilized in the 
biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedures for five days at 20 
degrees centigrade, usually expressed as a concentration (e.g., mg/l).  

Brandy Manufacturer shall mean a “brandy manufacturer” as defined in California 
Business and Professions Code section 23014. 

Building Drain shall mean that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a Drainage System 
that receives the Discharge from waste, and other Drainage Pipes inside the walls of the 
building and conveys it to the Building Sewer. 

Building Sewer shall mean the extension from the Building Drain to the Public Sewer or 
other place of disposal.   

Bypass shall mean the intentional diversion of regulated wastestreams around an 
Industrial User’s Pretreatment system. 

California Ocean Plan shall mean the Water Quality Control Plan for Ocean Waters of 
California adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board, as amended. 

Categorical Industrial User shall mean an Industrial User subject to a Categorical 
Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard. 

Categorical Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard shall mean any regulation 
containing Pollutant Discharge limits promulgated by the EPA in accordance with sections 
307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 U.S.C. section 1317) that applies to a specific category of Users 
and that appears in 40 C.F.R. Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 405–471. 

City shall mean the City of Escondido, a California municipal corporation and the 
regulated authority for the HARRF Wastewater Treatment Plant, its Director and employees. 

Combined Sewer shall mean a Sewer receiving both surface runoff and Sewage. 

 Commercial Establishment shall mean an establishment that discharges to Sanitary 
Sewer  used for commercial purposes such as a restaurant, bar, private office, fitness club, 
retail store, gas station, commercial agricultural operation, bank or other financial institution, 
supermarket, automobile dealership, or any other establishment with a common business area.  

633

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 4 of 69 

 
A nonprofit private or government entity such as a church, school, hospital, military facility, 
correctional institution, recreation facility or a facility owned and operated by a charitable 
organization is considered a Commercial Establishment. 

Compliance Schedule shall mean a document issued with milestone dates agreed to by 
the City and the Industrial User, and enforced by the City, that represents the shortest schedule 
of actions to achieve compliance with Pretreatment Standards. 

Composite Sample shall mean a sample collected over time, either by continuous 
sampling or by mixing discrete samples.  A composite sample represents the average 
Wastewater characteristics during the compositing period. 

Contamination shall mean an impairment of the quality of the waters of the state by the 
introduction of waste material to a degree that creates a hazard to the public health through 
poisoning or through the spread of disease. 

Cooling Water shall mean the water Discharged from any use, including but not limited 
to air conditioning, cooling, or refrigeration, during which the only Pollutant assessed is heat. 

Daily Maximum Limit shall mean the maximum allowable Discharge limit of any Pollutant 
during a 24-hour period.  Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in units of mass, the daily 
Discharge is the total mass Discharged over the course of a 24-hour period.  Where Daily 
Maximum Limits are expressed in terms of a concentration, the daily Discharge is the arithmetic 
average measurement of the Pollutant concentration derived from all measurements taken 
during the 24-hour period. 

Dental Amalgam Separator shall mean a collection device designed to capture and 
remove dental amalgam from any Wastewater generated and Discharged by a dental 
Discharger through the practice of dentistry that may contain dental amalgam. 

Director shall mean the Person designated by the City Manager to supervise the 
operation of the POTW or MS4, and who is charged with certain duties and responsibilities by 
this chapter.  This term also means the Director’s designee or a Duly Authorized Representative 
of the Director. 

Director’s Approval shall mean the approval of the Director as a result of investigation or 
tests conducted by or at the direction of the Director, or by reason of accepted principles or tests 
by national authorities, technical or scientific organizations, or research laboratories of 
recognized authority.   

Discharge when used without qualification shall mean the release, spill, leak, pump, 
flow, escape, dumping, or disposal of any liquid, semisolid, or solid substance. 

Discharger shall mean a person, company, agency, or other entity engaged in activities 
or operations, or owning facilities or property that will or may result in Discharge into a POTW, 
MS4, or Wastewater System. 

Distilled Spirits Manufacturer shall mean a manufacturer of distilled spirits as defined in 
California Business and Professions Code section 23015. 

634

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 5 of 69 

 
Domestic Wastewater shall mean sanitary Wastewater and Wastewater generated from 

household type operations. 

Drainage System shall mean and include all the piping within public or private Premises 
that conveys Sewage or other liquid wastes to a legal point of disposal, but shall not include the 
mains or laterals of a Public Sewer system.  

Enclosed Bays and Estuaries Plan shall mean the California Enclosed Bays and 
Estuaries Plan: Water Quality Control Plan for Enclosed Bays and Estuaries of California, 
adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board April 11, 1991, as amended. 

Enforcement Response Procedures shall mean a document that describes and outlines 
Enforcement Response Procedures used as a general control mechanism required by 40 
C.F.R. section 403.8(f)(5) to accomplish compliance and determine monetary remedies for non-
compliance. 

Existing Source shall mean any source of Discharge that is not a New Source. 

FOG Removal Equipment shall mean and include Grease Interceptors, Grease Traps, 
clarifiers, sand/oil separators, and similar equipment or technology designed to reduce 
Discharge of FOG. 

Food Service Establishment shall mean a facility engaged in preparing, handling, or 
selling food for consumption by the public, including but not limited to a restaurant, commercial 
kitchen, caterer, hotel, school, hospital, prison, correctional facility, or residential care facility. 

Garbage shall mean solid wastes, recyclable material, organic waste, yard waste, and 
food waste, including those generated from the preparation, cooking, and dispensing of food 
and from the handling, storage, and sale of produce. 

Grab Sample shall mean a single sample of water collected at a particular time and 
place with no regard to the flow of the wastestream.  A single Grab Sample should be taken 
over a period not to exceed 15 minutes. 

Grease Interceptor or Grease Trap shall mean a device designed to intercept and retain 
grease and solids before they enter a Sewer system.  Sizing will be determined by using the 
most recently adopted version of the Uniform Plumbing Code by the Building Standards 
Commission, as well as any other requirements the Utilities Department considers necessary. 

HARRF shall mean the City of Escondido Wastewater Treatment Plant, Hale Avenue 
Resource Recovery Facility, located at 1521 S. Hale Ave., Escondido, CA 92029. 

Illegal Connection shall mean any physical connection to a MS4 or Sanitary Sewer that 
has not been permitted in writing by the City or the RWQCB. 

Illegal Discharge shall mean any Discharge that is prohibited by federal, state, or local 
law, or degrades the quality of receiving waters in violation of any Plan Standard. 

635

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 6 of 69 

 
Residential Vehicle Washing shall mean the noncommercial washing of vehicles in a 

residential zone. 

Industrial Brine shall mean any Industrial Wastewater that consists exclusively of 
concentrated salts or dissolved minerals that are derived from water softener processes, 
evaporative processes, or water treatment processes. 

Industrial Brine Collection System (IBCS) shall mean any system of pipelines, pressure 
mains, pumping stations, outfall Sewers, and appurtenances constructed and maintained by the 
City for the exclusive use of collecting Industrial Brine, and shall include facilities used to 
Bypass the City’s POTW and dispose of the brine under regulations established in a NPDES 
Permit separate from the NPDES Permit that regulates the City’s POTW. 

Industrial User(s) shall mean any facility that Discharges process Wastewater, other 
than domestic, to the POTW for treatment. 

Industrial Waste shall mean and include nondomestic liquid or semisolid wastes from 
any producing, manufacturing, or processing operation. 

Inland Surface Water Plan shall mean the California Inland Surface Waters Plan: Water 
Quality Control Plan for Inland Surface Waters of California adopted by the State Water 
Resources Control Board on April 11, 1991, as amended. 

Instantaneous Limits shall mean the maximum concentration of a Pollutant allowed to be 
Discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete sample or Composite 
Sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event. 

Interference shall mean a Discharge that, alone or in conjunction with a Discharge or 
Discharges from other sources, inhibits or disrupts the POTW; its treatment processes or 
operations; or its sludge processes, use, or disposal, and therefore is a cause of a violation of 
the City’s NPDES Permit or of the prevention of Sewage sludge use or disposal in compliance 
with any of the following statutory/regulatory provisions or permits issued thereunder, or any 
more stringent state or local regulations: Section 405 of the Act; the Solid Waste Disposal Act, 
including Title II commonly referred to as RCRA; any state regulations contained in any state 
sludge management plan prepared pursuant to Subtitle D of the Solid Waste Disposal Act; the 
Clean Air Act; the Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Marine Protection, Research, and 
Sanctuaries Act. 

Local Limits shall mean the Discharge limits developed by the City to enforce the 
specific and general prohibitions listed in Section 307(b) of the Act and 40 C.F.R. section 403. 

Medical Waste shall mean and include isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood 
and blood products, pathological wastes, sharps, body parts, contaminated bedding, surgical 
wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory wastes, and dialysis wastes, and as may be further 
defined in the California Health and Safety Code. 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) shall mean a conveyance or system of 
conveyances (including roads with Drainage Systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, 
gutters, ditches, man-made channels, or Storm Drains) that is: 

636

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 7 of 69 

 
(1)  Owned or operated by a state, city, town, borough, county, parish, district, 

association, or other public body, created by or pursuant to state law, having jurisdiction over 
disposal of Sewage, Industrial Wastes, Stormwater, or other wastes, including special districts 
under state law such as a Sewer district, flood control district or drainage district, or similar 
entity, or an Indian tribe or authorized Indian tribal organization, or designated and approved 
management agency that Discharges to waters of the United States;  

(2)  Designated or used for collecting or conveying Stormwater;  

(3)  Not a Combined Sewer; and  

(4)  Not part of the POTW. 

National Categorical Pretreatment Standard shall mean any regulation containing 
Pollutant Discharge limits promulgated by the EPA in accordance with Section 307(b) and (c) of 
the Act.  Users must also comply with the Categorical Pretreatment Standards found at 40 
C.F.R. Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 405–471.  

NPDES Permit shall mean a permit issued by the RWQCB or the State Water 
Resources Control Board pursuant to Division 7 of the California Water Code to control 
Discharges from point sources to waters of the United States. 

Natural Outlet shall mean any outlet into a Watercourse, pond, ditch, lake, or other body 
of surface or groundwater. 

New Source shall mean: 

(1)  Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is (or may be) a 
Discharge of a Pollutant, the construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed 
Pretreatment Standards under Section 307(c) of the Act that will be applicable to such source if 
such standards are thereafter promulgated with that section, provided that: 

a.  the building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site at which 
no other source is located;  

b.  the building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the process or 
production equipment that causes the Discharge of a Pollutant at an Existing Source; or 

c.  the production or Wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, 
facility, or installation are substantially independent of an existing source at the same site.  In 
determining whether the processes are substantially independent, factors such as the extent to 
which the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, and the extent to which the new 
facility is engaged in the same general type of activity as the Existing Source, should be 
considered; 

(2)  Construction on a site at which an Existing Source is located results in a 
modification rather than a New Source if the construction does not create a new building, 
structure, facility, or installation meeting the criteria of subsection (1)(b) or (c) of this definition 
but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to existing process or production equipment; 

637

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 8 of 69 

 
(3)  Construction of a New Source has commenced if the owner or operator has: 

a.  begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous on-site construction 
program: 

(i)  any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment, or 

(ii)  significant site preparation work, including clearing, excavation, or 
removal of existing buildings, structures, or facilities, that is necessary for the placement, 
assembly, or installation of New Source facilities or equipment; or 

b.  entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or 
equipment intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time.  Options to purchase or 
contracts that can be terminated or modified without substantial loss, and contracts for 
feasibility, engineering, and design studies do not constitute a contractual obligation under this 
definition. 

Nonstormwater Discharge shall mean all Discharges to and from a MS4 that do not 
originate from precipitation events and may include Illegal Discharges and NPDES Permitted 
Discharges.  

Nuisance shall mean a Discharge of Wastewater:  

(1)  In violation of a City law, regulation, or order;  

(2)  That is or could be harmful to or unreasonably affects the Wastewater collection 
system and treatment facilities of the City; 

(3)  That impairs or unreasonably affects the operation and maintenance of such 
facilities;  

(4) That violates quantity, quality, or flow standards adopted by the City; or  

(5) That unreasonably affects the quality of the City’s Treatment Plant effluent in 
such a manner that results in the City’s inability to meet requirements for the Treatment Plant 
established by a federal or state law, regulation, or order. 

Order shall mean RWQCB Order No. R9-2013-0001, as amended. 

Pass Through shall mean a Discharge that exits the POTW into the receiving waters of 
the state in quantities or concentrations that, alone or in conjunction with a Discharge or 
Discharges from other sources, causes a violation of any requirement of an applicable NPDES 
Permit, including an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation. 

Peak Flow shall mean the maximum five-minute rate of Wastewater flow to be generated 
from the Premises as estimated by the City Engineer. 

Person shall mean any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, 
corporation, association, Joint Stock Company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other 

638

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 9 of 69 

 
legal entity; or their legal representatives, agents, or assigns.  This definition includes all federal, 
state, and local governmental entities. 

pH shall mean the measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in 
standard units. 

Pigment shall mean a substance that imparts black, white, or other color to another 
material. 

Plan Standard shall mean and include all applicable requirements of the Basin Plan, the 
Enclosed Bays and Estuaries Plan, the Inland Surface Water Plan, and the California Ocean 
Plan. 

Plumbing shall mean and include all Drainage Systems, both direct and indirect, and all 
vent piping, water piping, and other piping in any building or within the boundaries of any 
property through which Sewage, water, Wastewater, or any other substance or liquid is 
conveyed. 

Pollutant shall mean and include dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter 
backwash, Sewage, Garbage, Sewage sludge, munitions, Medical Waste, chemical wastes, 
biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, 
cellar dirt, municipal, agricultural and Industrial Waste, fecal coliform, fecal streptococcus, 
enterococcus, volatile organic carbon surfactants, FOG, petroleum hydrocarbons, lead, copper, 
chromium, cadmium, silver, nickel, cyanides, phenols, biocides, certain characteristics of 
Wastewater (e.g., pH, temperature, TSS, turbidity, color, BOD, COD, toxicity, or odor), any 
organic or inorganic Contaminant whose presence degrades the quality of the receiving waters 
in violation of any Plan Standard, and any agent that may cause or contribute to the degradation 
of water quality such that a condition of Pollution or Contamination is created or aggravated.  

Pollution shall mean an alteration of the quality of the waters of the state by a Pollutant 
to a degree that unreasonably affects such waters for beneficial use or facilities that serve such 
beneficial uses. 

Premises shall mean a parcel of real property or portion thereof, including any 
improvements thereon, determined by the City to be a single unit for purposes of receiving, 
using, and paying for Wastewater disposal service.  In making this determination, the City shall 
take into consideration such factors as whether the unit could reasonably be subdivided, the 
number and location of Sewer Connection Laterals, and whether the unit is being used for a 
single activity or, if not, the principal activity for Wastewater disposal services. 

Pretreatment shall mean the reduction of the amount of Pollutants, the elimination of 
Pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of Pollutant properties to a less polluted state prior to 
or in lieu of Discharging or otherwise introducing such Pollutants into the POTW or receiving 
water of the state.  The reduction or alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical, or 
biological processes, or through process changes or other means, except as prohibited by 40 
C.F.R. section 403.6(d). 

Pretreatment Requirement shall mean and include any substantive or procedural 
requirement related to Pretreatment imposed on a User, other than a Pretreatment Standard. 

639

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 10 of 69 

 
Pretreatment Standard shall mean and include prohibited Discharge standards, 

Categorical Pretreatment Standards, and Local Limits. 

Property Line Cleanout is a vertical pipe allowing access to a sewer lateral, located 
within 18 inches of the Public Right of Way as stated in Standard Drawing S-2-E. 

Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) shall mean any “treatment works” as defined 
by Section 212 of the Act (33 U.S.C. section 1292) that is wholly or partially owned by the City.  
This definition includes any devices or systems used in the collection, storage, treatment, 
recycling, and reclamation of Sewage or Industrial Waste of a liquid nature and any 
conveyances that convey Wastewater to a Treatment Plant, including but not limited to Public 
Sewers, Treatment Plants, and pumping stations.  For the purpose of this article, POTW shall 
include the Sewers within the City that convey Wastewater to the POTW that are by contract or 
agreement with the City considered Dischargers to the City’s POTW. 

Public Sewer shall mean a Sewer controlled by public authority and to which all owners 
of abutting properties have equal rights. 

Sanitary Sewer shall mean a Sewer that carries Sewage and to which storm, surface, 
and ground waters and Industrial Waste are not intentionally admitted. 

Sewage shall mean and include human excrement; gray water (e.g., household 
showers, dishwashing operations); and any combination of water-carried wastes from 
residences, business buildings, institutions, and industrial and Commercial Establishments. 

Sewage System shall mean all facilities for collecting, pumping, treating, and disposing 
of Sewage. 

Sewer shall mean a pipe or conduit for carrying Sewage or Stormwater. 

Sewer Connection Lateral  shall mean that portion of a Sewage System that connects a 
property, whether public or private, to a Public Sewer.  A Sewer Connection Lateral  shall be 
considered to extend from the Sewer main to the building or structure being served. 

Significant Industrial User (SIU), except as provided in subsections (3) and (4), shall 
mean: 

(1)  An Industrial User subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards; 

(2)  An Industrial User that: 

a.  Discharges an average of 25,000 gpd or more of process Wastewater to the 
POTW (excluding sanitary, noncontact cooling, and boiler blowdown Wastewater); 

b.  contributes a process wastestream that makes up 5% or more of the average 
dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the POTW Treatment Plant; or 

640

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 11 of 69 

 
c.  is designated as such by the City on the basis that the Industrial User has a 

reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any 
Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Requirement; 

(3) The City may determine that an Industrial User subject to a Categorical 
Pretreatment Standard is a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User rather than a SIU on a 
finding that the Industrial User never Discharges more than 100 gpd of total categorical 
Wastewater (excluding sanitary, non-contact cooling, and boiler blowdown wastewater, unless 
specifically included in the Pretreatment Standard) and the following conditions are met: 

a.  the Industrial User, prior to the City’s finding, has consistently complied with 
all applicable Pretreatment Standards and Pretreatment Requirements; 

b.  the Industrial User annually submits a certification statement that is in 
compliance with this chapter, together with any additional information necessary to support the 
certification statement; and 

c.  the Industrial User never Discharges any untreated concentrated Wastewater. 

(4) Upon a finding that a User meeting the criteria in subsection (2) has no 
reasonable potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any 
Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Requirement, the City may at any time, on its own 
initiative or in response to a petition received from an Industrial User, and in accordance with 
procedures in 40 C.F.R. section 403.8(f)(6), determine that such User should not be considered 
a Significant Industrial User. 

Slug Load or Slug Discharge shall mean any Discharge at a flow rate or concentration 
that could cause a violation of the prohibited Discharge standards of this chapter.  A Slug 
Discharge is any Discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an 
accidental spill or a non-customary batch Discharge, that has a reasonable potential to cause 
Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way violate the POTW’s regulations, Local Limits, 
or permit conditions. 

Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) shall mean classification pursuant to the 
Standard Industrial Classification Manual issued by the Executive Office of the President, Office 
of Management and Budget, 1987, including any amendments thereto unless otherwise 
specified. 

Storm Drain shall mean a Sewer that carries storm and surface waters and drainage, but 
excludes Sewage and Industrial Waste.   

Storm Drain Inlet shall mean an opening in a Storm Drain used to collect Stormwater 
runoff and includes, but is not limited to, a grate inlet, curb-opening inlet, slotted inlet, and 
combination inlet. 

Stormwater shall mean flow or runoff generated from any form of natural precipitation, 
including but not limited to stormwater runoff, surface runoff, and drainage resulting from 
precipitation events. 

641

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 12 of 69 

 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) shall mean a document that describes, 

by word and illustration, the BMPs to be implemented on-site by the owner or operator of a 
business to eliminate or reduce to the maximum extent practicable Pollutant Discharges to a 
MS4. 

Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) shall mean the combined content of all inorganic and 
organic substances contained in a liquid in molecular, ionized, or micro-granular (colloidal sol) 
suspended form. 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) or Suspended Solids shall mean the total suspended 
matter that floats on the surface of, or is suspended in, water, Wastewater, or other liquid, and 
that is removable by laboratory filtering. 

User or Industrial User shall mean any Person who causes, contributes to, or constitutes 
a source of direct or indirect Discharge into the City’s Wastewater collection and treatment 
facilities. 

Utility Easement shall mean any of the City’s Sanitary Sewer utility easements used for 
the purpose of cleaning, maintaining, repairing, or replacing the Sanitary Sewer system. 

Wastewater shall mean and include any liquid- and water-carried Industrial Waste and 
Sewage from residential dwellings, Commercial Establishments, industrial and manufacturing 
facilities, and institutions, whether treated or untreated, that is contributed to the POTW.   

Wastewater Discharge Permit shall mean a permit issued by the City, regulating specific 
limitations for constituent strength and daily flow from an Industrial User’s process Wastewater 
Discharging to the POTW. 

Wastewater Strength shall mean the quality of Wastewater Discharged as measured by 
its concentration, including its constituents and characteristics. 

Wastewater System shall mean and include intercepting Sewers, Wastewater Treatment 
Plants, Sanitary Sewer collection facilities that Discharge to a POTW, Industrial Brine collection 
facilities that are regulated by a separate NPDES, pumping stations, outfall Sewers, and 
appurtenances constructed, operated, and maintained by the City for residential and 
nonresidential Wastewater disposal purposes. 

Wastewater Treatment Plant or Treatment Plant shall mean any arrangement of devices 
and structures used for treating Sewage, and that portion of the POTW that is designed to 
provide treatment of municipal Sewage and Industrial Waste. 

Watercourse shall mean a channel in which a flow of water occurs, either continuously 
or intermittently.  A Watercourse may include inlets, catch basins, or other drainage features on 
properties where runoff can be blocked. 

Winegrower shall mean a “winegrower” as defined in California Business and 
Professions Code section 23013. 

642

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 13 of 69 

 
(Code 1957, § 8300; Ord. No. 76-13, § 1, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 
2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2014-11, § 1, 3-19-14; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 1, 5-20-15; Ord. 
No. 2018-01, §§ 1, 2, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-2. Sewer connection required. 

The Plumbing and Drainage System of every building constructed or reconstructed shall 
be connected to a Public Sewer, unless waived by the City Engineer.  (Code 1957, § 8411; Ord. 
No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-3. Buildings to have sanitary facilities. 

Every building shall have the sinks, water closets, and other sanitary fixtures and 
facilities required by the Plumbing regulations of the City. (Code 1957, § 8411; Ord. No. 2008-
07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-4. Sanitary toilets permitted in lieu of connection to Public Sewer or subsurface 
disposal system. 

For the temporary occupancy of buildings in isolated areas remote from any public 
highway, the Director of Public Health of the County of San Diego may authorize the 
construction and use of an approved type sanitary toilet in lieu of connection to a Public Sewer 
or to a subsurface disposal system installed in accordance with the provisions of this article. 
(Code 1957, § 8418; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-5. Sewer service outside City limits authorized. 

Property outside the boundaries of the City may be connected to the City Sewerage 
System if the City Council finds there is sufficient capacity to serve such property and it appears 
to be in the best interests of the City to supply such service.  Agreements between the City and 
other public agencies for the provision of Sewer service outside of the boundaries shall be 
approved by the City Council.  Any other Sewer service outside the boundaries of the City shall 
be temporary and subject to cancellation upon reasonable notice. (Code 1957, § 8330; Ord. No. 
76-13, § 5-26-76; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 
2018-01, § 3, 4-4-18) 

 Sec. 22-6. Planting of trees or vegetation that may adversely impact Sewers prohibited. 

No Person shall plant or set out to plant any tree or other vegetation within 20 feet of any 
public or private Sewer within the corporate limits of the City that may adversely impact the 
function of such Sewer. (Code 1957, § 8321; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-
18, § 2, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-7. Removal of trees or vegetation near Sewers upon notice. 

Any Person owning or having the control of any property in the City upon which trees or 
vegetation are growing within 20 feet of any public or private Sewer and adversely impacting 
such Sewer shall remove the trees or vegetation within 10 days after being notified by an 

643

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 14 of 69 

 
authorized City representative requesting such removal. (Code 1957, § 8322; Ord. No. 2008-07, 
§ 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-8. Improper disposal of Sewage unlawful. 

A.  It is unlawful for any Person to cause, suffer, or permit the disposal of Sewage or 
other liquid waste in any place or manner except through and by means of an approved 
Plumbing and Drainage System or an approved Sewage disposal system installed and 
maintained in accordance with the provisions of Article 7 of Chapter 6, Plumbing Code, and this 
chapter. 

B.  It is unlawful for any Person to establish, use, or maintain any unauthorized 
connection to the Sanitary Sewer system. (Code 1957 § 8412; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-
2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2018-01, § 4, 4-4-18) 

 Sec. 22-9. Surcharges prohibited; regulation by City Council. 

A.  No Person who provides Sewer and disposal service to Users who are tenants of a 
mobilehome park, apartment building, or similar residential complex shall impose any charge or 
surcharge upon such Users that exceeds the applicable rate set by the City, if the User was 
receiving such services directly from the City, except as approved by application to the City and 
upon such conditions as the City Council by resolution shall establish. 

B.  Any such additional rate, charge, or surcharge approved by the City Council shall be 
reasonably related to the average cost of providing any additional service and shall not exceed 
the cost the City would have incurred in providing comparable services directly to the Users of 
such services. (Ord. No. 89-39, § 1, 8-16-89; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-
18, § 2, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-10. Enforcement authority. 

A.  The City and the Director can exercise any enforcement powers as provided in this 
chapter that may be necessary to effectively implement and enforce this chapter.   

B.  In addition to the general enforcement powers provided in this chapter, the City and 
Director shall exercise any of the following supplemental enforcement powers as may be 
necessary under the circumstances: 

(1)  Sampling authority.  During any inspection, the Director shall take samples 
deemed necessary in order to implement and enforce the provisions of this chapter.  This may 
include the installation of sampling and metering devices on private property, or requiring the 
Person owning or occupying the Premises to supply samples to the City and have them 
analyzed at the owner’s or occupant’s expense. 

(2)  Clean and abate.  The Director may require any Person owning or occupying a 
Premises to clean up or remove any material that could create a potential hazard that may 
result in a violation of this chapter. 

644

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 15 of 69 

 
(3)  Monitoring and mitigation.  The Director shall require reasonable monitoring of 

Discharges from any Premises to a MS4 or Sewage System and shall have authority to order 
the mitigation of circumstances that may result in Illegal Discharges to the maximum extent 
practicable. 

(4)  SWPPP.  The Director shall have the authority to require any business to 
establish, adopt, and implement elements of a SWPPP pursuant to section 22-26(A), as may be 
necessary to fulfill the purposes of this chapter. 

(5)  Employee training program.  The Director shall have the authority to require any 
business to establish the elements of an employee training program, as may be necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of this chapter. 

(6)  BMPs.  The Director shall require the establishment of BMPs for any Premises 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 22-26(H). 

(7)  Reports.  The Director shall have the authority to require any Person owning a 
Premises to submit a report to the City confirming compliance with this chapter.  

(Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 2, 5-
20-15) 

Sec. 22-11. Enforcement and remedies. 

A.  Notification of Violation. When the Director finds that a User has violated, or 
continues to violate, any provision of this chapter, an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, 
or a general permit or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or 
Pretreatment Requirement, the Director may serve upon that User a written Notice of Violation.  
Within five days of the receipt of such notice, an explanation of the violation and a plan for the 
satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include specific required actions, shall be 
submitted by the User to the Director.  Submission of such a plan in no way relieves the User of 
liability for any violations occurring before or after receipt of the Notice of Violation.  Nothing in 
this section shall limit the authority of the Director to take any action, including emergency 
actions or any other enforcement action, without first issuing a Notice of Violation. 

B.  Compliance Orders.  When the Director finds that a User has violated, or continues 
to violate, any provision of this chapter, an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, a general 
permit, an order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment 
Requirement, the Director may issue an order to the User responsible for the Discharge 
directing that the User come into compliance within a specified time.  If the User does not come 
into compliance within the time provided, any applicable service may be discontinued unless 
adequate Treatment facilities, devices, or other related appurtenances are installed and properly 
operated.  Compliance orders also may contain other requirements to address the 
noncompliance, including additional self-monitoring and management practices designed to 
minimize the amount of Pollutants discharged to the Sewer.  A compliance order may not 
extend the deadline for compliance established for a Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment 
Requirement, nor does a compliance order relieve the User of liability for any violation, including 
any continuing violation.  Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against, or a 
prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User. 

645

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 16 of 69 

 
C.  Cease and Desist Orders.  When the Director finds that a User has violated, or 

continues to violate, any provision of this chapter, an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, a 
general permit, an order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment 
Requirement, or that the User’s past violations are likely to recur, the Director may issue an 
order to the User directing it to cease and desist all such violations and directing the User to: 

(1)  Immediately comply with all requirements; and 

(2)  Take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to 
properly address a continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations or terminating 
the Discharge.  Issuance of a cease and desist order shall not be a bar against, or a 
prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User. 

D.  Administrative Citation.  When the Director finds that a User has violated, or 
continues to violate, any provision of this chapter, an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, a 
general permit, an order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment 
Requirement, or that the User’s past violations are likely to recur, the Director may issue an 
administrative citation as provided in Chapter 1A, Administrative Remedies, of this code.  

E.  Emergency Suspensions.   
 

(1) The Director may immediately suspend a User’s Discharge, after informal notice 
to the User, whenever such suspension is necessary to stop an actual or threatened Discharge, 
which reasonably appears to present, or cause an imminent or substantial endangerment to the 
health or welfare of persons.  The Director may also immediately suspend a User’s Discharge, 
after notice and opportunity to respond, that threatens to interfere with the operation of the 
POTW, MS4, Sewage System, or IBCS, or which presents, or may present, an endangerment 
to the environment. 

 
(2)  Any User notified of a suspension of its Discharge shall immediately stop or 

eliminate its contribution.  In the event of a User’s failure to immediately comply voluntarily with 
the suspension order, the Director may take such steps as deemed necessary, including 
immediate severance of the Sewer connection, to prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, 
MS4, Sewage System, or IBCS, a receiving stream, or endangerment to any individuals.  The 
Director may allow the User to recommence its Discharge when the User has demonstrated to 
the satisfaction of the Director that the period of endangerment has passed, unless the 
termination proceedings as prescribed in this chapter are initiated against the User. 
 

(3)  A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any Discharge presenting 
imminent endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the causes of the 
harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future occurrence, to the Director 
prior to the date of any hearing under section 22-193.  
 

(4)  Nothing in this section 22-11(E) shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior 
to any Emergency Suspension under this section 22-11(E). 

F.  Public Nuisance. The violation of any provision of this chapter, any standard adopted 
by this chapter, or any permit or permit condition issued under this chapter is hereby declared a 
public Nuisance, and shall be abated by any means available under the law.  

646

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 17 of 69 

 
G.  Termination of Service.  In addition to any other lawful enforcement and remedial 

measures that may be available to the City, any User who violates one or more of the following 
conditions is subject to water service termination or discharge termination:  

(1)  Violation of any provision of this chapter pertaining to control of Wastewater;  

(2)  A Discharge of Wastewater causes or threatens to cause a condition of 
contamination, Pollution or Nuisance, as defined in this chapter.   

(3)  Violation of one or more Wastewater Discharge Permit conditions; 
 
(4)  Failure to accurately report the Wastewater constituents and characteristics of its 

Discharge; 
(5)  Failure to report significant changes in operations or Wastewater volume, 

constituents, and characteristics prior to Discharge; 

(6)  Refusal of reasonable access to the User’s premises for the purpose of 
inspection, monitoring, or sampling; or 

(7)  Violation of the Pretreatment Standards described in this chapter. 

H.  Civil Penalties. 

(1)  A User who has violated, or continues to violate, any provision of this chapter, an 
individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, a general permit, an order issued hereunder, or any 
other Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Requirement, shall be liable to the City for up to 
$2,500 per day, per violation.  In the case of a monthly or other long-term average Discharge 
limit, penalties shall accrue for each day during the period of the violation.  The City Attorney 
shall have authority to petition the superior court to impose, assess, and recover any such 
sums. 

(2)  The Director may recover reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, and other 
expenses associated with enforcement activities, including sampling and monitoring expenses, 
and the cost of any actual damages incurred by the City. 

(3)  In determining the amount of civil liability, the Court shall take into account all 
relevant circumstances, including but not limited to the extent of harm caused by the violation, 
the magnitude and duration of the violation, any economic benefit gained through the User’s 
violation, corrective actions by the User, the compliance history of the User, and any other factor 
as justice requires.    

(4)  Filing a suit for civil penalties shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, 
taking any other action against a User. 

 I.  Criminal Prosecution.   

(1)  A User who willfully or negligently violates any provision of this chapter, an 
individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, a general permit, an order issued hereunder, or any 
other Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Requirement shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a 

647

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 18 of 69 

 
misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 per violation, per day, or 
imprisonment for a period of not more than one year, or both.  

 
(2)  A User who willfully or negligently introduces any substance into the POTW, 

MS4, or other Sewage System that causes personal injury or property damage shall, upon 
conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor and punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 per 
violation, per day, or imprisonment for a period of not more than one year, or both.  This penalty 
shall be in addition to any other cause of action for personal injury or property damage available 
under federal or state law. 

 
(3)  A User who knowingly makes any false statements, representations, or 

certifications in any application, record, report, plan, or other documentation filed, or required to 
be maintained pursuant to this chapter or by a Wastewater Discharge Permit or order, or who 
falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method 
required under this chapter, shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine of at least $1,000 per 
violation, per day, or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both. 

 
(4)  In the event of a second conviction, a User shall be punished by a fine of not 

more than $2,000 per violation, per day, or imprisonment for not more than two years, or both. 

J.  Alternative Remedies.  In addition to other remedies, the City may pursue any of the 
following alternative remedies against any User that violates the provisions of this chapter: 

(1)  Repair of damage to facilities.  When a Discharge to a POTW, MS4, Sewage 
System, or IBCS, in violation of this chapter, causes an obstruction, damage, or other 
impairment to a MS4, the Sewage System, or the IBCS, any Person causing such obstruction, 
damage, or impairment shall be liable for the work required to clean or repair the system. 

(2)  Injunction.  When a Discharge to a POTW, MS4, Sewage System, or IBCS, in 
violation of this chapter, causes or threatens to cause a condition of Contamination, Pollution, or 
Nuisance, the City may petition the Superior Court for the issuance of injunctive relief as may be 
appropriate, preventing the continuance of such Discharge. 

(3)  Reimbursement.  Whenever the City is assessed any fine, fee, or penalty as a 
result of a Discharge to a POTW, MS4, Sewage System, or IBCS, in violation of this chapter, 
the City may seek reimbursement of such fine, fee, or penalty from the Discharger. 

(4)  Cost recovery.  Whenever the City incurs any costs or expenses abating any 
Discharge in violation of any provision of this chapter, the City may seek reimbursement of such 
costs from the Person, or entity causing such violation. Any such expense shall constitute a 
debt owed to the City, and shall include both the direct and indirect costs involved in the 
abatement of the Illegal Discharge and in collecting such reimbursement.  

(Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 2, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2015-
09, § 3, 5-20-15; Ord. No. 2018-01, § 5, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-12. Remedies not exclusive. 

648

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 19 of 69 

The remedies provided for in this chapter are not exclusive and are in addition to and do 
not supersede or limit any and all other remedies, civil or criminal.  The Director may take any, 
all, or any combination of these actions against a noncompliant User.  Enforcement of 
Pretreatment violations will generally be in accordance with the City’s Enforcement Response 
Procedures.  However, the Director may take other action against any User when the 
circumstances warrant.  Further, the Director is empowered to take more than one enforcement 
action against any noncompliant User.  (Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 
2, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-13. Utility Easement for Sewer Access and Maintenance. 

A. It is the responsibility of the homeowner, property owner, or property management
company of the property on which a Utility Easement exists to maintain access to, and allow 
City personnel and their equipment to enter, the Utility Easement at all times for the purpose of 
cleaning, maintaining, repairing, or replacing the City’s Sanitary Sewer infrastructure.  The 
planting of trees, vegetation, placing structures, sheds, playgrounds, gardens, or other 
landscaping is prohibited over a Utility Easement. 

B. The City has the right to remove any obstacle, barrier, or impediment that would
prevent access to a Utility Easement at no cost to the City. 

C. Tree branches, vegetation, or structures that encroach over a Utility Easement from
adjacent properties or the property on which the Utility Easement is located must be kept to a 
minimum of 14 feet in height.  The City has the right to trim or remove any obstacle, including 
vegetation or tree limbs, that encroaches over the top of the Utility Easement.  Any and all 
Sewer access points must remain above ground, uncovered, accessible, and visible at all times 
to City personnel. 

D. The City shall be given access, keys, or key codes for any gate that allows access to
the Utility Easement. 

Sec. 22-14. Confidential information. 

Information and data on a User obtained from reports, surveys, Wastewater Discharge 
Permit applications, Discharge permits and monitoring programs, and from the Director’s 
inspection and sampling activities, shall be available to the public without restriction unless the 
User specifically requests, and is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Director, that the 
release of such information would divulge information, processes, or methods of production 
entitled to protection as trade secrets under applicable state law.  Any such request must be 
asserted at the time of submission of the information or data.  When a User furnishes a report 
that requests and demonstrates that information should be held confidential, the portions of a 
report that might disclose trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available for 
inspection by the public, but shall be made available immediately upon request to governmental 
agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or Pretreatment program, in enforcement 
proceedings involving the Person or facility furnishing the report, or as otherwise required by 
law.  Wastewater constituents, characteristics, and other “effluent data” as defined by 40 C.F.R. 
section 2.302 will not be recognized as confidential information and will be available to the 
public without restriction. 

649

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 20 of 69 

 
Secs. 22-15—22-18. Reserved. 
 

ARTICLE 2. MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) MANAGEMENT AND 
DISCHARGE CONTROL  

Note 

* Prior ordinance history: Prior Ord. Nos. 93-30, 11-17-93 and 2000-38, 12-13-00. 

Sec. 22-19. Purpose and Intent. 

A.  The purpose of this article is to ensure the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
citizens of the City by controlling non-Stormwater Discharges to a MS4; eliminating Discharges 
to a MS4 from spills, dumping, or disposal of solid or liquid waste other than Stormwater; and 
preventing, eliminating, or reducing Pollutants in urban Stormwater Discharges to the maximum 
extent practicable. 

B.  The intent of this article is to protect and enhance the water quality of Watercourses, 
water bodies, and wetlands in a manner pursuant to and consistent with the Act and the Order, 
and other water quality regulations including the Regional MS4 Permit issued by the RWQCB 
(Ord. No. 2001-22, § 3, 8-22-01; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 4, 5-20-
15) 

 Sec. 22-20. Right of Entry. 

A.  The Director shall have the right to enter the Premises of any User to determine 
whether the User is complying with all requirements of this chapter and any individual 
Wastewater Discharge Permit or order issued hereunder.  Users shall allow the Director ready 
access to all parts of the Premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling, records 
examination and copying, and the performance of any additional duties. 

 
(1)  Where a User has security measures in force which require proper identification and 

clearance before entry into its Premises, the User shall make necessary arrangements with its 
security guards so that, upon presentation of suitable identification, the Director shall be 
permitted to enter without delay for the purposes of performing specific responsibilities. 

 
(2)  The Director shall have the right to set up on the User’s property, or require 

installation of, such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling and/or metering of the User’s 
operations. 

 
(3)  The Director may require the User to install monitoring equipment as necessary. The 

sampling and monitoring equipment at the Premises shall be maintained at all times in a safe 
and proper operating condition by the User at its own expense.  All devices used to measure 
wastewater flow and quality shall be calibrated appropriately so as to ensure their accuracy. 

 
(4)  Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the Premises to 

be inspected or sampled shall be promptly removed by the User at the written or verbal request 

650

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 21 of 69 

 
of the Director and shall not be replaced.  The costs of clearing such access shall be borne by 
the User. 

 
(5)  Unreasonable delays in allowing the Director access to the User’s premises shall be 

a violation of this chapter. 
 
B.  If the Director has been refused access to the Premises, including any building, 

structure, or property, or any part thereof, and are able to demonstrate probable cause to 
believe that there may be a violation of this chapter, or that there is a need to inspect and/or 
sample as part of a routine inspection and sampling procedures of the City designed to verify 
compliance with this chapter or any permit or order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall 
public health, safety and welfare of the community, the Director may seek issuance of a search 
warrant from the Superior Court. 

 Sec. 22-21. Construction and application. 

This article shall be interpreted to assure consistency with the requirements of applicable 
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, and permits, and with the purposes and intent of this 
article. (Ord. No. 2001-22, § 3, 8-22-01; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 
4, 5-20-15) 

Sec. 22-22. Prohibited Discharges into a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4). 

Except as provided in section 22-23, it is unlawful for any Person to cause, either 
individually or jointly, any Discharge of any substance or material to a MS4 that results in or 
contributes to a violation of this chapter, including but not limited to: 

A.  Sewage; 

B.  Discharges of wash water resulting from the hosing or cleaning of gas stations, auto 
repair garages, or other types of Automotive Service Establishments; 

C.  Discharges resulting from the cleaning, repair, or maintenance of any type of 
equipment, machinery, or facility, including but not limited to motor vehicles, cement-related 
equipment, and porta-potty servicing; 

D.  Discharges of wash water from mobile operations, including but not limited to mobile 
automobile washing, steam cleaning, power washing, and carpet cleaning; 

E.  Discharges of wash water from the cleaning or hosing of impervious surfaces in 
municipal, industrial, commercial, or residential areas, including but not limited to parking lots, 
streets, sidewalks, driveways, patios, plazas, work yards, and outdoor eating and drinking 
areas; 

F.  Discharges or runoff from material storage areas containing chemicals, fuels, grease, 
oil, or other hazardous materials; 

651

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 22 of 69 

 
G.  Discharges of pool or fountain water containing chlorine, biocides, or other chemicals 

or pH levels that have not been neutralized, including but not limited to discharges of pool filter 
or fountain filter backwash water;  

H.  Discharges of sediment, pet waste, vegetation clippings, or other landscape or 
construction-related wastes; 

I.  Discharges of food-related wastes (e.g., grease, fish processing, and restaurant 
kitchen mat and trash bin wash water); and 

J.  Discharges of potable irrigation runoff or overspray water. 

Sec. 22-23. Exceptions to Prohibited Discharges into a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
System (MS4). 

 The following Discharges are exempt from the prohibition set forth in section 22-22: 

A.  Stormwater; 

B.  Any Discharge or connection regulated under a NPDES Permit issued to the 
Discharger and administered by the State of California pursuant to Division 7 of the California 
Water Code, provided that the Discharger is in compliance with all requirements of the NPDES 
Permit and other applicable laws and regulations; 

C.  Discharges from the following activities that are not identified by the RWQCB as a 
source of Pollutants to receiving waters: 

(1)  diverted stream flows;  

(2)  rising ground waters; 

(3)  uncontaminated groundwater infiltration to MS4s; 

(4)  springs; 

(5)  flows from riparian habitats and wetlands; 

(6)  potable water sources; 

(7)  foundation drains; and 

(8)  footing drains. 

D.  Discharges from the following activities when the controls listed below are 
implemented: 

(1)  Air conditioning condensation.  Condensation Discharges should be directed to 
landscaped areas or other pervious surfaces; 

652

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 23 of 69 

 
(2)  Individual Residential Vehicle Washing.  Discharge of wash water should be directed 

to landscaped areas or other pervious surfaces when feasible.  The volume of water, washing 
detergent, and other vehicle wash products should be minimized.  Any other practices that will 
prevent the Discharge of Pollutants from Residential Vehicle Washing are encouraged; 

(3)  Dechlorinated swimming pool Discharges.  Discharges from a dechlorinated 
swimming pool to a MS4 that are pH-neutralized and are free from residual chlorine, algaecide, 
filter backwash, and other Pollutants.  Discharge of saline pool water to the MS4 is prohibited 
and must be directed to sanitary sewer, with desalination and notification to the City required 
prior to the discharge.  

(4)  Flows from emergency firefighting: 

a.  non-emergency firefighting Discharges must be addressed by appropriate 
BMPs to prevent Pollutants associated with such Discharges to enter a MS4; 

b.  during emergency situations, BMPs should not interfere with immediate 
emergency response operations or impact the public health and safety.  Priority of efforts should 
first be directed toward life and property before the environment; 

E.  Any Discharge that the Director or the RWQCB determines in writing is necessary for 
the protection of the public health and safety; 

F.  Notwithstanding the exemptions provided by subsections (A) through (D), if the 
RWQCB or Director determines that any of these otherwise-exempt Discharges cause or 
significantly contribute to violations of any Plan Standard, convey significant quantities of 
Pollutants to surface waters, or are a danger to public health or safety, such Discharges shall be 
prohibited from entering a MS4.  (Ord. No. 2001-22, § 3, 8-22-01; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-
2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 4, 5-20-15)  

Sec. 22-24. Discharge in violation of permit. 

 It is unlawful for any Person to cause either individually or jointly any Discharge to the 
MS4 that results in or contributes to a violation of the Order. (Ord. No. 2001-22, § 3, 8-22-01; 
Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 4, 5-20-15) 

Sec. 22-25. Illegal Connection prohibited. 

It is unlawful for any Person to establish, use, or maintain any Illegal Connection to a 
MS4.  This section expressly supersedes any City permit or earlier authorization for a 
Discharge, but is subject to the exceptive provisions of section 22-23. (Ord. No. 200-22, § 3, 8-
22-01; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 4, 5-20-15) 

 Sec. 22-26. Reduction of Pollutants in Stormwater. 

Any Person engaged in activities that may result in Pollutants entering a MS4 shall, to 
the maximum extent practicable, undertake all measures to reduce the risk of non-Stormwater 
or Pollutant Discharges.  At the discretion of the Director, the following requirements shall be 
applied to any Persons engaged in such activities: 

653

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 24 of 69 

 
A.  SWPPP.  The Director shall require any business in the City that is engaged in 

activities that may result in Pollutant Discharges to develop and implement a SWPPP, which 
must include an employee training program.  Business activities that require a SWPPP include 
maintenance, storage, manufacturing, assembly, equipment operations, vehicle loading or 
fueling, or cleanup procedures that are carried out partially or wholly outdoors. 

B.  Parking lots and impervious surface.  Persons owning or operating a parking lot or 
impervious surfaces used for similar purposes shall clean those surfaces frequently and 
thoroughly to prevent the Discharge of Pollutants to a MS4 to the maximum extent practicable.  
Sweepings or cleaning residue from parking lots or impervious surfaces shall not be swept or 
otherwise made or allowed to go into any gutter or roadway. 

C.  Street parking.  No Person shall stand or park any vehicle or equipment on any 
public street if such vehicle or equipment is determined to be leaking oils or other fluids that 
contribute or have the potential to contribute to a Discharge of Pollutants to a MS4 or the 
receiving waters. 

 D.  Trash areas. 

(1)  Trash, recycling, and organic waste storage areas shall be located in a roofed, 
four-sided enclosure.  The enclosure may not include any Storm Drain Inlets.  These storage 
facilities must have a grade-break at the entrance or be otherwise designed to prevent liquids 
draining from the enclosure. 

(2)  Trash areas shall be kept free of debris and liquid waste at all times.  Trash 
dumpster container lids shall remain closed when not actively in use. 

(3)  Properties with existing trash areas without a roofed, four-sided enclosure may 
be required to install such enclosure following the receipt of a Stormwater violation notice. 

E.  New developments and redevelopments.  Any Person performing construction work 
in the City shall, to the maximum extent practicable, prevent Pollutants from entering a MS4 by 
complying with all applicable local ordinances and provisions of any general construction 
NPDES Permit issued by the State Water Resources Control Board.  The Director shall 
establish controls on the volume and rate of Stormwater runoff from new developments and 
redevelopments as may be reasonably necessary to minimize the Discharge and transport of 
Pollutants.  Any Person performing construction work in the City is specifically prohibited from 
Discharging retained storm water with turbidity in excess of 500 nephelometric turbidity units 
(NTU) from the construction site.  

F.  Compliance with general permits.  Each industrial Discharger, Discharger associated 
with construction activity, or other Discharger subject to any general Stormwater NPDES Permit 
issued by the EPA, the State Water Resources Control Board, or the RWQCB, shall comply with 
all requirements of such permit, which may include but is not limited to the general industrial 
Stormwater permit, the general construction activity Stormwater permit, and the general 
dewatering permit. 

G.  Coordination with hazardous materials release response plans and inventory.  Any 
activity subject to the hazardous materials release response plan, Chapter 6.95 of the California 

654

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 25 of 69 

 
Health and Safety Code, shall include in that plan provisions for compliance with this section, 
including the prohibitions on non-Stormwater Discharges and Illegal Discharges, and the 
requirement to reduce release of Pollutants to the maximum extent practicable. 

H.  Compliance with BMPs.  Every Person undertaking any activity or use of a Premises 
that may cause or contribute to Stormwater Pollution or Contamination, an Illegal Discharge, or 
a non-Stormwater Discharge shall comply with BMPs, guidelines, or Pollution control 
requirements as may be reasonably established by the Director. 

I.  Maintenance of structural BMPs for function and appearance.  Property owners with 
structural BMPs shall maintain those BMPs associated with their property and its development. 

J.  Grading, demolition, ground clearing, stockpiling.  All work shall be done in 
accordance with the requirements of this code and any permits required by the City or other 
applicable agencies. 

K.  Ground surface landscape preservation.  No Person shall remove ground surface 
landscaping that could result in erosion without installation of BMPs such as Pollution control 
measures.  

L.  All stored liquid waste or bulk storage of new liquid products shall be stored under 
cover and have secondary containment. 

M.  Compliance with the City of Escondido Stormwater Design Manual and Jurisdictional 
Runoff Management Program.  Every Person undertaking any activity or use of a Premises that 
may cause or contribute to Stormwater Pollution or Contamination, an Illegal Discharge, or a 
non-Stormwater Discharge shall comply with design, reporting, certification, and other 
requirements set forth in the City’s Stormwater Design Manual and Jurisdictional Runoff 
Management Program as if fully set forth herein.  The Director may administratively interpret 
and apply any requirements consistent with industry practice.  (Ord. No. 2001-22, § 3, 8-22-01; 
Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 4, 5-20-15; Ord. No. 2018-01 § 6, 4-4-
18) 

Sec. 22-27. Containment and notification of spills. 

Any Person owning or occupying a Premises who has knowledge of any release of 
Pollutants or non-Stormwater from those Premises that may enter a MS4 shall immediately take 
all reasonable action to contain the release and minimize any non-Stormwater Discharge.  Such 
Person shall notify the City as soon as practical. (Ord. No. 2001-22, § 3, 8-22-01; Ord. No. 
2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, § 4, 5-20-15) 

 Sec. 22-28. Protection of Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) and Watercourses. 

Every Person owning or occupying property through which a private or public 
Watercourse passes shall: 

A.  keep and maintain that part of the Watercourse within the property free of trash, 
debris, and other obstacles that would pollute, contaminate, or block the flow of water through 
the drainage feature in a manner that may cause flooding; 

655

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 26 of 69 

 
B.  maintain existing structures within or adjacent to a Watercourse so that those 

structures will not become a hazard to the use, function, or physical integrity of the drainage 
feature; and 

C.  not remove healthy bank vegetation beyond that necessary for maintenance, nor 
remove vegetation in such a manner as to increase the vulnerability of the Watercourse to 
erosion.  (Ord. No. 2001-22, § 3, 8-22-01; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2015-09, 
§ 4, 5-20-15) 

Sec. 22-29. Maintenance agreement. 

A.  The owner of a priority development project must execute a Stormwater Control 
Facility Maintenance Agreement with the City prior to occupancy of the development.  The 
agreement, which shall be on a form prescribed by the City and approved by the City Attorney, 
shall be recorded and run with the land and be binding upon the owner; the owner’s heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns; any Person having or acquiring any right, 
title, or interest in the subject property or project; and any subsequent owner or operator of the 
subject property or project. (Ord. No. 2015-09, § 4, 5-20-15) 

B.  The Director or their designee are hereby authorized, on behalf of the City, to 
execute all contracts and agreements pursuant to this chapter, including but not limited to 
Stormwater Control Facility Maintenance Agreements. 

 Secs. 22-30—22-32. Reserved. 

ARTICLE 3. HARMFUL WATERS AND WASTES  

Note 

* State law reference—Water quality, generally, Water Code § 13000 et seq. 

Sec. 22-33. Special arrangements to treat Industrial Wastes. 

No statement contained in this article shall be construed as preventing any special 
agreement or arrangement between the City and any industrial concern whereby Industrial 
Waste of unusual strength or character may be accepted by the City for treatment, except 
subject to the City’s prior written consent, with conditions and payment required from the 
industrial concern.  (Code 1957, § 8319; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 
3, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-35. When Discharge of industrial cooling, process waters in Sewers, is permitted.  

Industrial Cooling Water or unpolluted process waters may be Discharged only after 
prior written approval from the Director, into a Sanitary Sewer.  (Code 1957, § 8311; Ord. No. 
2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 3, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2018-01, § 7, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-36. Reserved. 

Sec. 22-37. Specific Discharges prohibited. 

656

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 27 of 69 

 
A.  No Person shall enter, obstruct, uncover, or tamper with any portion of the POTW, or 

connect to it, or dispose anything into the POTW or any Sewer or Sewer manhole, without the 
written permission of the Director and subject to the Director’s Approval. 

B.  No Person shall remove or demolish any building or structures with Plumbing fixtures 
connected directly or indirectly to the POTW or Sewer without first notifying the Director of such 
intention.  All openings in or leading to the POTW or Sewer caused by such work shall be 
sealed watertight and inspected by the Director before being backfilled. 

C.  No Person shall fill or backfill over, cause to cover, or obstruct access to any Sewer 
manhole. 

D.  No Person shall erect any improvement, structure, or building over any part of the 
POTW or Sewer without the written permission of the Director and subject to the Director’s 
Approval.  

 E.  Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, no Person or User shall introduce, 
cause to be introduced, Discharge, or cause to be Discharged any of the following Pollutants, 
Wastewater, waste, or other substances into a POTW or Sewer: 

(1)  liquid, vapor, or Wastewater having a temperature higher than 104 degrees 
Fahrenheit (40 degrees C), or that will inhibit biological activity in the Treatment Plant resulting 
in Interference, and in no case Wastewater that causes the temperature at the introduction into 
the Treatment Plant to exceed 104 degrees Fahrenheit. 

(2)  substances that may contain more than 100 parts per million, by weight, of FOG; 

(3)  Pollutants, including oxygen-demanding Pollutants (e.g., BOD, COD), gasoline, 
benzene, naphtha, solvent, fuel oil, or any other liquid, solid, or gas, released in a Discharge at 
a flow rate or Pollutant concentration that, either singly or in combination/interaction with other 
Pollutants in violation of the City’s local limits, would cause or tend to cause Interference with 
the POTW or flammable or explosive conditions to result in the Sewage System; 

(4)  Garbage; 

(5)  solid or viscous substances in amounts that will cause obstruction of the flow in 
the POTW resulting in Interference, including but not limited to ashes, cinders, sand, mud, 
plaster (including pool plaster), straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, wood, 
paunch manure, or construction materials (e.g. concrete or concrete-like materials);  

(6)  Wastewater or other substance having a pH less than 6.0 or more than 10.0, or 
otherwise causing corrosive structural damage to the POTW, structures, or equipment;  

(7)  Pollutants containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in such 
quantities that, alone or in combination with other substances, may create a hazard for humans, 
animals, or the local environment; interfere detrimentally with Wastewater Treatment processes; 
cause a public Nuisance; or cause any hazardous condition to occur in the POTW or Sewage 
System; 

657

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 28 of 69 

 
(8)  Wastewater or other substances containing BOD or TSS of such character and 

quantity that unusual attention or expense is required to handle such materials at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Normal strength wastes are considered to be 300 mg/l of BOD 
and 300 mg/l of TSS; 

(9)  noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, solids, or Wastewater that, either singly or 
by interaction with other wastes, is sufficient to create a public Nuisance or a hazard to life, or to 
prevent entry into a Sewer for maintenance or repair; 

(10)  Dispersed petroleum , non-biodegradable cutting oils, biodegradable FOG, or 
products of mineral oil in excessive concentrations that will cause adverse effects on the 
wastewater system or result in Interference or Pass Through;  

(11)  waste containing substances that may precipitate, solidify, or become viscous 
at temperatures between 50 and 100 degrees Fahrenheit. 

(12)  Wastewater that imparts color that cannot be removed through the treatment 
process, including but not limited to dye wastes, Pigments, and vegetable tanning solutions, that 
consequently imparts color to the Treatment Plant’s effluent; 

(13)  waste containing excessive quantities of iron, boron, chromium, phenols, plastic 
resins, copper, nickel, zinc, lead, mercury, cadmium, selenium, arsenic, or any other material 
toxic to humans, animals, or the local environment, or to biological or other Wastewater 
Treatment processes; 

(14)  ; Stormwater; surface water, groundwater; street drainage; subsurface 
drainage; roof drainage; swimming pool drainage; yard drainage; water from yard fountains, 
ponds, or lawn sprays; deionized water; industrial process water, noncontact Cooling Water;; or 
similar sources of water into any sanitary sewer system. 

(15)  water added for the purpose of diluting a Discharge, as a partial or complete 
substitute for adequate treatment to achieve compliance with this chapter unless expressly 
authorized by any applicable Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Requirement; 

(16)  substances or materials containing an excessive quantity of chlorine or other 
chemical compound used for disinfecting purposes; 

(17)  excessive amounts of chlorinated hydrocarbon or organic phosphorus type 
compounds; 

(18)  enzymes, microbes, or similar products added to a wastestream that have not 
authorized pursuant to the Director’s Approval; 

(19)  Discharges containing a Pollutant that causes Pass Through or Interference 
with the POTW;  

(20)  Discharges of beer or wine product or expired beer or wine or distilled spirits;  

658

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 29 of 69 

 
(21)  Medical Waste or pharmaceutical wastes, including but not limited to discarded 

prescriptions or over-the-counter human or veterinary drugs.  
 

(22)  waste containing kerosene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, 
aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, or pesticides. 
 

(23)  a Pollutant that creates a fire or explosive hazard in the POTW or Sewer, 
including but not limited to wastestreams with a closed-cup flashpoint of less than 140 degrees 
Fahrenheit (60 degrees Celsius) using the test methods specified in 40 C.F.R. section 261.21. 

 
 
(24)  a Pollutant that results in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within 

the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems; 
 
(25)  Trucked or hauled Pollutants, except at Discharge points designated by the 

Director in accordance with this chapter. 
 
(26)  Wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except in compliance 

with applicable state, federal, or local laws, regulations, or orders. 
 
(27)  Sludges, screenings, unreasonably large amounts of TSS, or other residues 

from the Pretreatment of Industrial Wastes. 
 
(28)  Wastewater causing, alone or in conjunction with other sources, a Treatment 

Plant’s effluent to fail a toxicity test. 
 
(29)  Detergents, surface-active agents, or other substances that may cause 

excessive foaming in the POTW. 
 
(30)  Any pollutants, material, or substance that causes incrustations, scales, or 

precipitates on Sewer walls or other adverse effects on the Wastewater System.  
 
(31) Any strongly odorous compounds or compounds tending to create odors. 
 
(32) Any unreasonably large amount of suspended solids.  
 
(33) Deionized water, steam condensate, distilled water, reverse osmosis backwash, 

or anything creating brine in amounts that the City deems excessive. 
 

Sec. 22-38. FOG Removal Equipment required; type, construction, location. 

A.  FOG Removal Equipment shall be provided in all cases required by published 
building codes, unless in the sole and absolute opinion of the Director or a designee, in writing, 
FOG Removal Equipment is not necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing 
grease; potentially hazardous wastes in excessive amounts; or any flammable wastes, sand, or 
other harmful ingredients.  Living quarters or dwelling units with a commercial kitchen must have 
FOG Removal Equipment. 

B.  Where installed, all FOG Removal Equipment shall be of a type and capacity subject 
to the Director’s Approval, and shall be located as to be readily and easily accessible for 

659

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 30 of 69 

 
cleaning and inspection. They shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective 
operation by the owner at his or her expense. Broken, deteriorating or undersized equipment 
will require repair or replacement by the owner at his or her expense. No modifications or 
removal of equipment shall be performed without written consent and approval from the city. 
(Code 1957, § 8316; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 3, 12-14-11) 

C.  The Director shall have the authority to promulgate rules, regulations, and 
requirements consistent with the provisions of this chapter and state and federal requirements, 
to regulate the type, capacity, placement, and maintenance of FOG Removal Equipment.  A 
violation of any such rule, regulation, or requirement shall be deemed a violation of this chapter. 

D.  When needed for maintenance, the owner must install cleanouts for maintenance 
and inspection purposes at the owner’s cost.  Each separate chamber of the Grease Interceptor 
must have a manhole lid to access, inspect, and maintain all of the internal Plumbing. 

E.  All FOG Removal Equipment must have an approved sample tee or sample box 
installed on the effluent Discharge line.  The sample tee or box shall be installed on any 
equipment that does not currently have an approved sample point, subject to the Director’s 
Approval, to ensure compliance with local Discharge limits set forth by this chapter.  The sample 
point shall be installed at the business owner’s expense, and shall be approved by the 
Pretreatment department and building department prior to installation. (Code 1957, § 8313; Ord. 
No. 82-97, § 1, 9-29-82; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 3, 12-14-11; 
Ord. No. 2018-01 § 8, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-39. Maintenance of preliminary treatment facilities and equipment. 

Where installed, all preliminary treatment facilities and City-approved Pretreatment 
equipment, such as Grease Traps, Grease Interceptors, clarifiers, Dental Amalgam Separators, 
and sand oil separators, shall be continuously maintained by the owner at the owner’s expense, 
in satisfactory and effective operation at all times.  Frequency of maintenance will be subject to 
the authority of source control inspectors to assure compliance with Discharge limitations and 
BMPs.  The owner shall repair or replace any broken, deteriorating, or undersized equipment at 
the owner’s expense.  No modifications or removal of equipment shall be performed without 
written consent and approval from the City.  

Sec. 22-40. Preliminary treatment of water and waste. 

A.  Discharge of the following into a Public Sewer shall be subject to the Director’s 
Approval:  

(1)  water or waste with a five-day BOD greater than 300 mg/l;  

(2)  water or waste containing more than 300 mg/l of Suspended Solids;  

(3)  water or waste containing any quantity of substances having the characteristics 
described in section 22-37(E); or  

(4)  water or waste having an average daily flow greater than 25,000 gpd.  

660

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 31 of 69 

 
B.  Where necessary in the opinion of the Director, the owner shall provide, at his or her 

expense, preliminary treatment of a water or waste that may be necessary to:  

(1)  reduce the BOD of the water or waste to 300 mg/l; 

(2)  reduce the Suspended Solids of the water or waste to 300 mg/l;  

(3)  reduce an objectionable characteristic or a constituent of the water or waste to 
within the maximum limits provided for in section 22-37; or  

(4)  control the quantities and rates of Discharge of the waters or wastes.  

C.  Plans, specifications, and any other pertinent information relating to proposed 
preliminary treatment facilities shall be submitted to the Director and is subject to the Director’s 
Approval, and no construction of such facilities shall be commenced until such approval is 
obtained in writing. (Code 1957, § 8315; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 
3, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2018-01 § 9, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-41. Reserved. 
 
Sec. 22-42. Measurements, tests, and analyses of water and waste. 

All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to 
which reference is made in this chapter shall be determined in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 
136 or the latest edition of Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater and 
shall be determined at the control manhole or upon suitable samples taken at the control 
manhole.  In the event that no special manhole has been required, the control manhole will be a 
sample port on the downstream side of the Grease Interceptor, Grease Trap, clarifier, Dental 
Amalgam Separator, or sand oil separator.  The sample port will be installed by the owner of the 
facility at the owner’s expense.  The location of the sample port is subject to the Director’s 
Approval. (Code 1957, § 8319; Ord. No. 76-18, § 4, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 82-97, § 3, 9-29-82; Ord. 
No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 3, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-43. Dental Amalgam Separators. 

The Director shall have the authority to promulgate rules, regulations, and requirements 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter and state and federal requirements, to regulate the 
type, capacity, placement, and maintenance of Dental Amalgam Separators required to be 
installed by establishments of health practitioners primarily engaged in the independent practice 
of general or specialized dentistry, or dental surgery.  A violation of such rules, regulations, or 
requirements shall be deemed a violation of this chapter.  

Sec. 22-44.  National Categorical Pretreatment Standards 
 

Users must comply with the Categorical Pretreatment Standards found at 40 C.F.R. 
Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 405–471. 
 

661

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 32 of 69 

 
A.  Where a Categorical Pretreatment Standard is expressed only in terms of either the 

mass or the concentration of a Pollutant in Wastewater, the Director may impose equivalent 
concentration or mass limits in accordance with subsection (B).  See 40 C.F.R. section 403.6(c).  

 
B.  When the limits in a Categorical Pretreatment Standard are expressed only in terms 

of mass of Pollutant per unit of production, the Director may convert the limits to equivalent 
limitations expressed either as mass of Pollutant Discharged per day or effluent concentration 
for purposes of calculating effluent limitations applicable to individual Industrial Users.  See 40 
C.F.R. section 403.6(c)(2).  

 
C.  When Wastewater subject to a Categorical Pretreatment Standard is mixed with 

Wastewater not regulated by the same Categorical Pretreatment Standard, the Director shall 
impose an alternate limit in accordance with 40 C.F.R section 403.6(e). 
 
Secs. 22-45—22-53. Reserved. 

 
ARTICLE 4. SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 

 
Sec. 22-54. Wastewater enterprise fund created. 

There is created a Wastewater enterprise fund.  (Code 1957, § 8335: Ord. No. 76-13, § 
5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-55. Billing, payment procedures generally. 

A.  Except as provided in subsection (B): 

(1)  The Sewer service charge shall be billed to the owner or occupant of the 
Premises on the same bill the City water service charge is billed. 

(2)  The Sewer service charge shall be due and payable at the time and in the 
manner provided by the City for the payment of water bills. 

(3)  A combined bill for the water service charge and Sewer service charge shall be 
paid in its entirety and shall not be severed for the separate payment of either portion thereof. 

B.  When the Premises receives water service from a source other than the City, the 
Sewer service charge shall be billed monthly to the owner or the account holder for the water 
service in a separate bill. (Code 1957, § 8331; Ord. No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 94-18, § 
1, 6-1-94; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-56. When charges begin. 

Charges for Sewer service shall begin on the same date as water service to the 
Premises. (Code 1957, § 8332; Ord. No. 73-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 94-18, § 1, 6-1-95; Ord. 
No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-57. Duty to pay. 

662

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 33 of 69 

 
In addition to any and all other fees, charges, or assessments provided by the City, the 

owner or occupant of any Premises connected with the Sewage System of the City shall pay a 
Sewer service charge as required by this article. (Code 1957, § 8330; Ord. No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-
76; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-58. Delinquent payments; penalty; remedies. 

A.  A penalty shall be added to any account for which payment in full is not received 
before close of business on the due date.  Penalties shall be in an amount set by resolution of 
the City Council. 

B.  In addition to the penalties imposed, any Person who fails to pay a bill in full before 
the close of business on the due date shall pay interest and collection fees in amounts set by 
resolution of the City Council. 

C.  In no case shall the due date be on a date sooner than 19 days from the bill date.  
Water service or Sewer service shall not be supplied again to such delinquent owner or 
occupant until all delinquent Sewer service charges plus penalties thereon have been paid.  If 
the Sewer lateral serving the delinquent owner or occupant is disconnected by the City, Sewer 
service shall not be supplied again to the owner or occupant until the property owner pays to the 
City the cost of disconnecting and reconnecting the lateral.  The Sewer service charge, 
penalties, disconnection charge, and reconnection charge may be collected by suit in any court 
of competent jurisdiction or in any other manner authorized by law. (Code 1957, § 8333; Ord. 
No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 94-18 § 1, 6-1-94; Ord. No. 94-40, § 2, 12-14-94; Ord. No. 
2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-59. Rates. 

The Sewer service charge for single-family dwellings, multiple dwellings, mobilehomes, 
schools, churches, and other uses shall be set by resolution of the City Council from time to 
time. (Code 1957, § 8330.1; Ord. No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 81-32, § 1, 5-20-81; Ord. 
No. 82-74, § 1, 8-11-82; Ord. No. 83-32, § 1, 6-8-83; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. 
No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Secs. 22-60—22-64. Reserved. 

Sec. 22-65. Rate for Premises used for commercial and industrial purposes; method of 
computation. 

A.  The Sewer service charge for Premises used for commercial and industrial purposes 
shall be based on the Premises’ proportionate share of capital cost recovery for treatment, land 
outfall and ocean outfall facilities, bond interest, operational and maintenance costs of 
treatment, ocean outfall and collection facilities, and infiltration/inflow expense. 

B.  For Industrial Users with BOD greater than 300 mg/l, the Sewer service charge shall 
be based on an analysis of Wastewater samples taken from time to time, and at least annually, 
and measurements of Discharge into the Public Sewer.  

663

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 34 of 69 

C. All other commercial and Industrial Users shall be charged a Sewer service charge
set by resolution of the City Council from time to time. 

D. The Sewer service charge shall also include a charge to be set by resolution of the
City Council from time to time for operation and maintenance of the collection system and 
infiltration/inflow expense. (Code 1957, 8330.7; Ord. No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 81-32, § 
7, 5-20-81; Ord. No. 82-74, § 7, 8-11-82; Ord. No. 82-97, § 4, 9-29-82; Ord. No. 83-32, § 7, 6-8-
83; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-66. Charge when service discontinued. 

The Sewer service charge shall remain in effect until the water service is terminated. 
(Code 1957, § 8334; Ord. No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 94-18, § 1, 6-1-94; Ord. No. 2008-
07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-67. Disposition of moneys collected. 

All revenues derived from the Sewer service charge shall be paid into the Wastewater 
enterprise fund and shall be used only for the following purposes and in the priority determined 
by the City Council from time to time: 

A. The acquisition, construction, reconstruction, maintenance, and operation of
sanitation or Sewage facilities and to repay federal or state loans or advances made to the City 
for the construction or reconstruction of such facilities; provided, however, that such revenues 
shall not be used for the acquisition or construction of new local street Sewers or laterals as 
distinguished from main trunk, interceptor, and outfall Sewers. 

B. Any lawful purpose authorized by resolution of the City Council in connection with
bonds sold and issued or to be sold and issued, pursuant to the California Revenue Bond Law 
of 1941. 

C. Any lawful purpose authorized by the City Council pursuant to a present or future
state statute. (Code 1957, § 8335; Ord. No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-
2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-68. Rate for Discharge of groundwater remediation programs. 

The Sewer service charge for the Discharge of groundwater into the Sewage System 
shall be set by resolution of the City Council from time to time.  Any Discharger of Industrial 
Waste into the Sewage System is required to obtain a Wastewater Discharge Permit pursuant 
to Article 8 of this chapter.  Groundwater may only be Discharged at a specific location to be 
determined by the Director. (Ord. No. 76-13, § 5, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 83-32, § 8, 6-8-83; Ord. No. 
2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 4, 12-14-11) 

 Secs. 22-69—22-79. Reserved. 

ARTICLE 5. PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 

Sec. 22-80. Use of public Sanitary Sewer system. 

664

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 35 of 69 

 
A.  Where a public Sanitary Sewer is not available, the Building Sewer shall be 

connected to a private Sewage disposal system complying with all of the requirements of the 
Department of Public Health of the County of San Diego or other state or local agency having 
jurisdiction.  The owner of a private Sewage disposal system shall operate and maintain such 
system in a sanitary manner at all times at no expense to the City.   

B.  At such times as a public Sanitary Sewer becomes available to a property served by 
a private Sewage disposal system, the property owner may directly connect to the Public Sewer 
at the owner’s expense.  Upon connection to the Public Sewer, to maintain safety: 

(1) Any septic tank, cesspool, and similar private Sewage disposal facilities shall be 
abandoned, either by removal and backfilled with earthen material or sealed and backfilled with 
sand in a manner satisfactory to the City; and  

(2) The Sewage System existing on the property shall be pumped and cleaned.  All 
applications and procedures for connection to the Public Sewer shall be followed as directed by 
the City code.  

C.  If a private a Sewage disposal system malfunctions or fails to comply with all of the 
requirements of the Department of Public Health of the County of San Diego or other state or 
local agency having jurisdiction, the Director may require the property owner to directly connect 
to a Public Sewer if the following conditions are met:  

(1)  The property is used by human beings; 

(2)  The property abuts a City street, alley, or right-of-way in which a Public Sewer 
exists; and 

(3)  The existing Public Sewer is within 200 feet of the property.  

(Ord. No. 2011-18, § 5, 12-14-11)  

Sec. 22-81. Enforcement. 

It shall be the duty of the Director to see that there is compliance with the terms and 
provisions of this article. (Code 1957, § 8432; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-
18, § 5, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-82. Adoption of county regulations. 

Private subsurface Sewage disposal units and systems shall be designed, placed, and 
maintained in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the Department of Public 
Health of the County of San Diego or other state or local agency having jurisdiction.  A violation 
of any such rule or regulation shall be deemed a violation of this article and may be enforced 
accordingly. (Code 1957, § 8415; Ord. No. 82-97, § 5, 9-29-82; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-
2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 5, 12-14-11) 

Secs. 22-83—22-149. Reserved. 

665

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 36 of 69 

 
ARTICLE 6. SEWER CONNECTION FEES 

Sec. 22-150. Purpose and intent. 

The continual increase in the development of building units in the City has created a 
need for the expansion of Sewer facilities.  This has also created a need for additional revenues 
to finance such Sewer facilities.  Thus, it is the intent of the City Council that each builder of 
each new building unit to be constructed in the City shall, prior to the construction, pay a fee as 
described in this article.  Further, it is the intent of the City Council that all revenue generated by 
the payment of such fee shall be used for the improvement and development of Sewer facilities 
only. (Ord. No. 75-24, § 1, 6-4-75; Ord. No. 81-1, § 1, 5-20-81; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-
2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 6, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-151. Sewer connection fees. 

A.  Every Person constructing, reconstructing, enlarging, or adding to any building in the 
City or proposing in any manner to connect to the City’s Public Sewer system shall pay to the 
City fees as set by resolution of the City Council from time to time. 

B.  Any applicable Sewer connection fee credit shall be determined pursuant to 
Escondido Municipal Code sections 6-442, 6-445, or 6-446. 

C.  Any Person who relocates an existing building that is connected to the Public Sewer 
to another location in the City shall pay all applicable Sewer connection fees required by this 
article for the new location.  If the site to which the building is relocated has a credit available as 
described in Escondido Municipal Code sections 6-442, 6-445, or 6-446, such credit may be 
used to satisfy, in whole or in part, the Sewer connection fee, subject to the provisions of those 
sections. (Ord. No. 75-24, § 1, 6-4-75; Ord. No. 81-31, § 2, 5-20-81; Ord. No. 82-55, § 1, 6-9-82; 
Ord. No. 82-65, § 1, 8-11-82; Ord. No. 83-22, § 9, 6-8-83; Ord. No. 84-13, § 1, 2-15-84; Ord. 
No. 89-25, § 1, 6-7-89; Ord. No. 91-30, § 3, 8-7-91; Ord. No. 92-40, §§ 4—6, 10-7-92; Ord. No. 
2003-16, § 2, 6-11-03; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2008-21(R), § 8, 10-22-08; 
Ord. No. 2011-18, § 6, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-152. Time of payment of fees; refund authorized. 

A.  Subject to subsection (B), the fees required under section 22-151 shall be paid upon 
the issuance of a building permit for the construction of any building unit, or upon the renewal or 
extension of any such building permit; provided that, in the event of such removal or extension, 
credit shall be given for any fee paid pursuant to the schedule of charges in effect before the 
effective date of the ordinance codified in this article.  No prepayment of the fees required under 
section 22-151 shall be allowed and no Sewer-connection permit shall be issued until the 
required fees have been paid and a building permit has been issued for the structure for which 
Sewer service is sought. 

B.  Other than as set forth in subsection (A), any fee paid pursuant to this article shall be 
paid one time only. 

C.  In the event a building permit, or renewal or extension thereof, is not required for the 
property seeking connection to the Public Sewer, the fees required under section 22-151 shall 

666

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 37 of 69 

 
be paid as a condition of receiving permission to connect to the Public Sewer. (Ord. No. 75-24, 
§ 1, 6-1-75; Ord. No. 81-31, § 3, 5-20-81; Ord. No. 81-87, § 1, 12-9-81; Ord. No. 89-25, § 1, 6-7-
89; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 6, 12-14-11) 

 Secs. 22-153—22-160. Reserved. 

ARTICLE 7. SEWER CONNECTION LATERALS 

Sec. 22-161. Installations, repairs, alterations, replacements prohibited; exceptions. 

No Person other than the City shall install, repair, alter, or replace any Sewer 
Connection Lateral within the City, with the exception of: 

A.  a Sewer Connection Lateral that is installed, repaired, altered, or replaced as a part 
of a contract to which the City is a party; or 

B.  a Sewer Connection Lateral that is being constructed by a Person as a part of a 
contract between the contractor and the owners of property to be benefited, when the contract is 
for the construction of Sewer lines that are or are intended to become public property, and when 
the work is being performed under the general supervision and inspection of the City. (Ord. No. 
76-13, § 6, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 7, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-162. Licenses required to install, repair, alter, or replace Sewer Connection Laterals. 

All Persons other than the City shall be licensed by the California Contractors State 
License Board to install, repair, alter, or replace Sewer Connection Laterals and shall have a 
current and valid license to do such business within the City. (Ord. No. 76-13, § 6, 5-26-76; Ord. 
No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 7, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-163. Installations, repairs, alterations, replacements by Persons other than City subject 
to regulations. 

Sewer Connection Laterals that are installed, repaired, altered, or replaced by any 
Person, other than the City, as provided in section 22-161, shall conform to the requirements of 
the applicable sections of the standard specifications of the City for construction work in public 
places, the appropriate sections of the City Plumbing regulations, and all other applicable codes 
and ordinances enforced in the City.  A construction plan must be submitted and approved by 
the City prior to any construction of a Sewer Connection Lateral. (Ord. No. 73-16, § 6, 5-26-76; 
Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 7, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-164. Reserved. 

 Sec. 22-165. Maintenance of Sewer Connection Lateral. 

A.  Except as provided in subsection (E), the property owner shall be responsible for all 
maintenance, repair, replacement, cleaning, and removal of blockages in the Sewer Connection 
Lateral. 

667

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 38 of 69 

 
B.  Except as provided in subsection (D), the property owner shall be responsible for 

locating, exposing, and maintaining the Property Line Cleanout for the purpose of inspection, 
cleaning, and removal of blockages in the Sewer Connection Lateral. 

C.  Except as provided in subsection (D), the property owner is responsible for all costs 
incurred for maintenance, repair, replacement, cleaning, and removal of blockages in the Sewer 
Connection Lateral, and verification of Sewer Connection Lateral breakage or damage. 

D.  Except when performing work by agreement or contract with the City, no Person or 
other entity other than the City shall excavate for or otherwise expose any portion of a Sewer 
Connection Lateral within a public right-of-way, with the exception that where a Property Line 
Cleanout has been installed in public property, the cleanout cap or cover may be exposed for 
maintenance purposes provided that the covering materials are replaced in kind and in the 
same condition, or better, as existed before the excavation was made. 

E.  The maintenance of the Sewer Connection Lateral, up to and including the 
connection to the main, is the sole responsibility of the private property owner.  The City may be 
responsible for repairs of the Sewer Connection Lateral only upon proof by the property owner 
to the satisfaction of a qualified City Wastewater maintenance employee that damage to the 
Sewer Connection Lateral was the result of work performed by the City or a licensed contractor 
working for the City.  This must be proven by video inspection from a ground level cleanout or a 
breakout opening in the building lateral in the presence of a qualified City Wastewater 
maintenance employee.  The City reserves the sole right to determine when and where to 
conduct video inspections of Sewer Connection Laterals. 

F.  When any maintenance relation violation occurs or an Illegal Discharge has occurred, 
the property owner or management company must have the Sewer Connection Lateral cleaned 
and televised by a licensed plumber.  A copy of video inspection (Flash Memory Drive only) 
must be given to the City for its review to ensure the Sewer Connection Lateral has been 
cleaned properly and there are no associated obstructions, damages, or failures.  After 
reviewing the video inspection, the Director will require that any deficiencies or necessary 
repairs observed on the video be made at the business/property owner’s expense, within the 
time frame designated by the Environmental Programs Division.  All repairs are to be made per 
the most recently adopted version of the Uniform Plumbing Code, and all permits for the repairs 
are to be obtained from the City’s building department prior to performance of repairs. 

G.  Compliance with all applicable laws is a condition of connecting to the City’s 
Wastewater System.  Any violation or failure to comply with applicable regulations shall be 
grounds for termination of the connection. (Ord. No. 76-13, § 6, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 93-24, § 2, 5-
25-93; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 7, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-166. Cleanouts. 

Cleanouts shall be installed in accordance with the City’s building code. (Ord. No. 76-13, 
§ 6, 5-26-76; Ord. No. 93-24 § 3, 8-25-93; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, 
§ 7, 12-14-11) 

 Secs. 22-167—22-168. Reserved. 

668

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 39 of 69 

 
ARTICLE 8. INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATERS  

Note 

* Prior ordinance history: Ord. Nos. 76-13, § 7, 5-26-76; 82-97, § 7, 9-29-82; 89-24, § 1, 
6-7-89; 89-38, § 1, 8-16-89; 90-35, § 1, 7-18-90. 

Sec. 22-169. Purpose. 

This article sets forth requirements for the City to comply with all applicable state and 
federal laws, including the Act and the general Pretreatment regulations (40 C.F.R. Part 403).  
The purpose of this article is to prevent the introduction of Pollutants that interfere with the 
operation of the HARRF; prevent Pass Through at HARRF; provide for the maximum possible 
beneficial public use of the City’s Wastewater System, brine, and treatment facilities through 
adequate regulations and permit requirements governing nonresidential Discharges; provide for 
equitable distribution of the City’s costs; promote reuse and recycling; and provide procedures 
for complying with requirements placed upon the City by other regulatory agencies. (Ord. No. 
95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-170. Superseding previous regulations. 

This article shall supersede all previous regulations and policies of the City governing 
items covered in this article. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; 
Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-171. Reserved. 

Editor’s note — Ord. No. 2011-18, adopted 12-14-11, repealed § 22-171, pertaining to 
Definitions, which derived from Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07; § 1, 2-27-2008. 

 Sec. 22-172. Industrial Users. 

A.  Industrial Users shall be categorized as one of the following classes: 

(1)  Class I – SIUs.  Class I Industrial Users currently regulated by federal 
Categorical Pretreatment Standards pursuant to 40 C.F.R. section 403.6 and 40 C.F.R. Chapter 
I, Subchapter N, or any Industrial Users that Discharge an average of 25,000 gpd or more of 
process Wastewater to the HARRF, contribute a process wastestream that makes up 5% or 
more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the HARRF, or is designated 
as such by the City on the basis that the Industrial User has a reasonable potential for adversely 
affecting the HARRF’s operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standard or requirement.  All 
Class I SIUs are subject to permitting, inspection, and sampling requirements. 

(2)  Class II – Non-categorical non-SIUs.  Class II Industrial Users are those whose 
flow Discharges are less than 25,000 gpd, consisting of one of the following subclasses: 

a.  Class II-a: Pretreatment required.  Class II-a Industrial Users are non-SIU 
Dischargers who are required to have Pretreatment, usually in the form of Grease Interceptors, 
Grease Traps, clarifiers, Dental Amalgam Separators, sand oil separators, silver recovery 

669

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 40 of 69 

 
systems, or any type of source control equipment.  This classification primarily consists of 
Automotive Service Establishments, Food Service Establishments, and some industrial and 
commercial facilities. 

b.  Class II-b: No Pretreatment required.  Class II-b Industrial Users are non-SIU 
dischargers that have no potential to adversely affect the Wastewater treatment process or 
operation at the HARRF and do not violate any Pretreatment standard, prohibition, or 
requirement of this chapter. 

(3)  Class III – Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User.  Class III Industrial Users 
are those who are subject to a Categorical Pretreatment Standard for which the Industrial User 
never Discharges more than 100 gpd of total categorical Wastewater (excluding sanitary, non-
contact cooling, and boiler blowdown Wastewater), and who also meet the following conditions: 

a.  the Industrial User has consistently complied with all applicable Categorical 
Pretreatment Standards and Pretreatment Requirements; 

b.  the Industrial User annually submits a certification statement required by 40 
C.F.R. section 403.12(q), together with any additional information necessary to support the 
certification statement; and 

c.  the Industrial User never Discharges any untreated concentrated Wastewater.  

B.  The Director may create additional classifications for Industrial Users.  The 
Pretreatment Requirements applicable to such classifications shall comply with local, state, and 
federal laws.  The Director may, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. section 403.3(v)(3), determine 
that an Industrial User that meets the criteria for a Class I Industrial User (SIU), has no 
reasonable potential for adversely affecting the HARRF or for violating any Pretreatment 
Standards or Pretreatment Requirements, and, upon such finding, the Director may determine 
that the Industrial User is not a SIU.  The Director’s power includes, but is not limited to, issuing 
a zero Discharge certification to zero Discharge categorical Users.  Zero Discharge categorical 
Users are Industrial Users subject to federal Pretreatment Standards, as described in 40 C.F.R. 
section 405 et seq.; have any connection to the Sanitary Sewer system; but do not Discharge 
Wastewater from the categorical process to the Sanitary Sewer.  Such certifications shall 
include all information the Director deems necessary to ensure compliance with this chapter and 
all applicable state and federal laws. 

C.  Users shall provide Wastewater treatment as necessary to comply with this chapter 
and shall achieve compliance with all Pretreatment Standards and other prohibitions set out in 
this chapter within the time limits specified by the EPA, the state, or the City, whichever is more 
stringent.  Any facilities necessary for compliance shall be provided, operated, and maintained 
at the User’s expense.  Detailed plans describing such facilities and operating procedures shall 
be submitted to the City for review, and shall be acceptable to the City before such facilities are 
constructed.  The City’s review of plans and operating procedures shall in no way relieve the 
User from the responsibility of modifying a facility as necessary to produce a Discharge 
acceptable to the City under the provisions of this chapter. 

D.  Whenever deemed necessary, the City may require Users to restrict their Discharge 
during Peak Flow periods, designate that certain Wastewater be Discharged only into specific 

670

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 41 of 69 

 
Sewers, relocate or consolidate points of Discharge, separate Sewage wastestreams from 
industrial wastestreams, or other conditions as may be necessary to protect the POTW and 
determine a User’s compliance with the requirements of this chapter. 

E.  The City may require any Person discharging into the POTW to install and maintain 
on the Person’s property and at the Person’s expense a suitable storage and flow-control facility 
to ensure equalization of flow. 

F.  All non-domestic Dischargers are required to have a current business license with the 
City. 

G.  SIU and Industrial Users in Significant Noncompliance (SNC).  A SIU (or any other 
Industrial User that violates subsections (3), (4), or (8) below) is in SNC if its violation meets one 
or more of the following criteria: 

(1)  Chronic violations of Wastewater Discharge limits, defined here as those in 
which 66% or more of all the measurements taken for the same Pollutant parameter during a 
six-month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment 
Requirement, including Instantaneous Limits; 

(2)  Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 33% 
or more of all of the measurements taken for the same Pollutant parameter during a six-month 
period equals or exceeds the product of the numeric Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment 
Requirement, including Instantaneous Limits, multiplied by the applicable criteria (1.4 for BOD, 
TSS, or FOG; and 1.2 for all other Pollutants except pH); 

(3)  Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Requirement 
pursuant to this chapter or as defined by 40 C.F.R. section 403.3(l), including Daily Maximum 
Limit, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative standard, that the Director 
determines has caused, alone or in combination with other Discharges, Interference or Pass 
Through (including endangering the health of POTW Personnel or the general public); 

(4)  Any Discharge of a Pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to the 
public or the environment, or has resulted in the Director’s exercise of its emergency authority to 
halt or prevent such a Discharge; 

(5)  Failure to meet, within 90 days after the scheduled date, a Compliance Schedule 
milestone contained in an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, local control mechanism, or 
enforcement order for starting construction, completing construction, or attaining final 
compliance; 

(6)  Failure to provide, within 45 days after the due date, any required reports, 
including baseline monitoring reports, reports on compliance with Pretreatment Standard 
deadlines, periodic self-monitoring reports, and reports on compliance with Compliance 
Schedules; 

(7)  Failure to accurately report noncompliance; or 

671

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 42 of 69 

 
(8)  Any other violation or group of violations, which may include a violation of BMPs, 

that the Director determines will adversely affect the operation or implementation of the local 
Pretreatment program. (Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2018-01, § 10, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-173. Prohibited Discharges into a Wastewater System. 

The following general prohibitions apply to all Users of the HARRF whether or not they 
are subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards or any other national, state, or local 
Pretreatment Standards or Pretreatment Requirements. No facility or Person shall Discharge, 
deposit, or cause or allow to be Discharged or deposited or Passed Through into the City’s 
Wastewater System any Wastewater containing any Wastewater, Pollutant, material, or 
substance prohibited by section 22-37 of this chapter;   

Sec. 22-174. Limitations on Discharges into a Wastewater System. 

A.  General limitations.  In addition to prohibited Discharges as set forth in section 22-
173, no Person shall otherwise Discharge or convey, or permit or allow to be Discharged or 
conveyed, to the City Wastewater System any Pollutants of such character or quantity that will: 

(1)  not be susceptible to treatment or interfere with the process or efficiency of the 
treatment system; 

(2)  constitute a hazard to human or animal life, or to the stream or Watercourse 
receiving the Treatment Plant effluent; 

(3)  violate any federal, state, or local Pretreatment Standard; 

(4)  any material or quantity of material that will cause or have the potential to cause 
the HARRF’s effluent to exceed the concentration limits of its NPDES Permit as established by 
the RWQCB, and any subsequent amendments as are duly adopted from time to time by the 
RWQCB. 

B.  Local Limits.  In addition to the limitations specified in subsection (A), the City’s Local 
Limits shall apply to all Discharges to the City’s Sewage System.  The Local Limits may be 
allocated among Industrial User classes or individual Users as uniform or non-uniform 
concentration limits and mass loading limits.  The industry being issued daily maximum 
concentrations may vary depending on the type of industry, flow, and loading that may impact 
the HARRF and will be issued limits applicable to that specific industry.  

C.  Daily Maximum Limits.  The Daily Maximum Limits of specific Contaminants that may 
be present in a User’s Discharge to the City Sewage System shall be set by resolution of the 
City Council.  It is unlawful to Discharge Wastewater containing Contaminants in excess of the 
Daily Maximum Limits set by resolution of the City Council. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. 
No. 97-34R, § 1, 1-21-98; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11; 
Ord. No. 2018-01, § 12, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-175. Prohibited Discharge locations. 

672

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 43 of 69 

 
A.  It is unlawful for any Person to Discharge or cause to be Discharged into any Storm 

Drain or Stormwater channel or natural Watercourse, whether currently carrying water or not, or 
into any pipe or waterway leading to such drain, channel, or Watercourse, any solid or fluid 
material that (i) will impair, or has the potential to impair, the useful functioning of such drain, 
channel, or Watercourse; (ii) causes expense to the City, or other public agency, in maintaining 
the proper functioning of such drain, channel, or Watercourse; (iii) causes a public Nuisance or 
public hazard; or (iv) causes detrimental Pollution of natural surface or subsurface waters. 

B.  It is unlawful for any Person to deposit or Discharge into any impermeable sump, into 
any pit or well, onto the ground, or into any Storm Drain or Watercourse any material that, by 
seeping underground or by being leached or by reacting with the soil, is detrimental to the 
usable underground waters and exceeds the range of the effects of ordinary nonindustrial land 
uses on underground waters into which such wastes seep, or that violates any requirements of 
the RWQCB . (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-
18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-176. Wastewater Discharge Permits. 

A.  A Wastewater Discharge Permit must be obtained by any Industrial User whose 
Wastewater contains or may contain Pollutants not normally found or in concentrations in 
excess of those normally found in Domestic Wastewater.  Users requiring a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit shall include, but not be limited to, the following categories: 

(1)  a User whose Wastewater contains or may contain any substance that would 
cause the Wastewater to be considered a prohibited Discharge under this article; 

(2)  a User that meets the criteria set forth in 40 C.F.R. section 403.3, is designated 
as a SIU, and is categorized as a Class I Industrial User pursuant to section 22-172(A)(1); 

(3)  any other User determined by the Director to require special regulation or source 
control; 

B.  A non-domestic Discharge of Wastewater to the Sewage System is prohibited unless 
the Discharger obtains a Wastewater Discharge Permit or other authorization to Discharge from 
the City; 

C.  Class I and Class III Industrial Users are required to obtain a Wastewater Discharge 
Permit from the City prior to initiating Discharge; 

D.  The Director is authorized to make the determination as to which Discharge class the 
Discharger will be assigned; 

E.  The Director is authorized to require each Discharger to submit a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit application in accordance with section 22-177; and 

F.  Any Beer Manufacturer, Winegrower, Brandy Manufacturer, or Distilled Spirits 
Manufacturer must obtain a Wastewater Discharge Permit prior to initiating a Discharge. (Ord. 
No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11; Ord. 
No. 2014-11, § 2, 3-19-14) 

673

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 44 of 69 

 
Sec. 22-177. Wastewater Discharge Permit application. 

A.  No User shall Discharge Wastewater into the City’s POTW, or other Wastewater 
System without first obtaining an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit.  The Director may 
require Users to obtain individual Wastewater Discharge Permits as necessary to carry out the 
purposes of this chapter.  

B.  Any violation of the terms and conditions of an individual Wastewater Discharge 
Permit shall be deemed a violation of this chapter.  Obtaining an individual Wastewater 
Discharge Permit does not relieve a permittee of its obligation to comply with all federal and 
state Pretreatment Standards or Pretreatment Requirements or with any other requirements 
under federal, state, or local laws, regulations, or orders. 

C.  A User applying for a new individual Wastewater Discharge Permit shall submit a 
complete application at least 90 days prior to connecting to or contributing to the City’s 
Wastewater System.  A User seeking reissuance of an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit 
must submit a complete application no later than 180 days before the expiration of the User’s 
Wastewater Discharge Permit.   

D.  The Director may require applicants to submit all or some of the following information 
as part of a Wastewater Discharge Permit application:   

(1)  Identifying Information.  Contact information consisting of the name and address 
of the Premises or facility, including the name of the operator and owner, as well as a general 
description of the Premises or facility;  

(2)  Environmental Permits.  A list of all environmental control permits held by or for 
the owner and operator of the Premises or facility. 

(3)  Description of activity.  

a.  A brief description of the nature; average rate of production (including each 
product produced by type, amount, processes, and rate of production); and Standard Industrial 
Classification (SIC) of the operations carried out by the User.  This description should include a 
schematic process diagram that indicates points of Discharge to the POTW from the regulated 
processes. 

b.  Types of wastes generated, and a list of all raw materials and chemicals used 
or stored at the facility that are, or could accidentally or intentionally be, Discharged to the 
POTW; 

c.  Number and type of employees, hours of operation, and proposed or actual 
hours of operation; 

d.  Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per 
day); 

674

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 45 of 69 

 
e.  Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and Plumbing plans, and details to show 

all Sewers, floor drains, and appurtenances by size, location, and elevation, and all points of 
Discharge including, but not limited to, locations of Sewer Connection Laterals; 

(4)  Time and duration of Discharges;  

(5)  The location for monitoring all wastes covered by the Wastewater Discharge 
Permit, including but not limited to sampling points and Pretreatment facilities;  

(6)  Flow Measurement.  Information showing the measured average daily and 
maximum daily flow, in gallons per day (gpd), to the POTW from regulated process streams and 
other streams as further described in 40 C.F.R. section 403.6(e), including but not limited to 
estimated Wastewater Strength, estimated Wastewater flow, average Wastewater Discharge 
flow rates for each Sewer Connection Lateral, and peak Wastewater Discharge flow rates for 
each Sewer Connection Lateral; 

(7)  Measurement of Pollutants. 

a.  The Categorical Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process 
and any new categorically regulated processes for Existing Sources. 

b.  The results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration, 
and/or mass of regulated Pollutants in the Discharge from each regulated process. 

c.  Instantaneous, Daily Maximum, and long-term average concentrations, or 
mass, where required. 

(8)  Facilities and plant processes on the Premises, including raw materials, 
processes, and types of materials that are or could be Discharged;  

(9)  SIC number;  

(10)  Total product produced, by type;  

(11)  Number and responsibilities of employees; and  

(12)  Other information the Director may deem necessary to evaluate the application. 

E.  The Director shall notify the individual Wastewater Discharge Permit applicant when 
the application is deemed to be complete.  The Director will approve or deny the Wastewater 
Discharge Permit application within 90 days of receipt of a complete application.  Incomplete or 
inaccurate Wastewater Discharge Permit applications will not be processed and will be returned 
to the applicant for revision. 

F.  All Wastewater permit applications, User reports, and certification statements must 
be signed by an Authorized Representative of the User.  If the designation of an Authorized 
Representative of the User is no longer accurate because a different individual or position has 
responsibility for the overall operation of the facility or overall responsibility for environmental 
matters for the company, a new written authorization satisfying the requirements of this section 

675

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 46 of 69 

 
must be submitted to the Director prior to or together with any reports to be signed by an 
Authorized Representative of the User.  All Wastewater Discharge Permit applications, User 
reports, and certification statements must contain the applicable certification statement pursuant 
to section 22-187.  

G.  It shall be deemed unlawful to submit false information when applying for a 
Wastewater Discharge Permit or business license, or to use a SIC number that identifies a non-
specific generalized process if the process being performed is subject to federal categorical 
regulations based on 40 CFR 403 regulations. 

(Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-
11) 

Sec. 22-178. Terms and conditions of Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

A.  A Wastewater Discharge Permit shall include such terms and conditions as are 
deemed reasonably necessary by the Director to prevent Pass Through or Interference, protect 
the quality of the water body receiving the Treatment Plant’s effluent, protect worker health and 
safety, facilitate sludge management and disposal, and protect against damage to the POTW.   

B.  Terms.  A Wastewater Discharge Permit shall be expressly subject to all provisions 
of this article and all other applicable regulations established by the City.  An individual 
Wastewater Discharge Permit must contain: 

(1) a statement that indicates the Wastewater Discharge Permit issuance date, 
expiration date, and effective date; 

(2) a statement that the Wastewater Discharge Permit is nontransferable without 
prior written consent of the Director pursuant to section 22-181, and provisions for furnishing the 
new owner or operator with a copy of the existing Wastewater Discharge Permit; 

(3)  a group classification designation; 

(4) effluent limits, including BMPs, based on applicable Pretreatment Standards; 

(5) requirements for monitoring, self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and 
record-keeping, including an identification of Pollutants (or BMPs) to be monitored, sampling 
location, sampling frequency, and sample type based on federal, state, and local law;  

(6)  requirements for reports of initial and continuing compliances; 

(7)  requirements for Pretreatment facilities; 

(8) a statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment 
Standards and Pretreatment Requirements, and any applicable Compliance Schedule, which 
may not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by applicable federal, state, or 
local law;  

676

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 47 of 69 

 
(9) requirements to control Slug Discharge, if determined by the Director to be 

necessary. 

C.  Conditions.  A Wastewater Discharge Permit may contain, but need not be limited to, 
the following conditions:  

(1)  limits on average and maximum rate of Discharge, restriction of Discharge to 
certain hours of the day, or requirements for flow regulation and equalization; 

(2)  requirements for the installation of flow measurement or other facilities, including 
but not limited to the installation of Pretreatment technology, Pollution control, or construction of 
appropriate containment devices designed to reduce, eliminate, or prevent the introduction of 
Pollutants into the POTW; 

(3) requirements for the development and implementation of spill control plans or 
other special conditions, including management practices necessary to adequately prevent 
accidental, unanticipated, or nonroutine Discharges; 

(4) development and implementation of waste minimization plans to reduce the 
amount of Pollutants Discharged to the POTW; 

(5) the unit charge or schedule of User charges and fees for the management of the 
Wastewater Discharged to the POTW; 

(6) requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling 
facilities and equipment, including flow measurement devices and City access to the facilities; 

(7)  specifications for monitoring programs that may include sampling locations; 
method of sampling; chemical constituents to be reported upon; frequency of sampling; and 
number, types, and standards for tests; 

(8) a statement that compliance with the Wastewater Discharge Permit does not 
relieve the permittee of responsibility for compliance with all applicable federal and state 
Pretreatment Standards, including those that become effective during the term of the 
Wastewater Discharge Permit;  

(9)  a permit application fee; 

(10)  limitations on Wastewater Strength for the flow in each Sewer Connection 
Lateral, including average and maximum concentrations of the Wastewater constituents and 
characteristics; 

(11)  requirements for submission of technical reports or Discharge reports, and 
authority for the Director to copy all such reports kept at the Premises of the User; 

(12)  requirements for maintaining and retaining plant records relating to Wastewater 
Discharge as specified by the City, and affording access to the City for the purposes of 
inspection and copying;  

677

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 48 of 69 

 
(13)  requirements for facilities to prevent accidental Discharge or Slug Discharge of 

prohibited materials or other wastes regulated by this article; and 

(14) other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Director to ensure compliance 
with this chapter or federal and state laws, regulations, or orders. 

Sec. 22-179. Wastewater Discharge Permit duration. 
 

A Wastewater Discharge Permit shall be issued for a specified time period, not to 
exceed five years from the effective date of the permit.  A Wastewater Discharge Permit may be 
issued for a period less than five years, at the discretion of the Director.  Each Wastewater 
Discharge Permit shall indicate a specific date upon which it will expire. 
 
Sec. 22-180. Change of permit terms and conditions. 

A.  The City maintains sole discretion to change any of the terms and conditions of a 
Wastewater Discharge Permit at any time as circumstances may require.  The City shall allow a 
User reasonable time to comply with any changes to a Wastewater Discharge Permit as 
implemented by the City.  

B.  An amended Wastewater Discharge Permit shall be required prior to the 
commencement of any construction of new facilities or operation of modified facilities for any of 
the following:  

(1) Alterations to connections to the Wastewater collection system; or  

(2) Modification of an industrial plant, process, or Wastewater treatment facility in a 
manner that would increase or decrease the flow rate or alter the quality of the Wastewater 
Discharge described in the corresponding Wastewater Discharge Permit.  

C.  Upon promulgation of a new National Categorical Pretreatment Standard, the 
Director shall notify by registered letter all Users who may be subject to such standard, including 
the applicable reporting requirements under 40 C.F.R. section 403.12.  Within 180 days after 
the promulgation of a new National Categorical Pretreatment Standard, all applicable Users 
shall make an application to the Director for a Wastewater Discharge Permit.  Likewise, 
applicable Users with an existing Wastewater Discharge Permit shall make application to the 
Director for a revised permit within 180 days after the promulgation of such standard.  The City 
shall respond by issuing a new or revised Wastewater Discharge Permit to the applicant. (Ord. 
No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-181. Transfer of Wastewater Discharge Permit prohibited. 

 Wastewater discharge permits are issued to a specific user for a specific operation. A 

wastewater discharge permit shall not be reassigned or transferred or sold to a new owner, new 

user, different premises or a new or changed operation unless approved by the director. (Ord. 

No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-182. Revocation of Wastewater Discharge Permit. 
 

678

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 49 of 69 

 
A.  A Wastewater Discharge Permit may be revoked for good cause, including but not 

limited to being revoked for the following reasons: 
 

(1)  failure to notify the Director of significant changes in operations or Wastewater 
constituents and characteristics prior to the challenged Discharge; 

 
(2)  failure to provide prior notification to the City of changed conditions pursuant to 

this chapter; 
 
(3)  misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the Wastewater 

Discharge Permit application; 
 
(4)  falsifying a self-monitoring report or certification statement; 
 
(5)  tampering with monitoring equipment; 
 
(6)  refusing to allow City personnel reasonable and timely access to the User’s 

Premises, facilities, or records for the purpose of inspection or monitoring; 
 
(7)  failure to meet effluent limitations; 
 
(8)  failure to pay fines; 
 
(9)  failure to pay Sewer charges; 
 
(10)  failure to meet Compliance Schedules; 
 
(11)  failure to complete a Wastewater survey or the Wastewater Discharge Permit 

application; 
 
(12)  failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business ownership of a 

permitted facility; 
 
(13)  violation of any Pretreatment Standard or Pretreatment Requirement, any term 

or condition of the Wastewater Discharge Permit, or any provision of this chapter; 
 
(14)  failure of a User to accurately report the Wastewater constituents and 

characteristics of its Discharge; or  
 
(15)  any violation of the terms or conditions of the Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

 
B.  A Wastewater Discharge Permit shall be voidable upon cessation of operations or 

transfer of business ownership.  Any Wastewater Discharge Permit issued to a User is void 
upon the issuance of a new Wastewater Discharge Permit to that User. 

Sec. 22-183. Unusual conditions, special agreements, and waivers. 

A.  No statement contained in this article prevents any special agreement or 
arrangement between the City and any Industrial User whereby a nonresidential waste of 
unusual strength or character may be accepted by the City for treatment. 

679

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 50 of 69 

 
B.  Subject to subsection (C), the Director shall grant approval for a Discharge to the 

Sewer that otherwise fails to comply with this article, in the form of a waiver or modification of 
the requirements of a Wastewater Discharge Permit, if the Director, pursuant to the Director’s 
Approval, finds that: 

(1)  the Discharge will not cause harm to, nor unreasonably or inequitably burden, 
the Wastewater System; and 

(2)  when considered together with similar excesses in Discharges, will not materially 
affect the ability of the City to meet RWQCB’s requirements as to the City’s Wastewater 
Treatment Plant effluent pursuant to the applicable NPDES permit.  

C.  The Director shall not grant a waiver or modify requirements of a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit regarding any requirement set forth by federal or state law, regulation, or 
order. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 
12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-183.1 Regulation of Waste received from other jurisdictions. 

A. If another municipality, or User located within another municipality, contributes 
Wastewater to the POTW, the Director shall enter into an inter-municipal agreement with the 
contributing municipality. 

B. Prior to entering into an agreement required by subsection (A), the Director shall 
request the following information from the contributing municipality: 

(1) A description of the quality and volume of Wastewater Discharged to the POTW 
by the contributing municipality; 

(2) An inventory of all Users located within the contributing municipality that are 
Discharging to the POTW; and 

(3) Such other information as the Director may deem necessary. 

C. An inter-municipal agreement, as required by subsection (A), shall contain the 
following conditions: 

(1) A requirement for the contributing municipality to adopt a Sewer use ordinance at 
least as stringent as this chapter and Local Limits, including required baseline monitoring 
reports at least as stringent as those set out in this chapter.  The requirement shall specify that 
such ordinance and limits must be revised as necessary to reflect changes made to this chapter 
or Local Limits; 

(2) A requirement for the contributing municipality to submit a revised User inventory 
on at least an annual basis; 

(3) A provision specifying which Pretreatment implementation activities, including 
issuance of a Wastewater Discharge Permit, inspection and sampling, and enforcement, will be 
conducted by the contributing municipality; which of these activities will be conducted by the 

680

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 51 of 69 

 
Director; and which of these activities will be conducted jointly by the contributing municipality 
and the Director; 

(4) A requirement for the contributing municipality to provide the Director with access 
to all information that the contributing municipality obtains as part of its Pretreatment activities; 

(5) Limits on the nature, quality, and volume of the contributing municipality’s 
Wastewater at each point where it Discharges to the POTW; 

(6) Requirements for monitoring the contributing municipality’s Discharge; 

(7) A provision ensuring the Director’s access to the facilities of Users located within 
the contributing municipality’s jurisdictional boundaries for the purpose of inspection, sampling, 
and any other duties deemed necessary by the Director; and 

(8) A provision specifying remedies available for breach of the terms of the inter-
municipal agreement. 

Sec. 22-184. Administrative authority. 

A.  The Director is charged with responsibility for the City’s Wastewater control program, 
the administration and enforcement of the provisions of this article, and the City of Escondido 
municipal Industrial Waste program’s Enforcement Response Procedures.  

B.  To effectively administer and enforce the provisions of these regulations, the Director 
may require any Discharger to comply with any or all of the requirements of this chapter. (Ord. 
No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-185. Pretreatment Requirements. 

A.  Pretreatment Requirements for Food Service Establishments, Automotive Service 
Establishments, and other Industrial Users. 

(1)  Each establishment shall have its own separate Pretreatment Equipment unless 
there is approved communal pretreatment equipment 

(2)  Each Food Service Establishment must have its own separate rendered oil 
container. 

(3)  Any tenant improvement, addition of fixtures, or remodel of an existing facility 
shall require installation or upgrade of Pretreatment Equipment.  Pretreatment Equipment must 
be approved by the Environmental Programs prior to installation and must comply with the most 
recently adopted version of the Uniform Plumbing Code, as well as any other requirements 
mandated by Environmental Programs  

(4)  Pretreatment Equipment shall be provided, subject to the Director’s Approval, 
when necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive 
amounts, or regulated wastes, sand, or other harmful or potentially harmful materials; except 
that such equipment shall not be required for private living quarters or dwelling units.  All 

681

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 52 of 69 

 
Pretreatment Equipment shall be of a type and capacity as required by the most recently 
adopted version of the Uniform Plumbing Code, shall be subject to the Director’s Approval, and 
shall be located so as to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. 

(5)  All stored liquid waste or bulk storage of new liquid products shall be stored 
under cover and have secondary containment.   

(6)  The requirement for installation of Pretreatment Equipment shall be indicated in 
the User’s Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

(7)  All Pretreatment Equipment deemed necessary shall be installed and maintained 
at the owner’s expense. 

(8)  All Pretreatment equipment shall be cleaned by a licensed hauler and in efficient 
operation at all times.  Pretreatment equipment that is failing or damaged shall be replaced to 
current standards. 

(9)  Food waste disposal units and waste pulper systems are not allowed in 
commercial kitchens.  Food Service Establishment dishwasher units must Discharge 
downstream of the Food Service Establishment’s grease removal equipment. 

(10)  Any establishment that generates hazardous waste shall have a proper 
California Hazardous Waste Permanent ID number provided by the Department of Toxic 
Substances Control.  All generated waste shall be disposed of properly through a licensed 
hauler for the automotive wastes generated on-site, including but not limited to motor oil, oil 
filters, antifreeze, transmission fluid, and wet and dry paint waste. 

 (11)  Maintenance records and hauling and disposal manifests shall be current and 
kept on-site and readily available for inspection at all times.  Each individual Discharger shall 
retain its own maintenance records for Pretreatment equipment, even when there is existing 
communal Pretreatment equipment on-site.  Falsified records shall result in an administrative 
citation and may also result in additional enforcement action pursuant to this chapter. 

B.  Mercury reduction program.  The City may require on-site silver recovery or mercury 
Pretreatment at photographic, medical, dental, or similar facilities, in order to ensure compliance 
with the City’s Local Limits for silver and mercury.  The City will regulate these industries under 
Class II-a permits. 

C.  Pretreatment Requirements for a Beer Manufacturer, Winegrower, Brandy 
Manufacturer, or Distilled Spirits Manufacturer may be determined administratively by the 
Director based on the quality and quantity of the operations and in accordance with all 
provisions of this chapter. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 97-34R, § 2, 1-21-98; Ord. No. 
2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2014-11, § 3, 3-19-14; Ord. 
No. 2018-01, § 15, 4-4-18) 

 Sec. 22-186. Accidental Discharge and Slug Discharge and Bypass of the treatment facility. 

A.  Protection from accidental Discharge and Slug Discharge. 

682

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 53 of 69 

 
(1)  The City shall evaluate whether each SIU needs an accidental Discharge control 

plan or accidental Slug Discharge control plan, or both, or other action to control Slug 
Discharges.  The City may require any User to develop, submit for approval, and implement 
such a plan, or take such other action that may be necessary to control Slug Discharges. 

(2)  Each Industrial User shall provide protection from accidental Discharge of 
prohibited materials or other wastes regulated by this article.  Facilities to prevent accidental 
Discharge of such materials shall be provided and maintained at the User’s expense.  Detailed 
plans showing facilities and operation procedures to provide this protection shall be submitted to 
the Director for review, and shall be approved by the Director, pursuant to the Director’s 
Approval, before construction of the facility.  Review and approval of such plans and operating 
procedures shall not relieve the Industrial User from the responsibility to modify its facility as 
necessary to meet the requirements of this article. 

(3)  Each User required to provide facilities for protection from accidental Discharge 
shall be identified in the User’s Wastewater Discharge Permit.  Permit provisions shall describe 
the extent of facilities required and shall outline a Compliance Schedule. 

(4)  If, for any reason, a facility does not comply with or is unable to comply with the 
protection from accidental Discharge limitations of this article, the facility responsible for such 
Discharge shall immediately notify the Director or appropriate response authority so that 
corrective action may be taken to protect the treatment system. 

(5)  In the event of any accidental Discharge, a written report addressed to the 
Director detailing the date, time, and cause of the accidental Discharge; the quantity and 
characteristics of the Discharge; and corrective action taken to prevent future Discharges, shall 
be filed by the responsible User within five days of the occurrence of the Discharge. 

(6)  At least once every two years, the Director shall evaluate whether each SIU 
needs an accidental Discharge control plan or accidental Slug Discharge control plan, or both, 
or other action to control Slug Discharges.  The Director may require any User to develop, 
submit for approval, and implement such a plan.  Alternatively, the Director may develop such a 
plan for any User.  An accidental Discharge control plan or accidental Slug Discharge control 
plan, or both, shall address, at a minimum, the following: 

a.  Description of Discharge practices, including non-routine batch Discharges; 

b.  Description of stored chemicals; 

c.  Procedures for immediately notifying the Director of any accidental or Slug 
Discharge, as required by this section; and 

d.  Procedures to prevent adverse impacts from any accidental or Slug 
Discharge.  Such procedures shall include, but shall not be limited to, inspection and 
maintenance of storage areas; handling and transfer of materials; loading and unloading 
operations; control of plant site runoff; worker training; building of containment structures or 
equipment; measures for containing toxic organic Pollutants, including solvents; and measures 
and equipment for emergency response. 

683

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 54 of 69 

 
(7)  SIUs are required to notify the Director immediately of any changes at the SIU’s 

facility affecting the potential for a Slug Discharge. 

B.  Bypass of a treatment facility.  Any Bypass is prohibited unless otherwise permitted 
by 40 C.F.R. section 403.17.  In the event of a Bypass, the Industrial User must comply with all 
the requirements of 40 C.F.R. section 403.17. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 
1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2018-01, § 16, 4-4-18) 

 Sec. 22-187. Discharge reports. 

A.  The Director may require Discharge reports, including but not limited to 
questionnaires, technical reports, sampling reports, test analyses, and periodic reports of 
Wastewater Discharge.  Reporting requirements shall be as specified in the User’s Wastewater 
Discharge Permit.  When a report filed by a User pursuant to this section is not adequate in the 
judgment of the Director, the User may be required to supply additional information as deemed 
necessary by the Director.  

B.  A Discharge report may include, but shall not be limited to, the nature of the process, 
volume, and rates of Wastewater flow; a lab analysis of Wastewater samples, elements, 
constituents, and characteristics of the Wastewater; and any information required in an 
application for a Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

C.  All costs associated with preparation of Discharge reports, including the costs of 
Wastewater analysis, shall be the responsibility of the User. 

D.  Any User subject to National Categorical Pretreatment Standards or Pretreatment 
Requirements shall comply with all reporting and recordkeeping requirements in accordance 
with the general Pretreatment regulations for Existing Sources and New Sources of Pollution 
(40 C.F.R. Part 403).  All reports specifically set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 403 shall be required 
pursuant to this article.  These include, but are not limited to:  

(1)  Baseline monitoring reports.   

a.  Within either 180 days after the effective date of a Categorical Pretreatment 
Standard, or the final administrative decision on a subcategory determination under 40 C.F.R. 
section 403.6(a)(4), whichever is later, existing Categorical Industrial Users currently 
Discharging to or scheduled to Discharge to the POTW shall submit to the Director a report that 
contains the information listed in subsection (D)(1)(b).  At least 90 days prior to commencement 
of a Discharge, New Sources and sources that become Categorical Industrial Users subsequent 
to the promulgation of an applicable Categorical Standard shall submit to the Director a report 
that contains the information listed in subsection (D)(1)(b).  A New Source shall report the 
method of Pretreatment it intends to use to meet applicable Categorical Standards.  A New 
Source also shall give estimates of its anticipated flow and quantity of Pollutants to be 
Discharged. 

b.  Users described in subsection (D)(1)(a) shall submit the following information: 

(i)  Identifying information.  The User shall provide the information required in 
section 22-177(D)(1); 

684

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 55 of 69 

 
(ii) Measurement of Pollutants.  The User shall provide the information 

required in section 22-177(D)(7), in accordance with the following: 

(a)  All samples and corresponding analyses shall comply with section 22-
187-1; 

(b)  The User shall take a minimum of one representative sample to 
compile the data necessary to comply with the requirements of this section; 

(c)  Samples should be taken immediately downstream from Pretreatment 
Facilities if such exist or immediately downstream from the regulated process if no Pretreatment 
exists.  If other Wastewater is mixed with regulated Wastewater prior to Pretreatment, the User 
should measure the flows and concentrations necessary to allow use of the combined 
wastestream formula in 40 C.F.R. section 403.6(e) to evaluate compliance with the 
Pretreatment Standards.  Where an alternate concentration or mass limit has been calculated in 
accordance with 40 C.F.R. section 403.6(e), this adjusted limit, along with supporting data, shall 
be submitted to the City; and 

(d)  The Director may allow the submission of a baseline report that 
utilizes only historical data so long as the data provides information sufficient to determine the 
need for industrial Pretreatment measures.  The baseline report shall indicate the time, date, 
and place of sampling and methods of analysis, and shall certify that such sampling and 
analysis is representative of normal work cycles and expected Pollutant Discharges to the 
POTW. 

(iii)  Compliance certification.  A statement, reviewed by the Authorized 
Representative of the User and certified by a qualified professional, indicating whether 
Pretreatment Standards are being met on a consistent basis, and, if not, whether additional 
operation and maintenance, or additional Pretreatment, is required to meet the applicable 
Pretreatment Standards; 

(iv)  Compliance Schedule.  If additional Pretreatment or operation and 
maintenance will be required to meet the Pretreatment Standards, the shortest schedule by 
which the User will provide such additional Pretreatment or operation and maintenance.  The 
completion date in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date established for the 
applicable Pretreatment Standard.  A Compliance Schedule must meet the requirements set out 
in subsection (D)(2); 

(v)  Environmental permits.  A list of any environmental control permits held 
by or for the facility; 

(vi)  Description of operations.  A brief description of the nature; average rate 
of production (including each product produced by type, amount, processes, and rate of 
production); and SIC of the operations carried out by the User.  This description should include 
a schematic process diagram that indicates points of Discharge to the POTW from the regulated 
processes;  

(vii)  Flow measurement.  Information showing the measured average daily 
and maximum daily flow, in gallons per day (gpd), to the POTW from regulated process streams 

685

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 56 of 69 

 
and other streams, if necessary, to allow use of the combined wastestream formula set out in 40 
C.F.R. section 403.6(e); 

(2)  Compliance Schedule progress reports.  The following conditions shall apply to 
the Compliance Schedule and related progress reports required by this chapter: 

a.  The Compliance Schedule shall contain progress increments, each increment 
not to exceed nine months, in the form of dates for the commencement and completion of major 
events leading to the construction and operation of additional Pretreatment required for the User 
to meet the applicable Pretreatment Standards or Pretreatment Requirements (such events 
include, but are not limited to, hiring an engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, 
executing contracts for major components, commencing and completing construction, and 
beginning and conducting routine operation); 

b.  The User shall submit a progress report to the Director, at least every nine 
months and no later than 14 days following each date in the Compliance Schedule and the final 
date of compliance, which shall include, at a minimum, a description of whether or not the User 
complied with the increment of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps 
being taken by the User to return to the established Compliance Schedule; and 

 (3)  Periodic compliance reports.  The following conditions shall apply to the periodic 
compliance reports required by this chapter:  

a.  All SIUs shall, at a frequency determined by the Director, but at least two 
times per year (in June and December, unless otherwise stated), submit a report indicating the 
nature and concentration of Pollutants in the Discharge that are limited by Pretreatment 
Standards and the measured or estimated average and maximum daily flows for the reporting 
period.  In cases where the Pretreatment Standard requires compliance with a BMP or Pollution 
prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the Director or the 
Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the User’s compliance status. 

b.  All Wastewater samples must be representative of the User’s Discharge.  
Wastewater monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, 
and maintained in good working order at all times.  The failure of a User to keep its monitoring 
facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that sample results are 
unrepresentative of its Discharge. 

c.  If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this section monitors any 
Pollutant more frequently than required by the Director, using the procedures prescribed in 
section 22-187-1, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the report. 

(4)  Reports of changed conditions.  Each User must notify the Director of any 
planned significant change to the User’s operations or system that might alter the nature, 
quality, or volume of the User’s Wastewater at least 90 days before the change. 

a.  The Director may require the User to submit information as may be deemed 
necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit application pursuant to section 22-177. 

686

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 57 of 69 

 
b.  The Director may issue a Wastewater Discharge Permit pursuant to section 

22-176 or modify an existing Wastewater Discharge Permit pursuant to section 22-180 in 
response to changed conditions or anticipated changed conditions. 

c.  For purposes of this section, significant changes may include, but are not 
limited to, flow increases of 20% or greater, or the Discharge of a Pollutant not previously 
reported. 

(5)  Reports of potential problems.  

a.  In the case of any incident involving a Discharge, including but not limited to 
accidental Discharges; Discharges of a non-routine, episodic nature; a non-customary batch 
Discharge; or a Slug Load, that may cause potential problems for the POTW, the User shall 
immediately telephone and notify the Director of the incident.  This notification shall include 
providing the Director with the caller’s name; phone number; location of the Discharge; type, 
concentration, and volume of waste, if known; and any corrective action taken by the User. 

b.  Within five days following such Discharge, the User shall, unless waived by 
the Director, submit a detailed written report describing the cause(s) of the Discharge and the 
measures to be taken by the User to prevent similar future occurrences.  Such notification shall 
not relieve the User of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability that may be incurred as a 
result of damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other damage to Person or property; 
nor shall such notification relieve the User of any fine, penalty, or other liability that may be 
imposed pursuant to this article. 

c.  A notice shall be permanently posted on the User’s bulletin board or other 
prominent place advising employees whom to call in the event of a Discharge described in 
subsection (D)(5)(a).  Employers shall ensure that all employees who have the potential to 
cause such a Discharge to occur are advised of the emergency notification procedure. 

d.  SIUs are required to notify the City immediately of any change at its facility 
affecting the potential for a Slug Discharge. 

(6)  Recordkeeping.  Users subject to the reporting requirements of this article shall 
retain, and make available for inspection and copying, all records of information obtained 
pursuant to any monitoring activities required by this article and any additional records of 
information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User independent of 
such requirements and documentation associated with BMPs.  Records shall include the date, 
exact place, method, and time of sampling, and the name of each Person taking the samples; 
the dates analyses were performed; who performed the analyses; the analytical techniques or 
methods used; and the results of such analyses.  These records shall remain available for a 
period of at least five years.  This period shall be automatically extended for the duration of any 
applicable litigation concerning the User or the City, or where the User has been specifically 
notified of a longer retention period by the Director. 

(7)  Notification of changed Discharge.  All Industrial Users shall promptly notify the 
Director in advance of any substantial change in the volume or character of Pollutants in the 
Industrial User’s Discharge, including the listed or characteristic hazardous wastes for which the 
Industrial User has submitted initial notification under section 22-194. 

687

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 58 of 69 

 
(8)  Reports on compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standards deadline.  

Within 90 days following the date for final compliance with applicable Categorical Pretreatment 
Standards, or in the case of a New Source, following commencement of the introduction of 
Wastewater into the POTW, any User subject to Pretreatment Standards shall submit to the 
Director a report containing the information described in section 22-177(D).  For Users subject 
to equivalent concentration or mass limits established in accordance with the procedures in 40 
C.F.R. section 403.6(c), the report shall contain a reasonable measure of the User’s long-term 
production rate.  For all other Users subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards expressed in 
terms of allowable Pollutant Discharge per unit of production (or other measure of operation), 
this report shall include the User’s actual production during the appropriate sampling period.   

(9)  Reports from unpermitted Users.  All Users not required to obtain a Wastewater 
Discharge Permit shall provide appropriate reports, including manifests or any other requested 
information, to the Director as the Director may require. 

(10)  Notice of violation/repeat sampling and reporting.  If sampling performed by a 
User indicates a violation, the User must notify the Director within 24 hours of becoming aware 
of the violation.  The User shall also repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of 
the repeat analysis to the Director within 30 days after becoming aware of the violation.  

(11)  All reports must be certified.  Any report or related document required by this 
section shall be signed and certified in accordance with section 22-187-2. 

E.  Date of receipt of reports.  Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on 
the date postmarked.  For reports that are not mailed, postage prepaid, into a mail facility 
serviced by the United States Postal Service, the date of receipt of the report shall govern. 

F.  SNC.  The City shall publish at least annually in a newspaper of general circulation 
that provides meaningful public notice within the jurisdiction served by the POTW of Industrial 
Users that, at any time during the previous 12 months, were in SNC with applicable 
Pretreatment Standards or Pretreatment Requirements.  This procedure shall be as specified in 
40 C.F.R. section 403.8(f)(2)(viii). 

Sec. 22-187-1. Analytical requirements and sample collection. 

A.  Analytical requirements.  All Pollutant analyses, including sampling techniques, to be 
submitted as part of a Wastewater Discharge Permit application or report shall be performed in 
accordance with the techniques prescribed in 40 C.F.R. Part 136 and amendments thereto, 
unless otherwise specified in an applicable Categorical Pretreatment Standard.  If 40 C.F.R. 
Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the Pollutant in question, or 
where the EPA determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical techniques are 
inappropriate for the Pollutant in question, sampling and analyses shall be performed by using 
validated analytical methods or other applicable sampling and analytical procedures approved 
by the EPA.  Non-detectable results may be used only as demonstration that the Pollutant is not 
present if the EPA-approved method from 40 C.F.R. Part 136 with the lowest minimum 
detection level for the Pollutant was used in the analysis. 

B.  Sample collection. 

688

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 59 of 69 

 
(1)  Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based upon data 

obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the 
report, based on data that is representative of conditions occurring during the reporting period.  
The City shall indicate the frequency of monitoring necessary to assess and ensure compliance 
by the User with applicable Pretreatment Standards and Pretreatment Requirements.  Except 
as indicated in subsections (B)(2) and (B)(3), the User must collect Wastewater samples using 
24-hour flow-proportional Composite Sampling techniques, unless time-proportional Composite 
Sampling or Grab Sampling is authorized by the Director.  Where time-proportional Composite 
Sampling or Grab Sampling is authorized by the Director, the samples must be representative of 
the Discharge.  Using protocols (including appropriate preservation) specified in 40 C.F.R. Part 
136 and appropriate EPA guidance, multiple Grab Samples collected during a 24-hour period 
may be composited prior to the analysis as follows: 

a.  for cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides, the samples may be composited in 
the laboratory or in the field;  

b.  for volatile organics and oil and grease, the samples may be composited in 
the laboratory;  

c.  Composite Samples for other parameters unaffected by the compositing 
procedures as documented in approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by the Director, 
as appropriate; and 

d.  Grab Samples may be required to show compliance with Instantaneous 
Limits. 

 (2)  Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, total phenols, sulfides, 
and volatile organic compounds must be obtained using Grab Samples. 

(3)  For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance 
reports required by this article, a minimum of four individual Grab Samples must be used for pH, 
cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide, and volatile organic compounds for facilities for 
which historical sampling data do not exist.  For facilities for which historical sampling data are 
available, the Director may authorize a lower minimum.  For any periodic compliance reports 
required by this article (40 C.F.R. sections 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial User is 
required to collect the number of Grab Samples necessary to assess and ensure compliance 
with applicable Pretreatment Standards and Pretreatment Requirements. 

Sec. 22-187-2. Certification statements. 

A.  Certification of permit applications, User reports, and initial monitoring waiver.  The 
following certification statement shall be signed by an Authorized Representative of the User 
and provided to the City at the time of submission of a permit application, report, transfer, 
waiver, or other document as required by this chapter:  

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that 
qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted.  Based on 
my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly 

689

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 60 of 69 

 
responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there are 
significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and 
imprisonment for knowing violations. 

B. Annual Certification for Non-Significant Categorical Industrial Users.  A facility 
determined to be a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User by the Director shall annually 
submit the following certification statement signed by the Authorized Representative of the User.  
This certification must accompany an alternative report required by the Director: 

Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing 
compliance with the categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 C.F.R. ____, I certify 
that, to the best of my knowledge and belief that during the period from __________, 
________ to ________, ________ [months, days, year]: 

(a) The facility described as ____________________ [facility name] met the definition of 
a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User as defined in section 22-1 and further 
described in section 22-172;  
 
(b) The facility complied with all applicable Pretreatment Standards and Pretreatment 
Requirements during this reporting period; and  

 
(c) the facility never discharged more than 100 gallons of total categorical wastewater on 
any given day during this reporting period. 

This compliance certification is based on the following information: 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

C.  Certification of Pollutants not present.  Users that have an approved monitoring 
waiver must certify on each report with the following statement that there has been no 
increase in the Pollutant in the User’s wastestream due to activities of the User: 

Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing 
compliance with the Pretreatment Standard for 40 C.F.R. ______ [specify applicable 
National Pretreatment Standard part(s)], I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, there has been no increase in the level of ______ [list Pollutant(s)] in the 
wastewaters due to the activities at the facility since filing of the last periodic compliance 
report pursuant to 22-187(D)(3). 

Sec. 22-188. Monitoring facilities. 

A.  The City may require to be provided and operated at the User’s own expense, 
monitoring facilities to allow inspection, sampling, and flow measurement of the Building Sewer 
or internal Drainage systems.  The monitoring facility should normally be situated on the User’s 
Premises, but the City may, when such a location would be impractical or cause undue hardship 

690

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 61 of 69 

 
on the User, allow the facility to be constructed in the public street or sidewalk area and located 
so that it will not be obstructed by landscaping or parked vehicles. 

B.  There shall be ample room in or near such a facility to allow accurate sampling and 
preparation of samples for analysis.  The facility, sampling, and measuring equipment shall be 
maintained at all times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense of the User. 

C.  Whether constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring 
facilities shall be provided in accordance with the City’s requirements and all applicable local 
construction standards and specifications.  Construction shall be completed within 90 days 
following written notification by the City.  Such notification may be as indicated in the User’s 
Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

D.  The monitoring program may require the User to conduct a sampling and analysis 
program of a frequency and type specified in the User’s Wastewater Discharge Permit to 
demonstrate compliance with prescribed Wastewater Discharge limits.  As specified in the 
User’s Wastewater Discharge Permit, the User shall either: 

(1)  conduct its own sampling and analysis program provided the User demonstrates 
to the Director that the User has the necessary qualifications and facilities to perform the work; 
or 

(2)  engage a private laboratory, certified by the State of California Department of 
Public Health. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-
18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-189. Inspection of facilities. 

A.  The City shall have the right to enter the Premises of any User to determine whether 
the User is complying with all requirements of this chapter and any individual Wastewater 
Discharge Permit or order issued hereunder.  The City may inspect the facilities of any User to 
ascertain whether the purpose of this article and all requirements are being met.  Persons or 
occupants of Premises where nonresidential Wastewater is Discharged, have the potential of 
being Discharged, or are suspected of being Discharged shall allow the City access at all times 
to all parts of the Premises for the purposes of inspection, photographing, video recording, 
sampling, records examination and copying, any other form of inspection or documentation, or 
the performance of any additional duties.   

1.  Where a User has security measures in force that require proper identification 
and clearance before entry into the User’s Premises, the User shall make necessary 
arrangements so that, upon presentation of suitable identification, Personnel from the City, the 
EPA, or their authorized representatives shall be permitted to enter without delay for the 
purposes of performing specific responsibilities. 

2.  The City shall have the right to set up on the User’s Premises, or require 
installation of, such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling and/or metering of the User’s 
operations. 

691

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 62 of 69 

 
3.  Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the Premises 

or facility to be inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed, at the User’s sole 
expense, by the User at the written or oral request of the Director and shall not be replaced.  

4.  An unreasonable delay in allowing the City access to the User’s Premises shall 
be a violation of this chapter. 

B.  The City shall randomly sample and analyze the effluent from nonresidential Users to 
identify, independently of self-monitoring information supplied by the User, occasional and 
continuing noncompliance with the User’s Wastewater Discharge Permit or other regulations set 
forth by this article. 

C.  The City shall investigate instances of noncompliance as indicated in the User’s self-
monitoring reports or random inspection and surveillance activities described in this section.  
Sample collection and analysis and the acquisition of other information shall be performed with 
sufficient care to produce evidence admissible in enforcement proceedings or in judicial actions, 
and the User so investigated shall be liable for all charges incurred by the City for such 
investigation. 

D.  The City may adopt reasonable fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and 
operating the City’s Pretreatment program, which may include: 

(1)  Fees for Wastewater Discharge Permit applications, including the cost of 
processing such applications; 

(2)  Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures, including the cost 
of collection and analyzing a User’s Discharge, and reviewing monitoring reports submitted by 
Users; 

(3)  Fees for reviewing and responding to accidental Discharge procedures and 
construction; 

(4)  Fees for filing appeals; and 

(5)  Other fees as the City may deem necessary to carry out the requirements 
contained herein.   

(6)  The fees referenced in this subsection (D) relate solely to the matters covered by 
this article and are separate from all other fees, fines, and penalties chargeable by the City.  
These fees may be set from time to time by resolution of the City Council. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-
12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

E. Dischargers subject to the California Industrial General Permit for Stormwater shall 
allow the Water Boards, U.S. EPA, and City of Escondido (including any authorized contractor 
acting as their representative), to:  

 
(1) Enter upon the premises at reasonable times where a regulated industrial activity 

is being conducted or where records are kept under the conditions of this General Permit;  
 

692

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 63 of 69 

 
(2) Access and copy at reasonable times any records that must be kept under the 

conditions of this General Permit;  
 
(3) Inspect the facility at reasonable times; and, 
 
(4) Sample or monitor at reasonable times for the purpose of ensuring General 

Permit compliance. 

 Sec. 22-190. Sampling. 

A.  The point of determining compliance with the provisions of this article (and of the 
User’s Wastewater Discharge Permit, if applicable) shall be at the point of the Discharge to the 
Wastewater System or such other upstream sampling point on the private lateral as mutually 
agreed upon by the nonresidential User and the Director.  Where multiple Discharge points to 
the City Wastewater collection system are regulated by a Wastewater Discharge Permit, 
sampling must be carried out at an acceptable location for each permitted Discharge.  Where 
certain wastes are critical, the Director may specify, through the provisions of the User’s 
Wastewater Discharge Permit, procedures for obtaining necessary samples, and require that 
any Persons discharging Wastewater install a measuring device, that samples be analyzed and 
measurements of flow taken and reported to the City, and that such sampling and measuring 
device shall be made accessible to the Director. 

B.  Unless otherwise specified in the provisions of the User’s Wastewater Discharge 
Permit, compliance with the requirements of this article are based on the mean values obtained 
from analysis of Composite Samples of Industrial Waste representative of the quality and 
quantity of Discharge to the Sewer.  All such samples shall be weighted with the flow at the 
sampling point to furnish values weighted with time and quantity for each required chemical 
constituent.  The frequency of monitoring shall be as prescribed in the User’s Wastewater 
Discharge Permit. 

C.  Sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with section 22-187-1, or 
other sampling and analytical procedures subject to the Director’s Approval. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 
7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-191. Reserved. 

Sec. 22-192. Enforcement. 

A.  In addition to the enforcement and remedy provisions set forth in Article 1, the City 
may adopt procedures and rules for the implementation and administration of this article.  The 
City shall enforce the provisions of this article, including all requirements established or permits 
issued pursuant to this article. 

B.  Requiring Discharger to submit schedule of remedial or preventive measures.  When 
the Director finds that a Discharge of Wastewater is taking place, has taken place, or is 
threatening to take place and that such Discharge violates, has violated, or will violate 
prohibitions or limits prescribed by this article, Wastewater source control requirements, or the 
provisions of a Wastewater Discharge Permit, the Director may require the User to submit for 

693

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 64 of 69 

 
approval of the Director, with such modifications as may be deemed necessary, a detailed time 
schedule of specific actions the User shall take to correct or prevent a violation of this chapter. 

C.  Issuance of cease and desist order.  When the Director finds that a Discharge of 
Wastewater is taking place, has taken place, or is threatening to take place and that such 
Discharge violates, has violated, or will violate prohibitions or limits prescribed by this article, 
Wastewater source control requirements, or the provisions of a Wastewater Discharge Permit, 
the Director may issue to the non-compliant User an order to cease and desist and direct the 
User to:  

(1)  comply immediately;  

(2)  comply in accordance with a time schedule prescribed by the Director; or  

(3)  in the event of a threatened violation, take appropriate remedial or preventative 
action. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 
12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-193. Appeal procedure. 

A.  Any permit applicant, permit holder, or other User affected by any decision, action, or 
determination, including cease and desist orders, made by the Director in interpreting or 
implementing the provisions of this article, or any permit issued hereunder, may file with the 
Director a written request for reconsideration within ten days of such a decision, action, or 
determination, setting forth in detail the facts supporting the request.  The Director may elect to 
hold a hearing on the request.  The request for reconsideration shall be acted upon by the 
Director within ten days from the date of filing or the close of the reconsideration hearing.  The 
decision, action, or determination shall remain in effect during such period of review by the 
Director. 

B.  If the ruling made by the Director is unsatisfactory to the User requesting 
reconsideration, the User may, within ten days after notice of the action by the Director, file a 
written appeal to the City Council. 

C.  The written appeal shall state all pertinent aspects of the matter and shall include the 
hearing record if one was requested.  The City Council may amend, modify, confirm, or reject 
any decision, judgment, or finding (including waivers) of the Director so long as the purpose and 
intent of this article is not violated. (Ord. No. 95-8, § 1, 7-12-95; Ord. No. 2008-07, § 1, 2-27-
2008; Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

Sec. 22-194. Notification of the Discharge of Hazardous Waste. 

A.  Any User who commences the Discharge of hazardous waste shall notify the POTW, 
the EPA Regional Waste Management Division Director, and state hazardous waste authorities, 
in writing, of any Discharge into the POTW of a substance that, if otherwise disposed of, would 
be a hazardous waste under 40 C.F.R. Part 261.  Such notification must include the name of the 
hazardous waste as set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the 
type of Discharge (continuous, batch, or other).  If the User Discharges more than 100 
kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the POTW, the notification shall also contain the 

694

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 65 of 69 

 
following information to the extent such information is known and readily available to the User:  
an identification of the hazardous constituents contained in the wastes; an estimation of the 
mass and concentration of such constituents in the wastestream Discharged during that 
calendar month; and an estimation of the mass of constituents in the wastestream expected to 
be Discharged during the following 12 months.  All notifications shall take place no later than 
180 days after the Discharge commences.  Any notification under this section needs to be 
submitted only once for each hazardous waste Discharged.  However, notifications of changed 
conditions must be submitted pursuant to section 22-187(D)(4).  The notification requirement in 
this section does not apply to Pollutants already reported by Users subject to Categorical 
Pretreatment Standards under the applicable self-monitoring requirements within section 22-
187. (Ord. No. 2011-18, § 8, 12-14-11) 

B.  In the case of any new regulations under section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional 
characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous waste, 
the User must notify the Director, the EPA Regional Waste Management Waste Division 
Director, and state hazardous waste authorities of the Discharge of such substance within 90 
days of the effective date of such regulations. 

C.  In the case of any notification made under this section, the User shall certify that it 
has a program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated to the 
degree it has determined to be economically practical. 

D.  This section does not create a right to Discharge any substance not otherwise 
permitted to be Discharged by this chapter; a permit issued thereunder; or any applicable 
federal, state, or local law, regulation, or order. 

Sec. 22-195. Reserved.  

ARTICLE 9. INDUSTRIAL BRINE COLLECTION SYSTEM (IBCS) 

Sec. 22-196. Purpose. 

The City constructed the IBCS to allow qualified industrial Dischargers to Discharge 
certain Industrial Brine Wastewater into the IBCS.  These industrial processes create 
concentrated dissolved minerals and salts that naturally exist in potable water and recycled 
water supplies, resulting in elevated concentrations of TDS in the Discharge.  Industrial Brine 
Wastewater Discharged into the IBCS is not to be treated by the HARRF’s preliminary, primary, 
or secondary treatment facilities.  The purpose of this article is to minimize the Discharge of 
salts to the Sewer system and Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Dischargers under this article are 
subject to individual NPDES Permits, under regulations of the California State Water Resources 
Control Board. (Ord. No. 2011-18, § 9, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-197. Industrial Brine Users. 

Industrial Brine Users are permitted to Discharge the following into the IBCS: 

A. Industrial Brine Wastewater or blowdown from evaporative cooling processes, and 

695

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 66 of 69 

B. Industrial Brine from reverse osmosis, water softener, and other types of water
treatment processes. (Ord. No. 2011-18, § 9, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-198. Prohibited Discharges into an Industrial Brine Collection System (IBCS). 

It is unlawful for any User to Discharge any waste into the IBCS that does not meet the following 
criteria: 

A. Compliance with Discharge prohibitions of the California Ocean Plan.

B. Compliance with applicable Discharge prohibitions contained in the Basin Plan.

C. Any flow Discharge entering the IBCS at a temperature of 104 degrees Fahrenheit or
higher. (Ord. No. 2011-18, § 9, 12-14-11) 

 Sec. 22-199. Limitations on Discharges into an Industrial Brine Collection System (IBCS). 

The Discharger of effluent through the IBCS shall comply with the following: 

A. Wastewater management systems that Discharge to the Pacific Ocean through IBCS
must be designed and operated in a manner that will maintain the indigenous marine life and a 
healthy and diverse marine community. 

B. Wastewater Discharged to the Pacific Ocean through IBCS must be free of:

(1) material that is floatable or will become floatable upon Discharge;

(2) settleable materials or substances that may form sediments that will degrade
benthic communities or other aquatic life; 

(3) substances that will accumulate to toxic levels in marine waters, sediments, or
biota; 

(4) substances that significantly decrease the natural light to benthic communities
and other marine life; and 

(5) materials that result in aesthetically undesirable discoloration of the ocean
surface. 

C. Waste that contains pathogenic organisms or viruses shall be Discharged through
the IBCS at a sufficient distance from shell fishing and water contact sports areas to maintain 
applicable bacterial standards without disinfection.  Where conditions are such that an adequate 
distance cannot be attained, reliable disinfection in conjunction with a reasonable separation of 
the Discharge point from the area of use must be provided.  Disinfection procedures shall be 
used that do not increase effluent toxicity and that constitute the least environmental and human 
hazard. 

D. The Discharge of effluent shall not result in the increase in the natural water
temperature exceeding 104 degrees Fahrenheit at: 

696

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 67 of 69 

(1) the shoreline;

(2) the surface of any ocean substrate; or

(3) the ocean surface beyond one thousand feet from the Discharge system.

E. The Discharge of effluent shall not affect the natural temperature of designated areas
of special biological significance. 

F. The Discharger shall not cause Pollution, Contamination, or Nuisance, as those
terms are defined in this chapter and California Health and Safety Code section 13050, as a 
result of the treatment or Discharge of wastes. 

G. Collected screenings, sludges, and other solids removed from liquid wastes shall be
disposed of in a manner approved by the RWQCB. 

H. The Discharger shall not Discharge any material or quantity of material that will
cause HARRF’s effluent to exceed the concentration limits of its NPDES Permit as established 
by the RWQCB, and any subsequent amendments as are duly adopted from time to time by the 
RWQCB. (Ord. No. 2011-18, § 9, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2018-01, § 17, 4-4-18) 

 Sec. 22-200. Required reports. 

A. Discharge reports.  The Director may require Discharge reports, including but not
limited to technical reports, sampling reports, test analyses, and periodic reports of IBCS 
Wastewater Discharge. 

B. Reports of potential problems.  In the case of any incident involving a Discharge,
including but not limited to accidental Discharges; Discharges of a non-routine, episodic nature; 
a non-customary batch Discharge; or a Slug Load, that may cause potential problems to the 
ICBS, the User shall immediately telephone and notify the Director of the incident.  This 
notification shall include providing the Director with the caller’s name; phone number; location of 
the Discharge; type, concentration, and volume of waste, if known; and any corrective action 
taken by the User. 

C. Notice of violation/repeat sampling and reporting.  If sampling performed by a User
indicates a violation, the User must notify the Director within 24 hours of becoming aware of the 
violation. 

D. Certification statements.  A certification statement that complies with the
requirements of section 22-187-2 must accompany the reports described in subsections (A) 
through (C), above. 

(Ord. No. 2011-18, § 9, 12-14-11; Ord. No. 2018-01, § 18, 4-4-18) 

Sec. 22-201. Reserved. 

Sec. 22-202. Reserved.  

697

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 68 of 69 

Sec. 22-203. Best Management Practices (BMPs) and Pollution prevention. 

The Director shall establish, apply, and enforce an Industrial User’s evaluation and 
regulatory program that will establish Discharge regulations, Discharge prohibitions, and 
requirements under which industrial dischargers will be allowed to Discharge to the IBCS. (Ord. 
No. 2018-01, § 19, 4-4-18) 

 Sec. 22-204. Spill prevention and response plans. 

A. For purposes of this section, a spill is a Discharge of Industrial Brine Wastewater that
occurs at a location from the IBCS in violation of the Discharge prohibitions of this chapter.  This 
section does not include Sanitary Sewer overflows reportable under separate waste Discharge 
requirements. 

B. The IBCS Discharger shall maintain a spill prevention plan (SPP) for the IBCS in an
up-to-date condition and shall amend the SPP whenever there is a change (e.g., in the design, 
construction, operation, or maintenance of the IBCS) that materially affects the potential for 
spills.  The City shall review the SPP as appropriate after each spill from the IBCS.  The SPP 
and any amendments thereto shall be subject to Director’s Approval.  The IBCS Discharger 
shall ensure that the up-to-date SPP is readily available to the Discharger’s Personnel at all 
times and that the Discharger’s Personnel are familiar with it. 

C. The IBCS Discharger shall maintain a spill response plan (SRP) for the IBCS in an
up-to-date condition and shall amend the SRP, as necessary.  The IBCS User shall review and 
amend the SRP as appropriate after each spill from the IBCS.  The SRP and any amendments 
thereto shall be subject to the Director’s Approval.  The IBCS Discharger shall submit the SRP 
and any amendments thereto to the Director upon the City’s request.  The IBCS Discharger 
shall ensure that the up-to-date SRP is readily available to the Discharger’s Personnel at all 
times and that the Discharger’s Personnel are familiar with it. (Ord. No. 2018-01, § 20, 4-4-18) 

 Sec. 22-205. Spill reporting requirements. 

A. Report the spill to the Industrial Waste environmental inspector by telephone,
voicemail, or email within 24 hours from the time the Discharger becomes aware of the spill.  
The IBCS Discharger shall inform the RWQCB of the date of the spill, the location of the spill 
and its final destination, the time the spill began and ended, the estimated total spill volume, and 
the type of spill material.  The IBCS Discharger shall submit a written report, as well as any 
additional pertinent information, to the RWQCB no later than five days following the starting date 
of the spill event.   

B. For spills of material other than Industrial Brine Wastewater that cause, may cause,
or are caused by significant operational failure, or endanger or may endanger human health or 
the environment, the IBCS Discharger shall notify the RWQCB and Industrial Waste 
environmental inspector by telephone, voicemail, or email within 24 hours from the time the 
IBCS becomes aware of the spill.  The IBCS Discharger shall inform the RWQCB and Industrial 
Waste inspector of the date of the spill, the location of the spill and its final destination, the time 
the spill began and ended, the estimated total spill volume, and the type of spill material. 

698

Item 12.



Ordinance No. 2021-16 
Exhibit “A” 

Page 69 of 69 

C. The spill reporting requirements do not relieve the IBCS Discharger of responsibilities
to report to other agencies, such as the California Office of Emergency Services and the County 
of San Diego Department of Environmental Health. (Ord. No. 2018-01, § 21, 4-4-18) 

SECTION II. Clerical Tasks. 

The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, 

article numbers, section and page numbers in the event that the adoption of this 

Municipal Code amendment reveals that there is a conflict, in order to avoid 

confusion and possible accidental repeal of existing provisions. 

699

Item 12.



Staff Report - Council 

 Current Business Item No. 13 December 1, 2021  File No. 0600-10, A-3383, A-3394 

SUBJECT: West 7thAvenue and South Broadway Water Main Replacement Project: Bid 
Award, Consulting Agreement, and Budget Adjustment 

DEPARTMENT: Utilities Department, Construction and Engineering Division 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council: 

1) Adopt Resolution No. 2021-159, authorizing the Mayor to execute a Public Improvement
Agreement in the amount of $2,985,960 with S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc., the lowest responsive
and responsible bidder, for construction of the W 7thAvenue and S Broadway Water Main
Replacement Project (“Project”); and

2) Adopt Resolution No. 2021-161, authorizing the Mayor to execute a Consulting Agreement in
the amount of $432,610 with Ardurra Group, Inc., for construction management services for the
Project; and

3) Approve a Budget Adjustment in the amount of $3,000,000.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The Project, Capital Improvement Project (“CIP”) No. 708001, currently has funds available in the 
amount of $1,090,797.  A budget adjustment in the amount of $3,000,000 from the unallocated Water 
Reserves is requested to fully fund the Project.  The total budget for this CIP includes funding for the 
public improvement agreement for construction, consulting agreements, contingencies for the 
agreements, construction water, staff time, and other small low dollar value agreements for the Project 
that do not require Council approval.  Any funds remaining after the Project is completed will be returned 
to the unallocated Water Reserves.  

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On June 8, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-48, authorizing the Mayor to execute 
a consulting agreement with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. in the amount of $329,146 for the design 
of the W 7th Avenue and S Broadway Water Main Replacement Project. 

BACKGROUND: 

The City of Escondido’s (“City’s”) existing water mains in West 7th Avenue and in South Broadway 
were constructed in the early 1950’s and need replacement. In September 2019, a portion of the 
existing 12-inch water main failed in W7th Avenue between Quince Street and Centre City Parkway. 
City crews repaired the damaged portion of the water main.  

700

Item 13.



W 7th Ave & S Broadway Water Main Replacement Project:  Bid Award, Consulting Agreement, and 
Budget Adjustment  
December 1, 2021 
Page 2 

This project includes the replacement of approximately 5,500 lineal feet of existing 10-inch and 12-inch 
cast iron water pipeline with 12-inch PVC pipeline; and replacement of existing water services, water 
meters, and fire hydrants.  The project is located along W7th Avenue from Quince Street to SBroadway, 
and in SBroadway from W7th Avenue to WValley Parkway.  The alignment is located within the public 
right-of-way in high traffic areas as shown on the map below.  

The Engineer’s estimate for the Project was $3,053,000. 

701

Item 13.



W 7th Ave & S Broadway Water Main Replacement Project:  Bid Award, Consulting Agreement, and 
Budget Adjustment  
December 1, 2021  
Page 3 
 
 
Competitive bids were opened by the City Clerk on November 10, 2021, with the following results: 
 
 1) S.C. Valley Engineering, El Cajon, CA      $2,985,960.00 
 2) Ortiz Corporation, National City, CA     $3,093,940.90 

3) CCL Contracting, Inc., Escondido, CA     $3,195,362.00 
4)  Palm Engineering Construction Company, Inc., San Diego, CA $3,249,868.00 
5) E.J. Meyer Company, Highland, CA     $3,555,555.00 
6) Burtech Pipeline, Inc., Encinitas, CA     $3,798,700.00 
7)  L.B. Civil Construction, Inc., Escondido, CA     $3,813,272.00 
8) TC Construction, Santee, CA      $3,938,178.00 
9) Southland Paving, Inc., Escondido CA     $4,173,620.00 

 
Staff has thoroughly reviewed the low bid submitted by S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc., and has 
determined that they are the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
The Utilities Department recommends retaining Ardurra Group, Inc., a third-party construction 
manager, to manage the Project under the supervision of City staff.  Proposals were solicited from 
three firms specializing in management of water pipeline construction.  Ardurra Group, Inc. was 
selected based on their extensive experience successfully managing similar water main construction 
projects.  The contract for construction management services includes:  
 

 full time construction inspections;  

 construction project coordination with the City, the community, and independent consultants; 

 conducting construction meetings;  

 managing construction documentation and record keeping;  

 reviewing contractor’s monthly progress payment requests and confirming that percentages and 
quantities of work completed align with the amounts requested for payment;  

 facilitation of partnering sessions;  

 geotechnical support and special inspection services, such as welding and material testing; and 

 claim support. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Christopher W. McKinney, Deputy City Manager / Director of Utilities 

11/23/21 5:41 p.m. 

Angela Morrow, Deputy Director of Utilities / Construction & Engineering 

11/23/21 3:47 p.m. 
 
  

702

Item 13.



W 7th Ave & S Broadway Water Main Replacement Project:  Bid Award, Consulting Agreement, and 
Budget Adjustment  
December 1, 2021  
Page 4 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Attachment “1” - Budget Adjustment 
2. Resolution No. 2021-159 
3. Resolution No. 2021-159 – Exhibit “A”: Bid Award W 7th Avenue and S Broadway Water Main 

Replacement Project 
4. Resolution No. 2021-161 
5. Resolution No. 2021-161 – Exhibit “A”: CM Services W 7th Avenue and S Broadway Water Main 

Replacement Project 

703

Item 13.



FM\105 (Rev.11/06)

C I T Y  O F  E S C O N D I D O

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST

Date of Request: November 18, 2021 For Finance Use Only

Log #  

Fiscal Year  

Department:  Utilities

Division:  Construction and Engineering - Capital Projects

Project/Budget Manager:  Angela Morrow 7030
Name Extension

Council Date (if applicable):  December 1, 2021
(attach copy of staff report)

_____ Budget Balances
_____ General Fund Accts
_____ Revenue 
_____ Interfund Transfers
_____ Fund Balance

Project/Account Description Account Number Amount of Increase Amount of Decrease

W 7th Avenue and S Broadway 
Water Main Replacement

556-708001 $3,000,000

Unallocated Reserves 3050-555 $3,000,000

Transfer Out-to Capital 
Projects Fund  

5999-555 $3,000,000

Transfer In-from Operating 
Fund 

4999-556 $3,000,000

Explanation of Request:

To fund the construction of the W. 7th Avenue and S. Broadway Water Main Replacement Project.

APPROVALS

Department Head Date City Manager Date

Finance Date City Clerk Date

ATTACHMENT "1"

704

Item 13.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-159 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH S.C. 
VALLEY ENGINEERING, INC., FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE W 7TH AVENUE 
AND S BROADWAY WATER MAIN 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, the Escondido City Council authorized an invitation for bids for the 

construction of the W 7th Avenue and S Broadway Water Main Replacement Project (the 

“Project”); and  

 WHEREAS, the Project will replace approximately 5,500 lineal feet of existing 10-

inch and 12-inch pipeline, and replace existing water services, water meters and fire 

hydrants along W 7th Avenue and S Broadway; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) opened sealed bids for the Project on 

November 10, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, City staff thoroughly reviewed the low bid submitted by S.C. Valley 

Engineering, Inc., and have determined that it is the lowest responsive and responsible 

bidder; and 

 WHEREAS, the Deputy City Manager / Director of Utilities has determined S.C. 

Valley Engineering, Inc., to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder and 

recommends awarding the bid in the amount of $2,985,960 to S.C. Valley Engineering, 

Inc.; and 

705

Item 13.



 WHEREAS, this City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to award this contract to S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the Mayor and City Council accepts the recommendation of the Deputy 

City Manager / Director of Utilities.  

3. That the Mayor is authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, a Public 

Improvement Agreement with S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc. in substantially the same 

format as Exhibit “1,” which is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, subject 

to final approval as to form by the City Attorney.   

 

706

Item 13.



CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Public Improvement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this ____ 

day of _____________________, 2021 (“Effective Date”),  

Between: CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
a California municipal corporation 
201 N. Broadway 
Escondido, CA 92025 
Attn: Angela Morrow 
760-839-6290
("CITY")

And: S.C. VALLEY ENGINEERING, INC.
a California corporation
656 Front St.
El Cajon, CA 92020
Attn: Samuel H. Wathen
619-444-2366
("CONTRACTOR").

(The CITY and CONTRACTOR each may be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the 

“Parties.”) 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the performance of work 

relating to the W 7th Avenue and South Broadway Water Main Replacement Project (“Project”), 

occurring within the public right-of-way located on West 7th Avenue between South Quince Street and 

South Broadway and on South Broadway between  Avenue to 150 feet north of the intersection of 

South Broadway and West Valley Parkway. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, terms, and 

conditions set forth herein, and the mutual benefits derived therefrom, the Parties hereby agree as 

follows: 

1. Project Documents.  The Notice Inviting Sealed Bids/Notice to Contractors, Instructions to
Bidders, Bid Form, Designation of Subcontractors, Workers' Compensation Certificate, Change
Orders, Shop Drawing Transmittals, Information Required of CONTRACTOR, Non-collusion
Affidavit, Insurance Certificates, Guarantees, General Conditions, Supplementary General
Conditions, Special Conditions, Plans, Drawings, Specifications, the Agreement, and all

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 16

707

Item 13.



modifications, addenda, and amendments thereto (“Project Documents”) are incorporated herein 
by this reference as if fully set forth herein.  The Project Documents are complementary, and what 
is called for by any one shall be as binding as if called for by all. 

2. Description and Performance of Work.  CONTRACTOR shall furnish all work described in Project 
Documents (“Work”).  All Work to be performed and materials to be furnished shall be completed 
in a good workmanlike manner, free from defects, in strict accordance with the plans, drawings, 
specifications, and requirements set forth in the Project Documents and all provisions of this 
Agreement.

3. Compensation.  In exchange for CONTRACTOR’s completion of the Work, the CITY shall pay, 
and CONTRACTOR shall accept in full, an amount not to exceed the sum of $2,985,960 
(“Contract Price”).    CONTRACTOR shall be compensated only for performance of the Work 
described in this Agreement.  No compensation shall be provided for any other work or services 
without the CITY’s prior written consent.

4. Term and Time of Performance.  CONTRACTOR shall commence work within one week from the 
CITY's notice to proceed.  CONTRACTOR shall diligently perform and complete the Work with 
professional quality and technical accuracy within 220 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed 
(“Completion Date”).  Extension of terms or time of performance shall be subject to the CITY’s 
sole discretion.

5. Time Is of the Essence.  If the Work is not completed by the Completion Date, it is understood that 
the CITY will suffer damage.  It being impractical and infeasible to determine the amount of actual 
damage, in accordance with Government Code section 53069.85, the Parties agree that 
CONTRACTOR shall pay to the CITY as fixed and liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the 
sum of $1,500 per day for each calendar day of delay until the Work is completed and accepted 
(“Liquidated Damages Amount”).  The Liquidated Damages Amount shall be deducted from any 
payments due to, or that become due to, CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR'S 
surety shall be liable for the Liquidated Damages Amount.

6. Insurance Requirements.

a. CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain, at its own cost, during the entire term of this 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the Work, and the results of such Work, by 
CONTRACTOR, its agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  Insurance coverage 
shall be at least as broad as the following:

(1) Commercial General Liability.  Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Form CG 0001 11188 
covering Commercial General Liability on an “occurrence” basis, including products and 
completed operations, property damage, bodily injury (including emotional distress), 
sickness, disease, or death of any person other than the CONTRACTOR's employees, 
and personal and advertising injury, and damages because of injury or destruction of 
tangible property, including loss of use resulting there from, with limits no less than
$3,000,000 combined single limit coverage per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage; or, if a general aggregate limit is applicable, either: (i) the general aggregate 
limit shall specifically apply to the project identified in the bid specifications or to the 
location of such project which is the subject of these bid specifications with coverage to 
be no less than $3,000,000, or (ii) the general aggregate shall be at least $3,000,000 
combined single limit coverage per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 16

708

Item 13.



(2) Automobile Liability.  ISO Form CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if
CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9),
including damages because of bodily injury, death of a person, or property damage
arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of a motor vehicle, all mobile
equipment, and vehicles moving under CONTRACTOR’s control and engaged in the
Work, with limits no less than $3,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily
injury and property damage.

(3) Workers’ Compensation.  Workers' Compensation as required by the State of California,
with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(4) Builder’s Risk/“All Risk” Insurance.  The CONTRACTOR, during the progress of the
Work and until final acceptance of the Work by CITY, shall maintain Builder's Risk/"All
Risk," course-of-construction insurance satisfactory to CITY issued on a completed value
basis of all WORK pursuant to this Agreement. Coverage is to provide extended
coverage and insurance against vandalism, theft, malicious mischief, perils of fire,
sprinkler leakage, civil authority, sonic boom, earthquake, collapse, flood, wind, lightning,
smoke, riot, debris removal (including demolition), and reasonable compensation for the
Engineer's services and expenses required as a result of such insured loss upon the
Work, including completed Work and Work in progress to the full insurable value thereof.
Such insurance shall include the CITY and CITY Representatives as an additional
named insured and any other person with an insurable interest designated.

(5) If CONTRACTOR maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums
otherwise required by this Agreement, the CITY requires and shall be entitled to the
broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by CONTRACTOR.

b. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be acceptable to the City Attorney and
shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Compliance with General Condition Requirements.  Insurance coverage shall comply
with and meet all requirements set forth in Article 5.2 of General Conditions

(2) Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance coverage must be provided by an insurer authorized
to conduct business in the state of California with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less
than A-:VII, or as approved by the CITY.

(3) Additional Insured Status.  Both the Commercial General Liability and the Automobile
Liability policies must name the CITY (including its officials, officers, agents, employees,
and volunteers) specifically as an additional insured under the policy on a separate
endorsement page.  The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement
shall be at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85, or if not available, through the
addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38, and CG 20 37 if a later
edition is used.  The Automobile Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least
as broad as ISO Form CA 20 01.

(4) Primary Coverage.  CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be primary coverage at
least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 with respect to the CITY, its officials, officers,
agents, employees, and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 16

709

Item 13.



CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(5) Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with prior written notice to the CITY.

(6) Subcontractors.  If applicable, CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all
subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated within this
Agreement, and CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the CITY (including its officials,
officers, agents, employees, and volunteers) is an additional insured on any insurance
required from a subcontractor.

(7) Waiver of Subrogation.  CONTRACTOR hereby grants to the CITY a waiver of any right
to subrogation that any insurer of CONTRACTOR may acquire against the CITY by
virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance.  CONTRACTOR agrees to
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but
this subsection shall apply regardless of whether or not the CITY has received a waiver
of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  Any Workers’ Compensation policy
required by this Agreement shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the
CITY for all work performed by the CONTRACTOR, its agents, representatives,
employees and subcontractors.

(8) Self-Insurance.  CONTRACTOR may, with the CITY’s prior written consent, fulfill some
or all of the insurance requirements contained in this Agreement under a plan of self-
insurance.  CONTRACTOR shall only be permitted to utilize such self-insurance if, in the
opinion of the CITY, CONTRACTOR’s (i) net worth and (ii) reserves for payment of
claims of liability against CONTRACTOR are sufficient to adequately compensate for the
lack of other insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR’s
utilization of self-insurance shall not in any way limit the liabilities assumed by
CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement.

(9) Self-Insured Retentions.  Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the CITY.

c. Verification of Coverage.  At the time CONTRACTOR executes this Agreement,
CONTRACTOR shall provide the CITY with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting the
insurance coverage required by this Agreement), which shall meet all requirements under this
Agreement.  The CITY reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required
insurance policies, including endorsements required by this Agreement, at any time.

d. Special Risks or Circumstances.  The CITY reserves the right, at any point during the term of
this Agreement, to modify the insurance requirements in this Agreement, including limits,
based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.

e. No Limitation of Obligations.  The insurance requirements within this Agreement, including the
types and limits of insurance coverage CONTRACTOR must maintain, and any approval of
such insurance by the CITY, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the
liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement,
including but not limited to any provisions within this Agreement concerning indemnification.

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 16

710

Item 13.



f. Compliance.  Failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements in this Agreement,
including but not limited to a lapse in any required insurance coverage during the term of this
Agreement, shall be a material breach of this Agreement.  Compliance by CONTRACTOR with
the requirement to carry insurance and furnish certificates, policies, Additional Insured
Endorsement and Declarations Page evidencing the same shall not relieve the
CONTRACTOR from liability assumed under any provision of this Agreement, including,
without limitation, the obligation to defend and indemnify the CTY and the City Engineer.  In
the event that CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any insurance requirement set forth in this
Agreement, in addition to any other remedies the CITY may have, the CITY may, at its sole
option, (i) immediately terminate this Agreement; or (ii) order CONTRACTOR to stop Work
under this Agreement and/or withhold any payment that becomes due to CONTRACTOR until
CONTRACTOR demonstrates compliance with the insurance requirements in this Agreement.

7. Indemnification, Duty to Defend, and Hold Harmless.

a. CONTRACTOR (including CONTRACTOR’s agents, employees, and subcontractors, if any)
shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees,
and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action,
proceedings (including but not limited to legal and administrative proceedings of any kind),
suits, fines, penalties, judgments, orders, levies, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages,
or injuries, in law or equity, including without limitation the payment of all consequential
damages and attorney’s fees and other related litigation costs and expenses (collectively,
“Claims”), of every nature caused by, arising out of, or in connection with CONTRACTOR’s
(including CONTRACTOR’s agents, employees, and subcontractors, if any) Work pursuant to
this Agreement or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained herein, except
where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the CITY.

b. CONTRACTOR (including CONTRACTOR’s agents, employees, and subcontractors, if any)
shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees,
and volunteers from and against any and all Claims caused by, arising under, or resulting from
any violation, or claim of violation, of the San Diego Municipal Storm Water Permit (Order No.
R9-2013-0001, as amended) of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Region
9, San Diego, that the CITY might suffer, incur, or become subject to by reason of, or
occurring as a result of, or allegedly caused by, any Work performed pursuant to this
Agreement.

c. All terms and provisions within this Section 7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

8. Bonds.

a. CONTRACTOR shall furnish and deliver to the CITY, simultaneously with the execution of this
Agreement, the following surety bonds:

(1) Faithful Performance Bond.  CONTRACTOR shall furnish to the CITY a surety bond in
an amount equal to the Contract Price as security for faithful performance of this
Agreement.

(2) Labor and Materials Bond.  CONTRACTOR shall furnish to the CITY a surety bond in an
amount equal to the Contract Price as security for payment to persons performing labor
and furnishing materials in connection with the Project.

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 16

711

Item 13.



b. All bonds furnished to the CITY pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the form set forth herein
and approved by the City Attorney.

c. All bonds shall be executed by sureties that are named in the current list of "Companies
Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal bonds and as Acceptable
Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Audit Staff, Bureau of
Government Financial Operations, U.S. Treasury Department.  All bonds signed by an agent
must be accompanied by a certified copy of such agent's authority to act.

d. If the surety on any bond furnished by the CONTRACTOR is declared bankrupt or becomes
insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Work is
located, the CONTRACTOR shall, within seven days thereafter, substitute another bond and
surety, which must be acceptable to the CITY.  No portion of the Work shall be performed
without bonds, in a form and issued by a surety acceptable to the City.  If one or more of such
bonds shall, at any time, not be in full force and effect, CONTRACTOR shall immediately
cease performance of the Work until CONTRACTOR is in full compliance with the bonding
requirements of this Agreement and California law.  All delays and costs incurred or resulting
from such occurrence shall be to the exclusive account of CONTRACTOR.  Failure of the
CONTRACTOR to promptly cure any failure to have the necessary bonds in full force and
effect shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.

e. All bonds shall be obtained from surety companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the
State of California. Such surety companies shall also meet any additional requirements and
qualifications as may be provided in the Supplementary General Conditions.

9. Substitution of Securities.  This Agreement is subject to California Public Contract Code section
22300, which permits the substitution of securities for any monies withheld by the CITY to ensure
performance of this Agreement. At the request and expense of the CONTRACTOR, securities
equivalent to the amount withheld shall be deposited with the CITY, or with a state- or federally-
chartered bank in this state as the escrow agent, who shall then pay those moneys to
CONTRACTOR.  Upon satisfactory completion and acceptance of the Work, such securities shall
be returned to the CONTRACTOR.

10. Contractor Default.  In the event CONTRACTOR, for a period of 10 calendar days after receipt of
written demand from the CITY to do so (“Cure Period”), fails to furnish tools, equipment, or labor in
the necessary quantity or quality required by this Agreement, or fails to prosecute the Work and all
parts thereof in a diligent and workmanlike manner, or after commencing to do so within the Cure
Period, fails to continue to do so, then the CITY in its sole discretion may exclude the
CONTRACTOR from the Property, or any portion thereof, and take exclusive possession of the
Property or any portion thereof, together with all material and equipment thereon, and may
complete the Work or any portion of the Work, either by (i) furnishing the necessary tools,
equipment, labor, or materials; or (ii) letting the unfinished portion of the work, or any portion
thereof, to another contractor; or (iii) demanding the surety hire another contractor; or (iv) any
combination of such methods.  The CITY’s procuring of the completion of the Work, or the portion
of the Work taken over by the CITY, shall be a charge against the CONTRACTOR and may be
deducted from any money due or to become due to CONTRACTOR from the CITY, or the
CONTRACTOR shall pay the CITY the amount of such charge, or the portion thereof unsatisfied.
The sureties provided for under this Agreement shall become liable for payment if CONTRACTOR
fails to pay in full any such cost incurred by the CITY.  The permissible charges for any such
procurement of the completion of the Work include actual costs and fees incurred to third party

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 16

712

Item 13.



individuals and entities (including but not limited to consultants, attorneys, inspectors, and 
designers) and actual costs incurred by the CITY for the increased dedication of time of the CITY’s 
employees to the Project. 

11. Other Legal Requirements Incorporated.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by
law to be inserted in this Agreement or its attachments shall be deemed to be inserted herein, and
this Agreement shall be read and enforced as though such law or clause were included herein,
and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not currently inserted,
then upon application of either Party, the Agreement shall forthwith be physically amended to
make such insertion or correction, without further changes to the remainder of the Agreement.

12. Merger Clause.  This Agreement, together with its attachments or other documents described or
incorporated herein, if any, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the CITY and
CONTRACTOR concerning the subject of this Agreement and supersedes and replaces all prior
negotiations, understandings, or proposed agreements, written or oral, except as otherwise
provided herein.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any of
its attachments or related documents, if any, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.

13. Attorney’s Fees and Costs.  In any action to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.

14. Independent Contractor.  CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor, and no agency or
employment relationship is created by the execution of this Agreement.

15. Amendment.  This Agreement shall not be amended except in a writing signed by the CITY and
CONTRACTOR, and pursuant to action of the Escondido City Council.

16. Anti-Waiver Clause.  None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be waived by the CITY
because of previous failure to insist upon strict performance, nor shall any provision be waived
because any other provision has been waived by the CITY, in whole or in part.

17. Severability.  This Agreement shall be performed and shall be enforceable to the full extent
allowed by applicable law, and the illegality, invalidity, waiver, or unenforceability of any provision
of this Agreement shall not affect the legality, validity, applicability, or enforceability of the
remaining provisions of this Agreement.

18. Governing Law.  This Agreement and all rights and obligations arising out of it shall be construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Venue for any action arising from this
Agreement shall be conducted only in the state or federal courts of San Diego County, California.

19. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed on separate counterparts, each of which shall be
an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  Delivery
of an executed signature page of this Agreement by electronic means, including an attachment to
an email, shall be effective as delivery of an executed original.  The Agreement on file with the
City is the copy of the Agreement that shall take precedence if any differences exist between or
among copies or counterparts of the Agreement.

20. Provisions Cumulative.  The foregoing provisions are cumulative to, in addition to, and not in
limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the CITY.

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 16

713

Item 13.



21. Business License.  CONTRACTOR shall obtain a City of Escondido Business License prior to
execution of this Agreement and shall maintain such Business License throughout the term of this
Agreement.

22. Compliance with Laws, Permits, and Licenses.  CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of and
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations,
rules, and other legal requirements in effect during the term of this Agreement.  This shall include,
but shall not be limited to, all California Labor Code laws regarding payment of prevailing wages
and all OSHA regulations.  CONTRACTOR shall obtain any and all permits, licenses, and other
authorizations necessary to perform the work under this Agreement.  Neither the CITY, nor any
elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or agents of the CITY, shall be liable, at
law or in equity, as a result of any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with this section.

23. Prevailing Wages and Department of Industrial Relations Compliance.  Pursuant to California
Labor Code section 1770 et seq., CONTRACTOR agrees that a prevailing rate and scale of
wages, in accordance with applicable laws, shall be paid in performing this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable federal, state, and
local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations, rules, and other legal requirements pertaining
to the payment of prevailing wages, including but not limited to the keeping of certified payroll
records, overtime pay, employment of apprentices, and workers' compensation coverage, as
further set forth in the General Conditions.  CONTRACTOR shall file the required workers'
compensation certificate before commencing work under this Agreement.  This project is subject
to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.
CONTRACTOR shall post all job site notices required by regulation.  CONTRACTOR, as well as
any subcontractors, shall be registered pursuant to California Labor Code section 1725.5 to be
qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal (subject to the requirements of Public Contract Code
section 4104), or engage in the performance of any public works contract subject to the
requirements of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 of the California Labor Code.  Neither the CITY, nor
any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or agents of the CITY, shall be
liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with this section.

24. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.  CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of and
shall comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”).  CONTRACTOR
represents and warrants that all of its employees and the employees of any subcontractor retained
by CONTRACTOR who perform any portion of the Work under this Agreement are and will be
authorized to perform the Work in full compliance with the IRCA.  CONTRACTOR affirms that as a
licensed contractor and employer in the State of California, all new employees must produce proof
of eligibility to work in the United States within the first three days of employment and that only
employees legally eligible to work in the United States will perform the Work.  CONTRACTOR
agrees to comply with the IRCA before commencing any portion of the Work, and continuously
throughout the performance of the Work and the term of this Agreement.

25. Effective Date.  Unless a different date is provided in this Agreement, the effective date of this
Agreement shall be the latest date of execution set forth by the names of the signatories below.

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 16

714

Item 13.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties or their duly authorized 
representatives as of the Effective Date: 
 
 
 
 CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 
 Paul McNamara, Mayor 

 
  

 

 S.C. VALLEY ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 
 Signature 

 
 ___________________________________ 
 Name and Title (please print) 
 

___________________________________ 
Contractor's License No. 

 
___________________________________ 
Tax ID/Social Security No. 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, City Attorney 

 
BY: __________________________ 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST QUALIFIED PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. 

 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 16

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 16

715

Item 13.



City of Escondido FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
W 7th Ave and S Broadway Page A-00620-1 
Watermain Replacement Project 

Bond No.: _______________ 

Premium: _______________ 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Escondido, State of California, and S.C. Valley 
Engineering, Inc., a California corporation (“Principal”), have entered into that certain Public 
Improvement Agreement dated ____________________ (“Agreement,” hereby referred to and 
made a part hereof), whereby Principal has agreed to install and complete certain designated 
public improvements associated with the W 7th Ave and S Broadway Water Main Replacement 
Project.   

WHEREAS, the Principal is required under the terms of the Agreement to furnish a bond 
for the faithful performance of the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Principal and __________, a ______________ organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of California and authorized to act as a surety in the State 
of California (“Surety”), are held and firmly bound unto the City of Escondido, a California 
municipal corporation (“City”) in the penal sum of two million nine hundred eighty five thousand 
nine hundred sixty dollars and zero cents ($2,985,960), lawful money of the United States of 
America, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, 
successors, executors, and administrators, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION of this obligation is such that if the Principal, or its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 
keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the Agreement and any alteration 
thereof made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the 
manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall 
indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees, as therein stipulated, 
then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and 
effect. 

As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified 
therefor, there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable 
attorney's fees, incurred by the City in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as 
costs and included in any judgment rendered. 

The Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or 
addition to the terms of the Agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the 
specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 16

716

Item 13.



 
City of Escondido FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
W 7th Ave and S Broadway Page A-00620-2 
Watermain Replacement Project 
 

the Surety hereby waives notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to 
the terms of the Agreement or to the work or to the specifications. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and 

Surety above named, as of this ________ day of __________________, 20__. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 

Name of Principal 
 
_________________________________ 

Address of Principal 
 

By: __________________________________________ 

Signature of Person Signing on Behalf of Principal 
 

__________________________________________ 

Name of Person Signing on Behalf of Principal 
 
__________________________________________ 

Title of Person Signing on Behalf of Principal 
 

 
   
_________________________________ 
Name of Surety 
 
_________________________________ 
Address of Surety 
 

By: __________________________________________ 
Signature of Person Signing on Behalf of Surety 

 
__________________________________________ 
Name of Person Signing on Behalf of Surety 
 
__________________________________________ 
Title of Person Signing on Behalf of Surety 

 

  
  

(ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION BY PRINCIPALS AND SURETY MUST BE ATTACHED.) 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, City Attorney 

 
BY: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 16

717

Item 13.



 
City of Escondido LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 
W 7th Ave and S Broadway Page A-00620-1 
Water Main Replacement Project 
 

Bond No.: _______________ 

     Premium: _______________ 
 

 
 

LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 
 
 
KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Escondido, State of California, and S.C. Valley 
Engineering, Inc., a California corporation (“Principal”), have entered into a that certain Public 
Improvement Agreement dated ______________________ (“Agreement,” hereby referred to and 
made a part hereof), whereby Principal has agreed to install and complete certain designated 
public improvements associated with the W 7th Avenue and S Broadway Water Main Replacement 
Project.   

 
WHEREAS, under the terms of the Agreement, the Principal is required before entering 

upon the performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City of 
Escondido, a California municipal corporation (“City”), to secure the claims to which reference is 
made in Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and __________, a ______________ organized and 

existing under the laws of the State of California and authorized to act as a surety in the State of 
California (“Surety”), are held firmly bound unto the City and all contractors, subcontractors, 
laborers, material suppliers, and other persons employed in the performance of the Agreement 
and referred to in Title 3 (commencing with Section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code 
in the sum of two million nine hundred eighty five thousand nine hundred sixty dollars and zero 
cents ($2,985,960), lawful money of the United States of America, for materials furnished or labor 
thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to 
this work or labor, that the Surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount 
hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the 
face amount thereof, costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's 
fees, incurred by the City in successfully enforcing this obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the 
court, and to be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 

 
It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any 

and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 3 (commencing 
with Section 9000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them 
or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. 

 
If the condition of this bond is fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and 

void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
The Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or 

addition to the terms of the Agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 16

718

Item 13.



 
City of Escondido LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 
W 7th Ave and S Broadway Page A-00620-2 
Water Main Replacement Project 
 

specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and 
it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and 
Surety above named, as of this ______ day of ______________, 20__. 
 
 

_________________________________ 

Name of Principal 
 
_________________________________ 

Address of Principal 
 

By: __________________________________________ 

Signature of Person Signing on Behalf of Principal 
 

__________________________________________ 

Name of Person Signing on Behalf of Principal 
 
__________________________________________ 

Title of Person Signing on Behalf of Principal 
 

  
 
   
_________________________________ 
Name of Surety 
 
_________________________________ 
Address of Surety 
 

By: __________________________________________ 
Signature of Person Signing on Behalf of Surety 

 
__________________________________________ 
Name of Person Signing on Behalf of Surety 
 
__________________________________________ 
Title of Person Signing on Behalf of Surety 

 

  
  

(ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF EXECUTION BY PRINCIPALS AND SURETY MUST BE ATTACHED.) 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, City Attorney 

 
BY: __________________________ 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 16

719

Item 13.



 

City of Escondido  BUSINESS LICENSE 

W 7th Ave and S Broadway  Page A-00630-1  

Water Main Replacement Project  
 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO BUSINESS LICENSE 
 
In accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 16, the successful bidder is required to obtain 
a City of Escondido Business License prior to execution of contract. 
 
The following information must be submitted to the City Clerk prior to execution of 
contract: 

City of Escondido Business License No. ___________________________ 

Expiration Date ______________________________________________ 

Name of Licensee: S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc. 

 
 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 16

720

Item 13.



 

City of Escondido WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

W 7th Ave and S Broadway  Page A-00660-1  

Water Main Replacement Project  

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE CERTIFICATE 
 
If self-insured for Workers’ Compensation, the Contractor shall execute the following form 
as required by the California Labor Code, Sections 1860 and 1861: 

 
I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which 
requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers' 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of the Labor Code, Sections 1860 and 1861, and I will comply 
with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of the 
contract. 

 

S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc. 

 

 

Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 

 Signature 

 

 ___________________________________ 

 Name & Title (please print) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 16

721

Item 13.



 

City of Escondido SAMPLE NOTICE 

W 7th Ave and S Broadway  Page A-00670-1  

Water Main Replacement Project  

SAMPLE NOTICE  
  

(Required Under General Conditions, Article 6.1.B) 
 

TO THE PEOPLE ON THIS STREET: 

WITHIN THE NEXT FEW DAYS, WORK WILL BE STARTED ON THE FOLLOWING PROJECT: 

W 7TH AVE AND S BROADWAY WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

The work may cause some inconvenience, but will be of permanent benefit. 

We shall appreciate your cooperation in the following matters: 

1. Please be alert when driving or walking in the construction area. 

2. Tools, materials and equipment are attractive to children.  For the safety of 
the children, please keep them away. 

3. Please report all inconvenience to the jobsite superintendent, or to Randy 
Manns, City of Escondido - Utilities Construction Project Manager, 760-839-
6290 Ext. 7031.  The name and phone number of the contractor are given 
below. 

This work is being performed for the City of Escondido by: 

S.C. Valley Engineering, Inc. 

(Superintendent Name) 

(Phone Number) 

We will endeavor to complete this work as rapidly as possible and with a minimum of 
inconvenience to you. 

 
 

Resolution No. 2021-159 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 16

722

Item 13.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-161 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A CONSULTING 
AGREEMENT WITH ARDURRA GROUP, INC. 
FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES FOR THE W 7TH AVENUE AND S 
BROADWAY WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) desires to construct the W 7th Avenue 

and S Broadway Water Main Replacement Project (“Project”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Project will replace approximately 5,500 lineal feet of existing 10-

inch and 12-inch water pipeline, and replace existing water services, water meters and 

fire hydrants along W 7th Avenue and S Broadway; and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires construction management services for the Project; 

and 

 WHEREAS, City staff solicited proposals from firms specializing in construction 

management of water projects; and 

 WHEREAS, City staff thoroughly evaluated the proposals received and the 

proposal from Ardurra Group, Inc. was determined to be the best value proposal; and 

 WHEREAS, Ardurra Group, Inc. has the personnel, specialized services and 

expertise to manage the construction project; and 

 WHEREAS, City staff have completed negotiations with Ardurra Group, Inc. for 

said construction management services and the Deputy City Manager / Director of Utilities 

recommends that the Consulting Agreement (“Agreement”) be approved; and 

723

Item 13.



 WHEREAS, this City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to approve said Agreement in an amount not to exceed $432,610. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the Mayor and City Council accepts the recommendation of the Deputy 

City Manager / Director of Utilities.  

3. That the Mayor is authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, a Consulting 

Agreement with Ardurra Group, Inc. in substantially the same format as Exhibit “1,” which 

is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, subject to final approval as to form 

by the City Attorney.   

724

Item 13.



 
 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

 This Consulting Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this _____ day of 

_______________, 2021 (“Effective Date”), 
 
 

Between:  CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
  a California municipal corporation 
  201 N. Broadway 
  Escondido, CA 92025 
  Attn: Randy Manns 
  (760) 839-6290, ext. 7031 
  ("CITY") 
 
And:  Ardurra Group, Inc. 
  a Florida corporation 
  14271 Danielson St. 
  Poway, CA 92064 
  Attn: Scott Adamson 
  858-413-2400 
  ("CONSULTANT"). 
 

(The CITY and CONSULTANT each may be referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.”) 

 WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that it is in the CITY’s best interest to retain the 

professional services of a consultant to construction management services for the W 7th Ave & S 

Broadway Watermain Replacement project;   

 WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is considered competent to perform the necessary professional 

services for the CITY; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY and CONSULTANT desire to enter into this Agreement for the per-

formance of the Services described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, terms, and conditions 

set forth herein, and the mutual benefits derived therefrom, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Description of Services.  CONSULTANT shall furnish all of the Services described in the Scope of 
Work, which is attached to this Agreement as Attachment “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Services”).  

2. Compensation.  In exchange for CONSULTANT’s completion of the Services, the CITY shall pay, 

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 15

725

Item 13.



and CONSULTANT shall accept in full, an amount not to exceed the sum of $432,610.  
CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for performance of the Services described in this 
Agreement.  No compensation shall be provided for any other work or services without the CITY’s 
prior written consent.  If this Agreement is amended at any time, additional compensation of 
CONSULTANT contained in any subsequent amendments shall not exceed a cumulative total of 
25% of the maximum payment provided for in this Section 2, unless approved by resolution of the 
City Council.     
 

3. Performance.  CONSULTANT shall faithfully perform the Services in a proficient manner, to the 
satisfaction of the CITY, and in accord with the terms of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall be 
responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of 
all reports and other information furnished by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement, except 
that CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for the accuracy of information supplied by the CITY. 
The standard of care for all professional Services performed or furnished by CONSULTANT under 
this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the suject profession 
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. 
 

4. Personnel.  The performance of the Services by certain professionals is significant to the CITY.  As 
such, CONSULTANT shall only assign the persons listed on Attachment “B”, attached to this 
Agreement and incorporated herein by this reference (“Personnel List”), to perform the Services.  
CONSULTANT shall not add or remove persons from the Personnel List without the City’s prior 
written consent.  If CONSULTANT has not designated a person to perform a component of the 
Services, CONSULTANT shall not assign such component of the Services to a person without 
obtaining the City’s prior written consent.  CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any component of 
the Services without obtaining the City’s prior written consent.  
 

5. Termination.  The Parties may mutually terminate this Agreement through a writing signed by both 
Parties.  The CITY may terminate this Agreement for any reason upon providing CONSULTANT 
with 10 days’ advance written notice.  CONSULTANT agrees to cease all work under this Agreement 
on or before the effective date of any notice of termination.  If the CITY terminates this Agreement 
due to no fault or failure of performance by CONSULTANT, then CONSULTANT shall be 
compensated based on the work satisfactorily performed at the time of such termination.  In no 
event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to receive more than the amount that would be paid to 
CONSULTANT for the full performance of the Services.   
 

6. City Property.  All original documents, drawings, electronic media, and other materials prepared by 
CONSULTANT (“Work Product”) pursuant to this Agreement immediately become the exclusive 
property of the CITY, and shall not be used by CONSULTANT for any other purpose without the 
CITY’s prior written consent.  Any use, reuse, or modification of the Work Product by the CITY, 
without written verification, completion, or adaptation by CONSULTANT, as appropriate for the 
specific purpose intended, will be at CITY’S sole risk and without any liability to CONSULTANT. 
 

7. Insurance Requirements. 

a. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain, at its own cost, during the entire term of this 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the Services, and the results of such work, 
by CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  Insurance 
coverage shall be at least as broad as the following: 

(1) Commercial General Liability.  Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Form CG 00 01 covering 
Commercial General Liability on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed 
operations, property damage, bodily injury, and personal & advertising injury, with limits 
no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 general aggregate.  

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 15

726

Item 13.



(2) Automobile Liability.  ISO Form CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if CONSULTANT 
has no owned autos, hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage, unless waived by the 
CITY and approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk and Safety Division.  

(3) Workers’ Compensation.  Worker’s Compensation as required by the State of California, 
with Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

(4) Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions).  Professional Liability (Errors and 
Omissions) appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession, with limits no less than $2,000,000 
per occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 aggregate. 

(5) If CONSULTANT maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums 
otherwise required by this Agreement, the CITY requires and shall be entitled to the 
broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by CONSULTANT. 

b. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be acceptable to the City Attorney and 
shall meet the following requirements: 

(1) Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance coverage must be provided by an insurer authorized 
to conduct business in the state of California with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A-: FSC VII, or as approved by the CITY. 

(2) Additional Insured Status.  Both the Commercial General Liability and the Automobile 
Liability policies must name the CITY (including its officials, officers, agents, employees, 
and volunteers) specifically as an additional insured under the policy on a separate 
endorsement page.  The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement 
shall be at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85, or if not available, through the 
addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38, and CG 20 37 if a later 
edition is used.  The Automobile Liability endorsement shall be at least as broad as ISO 
Form CA 20 01. 

(3) Primary Coverage.  CONSULTANT’s insurance coverage shall be primary coverage at 
least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 with respect to the CITY, its officials, officers, 
agents, employees, and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of 
CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(4) Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy shall provide that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with prior written notice to the CITY. 

(5) Subcontractors.  If applicable, CONSULTANT shall require and verify that all 
subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated within this 
Agreement, and CONSULTANT shall ensure that the CITY (including its officials, officers, 
agents, employees, and volunteers) is an additional insured on any insurance required 
from a subcontractor. 

(6) Waiver of Subrogation.  CONSULTANT hereby grants to the CITY a waiver of any right to 
subrogation that any insurer of CONSULTANT may acquire against the CITY by virtue of 
the payment of any loss under such insurance.  CONSULTANT agrees to obtain any 
endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this 
subsection shall apply regardless of whether or not the CITY has received a waiver of 
subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  Any Workers’ Compensation policy required 
by this Agreement shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the CITY for 
all work performed by the CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, employees, and 
subcontractors. 

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 15

727

Item 13.



(7) Self-Insurance.  CONSULTANT may, with the CITY’s prior written consent, fulfill some or 
all of the insurance requirements contained in this Agreement under a plan of self-
insurance.  CONSULTANT shall only be permitted to utilize such self-insurance if, in the 
opinion of the CITY, CONSULTANT’s (i) net worth and (ii) reserves for payment of claims 
of liability against CONSULTANT are sufficient to adequately compensate for the lack of 
other insurance coverage required by this Agreement.  CONSULTANT’s utilization of self-
insurance shall not in any way limit the liabilities assumed by CONSULTANT pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

(8) Self-Insured Retentions.  Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the 
CITY. 

c. Verification of Coverage.  At the time CONSULTANT executes this Agreement, CONSULTANT 
shall provide the CITY with original Certificates of Insurance including all required amendatory 
endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting the insurance coverage 
required by this Agreement), which shall meet all requirements under this Agreement.  The CITY 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, 
including endorsements required by this Agreement, at any time.   

d. Special Risks or Circumstances.  The CITY reserves the right, at any point during the term of 
this Agreement, to modify the insurance requirements in this Agreement, including limits, based 
on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

e. No Limitation of Obligations.  The insurance requirements in this Agreement, including the types 
and limits of insurance coverage CONSULTANT must maintain, and any approval of such 
insurance by the CITY, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the 
liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement, 
including but not limited to any provisions in this Agreement concerning indemnification. 

f. Failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements in this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, a lapse in any required insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement, shall 
be a material breach of this Agreement.  In the event that CONSULTANT fails to comply with 
any such insurance requirements in this Agreement, in addition to any other remedies the CITY 
may have, the CITY may, at its sole option, (i) immediately terminate this Agreement; or (ii) order 
CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement and/or withhold any payment that becomes 
due to CONSULTANT until CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the insurance 
requirements in this Agreement. 

8. Indemnification, Duty to Defend, and Hold Harmless. 

a. CONSULTANT (including CONSULTANT’s agents, employees, and subcontractors, if any) shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and 
volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, proceedings 
(including but not limited to legal and administrative proceedings of any kind), suits, fines, 
penalties, judgments, orders, levies, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages, or injuries, in 
law or equity, including without limitation the payment of all consequential damages and 
attorney’s fees and other related litigation costs and expenses (collectively, “Claims”), of every 
nature caused by, arising out of, or in connection with CONSULTANT’s performance of the 
Services or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except 
where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the CITY. 

b. CONSULTANT (including CONSULTANT’s agents, employees, and subcontractors, if any) shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and 
volunteers from and against any and all Claims caused by, arising under, or resulting from any 
violation, or claim of violation, of the San Diego Municipal Storm Water Permit (Order No. R9-
2013-0001, as amended) of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Region 9, San 

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 15

728

Item 13.



Diego, that the CITY might suffer, incur, or become subject to by reason of, or occurring as a 
result of, or allegedly caused by, any work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

c. All terms and provisions within this Section 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

9. Anti-Assignment Clause.  Because the CITY has relied on the particular skills of CONSULTANT in 
entering into this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not assign, delegate, subcontract, or otherwise 
transfer any duty or right under this Agreement, including as to any portion of the Services, without 
the CITY’s prior written consent.  Any purported assignment, delegation, subcontract, or other 
transfer made without the CITY’s consent shall be void and ineffective.  Unless CONSULTANT 
assigns this entire Agreement, including all rights and duties herein, to a third party with the CITY’s 
prior written consent, CONSULTANT shall be the sole payee under this Agreement.  Any and all 
payments made pursuant to the terms of this Agreement are otherwise not assignable.   
 

10. Attorney's Fees and Costs.  In any action to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 
 

11. Independent Contractor. CONSULTANT is an independent contractor, and no agency or 
employment relationship is created by the execution of this Agreement. 
 

12. Amendment.  This Agreement shall not be amended except in a writing signed by the CITY and 
CONSULTANT. 
 

13. Merger Clause.  This Agreement, together with its attachments or other documents described or 
incorporated herein, if any, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the CITY and 
CONSULTANT concerning the subject of this Agreement and supersedes and replaces all prior 
negotiations, understandings, or proposed agreements, written or oral, except as otherwise 
provided herein.  In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any of 
its attachments or related documents, if any, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 
 

14. Anti-Waiver Clause.  None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be waived by the CITY because 
of previous failure to insist upon strict performance, nor shall any provision be waived because any 
other provision has been waived by the CITY, in whole or in part. 
 

15. Severability.  This Agreement shall be performed and shall be enforceable to the full extent allowed 
by applicable law, and the illegality, invalidity, waiver, or unenforceability of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not affect the legality, validity, applicability, or enforceability of the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 

16. Governing Law.  This Agreement and all rights and obligations arising out of it shall be construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Venue for any action arising from this Agreement 
shall be conducted only in the state or federal courts of San Diego County, California. 

 
17. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed on separate counterparts, each of which shall be 

an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  Delivery 
of an executed signature page of this Agreement by electronic means, including an attachment to 
an email, shall be effective as delivery of an executed original.  The Agreement on file with the City 
is the copy of the Agreement that shall take precedence if any differences exist between or among 
copies or counterparts of the Agreement. 
 

18. Provisions Cumulative.  The foregoing provisions are cumulative to, in addition to, and not in 
limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the CITY. 
 

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 15

729

Item 13.



19. Notice.  Any statements, communications, or notices to be provided pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be sent to the attention of the persons indicated herein, and the CITY and CONSULTANT shall 
promptly provide the other Party with notice of any changes to such contact information. 
 

20. Business License.   CONSULTANT shall obtain a City of Escondido Business License prior to 
execution of this Agreement and shall maintain such Business License throughout the term of this 
Agreement. 
 

21. Compliance with Laws, Permits, and Licenses. CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations, 
rules, and other legal requirements in effect during the term of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall 
obtain any and all permits, licenses, and other authorizations necessary to perform the Services.  
Neither the CITY, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or agents of 
the CITY, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any failure of CONSULTANT to comply 
with this section. 
 

22. Prevailing Wages. If applicable, pursuant to California Labor Code section 1770 et seq., 
CONSULTANT agrees that a prevailing rate and scale of wages, in accordance with applicable 
laws, shall be paid in performing this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations, 
rules, and other legal requirements pertaining to the payment of prevailing wages.  The prevailing 
rate and scale to be paid shall be the same as the applicable “General Prevailing Wage 
Determination” approved by the Department of Industrial Relations as of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, which are available online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/dprewagedetermination.htm 
and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. Neither the CITY, nor any elected or 
appointed boards, officers, officials, employees, or agents of the CITY, shall be liable, at law or in 
equity, as a result of any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with this section. 
 

23. Department of Industrial Relations Compliance.  This public project is subject to compliance 
monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  CONSULTANT shall post 
all job site notices required by regulation.  CONSULTANT, as well as any subcontractors, shall be 
registered pursuant to California Labor Code section 1725.5 to be qualified to bid on, be listed in a 
bid proposal (subject to the requirements of Public Contract Code section 4104), or engage in the 
performance of any public works contract subject to the requirements of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 
1 of the California Labor Code.  Neither the CITY, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, 
officials, employees, or agents of the CITY, shall be liable, at law or in equity, as a result of any 
failure of CONSULTANT to comply with this section. 
 

24. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and 
shall comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”).  CONSULTANT 
represents and warrants that all of its employees and the employees of any subcontractor retained 
by CONSULTANT who perform any of the Services under this Agreement, are and will be authorized 
to perform the Services in full compliance with the IRCA.  CONSULTANT affirms that as a licensed 
contractor and employer in the State of California, all new employees must produce proof of 
eligibility to work in the United States within the first three days of employment and that only 
employees legally eligible to work in the United States will perform the Services.  CONSULTANT 
agrees to comply with the IRCA before commencing any Services, and continuously throughout the 
performance of the Services and the term of this Agreement. 
 

25. Effective Date.  Unless a different date is provided in this Agreement, the effective date of this 
Agreement shall be the latest date of execution set forth by the names of the signatories below. 

 
(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS) 

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 15

730

Item 13.

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/dprewagedetermination.htm


 
 

 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties or their duly authorized 
representatives as of the Effective Date: 
 
 
 CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 
 Paul McNamara, Mayor 
 
 

 

 Ardurra Group, Inc. 
 
 
Date:  __________________ ___________________________________ 
 Signature 

 
 ___________________________________ 
 Name and Title (please print) 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
MICHAEL R. MCGUINNESS, CITY ATTORNEY 

 
BY: __________________________ 
 

THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST QUALIFIED PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. 

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 15

731

Item 13.



A. General

Ardurra Group, Inc., a Florida corporation (“Consultant”) will provide the City of Escondido, a
California municipal corporation (“City”) with full-service construction management (“CM”) services
related to the City’s W 7th Ave & S Broadway Watermain Replacement Project (“Project”).

B. Location

Consultant to provide services at the Project site located along West Seventh Avenue (between
Quince Street and South Broadway) and along South Broadway (between West Seventh Avenue
and West Valley Parkway).  See Exhibit 1, which is attached to this Scope of Work and incorporated
herein by this reference, for the Project site map.

C. Services

Task 1 – Project Coordination

1. Assist the City with community outreach efforts;
2. Provide a part-time staff member who is dedicated to performing document control tasks;
3. Coordinate with all independent consultants retained by the City for the Project, including:

design engineer, labor compliance consultant, and any other consulting services required
for the duration of the Project;

4. Coordinate all special inspections for the Project that are not required of the Project
contractor (e.g. geotechnical and any special inspections that are included as part of CM
services).  All subcontracts for special inspections must include prevailing wage and labor
compliance requirements.  Consultant’s services relating to special inspections for the
Project are further detailed in Task 5 below;

5. Coordinate, review, observe, and document all equipment testing and start up, if applicable;
6. Coordinate with the City’s Utilities Construction Management staff;
7. Coordinate with the City’s Water Distribution staff regarding major shutdowns, tie-ins, facility

connections, and any applicable training; and
8. Coordinate with the City, independent consultants, and all stakeholders to ensure good

communications with the Project contractor and good record keeping practices.

Task 2 – Inspection 

1. Monitor all Project permit conditions (e.g. City encroachment permit) and the respective
expiration dates for each Project permit.  Inform the City and Project contractor when non-
compliance is observed as it relates to the Project permit requirements;

2. Monitor and ensure the Project contractor’s compliance for all Project specifications and
drawings requirements, the City’s Standard Detail drawings, agency encroachment permits,
and all other pertinent standards, requirements, and documents associated with the Project;
and

3. Monitor Project contractor’s schedule each week and inform the City of any construction
conflicts and issues that could potentially affect the Critical Path Method (“CPM”) or
designated Project schedule method.

Task 3 – Document Control and Record Keeping 

1. Employ and conform to the City’s Secure File Transfer Protocol (“SFTP”) system, file
management plan, and other City-provided forms to prepare, process, and file (in PDF
format) all construction phase documents and records, ensuring complete Project records
during the course of the Project and at Project completion.

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 15

732

Item 13.



2. Examples of document control and record keeping include, but are not limited to:
a. Preparation of written daily field reports for submittal to the City via the SFTP.  Reports

must include work performed, labor and equipment utilized, and a discussion of any work
not conforming to the plans and specifications.  The City will provide Consultant a written
daily field report form within 30 days of the Effective Date;

b. In accordance with the General Conditions (“GC”), Consultant shall collect the Project
contractor’s daily reports.  After collection, Consultant shall compare the Project
contractor’s daily reports to Consultant’s daily inspection reports so any discrepancies
can be addressed in a timely manner.  Approved reports will be filed on the SFTP;

c. Daily photographic documentation of construction activities in digital, date-stamped
format.  Photo file sized shall conform to City file requirements.  Photos shall be uploaded
to the City SFTP on a daily or weekly basis;

d. Observe and record all major materials deliveries to the Project site to confirm
compliance with the Project specifications and approved shop drawings;

e. Review and upload all special inspection reports and geotechnical reports provided by
those firms contracted through Consultant pursuant to Task 1 and Task 5;

f. Review and upload to the SFTP all Project documents, reports, and correspondence,
including shop drawings, submittals, requests for information (“RFI”), Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP”) inspections reports, permit documents,
environmental monitoring reports and training documentation, labor compliance
monitoring reports and correspondence, community complaints and documentation of
contact and resolution, geotechnical and materials testing reports, and special
inspections;

g. During the Project’s construction phase, review and update Project red line drawings and
Project contractor red line drawings, and provide final reviews and approval of the Project
contractor’s red line drawings at Project completion.  Submit final, Consultant-approved
Project contractor red line drawings to the City Field Engineering Inspector;

h. Prepare quarterly CM reports, including detailed descriptions of work completed,
schedule status, submittals status, RFI status, design revision status, progress payment
and overall contract status, and Project photographs representing key construction
activities.  The quarterly reports will be prepared in a City-approved format including color
copies of six or more digital photographs with captions of work performed.  Electronic
copies of the quarterly reports shall be accessible to the City via the City’s SFTP site;

i. Ensure all Project records meet the highest quality assurance/quality control standards.
Questionable audit results can negatively impact the City’s future funding opportunities.
Most project documentation is considered public record and is potentially subject to a
high-level of scrutiny.

3. The City will provide Consultant a CM manual, including a detailed file plan.  The City does
not object to Consultant using their own proprietary file management system; however, all
documents produced in that file management system, as well as documents received from
the Project contractor, must be saved as PDFs and filed on the City’s SFTP site on a regular
(daily or weekly) basis, so that the City’s Utility Construction Management staff has access
to all project related documents at all times.

Task 4 – Project Management 

1. Ensure adherence to this Agreement, the Project contractor’s contract documents, and the
Project plans and specifications;

2. Attend a preliminary meeting with the City and labor compliance consultant to review Project
documentation requirements;

3. Attend the pre-construction meeting and participate as the Project construction manager
(after introductions by the Utilities Construction Project Manager);

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 15

733

Item 13.



4. Organize and facilitate a pre-construction partnering session with the Project contractor to
discuss any potential design related issues, preliminary RFIs, or other items that might help
expedite, ease, or promote a positive construction start;

5. Schedule and conduct weekly or bi-weekly progress meetings.  Attendees for the meeting
shall include the Project contractor, the City, and other stakeholders as necessary.  Prepare
and distribute draft meeting minutes, via email, in a timely manner.  Distribute and file on the
SFTP final meeting minutes in PDF;

6. Schedule and conduct any special meetings, as necessary.  Prepare meeting minutes,
similar to regular progress meetings as described in Task 4(5) above;

7. Manage, route, and track all submittals and RFIs, to the City’s design engineer.  Coordinate
with the City’s design engineer, as needed, on all change orders, field orders, and time and
material requests;

8. At the City’s request, provide professional opinions to the City relating to field construction
issues, determining entitlement of compensation to the Project contractor for differing site
conditions, change in scope items, negotiating all change order work, mitigating construction
claims resolutions, and providing appropriate responses to the Project contractor regarding
such issues, on behalf of the City;

9. Clearly document all details and calculations in written field orders and change orders,
ensuring good results for future audits by various funding entities;

10. Ensure the Project contractor’s adherence to Project schedule and notify all parties of issues
that might impact the CPM;

11. Review the Project contractor’s monthly progress payment estimates and confirm that
percentages and quantities of work completed align with the amounts requested for
payment.  Provide a thorough review for accuracy and comparison with actual work
completed.  Meet with the City’s Field Engineering Inspector to discuss the progress pay
application and ensure that all check list items are complete, including labor compliance
issues, prior to submittal to the City.  Make appropriate recommendations to the City on
payment issues;

12. Track preliminary notices forwarded by City staff, collect and file appropriate releases from
contractor, and ensure all appropriate and necessary releases are on file upon Project
completion;

13. Facilitate an intermediary Partnering Session, if deemed necessary during construction of
the Project;

14. Conduct and coordinate preliminary and final walk-throughs for the punch lists, start up and
testing, and closeout.  Ensure all deliverables have been reviewed, approved, and delivered
to the appropriate City staff, including Operation and Maintenance manuals and any other
training documentation;

15. Provide claim support through final resolution.  Mitigate existing issues and resolve all future
issues at the lowest level possible to avoid claims; and

16. Submit detailed monthly CM services invoices, and include a Burn Rate spreadsheet with
each invoice for budget tracking.  A sample spreadsheet will be provided.  Consultant
payments will be held, or partially held, if records are not kept up-to-date on a monthly basis.

Task 5 – Subcontract Management – Special Inspection Services 

1. Consultant to include and manage the following as part of the CM services:
a. Scheduling testing for geotechnical support and special inspection and monitoring

services, as needed.  Geotechnical support and special inspections services shall
include, but are not limited to:

i. Certified Welding Inspector for occasional observation of welding work, review of
Project contractor’s welding inspection reports and testing procedures;

ii. Inspection of trench backfill and compaction testing during pipeline construction and
site grading;

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 15

734

Item 13.



iii. Materials sampling and testing during installation of cast-in-place concrete for
structures;

iv. Subgrade, aggregate base and asphaltic concrete in cases where the Project
construction has caused damage to road surfaces, private driveways or other;

v. Laboratory testing of imported material, compaction testing of trench backfill,
concrete cylinder testing, proctor test, and aggregate base conformance to Project
specifications for asphalt and concrete;

vi. Submitting field reports and lab test reports to the CM; and
2. As part of the CM fee schedule, a line item allowance of $50,000 has been added for

geotechnical and special inspection services.  This allowance is based on a time and
materials basis, not to exceed $50,000 without written authorization from the City.

3. Consultant is responsible for ensuring compliance with all prevailing wage laws and
requirements for their firm and any subcontractors or subconsultants.  Prevailing wage laws
and requirements must be listed in all subcontracts.  Consultant and all of their
subcontractors and subconsultants are required to submit prevailing wage documentation to
the City’s labor compliance consultant for compliance monitoring for covered classifications.

Task 6 – Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) Related Services 

A SWPPP Program Manager will review the Project SWPPP submitted by the Project contractor 
to the Consultant, ensuring all requisite documents are uploaded to the Storm Water Multiple 
Application and Report Tracking System (“SMARTS”), including the Notice of Intent (“NOI”) by 
the Project contractor’s Qualified SWPPP Developer (“QSD”) and notifying the Legally 
Responsible Person (“LRP”) to certify them on SMARTS.  The NOI fees shall be paid by the 
Project contractor to the State Water Resources Control Board to obtain the Waste Discharge 
Identification number. 

1. Consultant to include and manage the following as part of the CM services:
a. Coordinate with the Project contractor’s QSD and Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (“QSP”),

the City, and the SWPPP Program Manager;
b. Review the Project contractor’s SWPPP documentation, including but not limited to the

weekly inspection reports, rain event inspection reports, annual reports, Notice of
Violations, NOI, and Notice of Termination.  Consultant shall coordinate with the QSP to
submit approved reports to the City;

c. Coordinate with the City and QSP to address Best Management Practices (“BMP”)
deficiencies within 72 hours of discovery and verify that all SWPPP amendments and
Change of Information are documented when significant BMP changes occur and ensure
the information is uploaded to SMARTS.  Consultant shall periodically check with the
SWPPP Program Manager to confirm all SWPPP records and documents are
appropriately filed on SMARTS;

d. Perform periodic Project site BMP inspections to evaluate site conditions and provide
recommendations to ensure Project is in compliance with the City’s Construction General
Permit.  This task assumes a maximum of 30 inspections plus three additional as-needed
inspections based on an eight-month Project duration.  Fee includes all travel to and
from the Project site and coordination with the QSP and City.  A copy of each Project
site inspection report shall be emailed to the City in PDF format after each inspection
and shall list any BMP deficiencies and required actions.  Any necessary follow-up
actions will be discussed with the QSP and City immediately following the inspection;

e. Attend the pre-construction meeting and up to five progress meetings to provide answers
to questions that may arise regarding SWPPP requirements and compliance with Project
specifications.

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 15

735

Item 13.



2. As part of the CM fee schedule, a line item allowance of $30,000 has been added for SWPPP
related services.  This allowance is based on a time and materials basis, not to exceed $30,000
without written authorization from the City.

3. Consultant is responsible for ensuring compliance with all prevailing wage laws and
requirements for their firm and any subcontractors or subconsultants.  Prevailing wage laws and
requirements must be listed in all subcontracts.  Consultant and all of their subcontractors and
subconsultants are required to submit prevailing wage documentation to the City’s labor
compliance consultant for compliance monitoring for covered classifications.

D. Contract Price and Payment Terms

The contract price shall not exceed $432,610.  Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to the City,
and the City shall pay Consultant for invoiced services within 30 days of receipt of an invoice.

The following rates for services shall remain in effect throughout the term of this Agreement:

Task No. Task Description Total Cost
1 Coordination $ 26,100 
2 Inspection $221,960 
3 Document Control/Record Keeping $ 26,250 
4 Project Management $ 78,300 
5 Subcontract Management – Special Inspection Services $ 50,000 
6 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program Services $ 30,000 

Total $432,610

Consultant’s rates for services are based on a “time and materials” basis and includes costs for 
vehicle mileage, computers, computer software, printers, reproduction, prints, plotting and record 
mapping copies, digital cameras, digital video cameras, cell phones and cell phone service, 
broadband service, delivery service, mail, office supplies, technical reference materials, training, 
and personal protection equipment (“PPE”) including hard hats, safety boots, work gloves, safety 
glasses and other PPE, as required and will not be separately reimbursed.  Office space is not 
included.   

E. Term

The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date of the Agreement through December
31, 2023.

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 15

736

Item 13.



200ft

+
–

-117.083 33.117 Degrees

1/6/2020https://portal.escondido.org/portal/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=d216354e731a4bb5ab182387fd1cc412

Exhibit 1
Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 15

737

Item 13.

sroman
Polygon

sroman
Polygon

sroman
Polygon



300ft

-117.077 33.123 Degrees

+
–

10/30/2019https://portal.escondido.org/portal/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=d216354e731a4bb5ab182387fd1cc412

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 15

738

Item 13.

sroman
Polygon

sroman
Polygon

sroman
Polygon



ATTACHMENT “B” 
Personnel List 

 
 

Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, CONSULTANT shall only assign performance of Services to 

persons listed below. 

 
1. Scott Adamson, PE, Construction Manager, sadamson@ardurra.com, Ardurra Group, Inc. 

 

2. Joe McMahon, Senior Construction Inspector, jmcmahon@ardurra.com  Ardurra Group, Inc. 
 

3. Nancy Cambra, Document Control, ncambra@ardurra.com, Ardurra Group, Inc. 
 
4. Jay Jordan, Senior Construction Inspector, jjordan@ardurra.com, Ardurra Group, Inc. 
 
5. Josh Fretwell, Senior Construction Inspector, jfretwell@ardurra.com, Ardurra Group, Inc. 
 
6. Dustin Bender, Senior Construction Inspector, dbender@ardurra.com, Ardurra Group, Inc. 
 

 

CONSULTANT shall not add or remove persons from this Personnel List without the City’s prior written 

consent. If CONSULTANT has not designated a person to perform a component of the Services, 

CONSULTANT shall not assign such component of the Services to a person without obtaining the City’s 

prior written consent. CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any component of the Services without 

obtaining the City’s prior written consent. 

 
 

Acknowledged by: 

 
 

 
Date:        

Scott Adamson P.E. 
Construction Management Group Leader 
Ardurra Group, Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resolution No. 2021-161 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 15

739

Item 13.

mailto:sadamson@ardurra.com
mailto:jmcmahon@ardurra.com
mailto:ncambra@ardurra.com
mailto:jjordan@ardurra.com
mailto:jfretwell@ardurra.com
mailto:dbender@ardurra.com


 

Staff Report - Council 

 Current Business Item No. 14                 December 1, 2021                 File No. 0430-80 
 
SUBJECT: City of Escondido Independent Redistricting Commission Update and Budget 

Adjustment 
 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council receive and file an update regarding the Independent Redistricting 
Commission and approve a budget adjustment in the amount of to be determined by the City Council 
for enhanced public outreach. 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

The Independent Redistricting Commission is requesting a Budget Adjustment in the amount to be 
determined by the City Council for enhanced public outreach. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
On January 27, 2021, the City Council unanimously approved a budget of $200,000 for the Escondido 
Independent Redistricting Commission. The budget included funding for each of the required elements 
of the Consent Decree (Attachment “1”): translation of six public hearing notices into four languages; 
translation of three public hearing notices into one language; publication of the hearing notices (36 
notices for nine hearings); interpretation services at the public hearings; payment for an expert 
consultant; and extraneous office, meeting, and printing costs.  
 
On November 17, 2021, the Commission’s request for an additional $50,000 was presented to the City 
Council by City Clerk Zack Beck. The City Council tabled this item and requested that the Chair of the 
Independent Redistricting Commission make a presentation during the December 1, 2021 Council 
Meeting, detailing how the Commission would spend the additional funds on public outreach. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
According to the terms of the Consent Decree, a seven-member Independent Redistricting Commission 
will update the current City Council Districts for future City Council elections, with the initial 
implementation occurring during the November 2022 General Election. 
 
A panel of three retired judges residing in San Diego County was selected to appoint the seven 
commissioners from a pool of applicants/nominees. The City Clerk’s Office accepted applications and 
nominations to the Commission. The three Selection Panel judges held a meeting to consider and 
appoint the seven commissioners. A total of 20 individuals submitted applications. Ultimately, the 

740

Item 14.



City of Escondido Independent Redistricting Commission Update and Budget Adjustment  
November 17, 2021  
Page 2 

following seven individuals were appointed to the Commission:  Carolyn Clemens, Amy Doan, Juan 
Reynoso, Kristy Jurgensen, Mariela Saldana, Robert Chase and Xochitl Reyes.  
 
The Commission has held public meetings regularly over the course of the last year. During this time, 
the Commission has hired Dr. Karin MacDonald (Q2 Data) to serve as the demographer; finalized the 
times and locations of the nine map-drawing Public Hearings that will take place in January and 
February of 2022 (Attachment “2”); and formalized an outreach plan that will be carried out by the City 
of Escondido Communications Department. 
 
Per Section D of the Consent Decree, “The Commission shall conduct an open and transparent process 
that ensures full and meaningful public consideration of and comment on the drawing of district lines… 
The Commission shall make every reasonable effort to afford maximum public access to its 
proceedings.” 
 
Due to the pandemic, the Commission will be holding its required nine public hearings in-person and 
online. In order to ensure “maximum public access to its proceedings”, the Commission would like to 
offer real-time translation services to members of the public that attend the public hearings online. The 
cost to provide translation services online is approximately $23,100. 
 
Furthermore, in order to ensure “full and meaningful public consideration of and comment on the 
drawing of district lines” the Commission would like to expand its current public outreach efforts by 
increasing the marketing budget. 
 
As a result, the Commission voted unanimously on October 25, 2021 (Attachment “3”) to request an 
additional $50,000 for enhanced public outreach and translation services. Per Section B of the Consent 
Decree, “The City Council shall appropriate to the Commission and to the City Clerk the funds 
necessary to accomplish its task…” Resources not allocated by the Commission will be returned the 
General Fund. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 

Zack Beck, City Clerk 

11/23/21 3:48 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Attachment “1” – Consent Decree 
2. Attachment “2” – Independent Redistricting Commission Meeting Schedule 
3. Attachment “3” – Independent Redistricting Commission Minutes 
4. Attachment “4” – Budget Adjustment  

741

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

742

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

743

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

744

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

745

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

746

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

747

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

748

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

749

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

750

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

751

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

752

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

753

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

754

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

755

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

756

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

757

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

758

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

759

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

760

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

761

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

762

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

763

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

764

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

765

Item 14.



Attachment "1" 

766

Item 14.



Date Time Event Location 

January 5, 2022 6:00pm Public Input Hearing 
District 1: Mission Middle School 

January 8, 2022 9:00am Public Input Hearing District 2: Reidy Creek Elementary 

School 

January 10, 2022 6:00pm Public Input Hearing District 3: East Valley Community 

Center 

January 13, 2022 5:30pm Public Input Hearing 
District 4: San Pasqual High School 

January 18, 2022 6:00pm Public Input Hearing District 1: Washington 

Park Recreation Center 

January 20, 2022 6:00pm Public Input Hearing District 2: Park Ave. Community 

Center 

January 24, 2022 6:00pm 
Review of Preliminary Redistricting 

Plan 
Council Chambers 

January 27, 2022 6:00pm 
Approval of Preliminary Redistricting 

Plan 
Council Chambers 

January 31, 2022 Publish Preliminary Redistricting Plan 

Online for Public Comment  

February 3, 2022 6:00pm Public Feedback Hearing 
District 3: Orange Glen High School 

February 10, 2022 5:00pm Public Feedback Hearing 

Attachment "2" 

767

Item 14.



 
District 4: Del Lago Academy 
 

February 17, 2022 5:00pm Public Feedback Hearing 
  

Escondido Library 
 

February 23, 2022 6:00pm 

 

Independent Redistricting Commission 

Meeting: Approval of Preliminary 

Redistricting Plan 
 

Council Chambers 

March 9, 2022 5:00pm 

 

City Council Meeting on 

Recommended Redistricting Plan 
 

Council Chambers 

March 16, 2022 5:00pm 

 

City Council Meeting on 

Recommended Redistricting Plan 
 

Council Chambers 

March 23, 2022 5:00pm 
 

City Council Votes on Final Map 
 

Council Chambers 

 

Attachment "2" 

768

Item 14.



October 25, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

The meeting of the Independent Redistricting Commission was called to order on October 25, 2021 at 
5:00 p.m. by Chair Case in the Escondido City Council Chambers and via videoconference.  

Commissioners Present: Chair Case, Vice Chair Jurgensen, Commissioner Clemens, Commissioner Reyes, 
Commissioner Reynoso, Commissioner Doan and Commissioner Saldana 

Staff Present: Zack Beck, City Clerk, Teresa Collins, Deputy Director of Communication Services and 
Michael Thorne, Communications Officer. 

1. Roll Call

All present.

2. Oral Communications

None.

3. Approval of September 27, 2021 Minutes

Motion: Doan

Second: Clemens

Approved: 7-0

4. Public Outreach

Georgine Tomasi – Expressed support for a full page mailer.

Laura Hunter – Expressed support for robust public outreach.

Motion to direct City Staff to obtain a quote for a full page mailer: Clemens

Second: Doan

Failed: 0-7

Motion to direct City Staff to obtain a quote for a full page mailer: Clemens

Motion: Clemens

Second: Reyes

Approved: 4-3 (Case, Doan, Clemens - No)

5. 2020 Census Data

Jane Hood presented an overview of the 2020 Census Data.

Attachment "3" 

769

Item 14.



 
Michael Hefner – Encouraged the commission to have District 1 remain compact. 

Laura Hunter – Encouraged the commission to make sure that the minority populations are not 

diluted during the redistricting process. 

6. Budget 

Zack Beck presented an overview of the Budget. 

Laura Hunter – Expressed support for virtual translation services. 

Lilian Serrano – Expressed support for virtual translation services. 

Suzanne Southwell- Expressed concern about spending too much money on translation services. 

Motion to increase the Redistricting Commission budget by $50,000: Clemens 

Second: Case 

Approved: 7-0 

7. Future Agenda Items 

Flyer Design 

Text Message Feasibility 

Community of Interest Form Update 

8. Commissioner Reports and Disclosures 

Commissioner Saldana – Distributed flyers at the Grand Avenue Festival  

Chair Case - Interviewed by Joe Tash from the Union Tribune. Distributed flyers at the Grand 

Avenue Festival. Interacted with Councilmember Inscoe at the Grand Avenue Festival. 

Commissioner Reynoso - Distributed flyers at the Grand Avenue Festival. Interacted with 

Councilmember Inscoe at the Grand Avenue Festival. 

9. Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m.  

 

_________________________    _______________________ 

Chair       City Clerk 

 

Attachment "3" 

770

Item 14.



FM\105 (Rev.11/06) 

C I T Y  O F  E S C O N D I D O  

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST 

Date of Request:  11/8/2021 For Finance Use Only 

Log #  

Fiscal Year  
ear 

Department:  City Clerk 

Division:  Redistricting Commission 

Project/Budget Manager:  Zack Beck 4560 
Name Extension 

Council Date (if applicable):  11/17/2021 
    (attach copy of staff report) 

_____  Budget Balances 
_____  General Fund Accts 
_____  Revenue  
_____  Interfund Transfers 
_____  Fund Balance 

Project/Account Description Account Number Amount of Increase Amount of Decrease 

Independent Redistricting 
Commission 

5190-001-701 $50,000 

Fund Balance 3050-001 $50,000 

Explanation of Request: 

To appropriate funds for enhanced public outreach and translation services requested unanimously by the 
Independent Redistricting Commission on October 25, 2021. 

APPROVALS 

      
Department Head Date City Manager Date 

      
Finance Date City Clerk Date 

Distribution (after approval): Original:  Finance

Attachment "4"

771

Item 14.



 

 
  December 1, 2021 

 
 

 

Item No. 15: HOMELESSNESS AND TRANSIENCY      

UPDATE WORKSHOP - 

 

 No materials available at this time. Request the City 

Council receive and file this presentation.  

 

772

Item 15.



- 1 -  
  

   

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS  

Updated November 24, 2021  
 

AGENDA ITEMS AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

CHECK WITH THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (760) 839-4617 
 

December 8, 2021 
CANCELLED  

  

December 15, 2021 
5:00 p.m.  

CONSENT CALENDAR  

 Approval of ROPS 22-23 for the Period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2023 
(C. Holmes) 
 
As part of the State of California’s Dissolution of Redevelopment, the City as Successor Agency is required to 
adopt an annual Recognized Obligation Payment schedule.  The adopted schedule will be submitted to the 
County Oversight Board and forwarded to the State for approval.  Once approved by the State, the County of 
San Diego will fund the payments from the County Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF). 

 Annual and Five-Year Reports on Capital Funds Funded by Developer 
Fees for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 
(C. Holmes) 
 
It is requested that the City Council receive and file the annual and five-year Reports on Capital Funds Funded 
by Developer Fees for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021. 

 Extension of Affordable Housing Loan Agreement and Covenants for 
Daybreak Grove and Sunrise Place Apartments 
(A. Finestone) 
 
In 1991, the City loaned Daybreak Housing Partnership Low-Moderate Affordable Housing Set-Aside funds for 
the construction of Daybreak Grove (1256 E Washington Ave. Escondido CA 92027) and Sunrise Place 
Apartments (1245 Grand Ave. Escondido CA 92027), and received 30-year affordability restrictions on the 
properties. Daybreak Housing Partnership has requested an extension of the loan and covenants on the 
property in order to preserve the properties’ affordability. 

 Conversion of Tax-Exempt Bonds for the Financing of Windsor Gardens 
Apartments 
(A. Finestone) 
 
In 2019, the City of Escondido sold 1600 W. Ninth Avenue to Windsor Gardens Housing Associates, LP for the 
purpose of preserving the affordability of Windsor Gardens Apartments. The loan was converted to a tax-
exempt bond in 2020 in order to allow Windsor Gardens Housing Associates LP to access Low-Income 
Housing Tax Credit funding to rehabilitate and modernize the property. Construction has been completed and 
Windsor Gardens Housing Associates LP is requesting that the City convert the tax-exempt bonds back to a 
conventional seller-carry back loan for the remainder of the life of the loan. 

773

Item 16.



- 2 -  
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 TEFRA Hearing for Heritage Park Escondido 
(A. Finestone) 
 
A Standard Companies and AOF/Pacific Affordable Housing Corporation partnership is purchasing Heritage 
Park Escondido, the existing 196-unit senior apartment complex. In the mid-1980’s, the Escondido Community 
Development Commission issued Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds which will be repaid by this transaction. 
This transaction will increase the number of affordable housing units at Heritage Park and will extend the 
affordability period to the term of the new bonds. Standard Companies has requested the City authorize CMFA 
to issue up to $XX in bonds for the project. The Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 (TEFRA) 
establishes a public hearing required by the IRA for the issuance of tax-exempt debt. This action will allow 
Standard Companies to apply for new bonds to purchase renovate the development. 

CURRENT BUSINESS  

 Adopt Resolution Updating the Salary Plans for the Unclassified 
Clerical/Technical Group, Salary Bands for the Management Group, the 
Unclassified Service Schedule List, and the Part-Time Hourly 
Compensation Plan 
(J. Perpetua) 
 
It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution Nos. 2021-172 and 2021-173 to amend and re-establish 
the salary schedule for the Unclassified and Management groups and the Part-Time Hourly Compensation 
Plan. 

 Appointment of Deputy Mayor 
(Z. Beck) 
 
It is requested that the City Council appoint Councilmember Tina Inscoe to serve as Deputy Mayor in 
accordance with Ordinance No. 2020-28. 

 Boards and Commissions Policy Update 
(Z. Beck) 
 
It is requested that the City Council approve recommendations from the Boards and Commissions 
Subcommittee. 

 City Councilmember and Mayor Compensation 
(M. McGuinness) 
 
It is requested that the City Council consider adoption of Ordinance No. 2021-13 amending Section 2-28(a) of 
the Escondido Municipal Code to increase the salary for the City Councilmembers from $2,088.43 per month, 
to $2,297.27 per month, and amending Section 2-28(b) to increase the (total) salary of the Mayor from 
$5,895.09, to $6,484.59, effective on the date the City Councilmembers elected in 2022 are sworn into office. 

 Revenue Measure Subcommittee Report 
(P. McNamara/M. Morasco) 
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

December 22, 2021 NO MEETING (Christmas Break)  

 

December 29, 2021 NO MEETING (Christmas Break)  

  

774

Item 16.


	Top
	Item 1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING, AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB)
	Item 2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
	Item 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting of December 8, 2021
	Item 4. CONSULTING AGREEMENT FOR BENEFITS INSURANCE BROKER SERVICES 
	Resolution No. 2021-175 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-175 

	Item 5. EKG CARDIAC MONITOR PURCHASE 
	Resolution No. 2021-179R 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-179R

	Item 6.  PURCHASE ONE TYPE 3 WILDLAND BRUSH ENGINE FROM BOISE MOBILE EQUIPMENT INC. OF BOISE, IDAHO 
	Resolution No. 2021-182
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021.182 

	Item 7. PURCHASE THREE MEDIX AMBULANCES FROM REPUBLIC EMERGENCY VEHICLE SALES (REPULIC-EVS) THROUGH SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE SALES OF KENNEDALE, TEXAS 
	Resolution No. 2021-181
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021.181

	Item 8.  PURCHASE THREE SUTPHEN MONARCH FIRE ENGINES FROM SUTPHEN INC. OF DUBLIN, OHIO
	Resolution No. 2021-180
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-180 

	Item 9. JOINT-USE PARKING AGREEMENT WITH CLASSICAL ACADEMY IN A CITY-OWNED PARKING LOT ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF WOODWARD AVENUE, ADDRESSED AS 251 WOODWARD AVENUE (PL21-0026)
	ATTACHMENT 1
	Resolution No. 2021-186 
	Exhibit A - R2021-186
	Exhibit B - R2021-186 
	Exhibit C - R2021-186
	Exhibit D - R2021-186

	Item 10. ACCEPTANCE OF $3,375 SAN DIEGO SENIORS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION HOLIDAY GRANT
	ATTACHMENT 1
	Resolution No. 2021-187 

	Item 11. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY FOR THE ACQUISITION OF A DRAINAGE EASEMENT OVER A PORTION OF FELICITA COUNTY PARK IDENTIFIED AS A COUNTY ASSESSOR PARCEL NO. 238-380-06-00
	ATTACHMENT 1
	ATTACHMENT 2
	ATTACHMENT 3
	Resolution No. 2021-174
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-174 

	Item 12. AMENDMENT TO CHAPTERS 14 AND 22 OF THE ESONDIDO MUNICIPAL CODE
	Ordinance No. 2021-15 
	Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2021-15
	Ordinance No. 2021-16
	Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2021-16

	Item 13. WEST 7TH AVENUE AND SOUTH BROADWAY WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT: BID AWARD, CONSULTING AGREEMENTS, AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT
	ATTACHMENT 1
	Resolution No. 2021-159 
	Exhibit A - R2021-159 
	Resolution No. 2021-161
	Exhibit A - R2021-161 

	Item 14. CITY OF ESCONDIDO INDEPENDENT REDISTRICTING COMMISSION UPDATE AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 
	ATTACHMENT 1
	ATTACHMENT 2
	ATTACHMENT 3
	ATTACHMENT 4

	Item 15. HOMELESSNESS AND TRANSIENCY UPDATE WORKSHOP
	Item 16. FUTURE AGENDA
	CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT



